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FART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Valhi, Inc. (NYSE: VHI) is primarily a helding company. We operate
through our wholly-owned and majority-owned subsidiaries, including NL
Industries, Inc., Kronos Worldwide, Inc., CompX International Inc. and Waste
Control Specialists LLC (*WCS*). Kronos (MYSE: KRC), WL (NYSE: NL) and CompX
{H¥SE 2Amex: CIX) each file periedic reports with the U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC").

Cur principal executive offices are located at Three Lincoln Center, 5430
LBJ Freeway, Suite 1700, Dallas, Texas 75240. Cur telephone number is (972)
233-1700. We maintain a worldwide website at www.valhi.net.

Brief History

LLC Corporation, our legal predecessor, was incorporated in Delaware in
1932, We are the successor company of the 1%87 merger of LLC Corporation and
another entity controlled by Contran Corporation. We are majority owned by
Contran and its subsidiaries, which own approximately 955% of our outstanding
common stock at December 31, 2011, Substantially all of Contran's ocutstanding
voting stock is held by trusts established for the benefit of certain children
and grandchildren of Harold C. Simmons (for which Mr. Simmons is the sole
trustee) or is held directly by Mr. Simmons or other persons or entities
related to Mr. Simmons. Consequently, Mr. Simmons may be deemed to control
Contran and us.

¥ey events in our history include:
« 1279 - Contran acquires control of LLC;
¢ 1981 - Contran acquires control of our other predecessor company;
« 1982 - Contran acguires control of Keystone Consolidated
Industries, Inc., a predecessor to CompX:
¢ 1984 - Keystone spins-off an entity that includes what is to
become CompX; this entity subsequently merges with LLC;

e 1986 - Contran acguires control of NL, which at the time owns 100%
of Kronos and a 50% interest in Titanium Metals Corporation

{"TIMET"};

¢ 19%87 - LLC and another Contran controlled company merge to form
Valhi, our current corporate structure;

e 1988 - NL spins-off an entity that includes its investment in
TIMET;

¢ 1995 - WCS begins start-up operations;
* 1996 - TIMET completes an initial public offering;

¢ 2003 - NL completes the spin-off of Kronos through the pro-rata
distribution of Kronos shares to its shareholders including us;

¢ 2004 through 2005 - HNL distributes EKreneos shares to  its
shareholders, including us, through quarterly dividends;

« 2007 - We distribute all of our TIMET common stock to our
shareholders through a steck dividend;

e 2008 - WCS receives a license for the disposal of Dbyproduct
material and begins construction of the byproduct facility
infrastructure;

*  200% - WCS receives a license for the disposal of Class R, B and C
low-level radicactive waste and completes construction of the
byproduct facility;

e 2010 - Kronos completes a secondary offering of its common stock
lowering our ownership of Kronocs to 80%;



s 2011 - WCS begins construction on its Compact and Federal low-
level and mixed low-level radicactive waste ("LLEW") disposal
facilities; and

* 2012 - Construction for the Compact and Federal LLREW disposal
facilities is completed.

Unless otherwise indicated, references in this report to “we", ™us” or
"our” refer to Valhi, Inc. and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole,

Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-leocking statements
within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1335, as
amended. Statements in this Annual Report that are not historical facts are
forward-looking in nature and represent management’s beliefs and assumptions
based on currently available information. In some cases, you can identify
forward-locking statements by the use of words such as "believes," "intends,"
"may," "should," "could," "anticipates," "expects" or comparable terminoleogy,
or by discussions of strategies or trends. Although we believe that the
expectations reflected in such forward-leocking statements are reasonable, we do
not know if these expectations will be correct. Such statements by their
nature involve substantial risks and uncertainties that could significantly
impact expected results. Actual future results could differ materially from
those predicted. The factors that could cause actual future results to differ
materially from those described herein are the risks and uncertainties
discussed in this Quarterly Report and those described from time to time in our
other filings with the SEC include, but are not limited to, the following:

s Future supply and demand for our products;

e The extent of the dependence of certain of our businesses on certain
market sectors;

s The cyclicality of certain of our businesses (such as Kronos' titanium
dioxide pigment ("TiO,") cperations];

s Customer inventory levels;

s Changes in raw material and other operating costs (such as energy, ore
and steel costs)and our ability to pass those costs on Lo our customers
or offset them with reductions in other operating costs;

* Changes in the availability of raw materials (such as ore);

s General global esconomic and political conditions (such as changes in the
level of gross domestic product in various regions of the world and the
impact of such changes on demand for, among other things, TiO; and
component products);

s Competitive products and prices, including increased competition Zfrom
low-cost manufacturing sources (such as China);

» Possible disruption of our business or increases in the ccst of doing
business resulting from terrorist activities or global conflicts;

s Customer and competitor strategies;

* The impact of pricing and production decisions;

s Competitive technology positions;

¢ The introduction of trade barriers;

» The ahility of our subsidiaries to pay us dividends;

* The impact of current or future government regulations (including
employee healthcare benefit related regulations);

» Uncertainties associated with new product development and the
development of new product features;

« Fluctuatiocns in currency exchange rates (such as changes in the exchange
rate betwsen the U.S5. dollar and each of the euro, the Norwegian krone,
the Canadian dollar and the Wew Taiwan dollar) or possible disruptions to



our business resulting from potential instability resulting from
uncertainties associated with the euro;

Operating interruptions (including, but not limited teo, labor disputes,
leaks, natural disasters, fires, expleosions, unscheduled or unplanned
downtime and transportation interrupticons);

The timing and amounts of insurance recoveries;

Cur ability te renew, amend, refinance or establish credit facilities;
Cur ability to maintain sufficient ligquidity;

The ultimate outcome of income tax audits, tax settlement initiatives ox
other tax matters;

Our ultimate ability to utilize income tax attributes or changes in
income tax rates related to such attributes, the benefits of which have
been recognized under the more-likely-than-not recognition criteria
{such as EKronocs’' ability to wutilize its German net operating loss
carryforwards) ;

Environmental matters (such as those requiring compliance with emissian

and discharge standards for existing and new facilities, or new
developments regarding environmental remediation at sites related to our
former cperations);

Government laws and regulations and possible changes therein (such as
changes in government regulations which might impose wvarious cbligations
on present and former manufacturers of lead pigment and lead-based
paint, including WL, with respect to asserted health concerns associated
with the use of such products);

The ultimate resolution of pending litigation (such as NL's lead pigment
litigation, environmental and other litigation and Kronos® class action
litigation) ;

Our ability to comply with covenants contained in our revolving bank
credit facilities;

Our ability to complete, obtain approval of and comply with the
conditions of our licenses and permits (such as approval by the Texas
Commission on Envirommental Quality (*TCEQ") of license conditions of
WCS's LLRW disposal license including its financial assurance
provisions); and

Possible future litigation.

Should one or more of these risks materialize (or the consegquences of such
development worsen), or should the underlying assumptions prove incorrect,
actual results could differ materially f£rom those currently forecasted or
expected. We disclaim any intention or obligation to update or revise any
forward-looking statement whether as a result of changes in information, future

events or otherwise.



Segments

We have three consclidated operating segments at December 31, 2011:

Chemicals
Kronos Worldwide, Inc.

Component Products
CompX Internaticonal Inc.

Waste Management
Waste Control Specialists LLC

Our chemicals segment is operated through
our majority control of Kronos. Kronos is
a leading global producer and marketer of
value-added TiO,, a base industrial
product used in a diverse range of
customer applications and end-use markets,
including coatings, plastics, paper, food,
cosmetics, inks, textile fibers, rubber,
pharmaceuticals, glass, ceramics and other
industrial and consumer markets.

We operate in the component products
industry through our majority control of
CompX. CompX is a leading manufacturer of
engineered components utilized in a
variety of applications and industries.

CompX manufactures engineered components
that are sold to a wvariety of industries
including office furniture, recreational

transportation ([including boats),
mailboxes, toolboxes, home appliances,
banking equipment, vending eguipment and
computer related eguipment. CompX has

production facilities in North Rmerica and
Asia.

WS is cur subsidiary which operates a
West Texas facility for the processing,
treatment, storage and dispecsal of a broad
range of low-level radicactive, hazardous,
toxic and other wastes. WCS obtained a
byproduct disposal license in 2008 and
began disposal operations at this facility
in October 2009. In January 2008 WCS
received a LLRW disposal license, which
was signed in September 20089.
Construction of the LLEW disposal
facilities began in 2011 and we currently
expect them to be £fully certified and
operational in the first half of 2012.

For additional information about our segments and eguity investments see
“Part II - Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations” and Notes 2 and 7 to our Conscolidated Financial

Statementcs.



CHEMICALS SEGMENT - KRONOS WORLDWIDE, INC.

Business Overview - Through our majority-controlled subsidiary,
Kronos, we are leading global producer and marketer of value-added titanium
dioxide pigments ("Tio.,"), a base industrial product used in a wide range of
applications. ¥ronos, along with its distributeors and agents, sells and
provides technical services for its products to over 4,000 customers in
approximately 100 countries with the majority of sales in Europe and Horth
America. We believe that Kronos has developed considerable expertise and
efficiency in the manufacture, sale, shipment and service of its products in
domestic and international markets.

Tid, is a white inorganic pigment used in a wide range of products for
its exceptional abilicy to impart whiteness, brightness, opacity and
durability. TiQ, is a critical component of everyday applications, such as
coatings, plastics and paper, as well as many specialty preoducts such as inks,
food and cosmetics. Ti0, is widely considered to be superior to alternative
white pigments in large part due to its hiding power (or opacity), which is
the ability to cover or mask other materials effectively and efficiently.
Ti0, is designed, marketed and sold based on specific end-use applications.

Ti0, is the largest commercially used whitening pigment because it has a
high refractive rating giving it more hiding power than any other commercially

produced white pigment. In additien, Ti0, has excellent resistance to
interaction with other chemicals, good thermal stability and resistance to
ultraviolet degradaticon. Although there are other white pigments on the

market, we helieve there are no effective substitutes for Ti0; because no
other white pigment has the physical properties for achieving comparable
opacity and brightness or can be incorporated in as cost-effective a manner.
Pigment extenders such as kaolin clays, calcium carbonate and polymeric
opacifiers are wused together with TiO; in a number of end-use markets.
Howewver, these products are not able to duplicate the opacity performance
characteristice of Ti0, and we believe these products are unlikely to have a
gignificant impact on the use of TiQ;.

TiQ, is considered a "guality-of-life” product. Demand for Ti0O; has
generally been driven by worldwide gross domestic product and has generally
increased with rising standards of living in wvaricus regions of the world.
According to industry estimates, Ti0, consumption has grown at a compound
annual growth rate of approximately 3.3% since 18%0. Per capita consumption
of Tio, in the United States and Western Europe far exceeds that in other
areas of the world, and these regions are expected to continue to be the
largest consumers of TiO;. We believe that North America and Western Eurcpe
currently account for approximately 16% and 22% of glcbal Ti0: consumption,
respectively. Markets for Ti0, are increasing in South America, Eastern
Europe, the Far Bast and China and we believe these are significant markets
that will continue to grow as economies in these regions continue to develop
and guality-of-life products, including Ti0,, experience greater demand.

In recent years, olobal production capacity for Ti0, has modestly
increased primarily due to debottlenecking existing production facilities.
However, during 2008 and 2009, several Ti0; manufacturers permanently reduced
capacity at high operating cost facilities in Europe, North America and China,
in part in connection with environmental-related issues. Decreased capacity,
along with the decline in customer inventories which occurred in the first
half of 2009, led to industry-wide tightness in TiO: inventories. BAs a result
of these factors, Ti0., selling prices began to increase in the second half of
2009 and continued to increase througheout 2010 and 2011. Further increases in
Tio, selling prices are expected to be implemented in 2012.



Products and End-use Markets

We, including our predecessors, have produced and marketed TiO, in North
America and Europe, our primary markets, for over 30 years. We believe that
we are the largest producer of TiC; in Europe with approximately one-half of
our sales volumes attributable to markets in Burope. The table below shows
our market share for our significant markecs, Europe and North America, for
the last three wyears. Market share data prior to 2011 has been restated to
include China, India and certain other smaller gleobal markets.

2009 2010 2011
Europe 18% 19% 12%
HNorth America 17% 18% 17%

We believe that we are the leading seller of TiO; in several countries,
ineluding Germany, with an estimated 10% share of worldwide TiO, sales wvolume
in 2011. ©Owverall, we are the world's third-largest producer of TiO,.

We offer our customers a broad portfolio of products that include over
40 different TiC. pigment grades under the Kronos? trademark which provide a
variety of performance properties to meet customers’ specific requirements.
Cur major customers include domestic and international paint, plastics,
decorative laminate and paper manufacturers. We ship TiO; to our customers in
either a powder or slurry form via rail, truck or ocean carrier. Sales of our
core TiC, pigments represented approximately %2% of ocur net sales in 2011. We
and our agents and distributors primarily sell and provide technical services
for our products in three major end-use markets: coatings, plastics and paper.

The following tabkles show our approximate sales volume by gecgraphic
region and end use for the year ended December 31, 2011:

Sales Veolumes Percentages Sales Volumes Percentages
by Geographic Region by End-use
Europe S3% Coatings S3%
North America 32% Plastics 35%
Rsia Pacific 10% Other 8%
Rest of World 5% Paper 4%

Some of the principal applications for our products include the
foellowing:

Tig, for Coatings - Our TiO. is used to provide opacity, durability,
tinting strength and brightness in industrial coatings, as well as coatings
for home interiors and exteriors, automcbiles, aircraft, machines, appliances,
traffic paint and other special purpose coatings. The amount of Ti0O; used in
coatings varies widely depending on the opacity, ceolor and quality desired.
In general, the higher the opacity reqguirement of the coating, the greater is
its Ti0, content.

Ti0, for Plastics - We produce Ti0, pigments that improve the optical
and physical properties in plastics, including whiteness and opacity. Ti0; is
used to provide opacity in items such as c¢ontainers and packaging materials,
and vinyl products such as windows, door profiles and siding. Tio, also
generally provides hiding power, neutral wundertone, brightness and surface
durability for housewares, appliances, toys, computer cases and food packages.
Tio.*s high brightness along with its opacity, is used in some engineering
plastics to help mask their undesirable natural color. Ti0; is also used in
masterbatch, which is a concentrate of TiC; and other additives and is one of
the largest uses for Ti0; in the plastics end-use market. In masterbatch, the



TiO, is dispersed at high ceoncentrations into a plastic resin and is then used
by manufacturers of plastic containers, bottles, packaging and agricultural
films.

Ti0, for Paper - Our TiQ.; is used in the production of several types of
paper, including laminate (deceorative) paper, filled paper and coated paper to
provide whiteness, brightness, opacity and color stability. Although we sell
our TiO; to all segments of the paper end-use market, our primary focus is on
the TiQ, grades used in paper laminates, where several layers of paper are
laminated together using melamine resin under high temperature and pressure.
The top layer of paper contains Ti0; and plastic resin and is the layer that
is printed with decorative patterns. Paper laminates are used to replace
materials such as wood and tile for such applications as counter tops,
furniture and wallboard. Ti0; is beneficial in these applications because it
assists in preventing the material from fading or changing color after
prolonged exposure to sunlight and other weathering agents.

Ti0, for Other Applications - We produce Tid; to improve the opacity and
hiding power of printing inks. Ti0O; allows inks to achieve wvery high print
guality while not interfering with the technical requirements of printing
machinery, including low abrasion, high printing speed and high temperatures.
Our Ti0; is also used in textile applications where Tid, functions as an
opacifying and delustering agent. In man-made fibers such as rayon and
polyester, Ti0, corrects an otherwise undesirable glossy and translucent
appearance. Without the presence of TiO:, these materials would be unsuitable
for use in many textile applications,

We produce high purity sulfate process anatase TiO, used to provide
opacity, whiteness and brightness in a variety of cosmetic and personal care

products, such as skin cream, lipstick, eye shadow and toothpaste. Our TiQ;
iz alsc found in food products, such as candy and confectionaries, and in pet
foods where it is used to obtain uniformity of color and appearance. In

pharmaceuticals, our TiQO, is used commonly as a colorant in pill and capsule
coatings as well as in liguid medicines to provide uniformity of coler and
appearance. Kronos® purified anatase grades meet the applicable requirements
of the CTFAR (Cosmetics, Toiletries and Fragrances Association), USP and BP
{United States Pharmacopoeia and British Pharmacopoeial and the FDR (United
States Food and Drug Administration).

Our Ti0, business is enhanced by the following three complementary
businesses, which comprised approximately 8% of our net sales in 2011:

¢ We own and operate two ilmenite mines in HNorway pursuant to a
governmental concession with an unlimited term, We commenced
production from our second mine in 200%. Ilmenite is a raw material
used directly as a feedstock by some sulfate-process TiO; plants. We
believe that we have a significant competitive advantage because our
mines supply our feedstock reguirements for all of our Eurcpean
sulfate-process plants. We also sell ilmenite cre to third-parties,
some of whom are our competitors. The mines have estimated ilmenite
reserves that are expected to last at least 50 years.

¢ We manufacture and sell iron-based chemicals, which are co-products
and processed co-products of the sulfate and chloride process TiO;
pigment production. These co-product chemicals are marketed through
our Ecochem division and are primarily used as treatment and
conditioning agents for industrial effluents and municipal wastewater
as well as in the manufacture of iron pigments, cement and
agricultural products.

-7 -



* We manufacture and sell titanium oxychloride and titanyl sulfate,
which are side-stream specialty products from the production of TiO..
Titanium oxychloride i1s wused in specialty applications in the
formulation of pearlescent pigments, production of electroceramic
capacitors for cell phones and other electronic devices. Titanyl
sulfate productions are used in pearlescent pigments, natural gas
pipe and other specialty applications.

Manufacturing, Operations and Properties

We produce Ti0, in two crystalline forms: rutile and anatase. Rutile
Ti®, is manufactured using both a chloride production process and a sulfate
production process, whereas anatase Ti0, is only produced using a sulfate
production process. Manufacturers of many end-use applications can use either

form, especially during periocds of Ti0, supply tightness. The chloride
process 1is the preferred form for wuse in coatings and plastics, the two
largest end-use markets. Due to environmental factors and customer

considerations, the proportion of Ti0, industry sales represented by chloride
process pigments has increased relative to sulfate process pigments and in
2011, chloride process production facilities represented approximately 55% of
industry capacity. The sulfate process is preferred for use in selected paper
products, ceramics, rubber tires, man-made fibers, fcod and cosmetics. COnce
an intermediate TiQ, pigment has been produced by either the chloride or
sulfate process, it is "finished” into products with specific performance
characteristics for particular end-use applications through proprietary
processes dinvolving varicus chemical surface treatments and intensive
micronizing (milling).

s Chloride Process - The chloride process is a continuous process in
which chlorine is used to extract rutile TiQ;. This process has also
gained market share over the sulfate process because of the
relatively lower upfront capital investment in plant and eguipment
reguired. The chloride process produces less waste than the sulfate
process because much of the chlorine is recycled and feedstock
bearing higher titanium content is used. The chloride process alsc
has lower energy regquirements and is less labor-intensiwve than the
sulfate process. The chloride process produces an intermediate base
pigment with a wide range of properties.

e Sulfate Process - The Sulfate process is a batch process in which
sulfuric acid is used to extract the Ti0; from ilmenite or titanium
slag. After separation from the impurities in the ore (mainly iron)
the Ti0, is precipitated and calcined to form an intermediate base
pigment ready for sale or can be upgraded through finishing
treatments.

We produced 550,000 metric tons of TiQ; in 2011, up from the 524,000
metric tons we produced in 2010. Qur TiOQ; production in 2011 was a new record

for us. Such production amounts include our G50% interest in the TiQ;
manufacturing joint venture discussed bkelow in “TiQ, Manufacturing Joint
Venture.” Our average production capacity utilization rates @ were

approximately 76% in 2009, near full capacity in 2010 and at full capacity in
2011. In late 2008, and as a result of the sharp decline in glcobal demand, we

experienced a build up in our inventory levels. In order to decrease our
inventory levels and improve our liguidity, we implemented production
curtailments during the first half of 2009, Consequently, our average

production capacity utilization rates were approximately 58% during the first
half of 2009 as compared to 94% during the second half of 20085.



We op

erate four TiO; plants in Europe (one in each of Leverkusen,

Germany; Nordenham, Germany; Langerbrugge, Belgium; and Fredrikstad, Norwayl.
In MNerth America, we have a Ti0, plant in Varennes, Quebec, Canada and,

through the

manufacturing joint venture described below in “Ti0, Manufacturing

Joint Venture,” a 50% interest in a TiO, plant in Lake Charles, Louisiana.

Our production capacity in 2011 was 550,000 metric tons, approximately
three-fourths of which was from the chloride production process.

The following table presents the division of our expected 2012 manufacturing

capacity by

plant location and type of manufacturing process:

% of Capacity by
TiQ, Manufacturing

Process
Facility Description Chloride Sulfate
Leverkusen, Germany (1) Tid, production, chloride and
sulfate process, co-products 39% 26%
Nordenham, Germany Tid, production, sulfate
process, co-products - 40
Langerbrugge, Belgium Ti0, production, chloride
process, co-products,
titanium chemicals products 21 -
Fredrikstad, Norway (2) Tio; production, sulfate
process, co-products - 21
Varennes, Canada Tig, production, chloride and
sulfate process, slurry
facility, titanium chemicals
products 21 13
Lake Charles, LA, US (3} Tid; production, chloride
process 18 -
Total 100% lo0%

{1

(2}

(3]

The  Leverkusen facility is located within an extensive
manufacturing complex owned by Bayer AG. We own the Leverkusen
facility, which represents about cne-third of our current TiQ;
production capacity, but we lease the land under the facilicy from
Bayer under a long-term agreement which expires in 2050. Lease
payments are periodically negotiated with Bayer for periods of at
least two years at a time. A majority-owned subsidiary of Bayer
provides some raw materials including chlerine, auxiliary and
operating materials, utilities and services necessary to operate
the Leverkusen facility under separate supplies and services
agreements.

The Fredrikstad plant is located on public land and is leased
until April 2013 with an option to extend the lease for an
additional 50 years.

We operate this facility in a 50/50 joint venture with Tioxide
mmericas Inc., a subsidiary of Huntsman Corporation and the amount
indicated in the table above represents cur share of the Tio;
produced by the joint venture. See Note 7 te our Consclidated
Financial Statements and "Ti0; Manufacturing Joint Venture.®”



We own the land underlying all of our principle production facilities
unless otherwise indicated in the table above.

Qur production capacity has increased by approximately 20% over the past
ten vyears due to debottlenecking programs, with only moderate capital
expenditures. We believe that our annual attainable production capacity for
2012 is approximately 550,000 metric tons and we currently expect we will
operate at near full production capacity for the year.

We also operate two ilmenite mines in Norway pursuant teo a governmental
concession with an unlimited term. In addition, we operate a rutile slurry
manufacturing plant in Lake Charles, Louisiana, which conwverts dry pigment
manufactured at the Lake Charles Ti0; facility for us into a slurry form that
is then shipped to customers.

We have wvarious corperate and administrative offices located in the
U.s., Germany, Norway, Canada and Belgium and various sales offices located in
the U.5., Canada, Belgium, France, the Netherlands and the United Kingdom.

TiQ, Manufacturing Joint Venture

Kronos Louisiana, Inc., one of cur subsidiaries, and a subsidiary of
Huntsman Corporation each own a 50% interest in a manufacturing joint wventure,
Louisiana Pigment Company, L.P., or LEC. LPC owns and operates a chloride-
process TiQ, plant located in Lake Charles, Louisiana. We and Huntsman share
production from the plant equally pursuant to separate offtake agreements.

A supervisory committee directs the business and affairs of the joint
venture, including production and output decisions. This committee is
composed of four members, two of whom we appoint and twe of whom Huntsman
appoints. Two general managers manage the operations of the joint wventure
acting under the direction of the supervisory committee. We appoint one
general manager and Huntsman appoints the other.

We are reguired to purchase one-half of the Ti0; produced by the joint
venture. The joint wventure is not consclidated in our financial statements,
because we do not control it. We account for our interest in the Jjoint
venture by the eguity method. The joint wventure operates on a break-even
basis and therefore we do not have any eguity in earnings of the joint
venture, We share all costs and capital expenditures egqually with Huntsman
with the exception of raw material and packaging costs for the pigment grades
produced. Our share of net costs is reported as cost of sales as the TiO; is
sold. See Notes 7 and 16 to our Consclidated Financial Statements.

Raw Materials

The primary raw materials used in chloride process TiO; are titanium-

containing feedstock (natural rutile ore or purchased slag), chlorine and
eoke. Chlorine is available from a number of suppliers, while petroleum coke
iz available from a limited number of suppliers. Titanium-containing

feedstock suitable for use in the chloride process is available from a limited
but increasing number of suppliers principally in Rustralia, South Africa,
Canada, India and the United States. We purchase chloride process grade slag
from Rig Tinte Iron and Titanium under a long-term supply contract that
expires at the end of 2016 and from Exxarc TSA Sands (BTY) LTD under a supply
contract that expires in December 2012, We purchase upgraded slag from Q.I.T.
Fer et Titane Inc. (a subsidiary of Rio Tinto Ireon and Titanium) under a long-
term supply contract that expires at the end of 2015. We purchase natural
rutile ore primarily from Iluka Resources, Limited under contracts that expire
in 2012. In the past we have been, and we expect that we will continue to be,
successful in obtaining long-term extensions to these and other existing
supply contracts prior to their expiratiom. We expect the raw materials



purchased under these contracts to meet our chloride process feedstock
reguirements over the next several years.

The primary raw materials used in sulfate process TiO; are titanium-
containing feedstock, primarily ilmenite or purchased sulfate grade slag and
sulfuriec acid. Sulfuric acid is available from a number of suppliers.
Titanium-containing feedstock suitable for use in the sulfate process is
available from a limited number of suppliers principally in Norway, Canada,
Bustralia, India and South Africa. BAs one of the few vertically-integrated
producers of sulfate process Ti0;, we operate two rock ilmenite mines in
Norway, which provided all of the feedstock for our European sulfate process
Ti0, plants in 2011. We expect ilmenite production from our mines to meet our
Eurcopean sulfate process feedstock reguirements for the foreseeable future.
For cur Canadian sulfate process plant, we also purchase sulfate grade slag
primarily from Q.I.T. Fer et Titane Inc. (a subsidiary of Rioc Tinto Iron and
Titanium), under a long-term supply contract that expires at the end of 2014.
We expect the raw materials purchased under these contracts to meet our
sulfate process feedstock regquirements over the next several years.

Many of our raw material contracts contain fixed gquantities we are
required to purchase, or specify a range of quantities within which we are
reguired to purchase. The pricing under these agreements is generally
negotiated quarterly or semi-annually depending upon the suppliers.

The following table summarizes our raw materials purchased or mined in
2011.

Raw Materials
Production Process/Raw Material Procured or Mined
(In thousands of

metric tons)

Chloride process plants:
Purchased slag or rutile ore 486

Sulfate process plants:
Ilmenite ore mined and used internally 326
Purchased slag 25

Salesz and Marketing

our marketing strategy is aimed at developing and maintaining strong
customer relationships with new and existing accounts. Because Tio;
represents a significant raw material cost for our customers, the purchasing
decisions are often made by our customers’ senior management. We work to
maintain close relationships with the key decision makers, through in-depth
freguent in-person meetings. We endeavor teo extend these commercial and
technical relationships to multiple levels within our customers’ organization
using our direct sales force and technical service group to accomplish this
objective. We believe this has helped build customer loyalty to Krones and
strengthened our competitive position. Close cooperation and strong customer
relationships enable us to stay closely attuned to trends in our customers’
businesses. Where appropriate, we work in conjunction with our customers to
solve formulation or application problems by modifying specific product
properties or developing new pigment grades. We also focus our sales and
marketing efforts on those geographic and end-use market segments where we
believe we can realize higher selling prices. This focus includes
continuously reviewing and optimizing our customer and product portfolios.



Cur marketing strategy is also aimed at working directly with customers
to monitor the success of our products in their end-use applications, evaluate
the need for improvements in product and process technology and identify
cpportunities to develop new product solutions for our customers. Cur
marketing staff closely coordinates with our sales forece and technical
specialists teo ensure that the needs of our customers are met, and to help
develop and commercialize new grades where appropriate.

We s=ell a majerity of our products through our direct sales force
operating from six sales ocffices in EBurope and one sales office in Horth
America. We alsc utilize sales agents and distributors who are authorized to
sell our products in specific geographic areas. In Europe, our sales efforts
are conducted primarily through cur direct sales force and our sales agents.
Our agents do not sell any Ti0, products other than Kronos® brand products.
In MNorth America, our sales are made primarily through our direct sales force
and supported by a network of distributors. In addition teo our direct sales
force and sales agents, many of our sales agents also act as distributors to
service our smaller customers in all regions. We offer the same high lewvel of
customer and technical service te the customers whe purchase our products
through distributors as we offer to our larger customers serviced by our
direct sales force.

We sell to a diverse customer base and no single customer made up more
than 10% cf our sales for 2011. our largest ten customers accounted for
approximately 30% of sales in 2011.

Neither our business as a whole nor that of any of our principal product
groups 15 seasonal to any significant extent. However, Ti0, sales are
generally higher in the second and third guarters of the year, due in part to
the increase in paint production in the spring to meet demand during the
spring and summer painting seasons. We have historically operated our
production facilities at near full capacity rates throughout the entire year,
which among other things helps to minimize cur per-unit production costs. As
a result, we normally will build inventories during the first and fourth
guarters of each year, in order to maximize our product availability during
the higher demand pericds normally experienced in the second and third
guarters, :

Competition

The TiO; industry 1is highly competitive. We compete primarily on the
basis of price, product gquality, technical service and the availability of

high performance pigment grades. Since Ti0; is not a traded commodity, its
pricing is largely a product of negotiation between suppliers and their
respective customers. Although certain Ti0, grades are considered specialty

pigments, the majority of our grades and substantially all of our preoducticn
are considered commodity pigments with price and availability being the most
significant competitive factors along with guality and customer service.
During 2011, we had an estimated 10% share of worldwide TiO, sales volume, and
based on =ales wveolumes, we believe we are the leading seller of Tid, in
several countries, including Germany.

Our principal competitors are E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., or Dupont;

Millennium Inorganic Chemicals, Inc. (a subsidiary of National Titanium
Dioxide Company Ltd.), or Cristal; Huntsman Corporation; Tronox Incorporated;
and Sachtleben Chemie GmbH. The teop five Ti0, producers account for

approximately 55% of the world’s production capacity.



The following chart shows our estimate of worldwide production capacity in
2011:

Worldwide Production Capacity - 2011

DuPont 20%
Cristal 12
Kronos 10
Huntsman )
Tronox B
Other 41

DuPont has over one-half of total HNorth American TiQ, production
capacity and is our principal North American competitor. Tronox filed for
Chapter 11 bankruptcy protection in January 200% and continued to operate as a
debtor-in-possession until February 2011, at which time it emerged from
Chapter 11. During 2011, Tronox agreed to participate in certain transactions
that, 1if approved, would give Exxarc Mineral Sands, a major producer of
titanium ore feedstock, an ownership interest in Tronox. There can be no
assurance that such transactions involving Tronox would be approved and
completed.

Over the past ten years, we and our competitors have increased industry
capacity through debottlenecking projects, which in part compensated for the
shut down of Ti0, plants in France, the United States, the United Kingdom and
China. In addition, in May 2011, Dupont announced a comprehensive plan to add
approximately 350,000 metric tons of global capacity in the next three years.
Although overall industry demand is expected to be higher in 2012 as compared
te 2011 as a result of improving worldwide economic conditions, we do not
expect any other significant efforts will be undertaken by us or our
competitors to further increase capacity for the foreseeable future, other
than through debottlenecking projects. If actual developments differ from our
expectations, the TiO, industry's performance and that of our own could be

unfavorably affected.

The Ti0, industry is characterized by high barriers to entry consisting
of high capital costs, proprietary technology and significant lead times
(typically three to five years in our experience) reguired to construct new
facilities or expand existing capacity. In addition, we believe the suppliers
of titanium-containing feedstock do not currently have the ability to supply
the raw materials that would be reguired to operate any such new TiO;
production capacity until they have invested in additional infrastructure
required to expand their own production capacity, which we believe will take a
few years to complete. We believe it is unlikely any new TiQ; plants will be
constructed in Europe or North America in the foreseeable future.

Research and Development

We employ scientists, chemists, process engineers and technicians who
are engaged in research and development, process technology and gquality
assurance activities in Leverkusen, Germany. These individuals have the
responsibility for improving chloride and sulfate production processes,
improving product guality and strengthening our competitive position by

developing new applications. our expenditures for these activities were
approximately $12 million in 200%, $13 million in 2010 and $20 millien in
2011. We expect to spend approximately $22 million on research and

development in 2012.

We continually seek to improve the guality of our grades and have been
successful at developing new grades for existing and new applications to meet
the needs of ocur customers and increase product life cycles. Since 20068, we
have added five new grades for plastics and coatings.



Patents, Trademarks, Trade Secrets and Other Intellectual Property Rights

We have a comprehensive intellectual property protection strategy that
includes obtaining, maintaining and enforcing our patents, primarily in the
United States, Canada and Europe. We also protect our trademark and trade
secret rights and have entered into license agreements with third parties
concerning variocus intellectual property matters. We have alsoc from time to
time been inveolved in disputes over intellectual property.

Patents - We have obtained patents and have numerous patent applications
pending that cover our products and the technology used in the manufacture of
cur products. Our patent strategy is important to us and our continuing
business activities. In addition to maintaining our patent portfolic, we seek
patent protection for our technical developments, principally in the United
States, Canada and Europe. U.S. Patents are generally in effect for 20 years
from the date of £filing. our U.S. patent portfolio includes patents having
remaining terms ranging from one year to 20 years.

Trademarks and Trade Secrets - Our trademarks, including Kronos®, are
covered by issued and/or pending registrations, including in Canada and the
United States. We protect the trademarks that we use in connection with the
products we manufacture and sell and have developed goodwill in connecticn
with our long-term use of our trademarks. We conduct research activities in
secret and we protect the confidentiality of our trade secrets through
reasonable measures, including confidentiality agreements and security
procedures. We rely upon unpatented proprietary knowledge and continuing
technological innovation and other trade secrets to develop and maintain our
competitive position. gur proprietary chloride production process is an
important part of ocur technology and our business could be harmed if we fail
to maintain confidentiality of our trade secrets used in this technoleogy.

Employees

As of December 31, 2011, our Chemicals Segment employed the folleowing
number of people:

Europe 1,288
Canada 440
United States (1) 45

Total 2.470

(1) Excludes employees of our Louisiana joint venture.

Our employees at each of our production facilities are organized by
labor unions. In Europe, our union employees are covered by master collective
bargaining agreements for the chemical industry that are generally renewed
annually. In Canada, our union employees are covered by a collective
bargaining agreement that expires in 2013.

Regulatory and Envirconmental Matters

our operations and properties are governed by various environmental laws
and regulations, which are complex, change frequently and have tended to
become stricter over time. These environmental laws govern, among other
things, the generation, storage, handling, use and transportation of hazardous
materials; the emission and discharge of hazardous materials into the ground,
air or water; and the health and safety of our employees. Certain of our
operatiocns are, or have been, engaged in the generation, storage, handling,
manufacture or use of substances or compounds that may be considered toxic ox
hazardous within the meaning of applicable environmental laws and regulations.
As with other companies engaged in similar businesses, certain of our past and
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current operaticns and products have the potential to cause environmental or
other damage. We have implemented and continue to implement wvarious policies
and programs in an effort to minimize these risks. Our policy is to comply
with applicable environmental laws and regulations at all our facilities and
to strive to improve cur envirconmental performance. It is possible that
future develcpments, such as stricter requirements in environmental laws and
enforcement policies, could adversely affect our operations, including
production, handling, use, storage, transportation, sale or disposal of
hazardous or toxic substances or reguire us to make capital and other
expenditures to comply, and could adversely affect our censelidated financial
position and results of operations or liguidity.

Our U.S5. manufacturing ocperations are governed by federal, state and
local envirocnmental and worker health and safety laws and regulations. These
include the Resource Conservation and Eecovery Rct, or RCRA, the Occupatiomal
Safety and Health Act, the Clean Air &Act, the Clean Water »2Act, the Safe
Drinking Water Act, the Toxic Substances Control Act and the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, as amended by the
Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act, or CERCLA, as well as the state
counterparts of these statutes. Some of these laws hold current or previous
owners or operators of real property liable for the costs of cleaning up
centamination, even if these owners or operators did not know of, and were not
responsible for, such contamination. These laws also assess liability on any
person who arranges for the disposal or treatment of hazardous substances,
regardless of whether the affected site is owned or operated by such person.
although we have not incurred and do not currently anticipate any material
liakilities in connection with such environmental laws, we may be required to
make expenditures for environmental remediation in the future.

While the laws regulating operations of industrial facilities in Europe
vary from country to country, a common regulatory framework is provided by the
Eurcpean Union, or the EU. Germany and Belgium are members of the EU and
focllow its initiatives. Morway is not a member but generally patterns its
environmental regulatory actions after the EU.

At our sulfate plant facilities in Germany, we recycle spent sulfuric
acid either through contracts with third parties or at our own facilities. 1In
addition, at our German locations we have a contract with a third-party to

treat certain sulfate-process effluents. At our Horwegian plant, we ship
spent acid to a third party location where it is used as a neutralization
agent. These contracts may be terminated by either party after giving three

or four years advance notice, depending on the contract.

From time to time, our facilities may be subject to environmental
regulatory enforcement under U.S5. and non-U.S. statutes. Typically we
establish compliance programs tc resclve these matters. Occasicnally, we may
pay penalties. To date such penalties have not involved amounts having a
material adverse effect on our consclidated financial position, results of
cperations or liguidity. We believe that all of our facilities are in
substantial compliance with applicable envircnmental laws.

In December 2008, the EU approved Registration, Evaluation and
uthorization of Chemicals, or RERCH, which took effect on June 1, 2007 and
will be phased in over an 1l-year period from the implementation date. Undex
REACH, companies that manufacture or import more than one ton of a chemical
substance per year in the EU will be reguired to register such chemical
substances in a central data base., REACH affects our European operations by
imposing a testing, evaluation and registration program for many of the
chemicals we use or produce in Europe. Under REACH, substances of wvery high
concern may require authorization for further use and may also be restricted
in the future, which could increase our producticn costs. We have established
a REACE team that is working to identify and list all substances purchased,
manufactured or imported by or for us in the EU. We spent 5.7 million in
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2008, 52.8 million in 2010 and $.4 million in 2011 on REACH compliance and we
do not anticipate that future compliance costs will be material to us.

Our capital expenditures related to ongoing environmental compliance,
protection and improvement programs, including capital expenditures which are
primarily focused on increased operating efficiency but alsco result in
improved environmental protection such as lower emissions from our
manufacturing facilities, were §30.2 million in 2011 and are currently
expected to be approximately $26 million in 2012.

COMPONENT PRODUCTS SEGMENT - COMPX INTERMATIOHAL INC.

Business Overview - Through our majority-controlled subsidiary, CompX,
we are a leading manufacturer of security products, precision kall bearing
slides and ergonomic computer support systems used in the office furniture,
transportation, postal, tool storage, appliance and a wvariety of other
industries. We are also a leading manufacturer of stainless steel exhaust
systems, gauges, and throttle controls for the marine industry. Our products
are principally designed for use in medium to high-end product applications,
where design, guality and durability are valued by our customers.

Manufacturing, Operations and Products - Our Component Products Segment
has a security products reporting unit, with one manufacturing facility in
South Careolina and one in Illinois shared with its marine components reporting
unit. The security products reporting unit manufactures mechanical and
electronic cabinet locks and other locking mechanisms used in a wvariety of
applications including ignition systems, mailboxes, file cabinets, desk
drawers, tool storage cabinets, vending and gaming machines, high security
medical cabinetry, electrical circuit panels, storage compartments, gas
station security. We believe we are a North American market leader in the
manufacture and sale of cabinet locks and other locking mechanisms. These
products include:

s di=c tumbkler locks which provide moderate security and generally
represent the lowest cost lock to produce;

* pin tumbler locking mechanisms which are more costly to produce and are
used in applications requiring higher levels of security, including
KeSet® and System 64 (which each allow the user to change the keying on
a single lock 64 times without removing the lock from its enclosure] and
TuBar®; and

s our innovative elLock and Stealthlock electronic locks which provide
stand alone or networked security and audit trail capability for drug
storage and other valuables through the use of a proximity card,
magnetic stripe or keypad credentials.

A substantial portion of our security products’ sales consist of
products with specialized adaptations to an  individual customer’'s
specifications, some of which are listed above. We also have a standardized
product line suitable for many customers, which is offered through a HNorth
american distribution network to lock distributeors and smaller original
eguipment manufacturers (“CEMs”) via our STOCK Locks® distribution program.



Our Component Products Segment’s furniture components reporting unit,
with facilities in Canada and Taiwan, manufactures a complete line of
precision ball bearing slides and computer keyboard, monitor and CPU support
systems for use in applications such as file cabinets, desks, computer server
racks, wall mounted computer applications, home appliances, tool storage
cabinets, imaging equipment, automated teller machines and other applications.
These products are manufactured to customer specifications and include:

*+ our patented Integrated Slide Lock which allows a file cabinet
manufacturer to reduce the possibility of multiple drawers being opened
at the same time;

s our patented adjustable Ball Lock which reduces the risk of heavily-
filled drawers, such as mechanic teoolboxes, from opening while in
movement ;

s our Self-Closing Slide, which is designed to assist in closing a drawer
and is used in applicaticns such as bottom mount freezers;

¢ articulating computer keyboard support arms (designed to attach to desks
in the workplace and home office environments to alleviate possible user
strains and stress and maximize usable workspace), along with our
patented LeverLock keyboard arm, which is designed toc make ergonomic
adjustments to the keyboard arm easier;

¢ (CPU storage devices which minimize adverse effects of dust and moisture
on desktop computers;

¢ flat panel computer monitor support systems designed to support one to
eight screens which can be adjusted for tilt, swing and rotation to
enable achievement of the correct ergonomic peosition; and

s keyboard, monitor and CPU wall mounts that retract against a wall for
use in healthcare environmants such as hospital rooms where healthecare
professicnals need access to technology that can be recessed against a
wall when not in use.

Our Component Products Segment alsc has a marine components reporting
unit, with a facility in Wisconsin and a facility shared with its security
products in Illinois. The marine components reporting unit manufactures and
distributes stainless steel exhaust components, gauges, throttle controls,
hardware and acceszsories primarily for performance and ski/wakeboard boats.
Dur specialty marine component products are high precision components designed
to operate within tight tolerances in the highly demanding marine environment.
These products include:

s original eguipment and aftermarket stainless steel exhaust headers,
exhaust pipes, mufflers and other exhaust components;

* high performance gauges such as GPS speedcometers and tachometers;

+ controls, throttles, steering wheels and other billet aluminum
accessories; and

s dash panels, LED lighting, rigging and other accesscries.

Qur Component Products Segment operated five manufacturing facilities at
December 31, 2011. For additional information, see alsoc “Item 2 -
Properties”, including information regarding leased and distribution-only
facilities.

Security Products Furniture Components Marine Components
Mauldin, SC Kitchener, Ontario Neenah, WI
Grayslake, IL Taipei, Taiwan Grayslake, IL



Raw Materials

Our primary raw materials are:

s coiled steel (used in the furniture components reporting unit for the
manufacture of precisicn ball bearing slides and ergonomic computer
support systems) ;

*+ zinc and brass (used in the security products reporting unit for the
manufacture of locking mechanisms);

¢ stainless steel (used primarily in the marine components reporting unit
for the manufacture of exhaust headers and pipes and other components);
and

¢ plastic resins (used primarily in the furniture components reporting
unit for injection molded plastics employed in the manufacturing of
ergonomic computer support systems).

These raw materials are purchased from several suppliers, are readily
available from numerous sources and accounted for approximately 18% of our
total cost of sales for 2011.

We occasionally enter into short-term supply arrangements £or our
commodity related raw materials to mitigate the impact of future increases in
raw material prices that are affected by commodity markets. These arrangements
generally provide for stated unit prices based upon achievement of specified
purchase wvolumes, which helps us stabilize our commodity related raw material
cOStS to a certain extent. Commodity related raw materials purchased outside of
these arrangements are sometimes subject to unanticipated and sudden price
increases. We generally seek to mitigate the impact of fluctuations in these
raw material ecosts on our margins through improvements in production
efficiencies or other operating cost reductions. In the event we are unable to
offset raw material cost increases with other cost reductions, it may be
difficult to recover those cost increases through increased product selling
prices or raw material surcharges due to the competitive nature of the markets
gserved by our products. Consequently, overall operating margins can be
affected by commodity related raw material cost pressures. Commodity market
prices are cyclical, reflecting overall economic trends, specific develcpments
in consuming industries and speculative investor activities.

Patents and Trademarks

Wwe hold a number of patents relating to our component products, certain
of which are believed to be important to us and our continuing business
activity. Patents generally have a term of 20 years, and our patents have
remaining terms ranging from less than one year to 11 years at December 31,
2011, Our major trademarks and brand names include:

Security Products Furniture Components Marine Components
CompX¥ Security Froducts™ CompX® Precision Slides Custom Marine®
Naticnal Cabinet Lock™ CompX® Waterloo™ Livorsi® Marine
Fort Lock™ CompX Ergonomi® Livorsi II® Marine
Fort® Dyanslide™ CMI™ Industrial
Timberline® Waterloo Furniture Mufflers

Chicage Lock™ Components Limited™ Custom Marine™
STOCK LOCKS™ wEC™ Stainless Exhaust
KeSet® The #1 Cheoice in
TuBar™ Performance
Stealth Lock Boating®

ACE® Mega Rim®

ACE® II Race Rim®

CompX eLock® CompX Marine®

Lockview?® Software
System £4%



Sales, Marketing and Distribution,

& majority of our component sales are direct to large OEM customers
through our factory-based sales and marketing professionals supported by
engineers working in concert with field salespecple and independent
manufacturers' representatives. We select manufacturers' representatives based
on special skills in certain markets or relationships with current or
potential customers.

A significant portion of our security products sales are made through
distributors. We have a significant North American market share of cabinet
lock security product sales as a result of the locksmith distribution channel.
We support our locksmith distributor sales with a line of standardized
products used by the largest segments of the marketplace. These products are
packaged and merchandised for easy availability and handling by distributors
and end users.

A significant portion of our furniture component ergonomic product sales
are made through wvalue-added resellers and distributors. Value-added
resellers generally provide services to end-customers in addition to those of
a distributor, such as installation services or packaging our products with
other products. We support our ergonomic value-added resellers by providing
them with products that may be customized or packaged to meet their needs. We
support our ergonomic distributor sales with a line of standardized products
used by the largest segments of the marketplace. These products are packaged
and merchandised for easy availability and handling by distributors and end
Users.

In 2011, our ten largest customers accounted for approximately 37% of
our tetal sales; however, no one customer accounted for more than 10% of our
sales. Of the 37% of total sales, 15% related te three security products
customers, 9% related to four furniture components customers and 13% related
to three customers in both of cur security preoducts and furniture componentcs
segments. Overall, our customer base is diverse and the loss of any single
customer in itself would not have a material adverse effect on our cperations.

Competition

The markets in which we participate are highly competitive. We compete
primarily on the basis of product design, including ergonomic and aesthetic
factors, product guality and durability, price, on-time delivery, service and
technical support. We focus our efforts on the middle and high-end segments
of the market, where product design, quality, durability and service are

valued by the customer. Our security products and furniture components
reporting units compete against a number of domestic and foreign
manufacturers. Our marine components reporting unit competes with small

domestic manufacturers and is minimally affected by foreign competitors.

Internaticonal Operations

Our Component Products Segment has substantial operations and assets
located outside the United States, principally furniture component operations
in Canada and Taiwan. The majority of our 2011 foreign sales are to customers

located in Canada. These operations are subject teo, among other things,
currency exchange rate fluctuations. Our Component Products Segment's
operating income has in the past been both favorably and unfavorably affected
by fluctuations in currency exchange rates. Political and economic
uncertainties in certain of the countries in which we operate may expose us to
risk of loss. We do not believe that there is currently any likelihood of
material loss through political or economic instability, seizure,

nationalization or a similar event. We cannot predict, however, whether events
of this type in the future could have a material adverse effect on our



operations. See Item 7 - "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations," Item 7A - "Quantitative and Qualitative
Disclozures BAbout Market Risk" and Nete 1 to our Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Regulatory and Environmental Matters

Cur operations are subject to federal, state, local and foreign laws and
regulations relating to the use, storage, handling, generation,
transportation, treatment, emission, discharge, disposal, remediation of and
exposure to hazardous and non-hazardous substances, materials and wastes
{("Environmental Laws"). Our operations also are subject to federal, state,
local and foreign laws and regulations relating to worker health and safety.
We believe we are in substantial compliance with &all such laws and
regulations. To date, the costs of maintaining compliance with such laws and
regulations have not significantly impacted our results. We currently do not
anticipate any significant costs or expenses relating teo such matters:
however, it is possible future laws and regulations may reguire us to incur
gignificant additional expenditures.

Employees

k= of December 31, 2011, our Component Products Segment employed the
following number of people:

nited States 457
Canada '’ 254
Taiwan B3

Total Jo4

(1) Approximately 74% of our Canadian employeses are represented by a
labor union covered by a ceollective bargaining agreement. B new
collective bargaining agreement, providing for wage increases from 1%
toe 2%, was ratified in January 2012 and expires January 2015,

We believe our labor relaticns are good at all of our facilities.
WASTE MANAGEMENT SEGMENT - WASTE CONTROL SPECIALISTS LLC

Business Overview - Qur Waste Management Segment was formed in 1555, and
in early 1997 we completed construction of the initial phase of our waste

management facility in West Texas. The original facility was initially
designed for the processing, treatment, storage and disposal of certain
hazardous and toxic wastes. We received the first wastes for disposal in

1997. Subseguently, we expanded our authorizations to include the processing,
treatment and storage of LLREW and mixed LLRW and the disposal of certain types
of exempt LLRW. In May 2008, TCEQ issued a byproduct materials disposal
license to us. In January 2009, TCEQ issued a near-surface low-level and
mixed LLREW disposal license to us. This license was signed in September 2009.

We currently operate our waste management facility on a relatively
limited basis. We began construction of the bypreoduct facility infrastructure
at our site in Andrews County, Texas in the third guarter of 2008, and this
facility began disposal operations in October 2005. Construction of the
Compact and Federal LLEW disposal facilities began in January 2011.
Construction of the Compact LLRW disposal facility was substantially complete
in MNovember 2011, and the Federal LLEW site was substantially complete in
February 2012. We currently expect the Compact LLRW disposal facility will be
fully certified and operaticnal by the end of March 2012, with the Federal
LLRW disposal facility fully certified and operational later in 2012.



Facility, Operations and Services - Our Waste Management Segment
operates one waste management facility located cn a 1,33B-acre site in West

Texas. The facility is permitted for 6.5 million cubic yards of airspace
landfill capacity for the disposal of RCRA, TSCA, Syproduct and LLEW and mixed
LLRW wastes. We alsc own approximately 13,500 acres of additional land

surrounding the permitted site, a small porticn of which is located in Hew
Mexico, which is available for future expansion. We believe our facility has
superior geclogical characteristics which make it an environmentally-desirable
location for this type of waste disposal. The facility is located in a
relatively remote and arid section of West Texas. The possibility of leakage
into any underground water table is considered highly remote because the
ground is composed of Triassic red bed clay and we do not believe there are
any underground aguifers or cother usable sources of water below the site based
in part on extensive drilling by the coil and gas industry and our own test
wzlls., Pursuant to the reguirements of WCS' LLRW dispeosal license, the State
of Texas, acting by and through the TCEQ, owns the real property for WCS'
licensed “compact waste dispeosal facility" and leases it back to WCS; and WCS
owns the real property for its licensed “"federal waste disposal facility”.
The remainder of WCS' permitted site, and the Texas portion of the surrounding
land described above, is subject tc the sale-leaseback transaction WCS entered
inte with the County of &ndrews, Texas, as discussed in Neote 9 to our
Consolidated Financial Statements.

The waste wmanagement facility operates under various licenses and
permits, including in the following categories:

» [LLEW Disposal. The LLEW disposal license allows WCS to dispose of
Class A, B and C LLEW in the Compact LLEW disposal facility and the
Federal LLEW disposal facility. The Federal LLEW disposal facility
is for LLEW that is the responsibility of the U.S5. government under
applicable law, and is also permitted for disposal of mixed LLRW.
The Compact LLEW disposal facility is licensed tec accept LLEW that
was either generated in Texas or Vermont, or has been approved for
importation to Texas by the Texas Low-Level Radicactive Waste
Disposal Compact Commission. Construction of the Compact and Federal
LLEW dispesal facilities began in January 2011. Construction of the
Compact LLRW disposal facility was substantially complete in November
2011, and the Federal LLREW dispesal facility was substantially
complete in February 2012, We currently expect the Compact LLEW
disposal facility will be fully certified and operatiocnal by the end
of March 2012, with the Federal LLREW dispocsal facility fully
certified and operational later in 2012. In order to fully utilize
the Compact LLRW disposal facility, we must obtain a license
amendment to allow the importation of LLRW, and the Texas Low-Level
Radiocactive Waste Disposal Compact Commission ("Texas Compact
Commission”) must approve import agreements with out-of-compact
generators. In order to fully utilize the Federal LLEW disposal
facility, we must enter inte a prime contract with the Department of
Energy ("DOE"). A prime contract is a contract for the disposal of
LLEW directly with the DOE or with a company that has a contract
directly with the DCE, as long as such an agreement is reviewed by
DOE prior to award.

¢ LLREW Treatment/Storage. In November 1997, the Texas Department of
State Health Services ("TDSHS") issued a license to us for the
treatment and storage, but not disposal, of LLEW and mixed LLREW. In
June 2007, the TDSHS regulatory authcrity £for this license was
transferred to TCEQ. The current provisions of this license
generally enable us tc accept such wastes for treatment and storage
from U.5. commercial and federal generators, including the DOE and
other governmental agencies. We accepted the first shipmencs of such
wastes in 1998,



s Byproduct Disposal. In May 2008, TCEQ issued us a license for the
disposal of byproduct material. Byproduct material includes uranium
or thorium mill tailings as well as eguipment, pipe and other
materials used to handle and process the mill tailings. We completed
construction of the byproduct facility infrastructure at our site in
Andrews County, Texas in the third guarter of 2009, and this facility
began disposal operations in October 200%. Byproduct materials are
disposed of in what we call the “Byproduct landfill.”

*  RCRA/TECA/Exempt. Our Waste Management Segment has permits from the
TCEQ and the U.5. Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA") to accept
hazardous and toxic wastes governed by RCRA and TSCA, for treatment,
storage and/or disposal. In ©OQctober 2005, our RCRA permit was
renewed for a new ten-year period. Likewise in December 2010, our
five-year TSCR authorization was renewed for a new five-year perioed.
We have obtained additional authority to dispose of certain
categories of LLEW, including naturally-occurring radioactiwve
material ("NOEM")} and exempt-level materials (radicactive materials
that do not exceed certain specified radicactive concentrations and

are exempt from licensing). Materials disposed of under these
permits and authorizations are disposed of in what we call the “RCRA
landfill.”

Cur LLRW Treatment/Storage facility alsc serves as a staging and
processing location for material that reguires other forms of treatment prior
to final disposal as mandated by the EPA or other regulatory bodies. Our
20,000 sguare footr treatment facility provides for waste
treatment/stabilization, warehouse storage and treatment facilities for
nazardous, toxic and mixed LLEW, drum to bulk, and bulk to drum materials
handling and repackaging capabilities,. Treatment operations involve
processing wastes through one or more chemical or other treatment metheds,
depending upon the particular waste being disposed and regulatory and customer
reguirements. Chemical treatment uses chemical oxidation and reduction,
chemical precipitation of heavy metals, hydrolysis and neutralization of acid
and alkaline wastes, and results in the transformation of waste into ipert
materials through one or more of these chemical processes. Certain treatment
processes involve technology which we may acquire, license or subcontract from
third parties. Once treated and stabilized, waste currently is either; (i)
placed in our landfills, (ii) stored onsite in drums or other specialized
containers or (iii} shipped to third-party facilities for final disposition.
Only waste that meets certain specified regulatory reguirements can be
disposed of in our landfills.

Sales - Our Waste Management Segment's target customers are industrial
companies, including nuclear utilities, chemical, aercspace and electronics
businesses and governmental agencies, including DOE, which generate low-level
radicactive, hazardous, mixed low-level radiocactive and other wastes. He
employ our own salespecple to market our services to potential customers,

Competition - The hazardous waste industry (other than LLEW and mixed
LLRW) currently has excess industry capacity caused by a number of factors,
including a relative decline in the number of envirenmental remediation
projects generating hazardous wastes and efforts on the part of waste
generators to reduce the volume of waste and/or manage waste onsite at their
facilities. These factors have led to reduced demand and increased price
pressure for non-radicactive hazardous waste management services. While we
believe our broad range of permits for the treatment and storage of LLEW and
mixed LLRW streams provide us certain competitive advantages, a key element of
our long-term strategy is to provide "one-stop shopping" for hazardous, LLRW

and mixed LLREW.



Competition within the hazardous waste industry is diverse and based
primarily on facility Ilocation/proximity to customers, pricing and customer
service. We expect price competition teo continue to he intense for RCRA- and
TSCh-related wastes. With respect to our low-level radicactive activities,
our principal competitors are Energy Soclutions, Inc., US Ecolegy Inc., and
Perma-Fix Environmental Services, Inc. These competitors are well established
and have significantly greater rescurces than we do, which could be important
factors teo our potential customers. We believe we may have certain
competitive advantages, including our environmentally-desirable location,
broad level of local community support, a rail cransportation network leading
to our facility and our capability for future site expansion.

The LLEW industry has very limited competition because; (i)commercial
low-level waste disposal facilities can only be licensed by the HNuclear
Regulatory Commission ("NRC") or states that have an agreement with NRC to
assume portions of its regulatory authority (“Agreement States”), (ii} the
facilities must be designed, constructed and operated to meet strict safety
standards and (iii) the operator of the facility must extensively characterize
the site on which the facility is located and analyze how the facility will
perform for thousands of years inte the future. Prior to the receipt of our
license, there were only three low-lewvel waste disposal facilities in the
United States. None of the three disposal facilities accept Class B or C LLEW
from generators located in states which do not have a formal agreement with
the state in which the disposal facility is located ({the "Compact System” or
the “Compact”). We believe we will be wvery competitive due to the limited
amount of competition and our "one-stop shopping” capabilities once our new
facilities are completed and in operation.

In the future, other commercial options may be available for the
disposal of Class B/C radicactive waste. In addition, onsite storage by our
customers is also an option and could be our biggest competition for disposal
gservices. Eventually, waste in storage must be disposed of so the customers
can decommission their facilities, so storage is only competing for the timing
of the eventual disposal.

Regulatory and Environmental Matters - Wwhile the waste management
industry has benefited from increased governmental regulation, it has alsc
become subject to extensive and evolving regulation by federal, state and local
authorities. The regulatory process reguires waste management businesses to
obtain and retain numercus coperating permits covering wvarious aspects of their
cperations, any of which could be subject to revocation, modification or
denial. Regulations alsoc allow public participation in the permitting process.
Individuals as well as companies may oppeose the granting of permits, In
addition, governmental policies and the exercise of broad discretion by
regulators are subject to change. It is possible our ability to modify, obtain
or retain permits on a timely basis could be impaired in the future. The leoss
of an individual permit or the failure to modify or obtain a permit could have
a significant impact on our Waste Management Segment's future coperating plans,
financial condition, results of operations or liguidity, especially because we
only operate one disposal site. For example, adverse decisions by governmental
authorities on our permit applications could cause us to abandon projects,
prematurely c¢lose our facility or restrict operations. See “Facility,
Operations and Services” above for a discussion of some of ocur Waste Management
Segment’s permits. Our RCRA permit for the RCRA landfill expires in 2015 and
TSCER authorization for the RCRA landfill expires in 2015. Our byproduct
material disposal license expires in 2018 and our LLRW disposal license expires
in 2024. OQur RCRA permit for the Federal LLRW disposal facility expires in
2018, and the TSCR authorization for that facility is pending. Cur LLRW
treatment/storage license is under ctimely renewal and is currently being
reviewed by the TCEQ. Such permits, licenses and authorizations can be renewed
subject to compliance with the reguirements of the application process and
approval by the TCEQ or the EPA, as applicable.



The Texas Compact Commission is responsible for managing the disposal
capacity of the Compact LLRW disposal facility. They do this by approving or
denying export petitions from Texas Compact generators that wish to ship their
waste to a different disposal site or approving or denying import petitions
from ocut-cf-compact generators that wish to ship their waste to the Compact
LLREW disposal facility. The Texas Compact Commission has approved rules for
the export and import of LLREW and is expected to consider import agreements in
the second guarter of 20i2.

From time to time federal, state and local authorities have proposed or
adopted other types of laws and regulations for the waste management industry,
including laws and regulations restricting or banning the interstate or
intrastate shipment of certain waste, changing the regulatory agency issuing a
license, imposing higher taxes on cut-of-state waste shipments compared to in-
state shipments, reclassifying certain categories of hazardous waste as non-
hazardous and regulating disposal facilities as public utilitcies. Certain
states have issued regulations that attempt to prevent waste generated within a
particular Compact from being sent to disposal sites cutside that Compact. The
U.5. Congress has also considered legislation that would enable or facilitate
such bans, restrictions, taxes and regulations. Due to the complex nature of
industry regulation, implementation of existing or future laws and regulations
by different levels of government could be inconsistent and difficult to
foresee. While we attempt to monitor and anticipate regulatory, pelitical and
legal developments that affect the industry, we cannot assure you we will be
able to do so. Nor can we predict the extent to which legislation or
regulations that may be enacted, or any failure of legislation or regulations
to be enacted, may affect our operations in the future.

The demand for certain hazardous and radicactive waste services we
intend to provide is dependent in large part wupon the existence and
enforcement of federal, state and lecal environmental laws and regulations
governing the discharge of those wastes inte the environment. We and the
industry as a whole could be adversely affected to the extent such laws or
regulaticons are amended or repealed or their enforcement is lessened.

Because of the high degree of public awareness of environmental issues,
companies in the waste management business may be, in the normal course of
their business, subject to judicial and administrative proceedings.
Governmental agencies may seek to impose fines or revoke, deny renewal of, or
modify any applicable operating permits or licenses. In addition, private
parties and special interest groups could bring actions against us alleging,
among other things, a viclation of operating permits or opposition to new
license authcorizations.

Employees - At December 31, 2011, we had 184 employees. We believe our
labor relations are good.

OTHER

NL Industries, Inc. - At December 31, 2011, NL owned B7% of CompX and
i10% of Kronos. NL also owns 100% of EWI RE, Inc., an insurance brokerage and
risk management services company and also holds certain marketable securities
and other investments. See Note 16 to our Consolidated Financial Statements
for additional information.



Tremeont LLC - Tremont is primarily a holding company through which we
held indirect ownership interests in Basic Management, Inc. ("BMI"), which
provides utility services to, and owns property (the "BMI Complex") adjacent
to, TIMET's facility in Nevada, and The Landwell Ceompany L.P. ("Landwell"),
which is engaged in efforts to develop certain land holdings for commercial,
industrial and residential purpeoses surrounding the BMI Complex.

In addition, we alsoc own real property related to certain of our former
business units.

Business Strategy - We routinely compare our ligquidity requirements and
alternative uses of capital against the estimated future cash flows to be
received from our subsidiaries and unconsolidated affiliates, and the estimated
sales value of those businesses. As a result, we have in the past, and may in
the future, seek to vraise additional capital, refinance or restructure
indebtedness, repurchase indebtedness in the market or otherwise, modify our
dividend policy, consider the sale of an interest in our subsidiaries, business
units, marketable securities or other assets, or take a combination of these or
other steps, to increase liguidity, reduce indebtedness and fund future
activities, which have in the past and may in the future inveolve related
companies. From time to time, we and our related entities consider
restructuring ownership interests among ocur subsidiaries and related companies.
We expect to continue this activity in the future.

We and other entities that may be deemed to be contrelled by or
affiliated with Mr. Hareld C. Simmons routinely ewvaluate acquisitions of
interests in, or combinaticns with, companies, including related companies, we
perceive to be undervalued in the marketplace. These companies may or may not
be engaged in businesses related to our current businesses. In some instances
we actively manage the businesses we acguire with a focus on maximizing return-
on-investment through cost reductions, capital expenditures, improved operating
efficiencies, selective marketing to address market niches, disposition of
marginal operations, wuse of leverage and redeployment of capital to more
productive assets, In other instances, we have disposed of our interest in a
company prior to gaining contrel. We intend to consider such activities in the
future and may, in cormection with such activities, consider issuing additional
equity securities and increasing our indebtedness.

Website and Available Information - Our fiscal year ends December 31. We
furnish our stockholders with annual reports containing audited financial
statements. In addition, we file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy
and information statements and other information with the SEC. Certain of our
consoclidated subsidiaries (Kronos, NL and CompX) also file annual, guarterly
and current reports, proxy and information statements and other information
with the SEC. We also make our annual reports on Form 10-K, guarterly reports
on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form B-K and amendments thereto, available
free of charge through our website at www.valhi.net as soon as reasonably
practical after they have been filed with the SEC. We alsc provide to anyone,
without charge, copies of such documents upon written request. Requests should
be directed to the attention of the Corporate Secretary at our address on the

cover page of this Form 10-K.

Additional information, including our Audit Committee charter, our Code
of Business Conduct and Ethics and our Corporate Governance Guidelines, can
also be found on our website. Information contained on our website is not part
of this Annual Report.

The general public may read and copy any materials we file with the SEC
at the SEC's Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, HE, Washington, DC 2054%.
The public may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference
Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-5EC-0330. We are an electronic filer. The
SEC maintains an Internet website at www.sec.gov that contains reports, proxy
and information statements and other information regarding issuers, such as
us, that file electronically with the SEC.



ITEM IA. RISK FACTORS

Listed below are certain risk factors associated with us and our
businesses. In addition to the potential effect of these risk factors
discussed below, any risk factor which could result in reduced earnings or
cperating losses, or reduced liguidity, could in turn adversely affect our
ability te service our liabilities or pay dividends on our common stock or
adversely affect the guoted market prices for our securities.

OQur assets consist primarily of investmente in our operating
subsidiaries, and we are dependent upon distributions from our subsidiaries to
service our liabilities.

The majority of our operating cash flows are generated by our operating
subsidiaries, and our ability to service liabilities and to pay dividends on
our common stock depends to a large extent upon the cash dividends or other
distributions we receive from our subsidiaries and ffiliates. Our
subsidiaries and affiliates are separate and distinct legal entities and they
have no obligation, contingent or otherwise, to pay such cash dividends or
other distributions teo us. In addition, the payment of dividends or other
distributions from our subsidiaries could be subject to restrictions on, or
taxation of, dividends or repatriation of earnings under applicable law,
monetary transfer restrictions, currency exchange regulations in jurisdictions
in which our subsidiaries operate or any other restrictions imposed by current
or future agreements to which our subsidiaries may be a party, including debt
instruments. Events beyond our contrel, including changes in general business
and economic conditions, could adversely impact the ability of our
subsidiaries to pay dividends or make other distributions to us. If our
suhsidiaries were to become unable to make sufficient cash dividends or other
distributions to wus, our ability to service our liabilities and to pay
dividends on our commeon stock could be adversely affected.

In addition, a significant portion of our assets consist of ownership
interests in our subsidiaries and affiliates. If we were reguired to
liguidate any of such securities in order to generate funds to satisfy our
liabilities, we may be reguired to sell such securities at a time or times at
which we would not be able to realize what we believe to be the long-term
value of such assets.

Demand for, and prices of, certain of our products are influenced by
changing market conditions for our products, which may result in reduced
earnings or operating losses.

Approximately 92% of our Chemicals revenues are attributable to sales of
Ti0,. Pricing within the glcbal TiO; industry over the long term is cyclical
and changes in economic conditions, especially in Western industrialized
nations, can significantly impact our earnings and operating cash flows.
Historically, the markets for many of our products have experienced
alternating periods of increasing and decreasing demand. Relative changes in
the selling prices for our products are one of the main factors that affect
the level of our profitability. In periods of increasing demand, our selling
prices and profit margins generally will tend to increase, while in periods of
decreasing demand ocur selling prices and profit margins generally tend to
decrease. In addition, pricing may affect customer inventory levels as
customers may from time to time accelerate purchases of TiO; in advance of
anticipated price increases or defer purchases of Ti0;, in advance of
anticipated price decreases. Our ability to further increase capacity without
additional investment in greenfield or brownfield capacity increases may be
limited and as a result, our profitability may become even more dependent upen
the selling prices of our products.



The demand for TiO, during a given vyear is also subject to annual
seasonal fluctuations. TiD; sales are generally higher in the second and
third guarters of the year. This is due in part to the increase in paint
production in the spring to meet demand during the spring and summer painting
season.

The Ti0; dindustry is concentrated and highly competitive and we £face
price pressures in the markets in which we operate, which may result in
reduced earnings or operating losses.

The global market in which we operate our business is concentrated with
the top five TiQ. producers accounting for 59% of the world's production
capacity and is highly competitive. Competition is based on a number of
factors, such as price, product guality and service. Some of our competitors
may be able to drive down prices for our products because their costs are
lower than our costs. In addition, some of our competitors® financial,
technological and other resources may be greater than our rescurces and such
competitors may be better able to withstand changes in market conditions. Our
competitors may be able to respond more guickly than we can to new or emerging
technologies and changes in customer regulrements. Furthey, consolidation of
our competitors or customers may result in reduced demand for ocur products or
make it more difficult for us to compete with our competitors. The occurrence
of any of these events could result in reduced earnings or operating losses.

Many of the markets in which ocur Component Products Segment operates are
mature and highly competitive resulting in pricing pressure and the need to
continuously reduce costs.

Many of the markets we serve are highly competitive, with a number of
competitors offering similar products. We focus our efforts on the middle and
high-end segment of the market where we feel that we can compete due to the
importance of product design, guality and durability to the customer.
However, our ability to effectively compete is impacted by a number of
factors. The occurrence of any of these factors could result in reduced

earnings or operating losses.

¢ Competitors may be able to drive down prices for our products bheyond our
ability to adjust costs because their costs are lower than ours,
especially products sourced from Asia.

* Competitors' financial, technological and other resocurces may be greater
than our rescurces, which may enable them to more effectively withstand
changes in market conditions.

= Competitors may be able to respond more guickly than we can Lo new or
emerging technologies and changes in customer reguirements.

¢« Consclidation of our competitors or cusctomers in any of the markets in
which we compete may result in reduced demand for our products.

*+ HNew competitors could emerge by modifying their existing producticn
facilities te manufacture products that compete with our products.

« We may not be able to sustain a cost structure that enables us to be
competitive.,

* Customers may no longer value our product design, gquality or durability
over the lower cost products of our competitors.

Higher costs or limited availability of our raw materials may reduce our
earnings and decrease our liguidity. In addition, many of our raw material
contracts contain fixed guantities we are required to purchase.

The number of sources for and availability of certain raw materials is
specific to the particular geographical regicn in which a facility is located.
For example, titanium-containing £eedstocks suitable for use in our Tio;
facilities are available from a limited number of suppliers around the world.
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Political and economic instability in the countries from which we purchase our
raw material supplies could adversely affect their availability. If our
worldwide wvendors were unable to meet their contractual obligations and we
were unable to obtain necessary raw materials, we could incur higher costs for
raw materials or may be reguired to reduce production levels. We expect our
feedstock ore costs will be significantly higher in 2012 as compared to 2011.
In addition, we may alsc experience higher operating costs such as energy
costs, which could affect our profitability. We may not always be able to
increase our selling prices to offset the impact of any higher costs or
reduced production levels, which could reduce our earnings and decrease our
liguidity.

We have long-term supply contracts that provide for our TiO, feedstock
requirements that currently expire through 2016, most of which we may be able
to renew. We may not be successful in renewing these contracts or in
obtaining long-term extensions to these contracts prior to expiration. The
agreements reguire us to purchase certain minimum guantities of feedstock with
minimum purchase commitments aggregating approximately $2.6 billion at
December 31, 2011. In addition, we have other long-term supply and service
contracts that provide for wvarious vraw materials and services. These
agreements require us to purchase certain minimum guantities or services with
minimum purchase commitments aggregating approximately $87 million at December
31, 2011. Our commitments under these contracts could adversely affect our
financial results if we significantly reduce our production and were unable to
modify the contractual commitments.

We could incur significant costs related to legal and environmental
remediation matters.

NL formerly manufactured lead pigments for use in paint. NL and others
have been named as defendants in various legal proceedings seeking damages for
personal injury, property damage and governmental expenditures allegedly
caused by the use of lead-based paints. These lawsuits seek recovery under a
variety of theories, including public and private nuisance, negligent product
design, negligent failure to warn, strict liakility, breach of warranty,
conspiracy/concert of action, aiding and abetting, enterprise liability,
market share or risk econtribution liability, intentiocnal tort, £fraud and
misrepresentation, wviolations of state consumer protection statutes, supplier
negligence and similar claims. The plaintiffs in these actions generally seek
to impose on the defendants responsibility for lead paint abatement and health
concerns associated with the use of lead-based paints, including damages for
personal injury, contribution and/or indemnification for medical expenses,
medical monitoring expenses and costs for educational programs. As with all
legal proceesdings, the outcome is uncertain. Any liability we might incur iIn
the future could be material. See alsc Item 3 - *Legal Proceedings - Lead
pigment litigation.”

Certain properties and facilities used in our former operations are the
subject of litigation, administrative proceedings or investigations arising
under wvarious environmental laws. These proceedings seek cleanup costs,
perscnal injury or property damages and/or damages for injury to natural
resources. Some of these proceedings involve claims for substantial amounts.
Environmental obligations are difficult to assess and estimate for numerous
reasons, and we may incur costs for environmental remediation in the future in
excess of amounts currently estimated. Any liability we might incur in the
future could be material. See alsg Item 3 - “Legal Proceedings -
Environmental matters and litigation.”



Our failure to enter into new markets with our Current Component Product
Segment’s businesses could result in the continued significant impact of
fluctuations in office furniture demand on its operating income.

In an effort to reduce our component products business dependence on the
office furniture market for certain preducts and to increase our participation
in other markets, we have been devoting resources teo identify new customers
and develop new applications for our products in markets outside of the office
furniture market, such as home appliances, toolboxes, healthcare and server
racks. Rdditionally, we seek to expand our product offering and enter new
markets through acquisitions. Developing new applications for our products or
acguiring new products through acguisitions invelves substantial risk and
uncertainties due to ocur limited experience with customers and applications in
these markets as well as facing competitors who are already established in

these markets. We may not be successful in developing new customers or
applications for our products or acguiring new product lines focused on
markets outside of the office furniture industry. Significant time may be

regquired to develop new applications and complete acguisitions and uncertainty
exists as to the extent te which we will face competition in this regard.

Oour development of innovative features for current products is critical
to sustaining and growing our Component Product Segment’s sales.

Bistorically, our Component Products Segments’ ability to provide value-
added custom engineered products that address reguirements of technology and
space utilization has been a key element of our success. We spend a
significant amount of time and effort to refine, improve and adapt our
existing products for new customers and applications. Since expenditures for
these types of activities are not considered research and development expense
under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
america, the amount of our research and development expenditures, which is not
significant, is not indicative of the overall effort invelved in the
development of new product features. The introduction of new product features
requires the coordination of the design, manufacturing and marketing of the
new product features with current and potential customers. The ability to
coordinate these activities with current and potential customers may be
affected by factors beyond our control. While we will continue to emphasize
the introduction of innovative new product features that target customer-
specific opportunities, there can be no assurance that any new product
features we introduce will achieve the same degree of success that we have
achieved with our existing products. Introduction of new product features
typically reguires us to increase production volume on a timely basis while
maintaining product gualitcy. Manufacturers often encounter difficulties in
increasing production volumes, including delays, guality control problems and
shortages of gualified personnel or raw materials. As we attempt to introduce
new product features in the future, there can be no assurance that we will be
able to increase production wvolume without encountering these or other
problems, which might negatively impact our financial condition or results of
operations.

Failure to protect our intellectual property rights or claims by others
that we infringe their intellectual property rights could substantially harm
our business.

CompX relies on patent, trademark and trade secret laws in the United
States and similar laws 1in other countries to establish and maintain
intellectual property rights in our technology and designs. Despite these
measures, any of our intellectual property rights could be challenged,

invalidated, circumvented or misappropriated. Others may independently
discover our trade secrets and proprietary information, and in such cases we
could net assert any trade secret rights against such parties. Further, there

can be no assurance that any of our pending trademark or patent applications



will be approved. Costly and time-consuming litigation could be necessary to
enforce and determine the scope of our intellectual property rights., In
addition, the laws of certain countries do not protect intellectual property
rights teo the same extent as the laws of the United States. Therefore, in
certain jurisdictions, we may ke unable to protect our technology and designs
adequately against unauthorized third party use, which could adversely affect
our competitive position.

Third parties may claim that we or our customers are infringing upon
their intellectual property rights. Even if we believe that such claims are
without merit, they can be time-consuming and costly to defend and distract
our management’'s and technical staff's attentien and rescurces. Claims of
intellectual property infringement alsoc might reguire us to redesign affected
technology, enter into costly settlement or license agreements or pay costly
damage awards, or face a temporary or permanent injunction prohibiting us from
marketing or selling ecertain of our technology. If we cannot or de not
license the infringed techneology on reasonable pricing terms or at all, or
substitute similar technology from another source, our business could be
adversely impacted.

Our Waste Management Segment operates in a highly regulated industry.,
and we may not be successful in obtaining new business to effectively operate
our LLEW disposal facilities.

Our Waste Management Seament is required to comply with various federal,
state and local regulations, as well as comply with the terms of our operating

paermits and licenses as they may be modified or amended. Failure to comply
with any such regulation or permit reguirements, or failure to obtain
renewals, could adversely impact our operations. In addition, we must be

successful in obtaining new business from our commercial and governmental
customers in order to effectively operate our Compact and Federal LLEW
disposal facilities. There is no assurance that we will be successful in
obtaining such new business. Failure to obtain & sufficient amount of new
business to effectively operate our LLREW disposal facilities could adversely
impact our earnings and decrease our liguidity.

our leverage may impair our financial condition or limit our ability to
operate our businesses.

We have a significant amount of debt, primarily related teo Kronos'
Senior Secured Notes, our loans £from Snake River Sugar Company and WCS
financing capital lease. As of December 31, 2011, our total consclidated debt
was approximately 5736.4 million. Our level of debt could have important
consequences to our stockholders and creditors, including:

¢ making it more difficult for us to satisfy our cbligaticns with respect to
our liabilities;

e increasing our vulnerability to adverse general economic and industry
conditions;

# requiring that a portion of our cash flows from operations be used for the
payment of interest on our debt, which reduces our ability to use our cash
flow to fund working capital, capital expenditures, dividends on our common
stock, acquisitions or general corporate requirements;

e limiting the abkility of our subsidiaries to pay dividends to us;

* limiring our ability te obtain additional financing teo fund future working
capital, capital expenditures, acguisitions or general corporate
reguirements;

e limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our
business and the industry in which we operate; and

* placing us at a competitive disadvantage relative to other less leveraged
competitors.



In addition to our indebtedness, we are party to various lease and other
agreements pursuant teo which, aleong with our indebtedness, we are committed to
pay approximately $886.8 million in 2012. Our ability to make payments on and
refinance our debt and to fund planned capital expenditures depends on our
future abhilicy to generate cash flow. To some extent, this is subject to
general economic, financial, competitive, legislative, regulatory and other
factors that are beyond our control. 1In addition, our ability to borrow funds
under our subsidiaries’ credit facilities in the future will, in some
instances, depend in part on these subsidiaries’ ability to maintain specified
financial ratios and satisfy certain financial covenants contained in the
applicable credit agreement.

Our business may not generate cash flows from operating activities
sufficient teo enable us to pay our debts when they become dus and to fund our
cther liguidity needs. As a result, we may need to refinance all or a portion
of our debt before maturity. We may not be able to refinance any of our debt
in a timely manner on faveorable terms, if at all, in the current credit
markets. Any inabkility to generate sufficient cash flows or te refinance our
debt on favorable terms could have a material adverse effect on our financial

condition.

Glebkal climate change legislation could negatively impact our financial
results or limit our ability to operate our businesses.

We operate production facilities in several countries, and we pelieve
all of our worldwide production facilities are in substantial compliance with
applicable environmental laws. In many of the countries in which we operate,
legislation has been passed, or proposed legislation is being considered, to
limit greenhouse gases through wvarious means, including emissions permits
and/or energy taxes. In several of our production facilities, we consume
large amounts of energy, including electricity and natural gas. To date, the
permit system in effect in the wvarious countries in which we operate has not
had a material adverse effect on our financial results. However, if
greenhouse gas legislation were to be enacted in one or more countries, it
could negatively impact our future results from operations through increased
costs of production, particularly as it relates to our energy reguirements. If
such increased costs of production were to materialize, we may be unable t
pass price increases onto our customers to compensate for increased production
costs, which may decrease our liguidity, operating income and results of
operations.



ITEM 1BE. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

Neone.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We along with our subsidiaries: Kronos, CompX, WCS and NL lease office
space for our principal executive offices in Dallas, Texas. A list of
operating facilities for each of our subsidiaries is described in the
applicable business sections of Item 1 - "Business." We believe our facilities

are generally adeguate and suitable for their respectiwve uses.

ITEM 3. LEGAL FROCEEDINGS

We are involved in wvarious legal proceedings. In Addition to information
included below, certain information called for by this Item is included in
Note 17 to our Consclidated Financial Statements, which is incorporated herein
by reference.

Lead Pigment Litigation - NL

NL's former operations included the manufacture of lead pigments for use
in paint and lead-based paint. NL, other former manufacturers of lead
pigments for use in paint and lead-based paint (together, the “"former pigmesnt
manufacturers”} and the Lead Industries Association {(“"LIA"), which
discontinued business operations in 2002, have been named as defendants in
various legal proceedings seeking damages for personal injury, property damage
and governmental expenditures allegedly caused by the use of lead-based

paints., Certain of these acticns have been filed by or on behalf of states,
counties, cities or their public housing authorities and school districts, and
certain others have been asserted as class actions. These lawsuits seek

recovery under a wvariety of theories, including public and private nuisance,
negligent product design, negligent failure to warn, strict liability, breach
of warranty, conspiracy/concert of action, aiding and abetting, enterprise
liability, market share or risk contribution liability, intentiocnal tort,
fraud and misrepresentation, viclations of state consumer protection statutes,
supplier negligence and similar claims.

The plaintiffs in these actions generally seek to impose on the
defendants responsibility for lead paint abatement and health concerns
associated with the use of lead-based paints, including damages for personal
injury, contribution and/or indemnification for medical expenses, medical
monitoring expenses and costs for educational programs. To the extent the
plaintiffs seek compensatory or punitive damages in these actions, such
damages are generally unspecified. In some cases, the damages are unspecified

pursuant teo the reguirements of applicable state law. A number of cases are
inactive or have been dismissed or withdrawn. Most of the remaining cases are
in warious pre-trial stages. Some are on appeal following dismissal or

summary judgment rulings in faveor of either the defendants or the plaintiffs.
In addition, various other cases (in which we are nect a defendant) are pending
that seek recovery for injury allegedly caused by lead pigment and lead-based
paint. Although we are not a defendant in these cases, the outcome of these
cases may have an impact on cases that might be filed against us in the
future.

We believe that these actions are without merit, and we intend to
continue to deny all allegations of wrongdoing and liability and to defend
against all acticns wvigorously. We have never settled any of the market
share, risk contributieon, intentional tort, £fraud, nuisance, supplier
negligence, breach of warranty, conspiracy, misrepresentation, aiding and
abetting, enterprise liability, or statutory cases nor have any £inal, non-
appealable, adverse judgments have been entered against us.
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We have not accrued any amounts for any of the pending lead pigment and
lead-based paint litigation cases., New cases may continue to be filed against
us. We cannot assure you that we will not incur liability in the future in
respect of any of the pending or possible litigation in wview of the inherent
uncertainties inveolved in court and jury rulings. The resolution of any of
these cases could result in recognition of a loss contingency accrual that
could have a material adverse impact on our net income for the interim or
annual period during which such liability is recognized, and a material
adverse impact on our consclidated financial condition and ligquidity.

In April 2000, NL was served with a complaint in County of Santa Clara
v. Atlancic Richfield Company, et al. (Superior Court of the State of
California, County of Santa Clara, Case No. 1-00-CV-788657) brought by a
number of California government entities against the former pigment
manufacturers, the LIA and certain paint manufacturers. The County of Santa
Clara sought to recover compensatory damages for funds the plaintiffs have
expended or will in the future expend for medical treatment, educational
expenses, abatement or other costs due to exposure to, or potential exposure
toe, lead paint, disgorgement of profit, and punitive damages. In July 2003,
the trial judge granted defendants' motion to dismiss all remaining claims.
laintiffs appealed and the intermediate appellate court reinstated public
nuisance, negligence, strict liability, and fraud claims in March 2006. After
disapproval of contingency fee contracts by the trial court, and approval by
the intermediate appellate court, in July 2010, the California Supreme Court
ruled that public entities could pursue this public nuisance case assisted by
private counsel on a contingent fee basis after revising the respective
retention agreements to conform with the requirements set forth in the Supreme
Court's opinion. A fourth amended complaint was filed in March 2011 on behalf
of The Pecple cof California by the County 2Attorneys of Alameda, Ventura,
Solanc, San Mateo, Los Angeles and Santa Clara, and the City Attorneys of San
Francisco, San Diego and Oakland. That complaint alleged that the presence of
lead paint created a public nuisance in each of the prosecuting attorney
jurisdictions and seeks its abatement. In early 2012, the trial judge lifted
the stay that had been in effect while the contingency fees were litigated;
discovery is proceeding. Trial has been set for September 2012,

In June 2000, a complaint was filed in Illinois state court, Lewis, et
al. v. Lead Industries Association, et al. (Circuit Court of Cook County,
Illinois, County  Department, Chancery Division, Case INo. 00CHOSECO).
Plaintiffs seek to represent two classes, one consisting of minors between the
ages of six months and six years who resided in housing in Illineis built
before 1978, and another consisting of individuals between the ages of six and
twenty years who lived in Illinois housing built before 1978 when they were
between the ages of six months and six years and who had bleod lead levels of
10 micrograms/deciliter or more. The complaint seeks damages Jjointly and
severally from the former pigment manufacturers and the LIA to establish a
medical screening fund for the £first class to determine blood lead levels, a
medical monitoring fund for the second class to detect the onset of latent
diseases and a fund for a public education campaign. In April 2008, the trial
court <Judge certified a class of children whose blood lead levels were
screened wvenously between August 1%%5 and February 2008 and who had incurred
expenses associated with such screening. The case is proceeding in the trial
court,

In January and February 2007, NL was served with several complaints, the
majority of which were filed in Circuit Court in Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

In some cases, complaints have been filed elsewhere in Wisconsin. The
plaintiffs are minor children who allege injuries purportedly caused by lead
on the surfaces of the homes in which they reside. Plaintiffs seek

compensatory and punitive damages. The defendants in these cases include NI,
Bmerican Cyanamid Company, Armstrong Containers, Inc., E.I. Du Pont de Nemours



& Company, Millennium Holdings, LLC, Atlantic Richfield Company, The Sherwin-
Williams Company, Conagra Foods, Inc. and the Wisconsin Department of Health
and Family Services. In some cases, additional lead paint manufacturers
and/or property owners are also defendants. Of the cases filed, five remain
pending and four of the remaining cases have been removed to Federal court
{(Burteon, Owens, B. Stokes, and Gibscn). In June 2010, the defendant ARCO's
motion for summary judgment was granted in Gibson. In November 2010, Gibson
was dismissed as to all defendants in a ruling holding that application of
Wisconsin's risk contribution doctrine deprived defendants of due process. In
December 2010, the plaintiff appealed to the U.S. 7 Circuit Court of
Rppeals. In light of the Gibson ruling and appeal, the Clark case in state
court and the cases in Federal Court have been stayed.

In February 2010, NL was served with a complaint in Sifuentes v.
American Cyanamid Company, et al. (United District Court, Eastern District of
Wisconsin, Case No. 10-C-0075). The plaintiff in this case is a minor who
alleges injuries purportedly caused by lead on the surface of the home in
which he resided. The claims raised in this case are identical to those in
the Wisconsin cases described above. Defendants include NL, American Cyanamid
Company, Armstrong Containers, Inc., E.I. Du Pont de Nemours & Company,
Atlantic Richfield Company and The Sherwin-Williams Company. In light of the
Gibson ruling and appeal described above, the parties have agreed to stay the
case pending a decision.

In February 2011, NL was served with an amended complaint in Allen, et
al. v. American Cyanamid, et al. ([United States District Court, Eastern
District of Wisconsin, Case No. 11-C-55). The case consists of 164 plaintiffs
who allege injuries purportedly caused by lead on the surfaces of the homes in
which they resided as minors. The complaint alleges negligence and strict
liakility and seeks compensatory damages jointly and severally from NL,
pmerican Cyanamid Company, Armstrong Containers, Inc., E.I. Du Pont de Nemours
& Company, Atlanta Richfield Company and The Sherwin-Williams Company. In May
2011, defendants moved to dismiss the case for lack of diversity and
misjoinder. The case is currently staved pending the appeal in Gibson.

In ABpril 2011, NL was served with a complaint in Williams v. Goodwin, et
al. {(Circuit Court, Milwaukee County, Case No. 2011-CV-1045]). The plaintiff
in this case is a minor who alleges injuries purportedly caused by lead on the
surfaces of the home in which she resided. The complaint alleges negligence
and strict liability and seeks compensatory and punitive damages jointly and
severally from NL, Rmerican Cyanamid Company, Armstrong Containers, Inc., E.I.
Du Pont de Nemours & Company, Atlantic Richfield Company, The Sherwin-Williams
Company as well as the plaintiff’s landlord, property manager and their
insurance companies. In October 2011, the judge stayed the case pending the
appeal in Gibson.

In May 2011, NL was served with an amended complaint in Valee, et al. v.
American Cyanamid, et al. {United States District Court, Eastern District of
Wisconsin, Case Wo., 11-CV-425). The plaintiffs in this case are minors who
allege injuries purportedly caused by lead on the surfaces of the homes in
which they resided. The complaint alleges negligence and strict liability and
seeks compensatory damages jointly and severally from NL, American Cyanamid
Company, Armstrong Containers, Inc., E.I. Du Pont de Nemours & Company,
Atlantic Richfield Company and The Sherwin-wWilliams Company. In Junes 2011,
the judge stayed the case pending the appeal in Gibson.

In addition to the foregoing litigation, warious legislation and
administrative regulations have, from time to time, been proposed that seek to
fa) impose warious obligations on present and former manufacturers of lead
pigment and lead-based paint with respect to asserted health concerns
asscciated with the use of such products and (b) effectively overturn court
decisions in which we and other pigment manufacturers have heen successful.



Examples of such proposed legislation include bills which would permit ciwvil
liakility for damages on the basis of market share, rather than requiring
plaintiffs te prove that the defendant’'s product caused the alleged damage,
and bills which would revive actions barred by the statute of limitations.
While no legislation or regulations have been enacted to date that are
expected to have a material adverse effect on our consclidated financial
position, results of operations or liguidity, the imposition of market share
liability or other legislation could have such an effect.

Environmental Matters and Litigatieon

Our operations are governed by various environmental laws @ and
regulations. Certain of our businesses are and have been engaged in the
handling, manufacture or use of substances or compounds that may be considered
toxic or hazardous within the meaning of applicable environmental laws and
regulations. As with other companies engaged in similar businesses, certain
of our past and current operations and products have the potential te cause
environmental or other damage. We have implemented and continue to implement
various policies and programs in an effort to minimize these risks. Our
policy is to maintain compliance with applicable environmental laws and
regulations at all of our plants and to strive te improve environmental
performance. From time to time, we may be subject to environmental regulatory
enforcement under U.5. and non-U.5. statutes, the resclution of which
typically involves the establishment of compliance programs. It is possible
that future developments, such as stricter reguirements of environmental laws
and enforcement policies, could adversely affect our production, handling,
use, storage, transportation, sale or disposal of such substances. We believe
that all of our facilities are in substantial compliance with applicable
environmental laws.

Certain properties and facilities used in our former operations,
including divested primary and secondary lead smelters and former mining
locations, are the subject of ciwil litigation, administrative proceedings or
investigations arising under federal and state environmental laws,
additionally, in connection with past operating practices, we are currently
involved as a defendant, potentially responsible party (“*PRP*}) or beth,
pursuant to CERCLA, and similar state laws in various governmental and private
actions associated with waste disposal sites, mining locations, and facilities
we or our predecessors currently or previously owned, coperated or were used by
us or gur subsidiaries, or their predecessors, certain of which are on the
United States Environmental Protection BAgency’'s (“EPA*] Superfund National
Pricrities List or similar state lists. These proceedings seek cleanup costs,
damages for personal injury, property damage and/or damages for injury to
natural resources. Certain of these proceedings involve claims for
substantial amounts. Blthough we may be jointly and severally liakle for
these costs, in most cases we are only one of a number of PRPs who may alsoc be
jointly and severally liable, and among whom costs may ke shared or allocated.
In addition, we are also a party to a number of personal injury lawsuits filed
in wvarious jurisdictions alleging claims related te envirommental conditions
alleged to have resulted from our operations.

Environmental obkligations are difficult to assess and estimate for
numerous reasons including the:

. complexity and differing interpretations of governmental
regulations;

. number of PRPFs and their ability or willingness to fund such
allocation of costs;

. financial capabilities of the PRPs and the allocation of costs
among them;

. solvency of other PRPs;

¢ multiplicity of possible sclutions;



* number of years of investigatory, remedial and meonitoring activity
regquired; and

¢+ number of years between former operations and notice of claims and
lack of information and documents about the former operations.

In addition, the imposition of more stringent standards or reguirements
under envirommental laws or regulaticons, new developments or changes regarding
site cleanup costs or allocation of costs among PRPs, solvency of other ERPs,
the results of future testing and analysis undertaken with respect to certain
sites or a determination that we are potentially responsible for the release
of hazardous substances at other sites, could cause our expenditures to exceed
our current estimates. Because we may be jointly and severally liable for the
total remediation cost at certain sites, the amount for which we are
ultimately liable may exceed our accruals due to, among other things, the
reallocation of costs among PRPs or the insolvency of one or more PRPs. We
cannot assure you that actual costs will not exceed accrued amounts or the
upper end of the range for sites for which estimates have been made, and we
cannot assure you that costs will not be incurred for sites where no estimates
presently can be made. Further, additicnal environmental matters may arise in
the future. If we were to incur any future liability, this could have a
material adverse effect on our consolidated financial statements, results of
cperations and liguidity.

We record liabilities related to envirconmental remediation obligations
when estimated future expenditures are probable and reascnably estimable. We
adjust our envirommental accruals as further information becomes available to
us or as clrcumstances change. Such further information or changed
circumstances could include, among other things, new assertions of liability,
revised expectations regarding the nature, timing and extent of any
remediation reguired or revised estimates of the allocation of remediation
costs among PRPs, and such further information or changed circumstances could
result in an increase or reduction in our accrued environmental costs. We
generally do not discount estimated future expenditures to their present value
due to the uncertainty of the timing of the pay out. We recognize recoveries
of remediation costs from other parties, if any, as assets when their receipt
is deemed probable. At December 31, 2010 and 2011, we have not recognized any
receivables for recoveries,

We do not know and cannot estimate the exact time frame over which we
will make payments for our accrued environmental costs, The timing of
payments depends upon a number of factors, including but not limited to the
timing of the actual remediation process; which in turn depends on factors
ocutside of our control. At each balance sheet date, we estimate the amount of
our accrued environmental costs which we expect to pay within the next twelve
months, and we classify this estimate as a current liability. We classify the
remaining accrued environmental costs as a noncurrent liability.

On a guarterly basis, we evaluate the potential range of our liability at
sites where we have been named as a PFRP or defendant, including sites for which
NL's wholly-owned environmental management subsidiary, NL Environmental
Management Services, Inc. (“EMS”) has contractually assumed its obligations.
See Note 17 to our Consolidated Financial Statements. AL December 31, 2011, HNL
had accrued approximately %41 million, related toc approximately 50 sites, which
are environmental matters that we believe are at the present time and/or in
their current phase reasonably estimable. The upper end of the range of
reasonably possible costs to us for sites for which we believe it is possible
to estimate costs is approximately 572 million, including the amount currently
accrued. We have not discounted these estimates to present value.

We believe that it is not possible to estimate the range of costs for
certain sites. At December 31, 2011, there were approximately 5 sites for
which NL is not currently able to estimate a range of costs. For these sites,



generally the investigation is in the early stages, and we are unable to
determine whether or not we actually had any association with the site, the
nature of our responsibility, if any, for the contamination at the site and
the extent of contamination at and cost to remediate the site. The timing and
availability of information on these sites is dependent on events outside of
our contreol, such as when the party alleging liability provides information to
us. At certain of these previously inactive sites, we have received general
and special notices of liability from the EPA and/or state agencies alleging
that we, sometimes with other PRFsz, are liakle for past and future costs of
remediating environmental contamination allegedly caused by former operations.
These notifications may assert that we, along with any other alleged PRPs, are
liable for past and/or future clean-up costs that could ke material to us if
we are ultimately found liable,

In June 20086, NL and several other PRPs received a Unilateral
Administrative Order (“UAO") from the EPA regarding a formerly-owned mine and
milling facility located in Park Hills, Missouri. The Doe Run Company is the
current owner of the site, which was purchased by a predecessor of Doe Run
frem us in approximately 19%36. Doe Run is also named in the Order. In April
2008, the parties signed a definitive cost sharing agreement for sharing of
the costsz anticipated in connection with the order and in May 2008, the
parties began work at the site as reguired by the UAQ and in accordance with
the cost sharing agreement. In the fourth guarter of 2010, NL reached its
capped payment cobligation under the cost sharing agreement with Doe Run. Doe
Run is financing the remainder of the work, which is scheduled for completion
at the end of June 2012, L ERemoval &Action Report and Post-Removal Site
Control Plan are due at the end of September 2012.

In October 2006, NL entered into a consent decree in the United States
District Court for the District of Xansas, in which we agreed to perform
remedial design and remedial acticns in Operating Unit & of the Waco Subsite
of the Cherokee County Superfund Site. NL conducted milling activities on the
portion of the site which we have agreed to remediate. ML is sharing
responsibility with other PRPs as well as the EPR for remediating a tributary
that drains the portions of the site in which the PRPs operated. NL has also
reimbursed the EPA for a portion of its past and future response costs related
to the site. In the last two guarters of 2009, NL was approached by state and
federal natural resource trustees and have participated in preliminary
discussions with respect to potential natural resource damage claims. In the
fourth guarter of 2011, the remedial work at the site was completed. Other
than ongoing operaticn and maintenance at the site, all remediation
obligations under the Consent Decree have been satisfied.

In June 2008, NL received a Directive and Notice to Insurers from the
Mew Jersey Department of Environmental Protection (“NJDEP”) regarding the
Margaret’s Creek site in 0ld Bridge Township, New Jersey. NJDEP alleged that
a waste hauler transported waste from NL's of our former facilities for
disposal at the site in the early 1%70s. HNJDEP has since referred the site to
the EPA, and in November 2002, the EPA added the site to the HNational
Pricrities List under the name “Raritan Bay Slag Site.” We are monitoring
closely the scope of the remedial activities that may be reguired at the site
and the identification of other PREFs.

In Septemper 2008, HNL received a Special Notice letter from the EPA for
liability associated with the Tar Creek site and a demand for related past and
future costs. NL responded with a good-faith offer to pay certain of the past
costs and to complete limited work in the areas in which we operated. NL is
involved in an ongoing dialogue with the EPA regarding a potential settlement.
In Octoker 2008, NL received a claim frem the State of COklahoma for past,
future and relocation costs in connecticn with the site. The state continues
to monitor for a potential settlement between the EPA and NL and may
subseguently attempt to pursue a separate settlement with NL.



In June 200%, NL was served with a complaint in Censclidation Coal
Company v. 3M Company, et al. (United States District Court, Eastern District
of North Carclina, Civil Action No. 5:0%-CV-00191-FL}. The complaint seeks to
recover against NL and roughly 170 other defendants under CERCLA for past and

future response costs. The plaintiffs allege that NL's former Albany
operation allegedly sent three PCB-containing transformers te the Ward
Transformer Superfund Site. We have denied liability and will defend

vigorously against all claims.

In June 200%, NL was served with a third-party complaint in New Jersey
Department of Environmental Protection v. Occidental Chemical Corp., et al.
{L-009868-05, Superior Court of New Jersey, Essex County). NL is one of
approximately 300 third-party defendants (with a potential expansion of the
case to over 3,200 unnamed parties) that have been sued by third-party
plaintiffs Maxus Energy Corporation and Tierra Solutions, Inc., in response to
claims by the State of New Jersey against them seeking to recover past and
future environmental cleanup costs of the State and to obtain funds to perform
a natural resource damage assessment in connection with contamination in the
Passaic River and adjacent waters and sediments (the "Newark Bay Complex”).
NL was named in the third-party complaint based upon its ownership of one
former operating site and purported connection to a former Superfund site (at
which WL was a small PRP) alleged toc have contributed te the contamination in
the Newark Bay Complex. In October 2010, the judge agreed to a phasing of the
case to allow for trial on direct defendants’ liability and damages as the
first and second phases of the case with third party claims to follow in a
later phase. We have denied liability and will defend vigorously against all
of the claims.

In August 2009, NL was served with a complaint in Raritan Baykeeper,
Inc. d/b/a NY/NJT Baykeeper et al. v. NL Industries, Inc. et al. (United States
District Court, District of HWew Jersey, Case No. 3:09-cv-04117). This is a
eitizen's suit filed by two local environmental groups pursuant to the
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act and the Clean Water Act against NL,
current owners, developers and state and local government entities. —The
complaint alleges that hazardous substances were and continue to be discharged
from our former Sayreville, New Jersey property into the sediments of the
adjacent Raritan River. The former Sayreville site is currently being
remediated by owner/developer parties under the oversight of the NJDEP. The
plaintiffs seek a declaratory judgment, injunctive relief, impositicn of civil
penalties and an award of costs. We intend to defend vigorously against all
of the claims.

In January 2010, NL was served with an amended complaint in Los Angeles
Unified School District v. Pozas Brothers Trucking Ceo., et al. {(Los Angeles
Superior Court, Central Civil West, LASC Case No. BC 331342). The complaint
was filed against several defendants in connection with the alleged
contamination of a 35 acre site in South Gate, California acquired by the
plaintiff by eminent domain to construct a middle school and high school. The
plaintiff alleges that The 1230 Corporation (f/k/a Pioneer Aluminum, Inc.}
operated on a portion of property within the 35 acre site and is responsible
for contamination caused by its operations and that HNL is liable as an alleged
successor to The 1230 Corporation, which is a subsidiary of NL. The plaintiff
has brought claims for contribution, indemnity and nuisance and is seeking
past and future clean-up and other response costs. We have denied liability
and will defend wvigorously against all of the claims.

In June 2011, HL was served in ASARCO LLC v. NL Industries, Inc., et al.
{Uniced States District Court, Western District of Missouri, Case No. 4:1l-cwv-
00138-DGK)}. The plaintiff brought this CERCLA contribution action against
several defendants to recover a portion of the amount it paid in settlement
with the U.&. Govermment during its Chapter 11 hankruptey in relation to Tar
Creek Superfund Site in Ottawa County, Oklahoma, the Cherokee County Superfund



Site in southeast Kansas, the Oronogo-Duenweg Lead Mining Belt Superfund Site
in Jasper County, Missouri and the Newton County Mine Tailing Site in Newten
County, Missouri. We have denied liability and will defend vigorously against
all of the claims.

In September 2011, NL was served in ASARCO LLC v. NL Industries, Inc.,
et al. (United States District Court, Eastern District of Missouri, Case No.
4:11-cv-00B64) . The plaintiff brought this CERCLA contribution action against
several defendants to recover a portion of the amount it paid in settlement
with the U.5. Government during its Chapter 11 bankruptcy in relation teo the
Southeast Missouri Mining District. We have denied liability and will defend
vigorously against all of the claims.

In February 9, a proposed Consent Decree in United States and Nebraska
v. NL Industries, Inc., Ciwvil Action No.EB:12-cv-00055%, was lodged for approval
with the United States District Court for the District of Mebraska. The fully
executed Consent Decree, which is subject toe a mandatory public comment
period, constitutes a settlement between NL and the United States to resolve
NL's potential liability at the Omaha Lead Superfund Site.

See also Item 1 “Regulatory and Environmental Matters.”

Other - We have also accrued approximately 51.5 million at December 31,
2011 for other environmental cleanup matters. This accrual is near the upper
end of the range of our estimate of reascnably possibkble costs for such matters.

Insurance Coverage Claims.

We are involved in certain legal proceedings with a number of our former
insurance carriers regarding the mnature and extent of the carriers’
cbligations to us under insurance policies with respect to certain lead
pigment and asbestos lawsuits. In addition to information that is included
below, we have included certain of the information called for by this Item in
Hote 17 to our Consolidated Financial Statements, and we are incorporating
that information here by reference.

The issue of whether insurance coverage for defense costs or indemnity
or both will be found to exist for our lead pigment and asbestos litigation
depends upon a variety of factors and we cannot assure you that such insurance
coverage will be available. We have not considered any potential insurance
recoveries for lead pigment or asbestos litigation matters in determining

related accruals.

We have agreements with three former insurance carriers pursuant to
which the carriers reimburse us for a portion of our lead pigment litigation
defense costs, and one such carrier reimburses us for a portion of our
asbestos litigation defense costs. We are not able to determine how much we
will ultimately recover £rom these carriers for defense costs incurred by us
hecause of certain issues that arise regarding which defense costs gualify for
reimbursement. While we continue to seek additional insurance recoveries, we
do not know if we will be successful in cbtaining reimbursement for either
defense costs or indemnity. We have not considered any additional potential
insurance recoveries in determining accruals for lead pigment or asbhestos
litigation matters. Any additicnal insurance recoveries would bhe recognized
when the receipt is probable and the amount is determinable.

We have settled insurance coverage claims concerning environmental

claims with certain of our principal former carriers. We do not expect
further material settlements relating to environmental remediaticn coverage.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.



PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCEHOLDER MATTERS
AND ISSUER PURCHASES OR EQUITY SECURITIES

Common Stock and Dividends - Our common stock is listed and traded on
the New York Stock Exchange (symbol: VHI). As of March 2, 2012, there were
approximately 2,377 holders of record of ocur common stock. The following
tabkle sets forth the high and low closing per share sales prices for our
common stock and dividends for the periocds indicated. ©On March 2, 2012 the
closing price of our common stock was 557.77.

Cash
dividends
High Low paid
Year ended December 31, 2010
First Quarter 519.81 514.42 5.10
Second Quarter 3z.20 12.34 L10
Third Quarter 20.30 11.49 .10
Fourth Quarter 24 .56 19.04 L10
Year ended December 31, 2011
First Quarter £26.137 519.71 5.10
Second Quarter 49.87 27.20 L1125
Third Quarter 63.30 15,87 L1258
Fourth Quarter 63.06 51.78 L1258
First Quarter 2012 through March 2 $62.01 5$53.9%0 £ -

We paid regular cguarterly cash dividends of $.10 per share during 2010
and the first guarter of 2011. During the second gquarter of 2011 our board of
directors wvoted to increase the regular guarterly dividend te §.125, which
rate was paid in the second, third and fourth guarters of 2011. In February
2012, our hoard of directors declared a first guarter 2012 dividend of $.125
per share, to be paid on March 28, 2012 to steckholders of record as of March
B, 2012. However, declaration and payment of future dividends, and the amount
thereof, is discretionary and is dependent upon our results of operations,

financial condition, cash requirements for our Dbusinesses, contractual
requirements and restrictions and other factors deemed relevant by our Board of
Directors. The amount and timing of past dividends is not necessarily

indicative of the amount or timing of any future dividends which we might pay.

Performance Graph - Set forth below is a line graph comparing the yearly
change in our cumulative total stockholder return on our common stock against
the cumulative total return of the S&P 500 Composite Stock Price Index and the
S&F 500 Industrial Conglomerates Index for the period from December 31, 2006
through December 31, 2011. The graph shows the value at December 31 of each
year assuming an original investment of $100 at December 31, 2006, and assumes
the reinvestment of our regular gquarterly cash dividends in shares of our
stock and the sale of the TIMET shares distributed in March of 2007 in our
special dividend with the proceeds alsc reinvested in ocur stock.

_‘]Q_
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2008 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Valhi common stock 5100 5143 5201 5138 5187 5303
5&F 500 Composite Stock Price Index 100 105 66 B4 97 95
S&P 500 Industrial Conglomerates Index 100 104 51 56 1= 67

The information contained in the performance graph shall not be deemed
"soliciting material” or "“filed” with the SEC, or subject to the liabilities
of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act, as amended, except to the extent
we specifically reguest that the material be treated as soliciting material or
specifically incorporate this performance graph by reference into a document
filed under the Securities Act or the Securities Exchange Act.

Equity Compensation Plan Information - We have an eguity compensation
plan, which was approved by our stockholders, which provides for the
discretionary grant to our emplovees and directors of, among other things,

options to purchase our common stock and stock awards. We had ne steock
options outstanding as of December 31, 2011 and approximately 4.0 million
shares of our common stock were available for future grants or issuance. We

do not have any equity compensation plans that were not approved by our
stockholders.

In February 2012, our board of directors wvoted to replace the existing
long-term incentive plan with a new plan pursuant to which an aggregate of
200,000 shares of our common stock can be awarded to members of our board of
directors. The new plan is subject to shareholders' approval at our May 2012
shareholder meeting. See Note 14 to our Consclidated Financial Statements.

Treasury Steock Purchases In March 2005, our board of directors
authorized the repurchase of up to 5.0 million shares of ocur common stock in
open market transactions, including klock purchases, or in privately

negotiated transactions, which may include transactions with our affiliates.
In November 2008, our board of directors authorized the repurchase of an
additicnal 5.0 million shares. We may purchase the stock from time to time as
market conditions permit. The stock repurchase program does not include
specific price targets or timetables and may be suspended at any time.
Depending on market conditions, we could terminate the program priocr to
completion. We will use our cash on hand to acguire the shares. Repurchased
ghares will be retired and cancelled or may be added to our treasury stock and
used for employee benefit plans, future acguisitions or other corporate
purposes. See Note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.



ITEM &.

SELECTED FIMANCIAL DATA

The following selected financial data has been derived from our audited
Consclidated Financial Statements.
should be read in conjunction with our Consclidated Financial Statements and

related Notes and Item 7 -

Condition and Results of Operations.®

The following

Years ended December 31,

selected financial data

"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
{(In millions, except per share data)
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS DATA:
Net sales:
Chemicals $1,310.3 51,316.% 51,142.0 1,449.7 $1,943.3
Component products 177.7 165.5 116.1 135.3 138.8
Waste management 4.2 2.9 14.0 7.7 2.0
Total net sales $1,482.2 S51.4 3 1,27 1.5 7 £2,084.1
Operating income {loss):
Chemicals ] 8B.56 5 2.0 -] (10.6) § 1B3.2 § 553.0
Component products 16.0 5.5 (4.0] %.4 15.5
Waste management {14.1) 121.5} {27.0) {30.48) (38.0)
Total operating income (loss) 5 90.5 § 36.0 S lal .6l 5 161 .8 § _530.5
Equity in earnings of TIMET 5 26.3 § - & - & - 5 -
Het income (loss) § l48.2) 5 4.9 5 (38.1) 5 63.8 § 295.0
Met income(loss) attributable
to Valhi stockholders & (45.7) & i.By 3 _(34.2) § _ 50,3 217.5
DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE DATA:
Met income (loss)attributable to
Valhi stockholders 5 i.40) 5 (.01} % {.320) % &2 5 1.91
Cash dividends -] an 5 40 ] 40 5 40 ] .475
Weighted average common shares
ocutstanding 114.7 114 .4 114.3 114.3 114.0
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW DATA:
Cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities 5 &3.5 § (24.0) $ 78.0 § 122.2 § 292.4
Investing activities (65.4) (60.0} {44.5) {93.1) (220.9)
Financing activities (36.1) {12.9] (4.7) 228.5 (299.8)
BALANCE SHEET DATA (at year end):
Total assets ' $2,603.0 $2,389.4  $2,4:10.3  $2,714.3  §2,838.0
Long-term debt B89.8 211.0 988 .4 922.9 T17.4
valhi stockholders’ eguity ¥ 618.4 468.8 428.7 541.8 £57.2
Total eguity M T0R. 3 542.1 498.4 218.2 983.0
Bt ye adopted the measurement date provisions of Accounting Standard

Codification ("ASC") Topic 715 as of December 31,
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF COPERATIONS

RESULTS OF QOPFERATIONS
Business Overview

We are primarily a holding company. We operate through our wholly-owned
and majority-owned subsidiaries, including ¥NL Industries, Inc., Kronos
Worldwide, Inc., CompX International, Inc., Tremont LLC and Waste Control
Specialists LLC ("WCE"). HKronos (HYSE: KRO), NL (NYSE: NL) and CompX (NYSE
Bmex: CIX) each file periodic reports with the SEC.

We have three consolidated operating segments:

® (Chemicals - Our chemicals segment is operated through our majority
control of Kronos. Kronos is a leading global producer and marketer
of value-added titanium dioxide pigments ("Ti0,"}, a base industrial
product used in a diverse range of customer applications and end-use
markets, including coatings, plastics, paper, food, cosmetics, inks,
textile fibers, rubber, pharmaceuticals, glass, ceramics and other
industrial and consumer markets,

* Component Products — We operate in the component products industry

through our majority control of CompX. CompX is a leading
manufacturer of engineered components utilized in a variety of
applications and industries. CompX manufactures engineered

components that are sold to a variety of industries including office
furniture, recreational transportation (including keoats), mailboxes,
toolboxes, home appliances, banking eguipment, vending equipment and
computer related eguipment. CompX has production facilities in North
America and Asia.

® [aste Management - WCS is our subsidiary which operates a West Texas
facility for the processing, treatment, storage and disposal of a
broad range of low-level radicactive, hazardous, toxic and other
wastes. WCS cobtained a byproduct disposal license in 2008 and began
disposal operations at this facility in October 2009. In January
2009 WCS received a low-level and mixed low-level radicactive waste
("LLRW") disposal license, which was signed in September 2009.
Construction of the Compact and Federal LLEW disposal facilities
began in January 2011. Construction of the Compact LLEW facility was
substantially complete in Hovember 2011, and the Federal LLREW
isposal facility was substantially complete in February 2012. We
currently expect the Compact LLEW disposal facility will be fully
certified and operational by the end of March 2012, with the Federal
LLRW site fully certified and operational later in 2012,



Income (Loss) From Operations Overview

Year Ended December 31, 2010 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2011 -

We reported net income attriburable teo Valhi stockholders of $217.5
million or %$1.31 per diluted share in 2011 compared to 550.3 million or 5.42
per diluted share in 2010.

Our diluted earnings per share increased from 2010 to 2011 primarily due
to the net effects of:

COur net
[ ]

Our net
L ]

increased operating income from our Chemicals Segment in 2011
compared to 2010 partially offset by an increased operating loss
at our Waste Management segment in 2011 compared to 2010; and

a decrease in our ownership percentage of Kronos from 35% to 80%
due to Kronos' secondary stock offering completed in November
2010;

a non-cash deferred income tax benefit recognized in the first
quarter of 2010;

a loss on the prepayment of debt in 2011 as a result of calling
€80 millicon principal amount of our Senior Secured;

a litigation settlement and contract termination expense in
2010;

lower insurance recoveries in 2011;

a litigation settlement gain in the third guarter of 2010; and
higher general expenses in 2011, primarily due to increased
environmental remediation and related costs.

income attributable to Valhi stockholders in 2011 includes:
insurance recoveries of 5,08 per diluted share;

income of 35.08 per diluted share related to a net decrease in
opur reserve for uncertain tax positions;

a gain of 5.02 per diluted share as a result of a patent
litigation settlement in our Component Products Segment;

a charge of 5.01 per diluted share related to a loss on
prepayment of Kronos' Senior Secured NHotes; and

a charge of $.01 per diluted share related to a write-down of
assets held for sale in our Component Products Segment.

income attributable to Valhi steockholders in 2010 includes:

a non-cash deferred income tax benefit of $.21 per diluted share
recognized by Kronos related toc a European Court ruling that
resulted in the favorable resolution of certain German income

tax issues;

insurance recoveries of §.09 per diluted share;

a litigation settlement gain of $.03 per diluted share;

a charge of $.04 per diluted share related to a net increase in
our reserve for uncertain tax positions; and

a charge of $.16 per diluted share related teo a litigation
settlement and contract termination.



We discuss these amounts more fully below.

Year Ended December 31, 2009 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2010 -

We reported net income attributable to WValhi stockholders of 550.3
millien or $.42 per diluted share in 2010 compared to a net loss attributable
to Valhi stockholders of 534.2 million or $.30 per diluted share in 2009.

Cur diluted earnings per share increased from 2009 to 2010 primarily due
to the net effects of:

Our net
L]

operating income from our Chemicals and Component Products
Segments in 2010 as compared to operating losses in 200%;

a non-cash deferred income tax benefit recognized in the first
guarter of 2010;

litigaticon settlement and contract termination expense in 2010;
lower litigation settlement gains in 2010;

an income tax charge related to the reserve for uncertain tax
positions in 2010 compared to a benefit in 2009;

higher insurance recoveries in 2010; and

a gain on the sale of a business in 200%2.

income attributable to Valhi stockholders in 2010 includes:

a non-cash deferred incoms tax benefit of $.21 per diluted share
recognized by Kronos related to a EBuropean Court ruling that
resulted in the favorable resolution of certain German income

tax issues;

insurance recoveries of $.09% per diluted share;

a litigation settlement gain of $.03 per diluted share;

a charge of 5.04 per diluted share related to a net increase in
our reserve for uncertain tax positions; and

a charge of $.16 per diluted share related to a litigation
settlement and contract terminacion.

loss attributable to Valhi stockholders in 2009 includes:
a gain of $.07 per diluted share as a result of a litigation
settlement;
a gain of 5.04 per diluted share gain from the sale of a
business;
a gain of $.05 per diluted share as a result of the second close
of a litigation settlement;
income of $£.02 per diluted share related to certain insurance
recoveries we recognized; and
income of 5.11 per diluted share, related to a net decrease in
our reserve for uncertain tax positions.

_45_



We discuss these amounts more fully below.
Current Forecast for 2012 -

We currently expect to report higher net income attributable to Valhi
stockholders for 2012 as compared to 2011 primarily due to the net effects of:

* higher expected cperating income from ocur Chemicals Segment;

* lower expected operating income from our Component Products Segment
as higher expected sales will be offset by the patent litigation
settlement gain recognized in 2011; and

* lower expected cperating losses at WCS as we expect more revenue
from the expected openings of our Compact LLREW disposal facility
early in 2012 and the Federal LLRW disposal facility later in 2012.

Critical accounting policies and estimates

We have based the accompanying “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations" upon ocur Ceonsclidated Financial
Statements. We prepare our Consclidated Financial Statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of BEmerica
("GARP"). In many cases the accounting treatment of a particular transaction
does not reguire us to make estimates and judgments. However, in other cases
we are required to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reported pericd. On an on-going basis, we
evaluate our estimates, including those related to impairments of investments
in marketable securities and investments accounted for by the equity method,
the recoverability of other long-lived assets (including goodwill and other
intangible assets), pension and other postretirement benefit obligations and
the underlying actuarial assumptions related therete, the realization of
deferred income and other tax assets and accruals for environmental
remediation, litigation, income tax contingencies. We base our estimates on
historical experience and on wvarious other assumptions we believe are
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for
making judagments about the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, rewvenues
and expenses. Actual results might differ significantly from previously-
estimated amounts under different assumptions or conditions.

“Our critical accounting peolicies® relate to amounts having a material
impact on our financial position and results of operations, and that reguire
our most subjective or complex Jjudgments. See Note 1 to our Consolidated
Financial Statements for a detailed discussion of our significant accounting
policies.

o Marketable securities - We own investments in certain companies that we
account for as marketable securities carried at fair wvalue or that we
account for under the eguity method. For these investments, we evaluate
the fair walue at each balance sheet date. We use guoted market prices,
Level 1 inputs as defined in Accounting Sctandards Codification (“RSC")
B20-10-35, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, to determine fair
value for certain of our mutual fund, marketable debt securities and
publicly traded investees. For cother of our marketable debt securities,
the fair wvalue is generally determined using Level 2 inputs as defined
in the BSC because although these securities are traded in many cases
the market is neot active and the year-end waluation is based on the last
trade of the vear which may be several days prior to December 31. We
use Level 3 inputs to determine fair walue of our investment in
nmalgamated Sugar Company LLC. See Note 4 to our Conscolidated Financial
Statements, We record an impairment charge when we believe an
investment has experienced an other than temporary decline in fair value



below its cost basis (for marketable securities) or below its carrying
value (for equity method investees). Further adverse changes in market
conditions or poor operating results of underlying investments could
result in losses or our inability to recover the carrying value of the
investments that may not be reflected in an investment's current
carrying value, thereby possibly reqguiring us to recognize an impairment
charge in the future.

At December 31, 2011, the carrying value (which eguals their fair wvalue)
of substantially all of our marketable securities equaled or exceedsd
the cost basis of each investment. Our investment in The Amalgamated
Sugar Company LLC represents approximately 66% of the aggregate carrying
value of all of cur marketable securities at December 31, 2011. The
$250 mwillion carrying value is egual to its cost basis. We have an
investment in Titanium Metals Company ("TIMET"), a publicly traded
company (NYSE: TIE) contreolled by Mr. Simmons, which is wvalued using
Level 1 inputs. At December 31, 2011, the $14.%8 per share gquoted market
price of our investment in TIMET was more than 13% higher than our cost
basis per share of our investment in TIMET.

Goodwill - Our net goodwill totaled $400.1 million at December 31, 2011
resulting primarily from our various step acguisitions of Kronos and NL
iwhich ocecurred bkefore the implementation of the current accounting
standards related to noncontrolling interest) and to a lesser extent
CompX's purchase of wvarious businesses. In accordance with the
applicable accounting standards for goodwill, we do not amortize
goodwill.

We perform a goodwill impairment test annually in the third guarter of
each year. Goodwill is alse evaluated for impairment at other times
whenever an event occurs or circumstances change that would more likely
than not reduce the fair wvalue of a reporting unit below its carrying
value. A reporting unit can be a segment or an operating division
based on the operations of the segment. For example, our Chemicals
Segment produces a globally coordinated homogenscus product whereas our
Component Products Segment operates as three distinct business units,
For our Chemicals Segment, we use Level 1 inputs of publicly traded
market prices to compare the book wvalue to assess impairment. EBecause
we test for goodwill at a reporting unit level for our Component
Products Segment, we use Level 3 inputs of a discounted cash flow
technigue since Level 1 or Level 2 inputs of market prices are not
available at the reporting unitc level. We alsc consider control
premiums when assessing fair wvalue of our segments. If the fair value
iz less than the book value, the asset is written down to the estimated
fair value.

Consziderable management judgment is necessary to evaluate the impact of
operating changes and to estimate future cash flows. Assumptions used
in our impairment evaluations, such as forecasted growth rates and our
cost of capital, are consistent with our internal projections and
cperating plans. However, different assumptions and estimates could
result in materially different findings which could result in the
recognition of a material goodwill impairment.

We performed our annual goodwill impairment analysis in the third
quarter of 2011 for each of our reporting units, and concluded there
was no impairment of the goodwill for these reporting units. For each
of such reporting units, the estimated fair wvalue of such reporting
units was substantially in excess of their respective carrying values.



Long-lived assets - We assess property, eguipment and capitalized
operating permit costs for impairment only when circumstances as
specified in ASC 360-10-35, Property, Plant, and Equipment, indicate an
impairment may exist. s a result of continued operating losses,
certain long-lived assets of our Waste Management Segment were evaluated
for impairment as of Decembsr 31, 2011. WCS has had limited operaticns
as it seeks regulatory approval for several licenses it needs for full
scale operations. WCS cobtained a byproduct disposal license in 2008 and
began disposal operations in October 200%. In January 2009 WCS received
a LLRW disposal permit . Construction of the Compact and Federal LLRW
sites began in January 2011. Construction of the Compact LLEW site was
substantially complete in November 2011, and the Federal LLREW site was
substantially complete 1in February 2012, We currently expect the
Compact LLRW site will be fully certified and operational by the end of
March 2012, with the Federal LLEW site fully certified and operational
later in 2012. Our impairment analysis is based on estimated future
undiscounted cash flows of WCS' operations, and this analysis indicated
no impairment was present at December 31, 2011 and that the carrying
value of WCS is recoverable as the aggregate future undiscounted cash
flow estimate exceeded the carrying wvalue of WCS' net assets by at least
two times. Considerable management judgment 1s necessary to evaluate
the impact of operating changes and to estimate future cash flows.
Assumptions used in our impairment ewvaluations, such as the timing and
amounts of revenue asscciated with our LLEW facilities, forecasted
growth rates and our cost of capital, are consistent with our internal
projections and operating plans. However, if our future cash flows from
operations less capital expenditures were to drop significantly hbelow
our current expectations (approximately 75%), it is reasconably likely we
would conclude an impairment was present. At December 31, 2011 the
carrying value of WCS' total assets was 5223.4 million.

Due our Component Products Segment's approval of a restructuring plan
for its furniture components reporting unit in November of 2010, which
included moving precision slide production and most of the related
furniture and eguipment from our Byron Center, Michigan facility to
other precision slide manufacturing facilities within our furniture
components unit, we evaluated the long-lived assets to be moved from our
Byron Center facility. As of December 31, 2011, we concluded no
impairments were present relating to the moved furniture and equipment.
However, if our future cash flows from operations less capital
expenditures were to drop significantly below our current expectations,
it is reasonably likely we would conclude an impairment was present. The
net asset wvalue of the furniture and equipment that was not moved was
not significant and was substantially disposed of as of December 21,

2011.

As a result of continued losses in the Component Products Segment marine
components reporting unit, we evaluated the recoverability of the marine
components long-lived assets during the third guarter of 2011. We
determined that the undiscounted cash flows exceed the current net asset
value and therefore the marine components long-lived assets are not
impaired. However, if our future cash £flows from operations less
capital expenditures were to drop significantly below our current
expectations (approximately 50%), it is reascnably likely we would
conclude an impairment was present. At December 31, 2011 the net asset
carrying values of the marine components reporting unit was $7.8.

Ho other long-lived assets in our other reporting units were tested for
impairment during 2011 because there were no circumstances indicating
an impairment might exist.



Benefit plans - We provide a range of benefits including variocus defined
benefit pension and other postretirement benefits (“OPEB")} for our
employees. We record annual amounts related to these plans hased upon
calculations required by GAAP, which make use of wvarious actuarial
assumptions, such as: discount rates, expected rates of returns on plan
assets, compensation increases, employee turnover rates, mortality rates
and expected health care trend rates, We review our actuarial
assumptions annually and make modifications to the assumptions based on
current rates and trends when we believe appropriate. BAs reguired by
GAAP, modifications teo the assumptions are generally recorded and
amortized over future periods. Different assumptions could result in
the recognition of materially different expense amounts over different
periods of times and materially different asset and liability amocunts in
our Consolidated Financial Statements. These assumptions are more fully
described below under “-Assumptions on Defined Benefit Pension Plans and
OPEB Plans.”

Income taxes - We recognize deferred taxes for future tax effects of
temporary differences between financial and income tax reporting. We
record a valuation allowance to reduce cur deferred income tax assets to
the amount that is believed to be realized under the more-likely-than-
not recognition criteria. While we have considered future taxable
income and ongoing prudent and feasible tax planning strategies in
assessing the need for a valuation allowance, it is possible that we may
change our estimate of the amount of the deferred income tax assets that
would more-likely-than-not be realized in the future, resulting in an
adjustment to the deferred income tax asset wvaluation allowance that
would either increase or decrease, as applicable, reported net income in
the period such change in estimate was made. For example, we have
substantial net operating loss carryforwards in Germany (the eguivalent
of 5799 million for German corporate purposes and $188 million for
German trade tax purposes at December 31, 2011). At December 31, 2011,
we have concluded that no deferred income tax asset wvaluation allowance
is reguired to be recognized with respect to such carryforwards,
principally because {1} such carryforwards have an indefinite
carryforward period, (ii) we have utilized a portion of such
carryforwards during the most recent three-year pericd and (i1ii) we
currently expect to utilize the remainder of such carryforwards over the
long term. However, prior to the complete wutilization of such
carryforwards, if we were to generate losses in our German operations
for an extended period of time, it is possible that we might conclude
the benefit of such carryforwards would no longer meet the more-likely-
than-not recognition criteria, at which point we would be regquired to
recognize a wvaluation allowance against some or all of the then-
remaining tax benefit associated with the carryforwards.

We record a reserve for uncertain tax positions where we believe 1t is
more-likely-than-not our tax position will not prevail with the
applicable tax authorities. From time to time, tax authorities will
examine certain of our income tax returns. Tax autherities may interpret
tax regulaticns differently than we do. Judgments and estimates made at
a point in time may change based on the ocutcome of tax audits and changes
to or further interpretations of regulations, thereby resulting in an
increase or decrease in the amount we are regquired to accrus for
uncertain tax positions (and therefore a decrease or increase in our
reported net income in the peried of such change). Our reserve for
uncertain tax positions changed during 2011, See Norte 12 to our
Consclidated Financial Statements.



We alsoc evaluate at the end of each reporting period whether or not some
or all of the undistributed earnings of our non-U.5. subsidiaries are not
permanently reinvested (as that term is defined in GRAP). While we may
have concluded in the past that some undistributed earnings are
permanently reinvested, facts and circumstances can change in the future,
such as a change in the expectation regarding the capital needs of our
foreign subsidiaries, could result in a conclusion that some or all of
the undistributed earnings are noc longer permanently reinwvested. If our
prior conclusions change, we would be required to recognize a deferred
income tax liability in an amount equal to the estimated incremental U.S.
income taxes and withholding tax liability that would be generated if all
such previously-considered permanently reinvested undistributed earnings
were to be distributed te the U.S.

s Litigation and envirommental lizbilities - We are involved in numerocus
legal and environmental actions in part due to WL s former involvement in
the manufacture of lead-based products. In accordance with applicable

GARAP for accounting for contingencies, we record accruals for these
liabilities when estimated future expenditures associated with such
contingencies become probable, and we can reascnably estimate the amounts
of such future expenditures. However, new information may become
available te wus, or circumstances (such as applicable laws and
regulations) may change, thereby resulting in an increase or decreases in
the amount we are reguired to accrue for such matters (and therefore a
decrease or increase in our reported net income in the peried of such
change) . At December 31, 2011 we have recorded total accrued
environmental liabilities of $43.2 million.

Operating income (loss) for each of our three operating segments is impacted
by certain of these significant judgments and estimates, as summarized below:

» Chemicals - impairment of eguity method investments, goodwill and other
long-lived assets, defined benefit pension and OPEB plans and loss
accruals.

s Component Products - impairment of goodwill and leong-lived assets and

loss accruals.
* Waste Management - impairment of long-lived assets and loss accruals.

In addition, general corporate and other items are impacted by the significant
judgments and estimates for impairment of marketable securities and equity
method investees, defined benefit pension and OPEB plans, and loss accruals.

Segment Operating Results - 2010 Compared to 2011 and 2009 Compared to 2010 -

Chemicals -

We consider Ti0; to be a “quality of life* product, with demand affected
by gross domestic product (or "GDP*) and overall economic conditions in our
markets located in warious regions of the world. Over the long-term, we
expect that demand for Ti0, across all markets will grow on average 2% to 2%
per year, consistent with our expectations for the long-term growth in GDP.
Howewver, even if we and ocur competitors maintain consistent shares of the
worldwide market, demand for Ti0, in any interim or annual period may not
change in the same proportion as the change in GDP, in part due to relative
changes in the Ti0; inventory levels of our customers. We believe our
customers’ inventory levels are partly influenced by their expectation for
future changes in market TiO, selling prices as well as their expectaticns for
the future availability of product. Although certain of our Til, grades are
considered specialty pigments, the majority of cur grades and substantially
all of our production are considered commodity pigment products, with price
and availability being the most significant competitive factors along with
guality and customer service.



The factors having the most impact on our reported operating results
are:

* Qur TiQ, sales and producticn volumes,
TiQ; selling prices,

® Currency exchange rates (particularly the exchange rate for the U.S5.
dollar relative to the euro, Norwegian krone and the Canadian dollar)
and

* Manufacturing costs, particularly raw materials, maintenance and
energy-related expenses.

Our key performance indicators are our TiO, average selling prices and
our level of Tig, sales and production volumes. Ti0; selling prices generally
follow industry trends and prices will increase or decrease generally as a
result of competitive market pressures.

Years ended December 31, % Change
2009 2010 2011 2005-10 2010-11
(Dellars in millions)
Net sales £1,142.0 £1,449.7 £1,043.3 27 % 34 0%
Cost of sales _1,014.0 1,106.7 1,187.5 9 % B %
Gross margin $ .128.0 $ 343.0 $ _745.8 168 % 117 %
Operating income ({(loss) % (l0.8) & 1B3.Z £ 5883.0 202 %
Percent of net sales:
Cost of sales 8% % 76 % 62 %
Gross margin 11 % 24 % 38 %
Operating income (loss) (1) % 12 % 28 %
TiC. operating statistics:
Sales volumes?* 445 528 503 19 % (5)%
Froduction wvolumes* 402 524 550 0 % 5 %
Production rate as 76 % 99 % 103 %
percent of capacity
Parcent change in TiQ,
net sales:
Ti0; product pricing 11 % 40 %
Tid; sales volumes 19 (5}
Ti0, product mix - (6}
Changes in currency exchange rates 43} 5
Total 27 % 34 %

*Thousands of metric tons

Current Industry Conditions - In 2011 our Chemicals Segment’'s production
facilities operated at full capacity rates and we increased Ti0O; selling
prices throughout 2010 and 2011, resulting in increased profitability and cash
flows. Global customer demand for our Ti0O, products also remained strong in
2011, Mevertheless, we experienced a softening of demand in the fourth
guarter as a result of customer destocking, and our sales volumes in 2011 were
lower as compared to 2010, with most of the lower wvelumes occurring in the
fourth guarter. We anticipate that customer demand will rebound from the
softness experienced in the fourth guarter and that we will be abkle teo
implement further TiO, selling price increases.



We experienced increased costs for our raw materials such as ore and
petroleum coke in 2011. We expect further increases in raw material costs in
2012,

Overall, based on positive market dynamics in the Ti0; industry, we
expect our profitability and cash flows teo increase imn 2012 and the
foreseeable future.

Net Sales - oQur Chemicals Segment’'s net sales increased 34% in 2011
compared to 2010 primarily due to a 40% increase in selling prices along with
the favorable impact of changes in currency exchange rates, offset partially
an unfavorable sales mix and a decline in sales volumes. Ti0; selling prices
will increase or decrease generally as a result of competitive market
pressures and changes in the relative level of supply and demand. Based on
current conditions in the Ti0O, industry, as well as the expectation for
increases in our manufacturing costs discussed below, we currently expect
average selling prices in 2012 to be higher than in 2011.

While the amount of inventory available for shipment in 2011 increased
due to higher production wvolumes during the year, our sales volumes were 5%
lower than in 2010 as a result of soft demand in the fourth guarter due to
customer destocking.

In addition te the factors discussed above, we estimate the favorable
effect of changes in currency exchange rates increased our net sales by
approximately $70 million, or 5%, as compared to 2010, while relative changes
in mix of the wvariocus grades of our products sold decreased our net sales by
approximately $87 million, or 6%.

our Chemicals Segment’'s net sales increased 27% in 2010 compared to 2009
primarily due to a 19% increase in sales volumes along with an 11% increase in
average Ti0D, selling prices, offset partially by the negative impact of
currency exchange rates. We estimate the unfavorable effect of changes in
currency exchange rates decreased our net sales by approximately $36 millien,
or 3%, as compared to 2005. Ti0, selling prices will increase or decrease
generally as a result of competitive market pressures and changes in the
relative level of supply and demand.

Record sales wvolumes in 2010 increased 19% as compared to 2002 due to
higher demand across all market segments resulting from the improvement in
economic conditions.

Coast of Sales - ©Our Chemicals Segment’'s cost of sales percentage
decreased significantly in 2011 compared to 2010, primarily due to the effects
of higher selling prices and the benefit of higher producticn wvelumes in 2011.
Qur Ti0, production volumes in 2011 established a new record for us for an
annual production period. During 2011 we experienced higher raw material
costs of 575.1 million (primarily feedstock ore and petroleum coke), an
increase in maintenance costs of $15.0 million (consistent with the increase
in production volumes) and currency fluctuations (primarily the euro).
Overall, our per metric ton cost of TiO, we produced increased approximately
10% as compared to 2010. We currently expect our feedstock ore and our other
raw material costs to increase in 2012, including significant increases in our
feedstock ore costs.

our Chemicals Seagment's cost of sales percentage decreased significantly
in 2010 compared to then-new 2009, due to the net impact of a 30% increase in
Ti0, production wvolumes toc a new production record at that time of 524,000
metric tons, a 19% increase in sales volumes, an increase in maintenance costs
of $25.2 million, and higher raw material costs of $54.5 million. In additien,
cost of sales for 2010 was negatively impacted by approximately $15 million as
a result of higher production costs in 2010 at our ilmenite mines in Norway.
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Cost of sales as a percentage of net sales decreased to 76% in 2010 compared
to B9%% in 2009 primarily due to higher selling prices in 2011 and the
significantly higher production volumes in 2010, as we implemented temporary
plant curtailments during the first half of 2009 in order to reduce our
finished goods inventories to an appropriate level. Such temperary plant
curtailments resulted in approximately $80 million of unabsorbed fixed
production costs which were charged directly to cost of sales in the first six
months of 2009

Operating Income (Loss) - Our Chemicals Segment’s operating income
increased significantly in 2011, primarily due to the significant increase in
our gross margin and increased sales volumes. Our gross margin increased

primarily because of the effect of higher selling prices which more than
offset the impact of higher manufacturing costs (primarily raw materials and
maintenance) . Changes in currency exchange rates had a minimal effect on
operating income in 2011 as compared teo 2010,

Our Chemicals Segment’s operating income increased significantly in 2010,
primarily due to the significant increase in our greoss margin and increased
sales wvolumes. Gross margin has increased in both perieds primarily because
of higher sales volumes and lower manufacturing costs per ton resulting from
higher production volumes and in 2010 higher selling prices. However, changes
in currency exchange rates have negatively affected our gross margin and
operating income (loss). We estimate that changes in currency exchange rates
decreased operating income (loss) by approximately $27 million in 2010 as
compared to 2009.

our Chemicals Segment’s operating income (loss) is net of amortization of
purchase accounting adjustments made in conjunction with our acguisitions of
interests in NL and Kronos. As a result, we recognize additional depreciation
expense above the amounts Kronos reports separately, substantially all of which
is included within cost of sales. We recognized additional depreciation
expense of $2.5 million in 200%, $2.6 million in 2010 and $2.8 million in 2011,
which reduced our reported Chemicals Segment's operating income (loss) as
compared to amounts reported by Kronos.

Currency Exchange Rates - ©Our Chemicals Segment has substantial
cperations and assets located ocutside the United States (primarily in Germany,
Belgium, Norway and Canada). The majority of sales generated from our foreign
operations are denominated in currencies other than the U.S. deollar,
principally the euro, other major European currencies and the Canadian dellar.
A portion of our sales generated from cur foreign operations is denominated in
the U.S. dollar. Certain raw materials used worldwide, primarily titanium-
containing feedstocks, are purchased in U.S. dellars, while labor and other
production costs are purchased primarily in local currencies. Conseguently,
the translated U.S. dollar wvalue of our foreign sales and cperating results
are subject teo currency exchange rate fluctuations which may faverably or
unfavorably impact reported earnings and may affect the comparability of
period-to-pericd operating results. In addition to the impact of the
translation of sales and expenses over time, our foreign operations also
generate currency transaction gains and losses which primarily relate to the
difference between the currency exchange rates in effect when non-local
currency sales or operating costs are initially accrued and when such amounts
are settled with the non-local currency.



Overall, fluctuations in currency exchange rates had the following

effects on our Chemicals Segment’'s net sales and operating income(loss):

Impact of changes in foreign currency - 2010 ws. 2011 (in millions])

Translation Total
gain/loss- currency
Transaction gains/{losses) recognized impact of rate impact
2010 2011 Change changes 2010 ws. 2011
Impact on:
Net sales $ - 5 - ko - $ 70 $ 70
Cperating
income (loss) g 3 [5) ] -
Impact of changes in foreign currency - 2009 wvs. 2010 (in millions)
Translation Total
gain/loss- currency
Transaction gains/(losses) recnggized Impact of rate Impact
2008 2010 Change changes 200% wvs. 2010
Impact on:
Net sales $ - $ - $ - § (386} $ (38)
Operating
income (loss) 1¢ B (2) {25} [27)
Outlook - We operated our Chemicals Segment's production facilities at

full practical capacity levels during 2011 and our production veolumes in 2011
set a new record for us for the second year in a row. While we will continue
te work on debottlenecking projects in order to increase our production
capacity, we believe such debottlenecking projects will preduce relatively
neminal increases in our capacity. Given the exceptional level of production
achieved in 2011, we currently expect to operate our facilities in 2012 at
production levels consistent with or slightly lower than 2011.

The overall strong global demand for Ti0, we experienced in 2011 is
expected to continue in 2012, As a result, we exXpect that we will be able to
sell the Ti0, we produce in 2012 as well as portions of ocur finished goods
inventory on hand at the end of 2011. Consegquently, we expect our sales
volumes to increase in 2012 as compared to 2011,

We implemented significant increases in Ti0, selling prices throughout
2011. Our average Ti0, selling prices were 40% higher in 2011 as compared to
2010, and our average prices at the end of 2011 were 11% than at the end of
the third quarter of 2011 and 47% higher than at the end of 2010. Based on
expected continuation of strong demand levels and increases in our
manufacturing costs discussed below, we anticipate our average selling prices
will continue to increase throughout 2012, including increases to offset the
impact of ocur expected higher manufacturing costs.

Throughout 2011 we have seen significantly higher feedstock ore costs
driven by tight ore supplies and higher-than-historical increases in petrcleum
coke and energy. We currently expect this trend te continue in 2012, with
continued higher-than-historical increases in feedstock ore, petroleum coke,
energy and freight costs. Overall, we currently expect the per metric ton
cost of Ti0, we produce will increase approximately 50% to 60% in 2012 as
compared to 2011 primarily due to higher feedstock ore costs. Qur cost of



sales per metric ton of Ti0; sold in 2012 is conseguently expected to be
significantly higher as compared to 2011, but only after we have socld the TiQ;
products on hand at the end of 2011, the cost of which is significantly lower
than our expected 2012 production costs. Given the current conditions in the
TiQ; industry, if our costs of production exceed our current expectations in
2012, and current demand for TiQ; remains strong, we believe we could recoup
such higher costs through additicnal selling price increases.

Cverall, we expect operating income will be higher in 2012 as compared
to 2011, as the favorable effect of higher selling prices and sales volumes
will more than offset the impact of higher production costs.

Qur expectations as to the future of the Ti0., industry are based upcocn a
number of factors beyond our control, including worldwide growth of gross
domestic product, competition in the marketplace, continued operation of
competitors, unexpected or earlier-than-expected capacity additions or
reductions and technological advances. If actual developments differ from our
expectations, our results of operations could be unfavorably atfected.

Component Products -

The key performance indicator for our Component Products Segment is
operating income margins.

Yeare ended December 31, % Change
2008 2010 2011 2009=-10 2010-11
(Dollarse in millions)

Net sales £116.1 £135.3 gl3g.8 17 % 3%
Cost of sales 82.13 85.3 103.6 B ¥ 4 %
Gross margin 5 23.8 § 35,0 $.35.2 51 % (2)%
Operating income (loss) 5 14.0) & 0.4 § 15.5 66 %
Percent of net sales:

Cost of sales BO % T3 % 75 %

Gross margin 20 % 27 % 25 %

Operating income (loss) {3)% T % 11 %

Net Sales - Our Component Products Segment’s net sales increased $3.5

million in 2011 as compared te 2010 primarily due to improved sales in the
security products. Security products sales increased significantly to

customers in the leisure transportation industry as well as improved customer
order rates across most customers as a result of some improvement in the
economy and new specific customer projects. Furniture component net sales were
positively dimpacted by 51.9 million in sales relating teo the July 2011
acguisition of an erconcmics component products business. See Note 3 to our
Consclidated Financial Statements. This increase in sales was fully offset by
a decline in sales of our cother ergonomics component products due to a decrease
in customer projects associated with government spending. Additionally, we
experienced a slight decline in overall demand for ergonomic products due to
the somewhat discretionary nature of ergonomic products and the overall
challenging econcmic environment.

Cur Component Products Segment's net sales increased approximately $15.2
million in 2010 as compared to 2009 principally due to an increase in order
rates from our customers resulting from improved economic conditions in Horth

America.

Caost of Sales - OQur Component Products Segment’s cost of sales
percentage deteriorated slightly in 2011 compared to 2010. As a result, gross
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margin declined slightly over the same periods. The gross margin percentage
was negatively impacted by higher raw material costs, inefficiencies relating
to the 2011 consclidation of furniture components facilities and the relative
changes in currency exchange rates, partially offset by the positive impact of
increased leverage of fixed costs from higher sales.

Our Component Products Segment’s cost of sales percentage improved in
2010 compared teo 2009, ARs a result, gross margin increased over the same
pericds. The resulting increase in gross margin is primarily due to improved
coverage of overhead and fixed manufacturing costs from higher sales volume
and the related efficiency gains.

Operating Income (Loss}) - Our Component Products Segment operating
income improved in 2011 compared to 2010. The comparison of operating income
for 2011 to 2010 was primarily impacted by:

* the positive impact of a 57.5 million settlement gain in 2011 and lower
related litigation expense of approxXimately 5$2.2 million;

# the negative impact of facility consclidation costs in of $2.0 million
2011 compared te $.2 millien in 2010, and related production
inefficiencies;

¢ the negative impact of higher raw material costs;

« the 51.1 million write-down on assets held for sale in 2011 compared to
£.5 million in 2010; and

s the negative 5.7 million impact of relative changes in foreign currency
exchange rates in 2011.

The comparison of operating income (loss) for 2010 to 200% was primarily
impacted by:

» a $12.2 million improvement in gross margin in 2010 due to higher sales
and continued control of fixed manufacturing costs resulting in an
increase in utilization of production capacity and improved coverage of
fixed manufacturing costs;

s the positive impact of $2.2 million in lower litigation expense in 2010;

s+ a write-down on assets held for sale of approximately £.5 million (see
Note 7 to the Consclidated Financial Statements); and

* the negative 31.8 million impact of relative changes in foreign currency
exchange rates in 2010.

General - ©Qur Compeonent Products Segment’'s profitability primarily
depends on our ability to utilize our production capacity effectively, which is
affected by, among other things, the demand for our products and our ability to
control our manufacturing costs, primarily comprised of labor costs and
materials. The materials used in our products consist of purchased components
and raw materials some of which are subject to fluctuations in the commodity
markets such as coiled steel, zinc, copper, plastic resin and stainless steel.
Total material costs represented approximately 53% of our cost of sales in
2011, with commodity related raw materials accounting for approximately 18% of
our cost of sales. Worldwide commodity raw material costs declined in 200% and
began increasing in the second half of 2010 and continued increasing throughout

2011. We occasionally enter into short-term commodity related raw material
supply arrangements to mitigate the impact of future increases in commodity
related raw material costs. These arrangements generally provide for stated

unit prices based upon specified purchase wvolumes, which help us to stabilize
commodity related raw material purchase prices to a certain extent. We enter
into such arrangements for zinc, brass and coiled steel. We expect commodity
related raw material prices to increase in 2012 in conjunction with higher
demand as a result of the expected improvement in the world wide economy. The
raw materials purchased on the spot market are sometimes subject to
unanticipated and sudden price increases. We generally seek to mitigate the
impact of fluctuations in commodity raw material costs on our margins through
improvements in production efficiencies or other operating cost reductions. 1In
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the event we are unable to offset cost increases for these raw materials with
other cost reductions, it may be difficult to recover those cost increases
through increased product selling prices or raw material surcharges due to the
competitive nature of the markets served by our products. Consequently,
overall operating margins may be affected by raw material cost pressures.

Currency Exchange Rates - Our Component Products Segment has substantial
ocperations and assets all of which are located outside the United States (in
Canada and Taiwan}. The majority of sales generated from our foreign
operations are denominated in the U.S. deollar, with the remainder denominated
in foreign currencies, principally the Canadian dollar and the New Taiwan
dollar. Most raw materials, labor and other production costs for our foreign
gperaticons are denominated in local currencies. Conseguently, the translated
U.5. dollar wvalues of our foreign sales and operating results are subject to
currency exchange rate fluctuations which may faveorably or unfavorably impact
reported earnings and may affect comparability of period-to-pericd operating
results. In addition to the impact of the translation of sales and expenses
over time, CompX’'s non-local operations also generate currency transaction
gains and losses which primarily relate to the difference between the currency
exchange rates in effect when non-U.S. currency sales or operating costs are
initially accrued and when such amounts are settled. our Component Froducts
Segment’s net sales were positively impacted while its operating income (loss)
was negatively impacted by currency exchange rates in the following amounts as
compared to the impact of currency exchange rates during the corresponding
pericd in the prior year.

Overall, fluctuations in currency exchange rates had the following
effects on our Component Products Segment’s net sales and operating income

(loss) :
Impact of changes in foreign currency - 2010 vs. 2011 (in millicns)
Translation Total
gain/loss- currency
Transaction gains/(losses) recognized impact of rate impact
2010 2011 Change changes 2010 wvs. 2011
Impact on:
Net =ales 5 - 5 - § - £ .5 £ .5
Operating
income (loss) (.4) .4 .B {1.5) (.7}
Impact of changes in foreign currency = 2009 ws. 2010 (in millioms)
Translation Total
gain/loss- currency
Transaction gains/(losses) recognized impact of rate impact
2008 2010 Change changes 2008 ws. 2010
Impact on:
Het sales 5 - s - -] 5 1.0 £ 1.0
Operating income
[ loss) [.2) {.3) (.1) (1.86) (1.7}
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The positive impact on sales for both comparative periods relates to
gales denominated in non-U.S5. dellar currencies translated inte higher U.S.
dollar sales due to a strengthening of the local currency in relation to the
U.s. dellar

The negative impact on cperating income for both comparative periods
results from the U.5. dollar denominated sales of non-U.S. operations
converted intec lower local currency amounts due to the weakening of the U.S.
dollar. This negatively impacted our gross margin as it results in less local
currency generated from sales to cover the costs of non-U.S. operations which
are denominated in local currency.

Outlook - Sales demand across all of our Component Product Segment's
reporting units increased during the first gquarter of 2011 compared to the
pricr vear as conditions in the overall economy improved. Security products
continued to see improved demand over the prior year throughout the remainder
of the year due tec the diversity of the customers that it serves. However,
during the later part of the second gquarter and through the remainder of the
year, our furniture components experienced flat customer demand due to slowing
orders in the appliance and cffice furniture markets as well as a decline in
projects driven by government spending. Furniture components sales were
positively impacted by 51.9% million relating to the July 2011 acguired
business which on a pro forma basis had net sales of $5.1 million in 2011.
Due to the current economic situation, it is uncertain whether sales growth
will return to furniture components over the next several months, what the
future impact on sales the acquired business will be or the extent that sales
will grow in the security products during 2012. While changes in market
demand are not within our control, we are focused on the areas we can impact.
Staffing levels are continuously evaluated in relation teo sales order rates
which may result in headcount adjustments, to the extent possible, tc match
staffing levels with demand. We expect our continuocus lean manufacturing and
cost improvement initiatives, such as the consclidation of our Furniture
Components facilities, to positively impact our productivity and result in a
more efficient infrastructure. Additionally, we continue to seek opportunities
to gain market share in markets we currently serve, to expand intoc new markets
and to develop new product features in order to mitigate the impact of changes
in demand as well as broaden cur sales base.

Volatility in the ceosts of commodity raw materials is ongoing. our
primary commodity raw materials are steel, brass, alloyed zinc and stainless
steel which together represent approximately 18% of our total cost of goods
sold. Compared to 2010, our cost of these raw materials increased in 2011
between approximately 10% and 21%. We generally seek to mitigate the impact
of fluctuations in commedity raw material costs on our margins through
improvements in production efficiencies or other operating cost reductions as
well as occasionally executing larger quantity tactical spot buys of these raw
materials, which may result in higher inventory balances for a period of time.
In the event we are unable to offset commodity raw material cost increases
with other cost reductions, it may be difficult to recover those cost
increases through increased product selling prices or surcharges due to the
competitive nature of the markets served by our products, ARdditionally,
significant surcharges may negatively affect our margins as they typically
only recover the increased cost of the raw material without adding margin
dollars resulting in a lower margin percentage. Consegquently, overall
operating margins may be affected by commodity raw material cost pressures as
is currently the case.

As discussed in Note 17 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, we
have been involwved in certain patent infringement litigaticon, which has in the
past resulted in our incurring significant litigation expense. With the
settlement reached during the first guarter of 2011, we do not expect to incur



significant litigation expense relating to these patent infringement claims
going forward.

The U.S5. dollar weakened in 2011 in comparison to the Canadian dellar
and the New Taiwan dollar, which are the primary currencies of our non-U.S.
operations. We expect the U.§. dollar to continue to weaken during 2012 which
will likely have a negative impact on our 2012 results in comparison to 2011.
When practical, we will seek to mitigate the negative impact of changes in
currency exchange rates on our results by entering into currency hedging
contracts. However, such strategies cannot fully mitigate the negative impact
of changes in currency exchange rates. See HNote 1% to our Consclidated
Financial Statements for currency hedging contracts in place at December 31,
2011,

Waste Management -

Years ended December 31,
2009 2000 2011
(In millions)

Net sales £ 14.0 5 7.7 § 2.0
Cost of sales 29.4 23.9 25.3
Gross margin $(15.4) $(16.2) 23.3)
Operating loss $127.0) $(30.8} 5(38.0)
General - We have operated our Waste Management Segment’'s waste management

facility on a relatively limited basis while we navigated the regulatory
licensing regquirements to receive permits for the disposal of byproduct waste
material and for a broad range of LLRW and mixed LLEW. We previously filed
license applications for such disposal capabilities with the applicable Texas
state agencies. In May 2008, the TCEQ issued us a license for the disposzal of
byproduct material. Byproduct material includes wuranium or thorium mill
tailings as well as eguipment, pipe and cother materials used to handle and
process the mill tailings. We began construction of the byproduct facility
infrastructure at our site in Andrews County, Texas in the third gquarter of
2008, and this facility began disposal operations in October 2009%. In January
2009, the TCEQ issued a near-surface low-level and mixed LLEW disposal license
to us. This license was signed in September 2003, Construction of the
Compact and Federal LLRW sites began in January 2011. Construction of the
Compact LLRW site was substantially complete in November 2011, and the Federal
LLRW site was substantially complete in February 2012. We currently expect
the Compact LLRW site will be fully certified and operational by the end of
March 2012, with the Federal LLRW site fully certified and operatiomal latex
in 2012.

Net Szles and Operating Loss - The Waste Management Segment’'s sales
decreased in 2011 and 2010 compared te 2009, primarily due to revenue
associated with a customer-specific project that was primarily completed
during 2005. In 2010 the Waste Management Segment’'s operating loss increased
primarily dus to a contract termination expense of $1.1 million related to an
agreement to terminate a disposal contract with a former customer. Our Waste
Management operating loss was higher in 2010 and 2011 compared to 2009, in
part because we have not achieved sufficient revenues to cffset the higher
cost structure associated with operating under our new byproduct disposal
license as well as our imability to undertake new projects without the
completion of our new disposal facilities. We continue to seek to increase
ocur Waste Management Segment’'s sales volumes from waste streams permitted
under our current licenses.



Outloock - Having obtained the final regulatory license we need to
commence full scale operations, and with the Compact LLEW disposal facility
expected to be certified for operation by the end of March 2012 and the
Federal LLREW disposal facility expected to be operational later in 2012, we
are substantially ready to provide “one-stop shopping” for hazardous, toxic,
LLREW and mixed LLRW and radicactive byproduct material. WCS has the broadest
range of capabilities of any commercial enterprise in the U.S. for the
=torage, treatment and permanent disposal of these materials, which we believe
gives WCS a significant and valuable competitive advantage in the industry.
We are also exploring opportunities to cobtain certain types of new business
{including disposal and storage of certain types of waste) that, if obtained,
could help to increase our Waste Management Segment’'s sales, and decrease our
Waste Management Segment’s operating loss. Our ability to increase our Waste
Management Segment’'s sales volumes through these waste streams, particularly
as it relates to the Compact and Federal LLEW disposal facilities, together
with improved operating efficiencies through further cost reductions and
increased capacity utilization, are important factors in improving our Waste

Management operating results and cash flows. Until we are abkle to increase
our Waste Management Segment’'s sales velumes, we expect we will continue to
generally report cperating losses in our Waste Management Segment. While

achieving increased sales wvolumes could result in operating profits, we
currently do neot believe we will report any significant levels of Waste
Management operating profit until we have started to generate revenues
following completion of the construction discussed above.

We believe WCS can become a viable, profitable operation; however, we do
not knew if we will be successful in improving WCS' cash flows. We have in
the past, and we may in the future, consider strategic alternatives with
respect to WCS. We could report a loss in any such strategic transaction.

General Corporate Items, Interest Expense, Frovision for Income Taxes
{Benefit), Noncontrolling Interest and Related Party Transactions

Interest and Dividend Income - A significant portion of our interest and
dividend income in 2009, 2009 and 2011 relates to the distributions we
received from The Amalgamated Sugar Company LLC. We recognized dividend
income from the LLC of $25.4 million in each of 200%, 2010 and 2011.

Insurance Recoveries - Insurance recoveries relate to amounts NL
received from certain of ites former insurance carriers, and relate principally
to the recovery of prior lead pigment and asbestos litigation defense costs
incurred by HL, We have agreements with three former insurance carriers
pursuant to which the carriers reimburse us for a portion of our future lead
pigment litigation defense costs, and one such carrier reimburses us for a
portion of our future asbestos litigation defense costs. We are not able to
determine how much we will ultimately recover from these carriers for defense
costs incurred by us because of certain issues that arise regarding which
defense costs gualify for reimbursement. Substantially all of the insurance
recoveries NL recognized 2011 relate to a new settlement we reached with one
of cur former insurance carriers in September 2011 in which they agreed to
reimburse NL for a portion of our past lead pigment litigation defense costs.

While we continue to seek additional insurance recoveries for lead
pigment and asbestos litigation matters, we do not know the extent to which we
will be successful in obtaining additional reimbursement for either defense
costs or indemnity. Any additicnal insurance recoveries would ke recognized
wher the receipt is probable and the amount is determinable. See Hote 17 to
cur Conscolidated Financial Statements.

In addition to the insurance recoveries discussed above, our insurance
recoveries in 2010 include an insurance recovery recognized in the first
guarter of 2010 in connection with the litigation settlement discussed in Note



17 to our Consolidated Financial Statements. NL had insurance coverage for a
portion of the litigation settlement, and a substantial portion of the
insurance recoveries we recognized in 2010 relates to such coverage.

Other General Corporate Income Items - In 200% we recognized an $11.1
million pre-tax gain on the second closing on property coversd under a
litigation settlement reached in the fourth guarter of 2008 related to
condemnation proceedings on certain real property we owned in New Jersey. See
Hote 15 to our Consclidated Financial Statements.

Also in 200%, we recognized a pre-tax litigation settlement gain of
512.0 million related to amounts we received in the first guarter of 2009 in
recovery of past environmental remediation and related legal costs we had
previocusly incurred. We alsoc recognized a 56.3 million gain on the sale of
the assets of our research, laboratory and guality controcl business te the
Amalgamated Sugar Company LLC in 200%. See HNote 15 teo our Consclidated
Financial Statements.

Litigation settlement gains of $6.3 million, consist of S$4.0 million
related to an additional recovery of past environmental remediation and
related costs and 52.3 million related to a reduction in our accrued
environmental remediation and related legal costs resulting from another PRP's
agreement to indemnify wus. See Note 15 to our Consclidated Financial
Statements.

Corporate Expenses, Net - The $33.3 million in litigation settlement and
contract termination expense are discussed in MNotes 9% and 17 of our
Conscolidated Financial Statements.

Corporate expenses were 36% higher at $40.6 mwmillion in 2011 compared to
$29.9 million in 2010. Corporate expenses increased primarily due to higher
environmental remediation and related costs in 2011. In addition, we had
lower litigation and related costs at NL. Included in corporate expense are:

¢ litigation and related costs at NL of 57.% million in 2011
compared to $8.8 million in 2010 and

+ environmental remediation and related costs of $11.3 million in
2011 compared to $.4 millicon in 2010.

Corporate expenses were 25% lower at $29.9% million in 2010 compared to
540.1 million in 2009. Corporate expenses decreased primarily due to lower
defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefit expense, lower
environmental remediation and related costs and lower incentive compensation
expense which included certain incentive compensation paid in connection with
the sale of our research and development business in the first gquarter of
2009. In addition, we had lower litigation and related costs at NL. Included
in corporate expense are:

e Jlitigation and related costs at NL of $8.8 million in 2010
compared to $12.4 million in 2009 and

« envircnmental remediation and related costs of 5.4 million in 2010
compared te $5.4 million in 200%,

Overall, we expect that our net general corporate expenses in 2012 will
be lower than in 2011, with the unfavorable effect of higher expected
litigation and related expenses more than offsec by lower environmental

remediation and related costs.

The level of our litigation and related expenses varies from period to
period depending upon, among other things, the number of cases in which we are
currently involved, the nature of such cases and the current stage of such
cases (e.g. discovery, pre-trial motions, trial or appeal, if applicable}l. See
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Note 17 te our Conseclidated Financial Statements. If our current expectations
regarding the number of cases in which we expect to be involved during 2012, or
the nature of such cases, were to change cur corporate expenses could be higher
than we currently estimate.

In addition, we adijust our accruals for environmental remediation and
related costs as further information becomes available teo us or as
circumstances change. Such further information or changed cirecumstances could
result in an increase or reduction in our accrued environmental remediation
and related costs. Ckligations for environmental remediation and related
costs are difficult to assess and estimate, and it is possible that actual
costs for environmental remediation and related costs will exceed accrued
amounts or that costs will be incurred in the future for sites in which we
cannot currently estimate the liability. See Note 17 to our Consclidated
Financial Statements.

Loss on Prepayment of Debt and Interest Expense - We have a significant
amount of indebtedness denominated in the euro, primarily through our
subsidiary EKronos International, Inc. (“KII"). The interest expense we
recognize on these fixed rate Notes will vary with fluctuations in the euro
exchange rate. See also Item 7A, "Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures
About Market Risk.”

In March 2011, Kreoneos, through its subsidiary KII redeemed €80 million

principal amount of its 6.5% Senior Secured Netes. In the third and fourth
quarters of 2011, Kronos repurchased in open market transactions an aggregate
£40.8 million principal amount of our &.5% Notes. We recognized a net $3.1

million pre-tax interest charge related to the redemption and open market
purchases of the 6.5% MNotes, consisting of the call premium, the write-off of
unamortized deferred financing costs and original issue discount associlated
with the redeemed and purchased Notes. See HNote % to our Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Interest expense decreased to 561.9% million in 2011 from $68.4 million
in 2010 primarily due to lower average debt balances at Kronos (as noted
above) and CompX, which repaid %20 million on its note payable to TIMET
including %15 million in the fourth guarter of 2011. The benefit of lower
average debt balances was partially offset by increased borrowing at WWCS,
primarily its financing capital lease which closed in December 2010.

Interest expense increased to 568.4 million in 2010 from $66.7 million
in 2009 primarily due to higher average debt balances at Valhi parent, NL and
CompX partially offset by the effect of decreased average borrowings under
Kroncs' revolving credit facilities.

Excluding the effect of currency exchange rates, we expect interest
expense will be lower in 2012 as compared to 2011 due to lower average
balances of outstanding borrowings at KII and CompX in 2012.

Provision for Income Taxes (Benefit) - We recognized an income tax
benefit of 3550.8 million in 2009 and income tax expense of $18.5 million in
20190 and $174.9 million in 2011. See MNote 12 to our Conscolidated Financial
Statements for a tabular reconciliation of ocur statutory tax expense to our
actual tax expense. Some of the more significant items impacting this
reconciliation are summarized below.

Our income tax expense in 2011 includes a $517.2 willion provision for
7.5. incremental income taxes on current earnings repatriated from our CGerman
subsidiary primarily incurred in the third and fourth quarters of 2011, which
earnings were used to fund a portion of the repurchases of Kronos' Senior
Secured Notes, In addition, our income tax expense in 2011 includes a net



benefit of $8.5 million (primarily in the third quarter) related to a decrease
in the reserve for uncertain tax positions.

Qur tax provision in 2010 includes:

¢ a charge of $5.2 million related te an increase in the reserve for
uncertain tax positions;

* a $35.2 million non-cash income tax benefit related te a European
Court ruling in the first guarter of 2010 that resulted in a
favorable resclution of certain income tax issues in Germany and an
increase in the amount of our German corporate and trade tax net
operating loss carrvforwards; and

* an aggregate $1.9 million provision for deferred income taxes on the
pre-2005 undistributed earnings of our Taiwanese subsidiary
recognized in the first quarter of 2010.

Our income tax benefit in 2009 includes an income tax benefit of $14.0
million due to a net decrease in gur regerve for uncertain tax positions in
part as a result of the resclution of tax audits in Belgium and Germany in the
third and fourth guarters.

In addition, as discussed in MNote 1 teo our Consolidated Financial
Statements, we recognize deferred income taxes with respect to the excess of
the financial reporting carrying amount over the income tax basis of our
direct investment in Kronos. The amount of such deferred income taxes can
vary from period to pericod and have a significant impact on our overall
effective income tax rate. The aggregate amount of such deferred income taxes
associated with our investment in Kronos included in our provision for income
taxes was nil in 2011, a deferred income tax expense of $18.1 million in 2010,
and a deferred income tax benefit of $8.9% million in 200%. There iz a maximum
amount of deferred income taxes we are required to recognize with respect to
our direct investment in Kronos, and we reached such maximum ameount in the
fourth guarter of 2010. As a result, we were not reguired to recognize any
additional deferred income taxes with respect to our direct investment in
Kronos in 2011, and we similarly do not expect we will be reguired to
recognize any additional deferred income taxes with respect to our direct
investment in Kronos in 2012.

Noncontrolling Interest 1in Net TIncome (Loss) of Subsidiaries -
Noncontrolling interest increased from 513.5 million in 2010 due to $77.5
million in 2011 primarily due to increased operating income at Kronos in 2011
wnich meore than coffset the effects of Kronos' secondary stock offering of its
common stock which was completed in the fourth guarter of 2010, this cffering
decreased our aggregate ownership percentcage of Kronos from 55% to BO% thereby
increasing the noncontrolling interest we recognize in Kronos. See Note 3 to
our Consolidated Financial Statements.

Woncontrolling interest increased from a benefit of $3.% million in 200%
due to net losses at Kronos, NL and CompX in 2009% to a cost of $13.5 million in
2010 due net income at all of these subsidiaries in 2010.

Related Party Transactions - We are a party to certain transactions with
related parties. See Hote 16 to ocur Consolidated Financial Statements.

Assumptions on Defined Benefit Pension Plans and OPEE Plans.

Defined Benefit Pension Flans. We maintain various defined benefit
pension plans in the U.S., Eurcope and Canada. See Note 11 to our Consolidated
Financial Stcatements. At December 31, 2011, the projected benefit chligations
for all defined benefit plans comprised $65.3 million related to U.S. plans
and 5$469.7 million related to foreign plans, Substantially all of the
projected benefit obligations attributable to foreign plans related to plans
maintained by Kronos, and approximately 73% and 27% of the projected benefit
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obligaticons attributable te U.S5. plans related to plans maintained by NL and
Kronos. Prior to December 31, 2009, we alsoc maintained a U.5. plan related to
Medite Corporation, a former business unit of Valhi (the “Medite plan”).
Effective December 31, 200%, for financial reporting purposes the assets and
liabilities of the Medite plan were transferred to a defined benefit pension
plan maintained by Contran and are no longer reflected in our Consclidated
Financial Statements. See Hote 11 te our Consolidated Financial Statements.

Under defined benefit pension plan accounting, we recognize defined
benefit pension plan expense and prepaid and accrued pension costs based on
certain actuarial assumptions, principally the assumed discount rate, the
assumed long-term rate of return on plan assets and the assumed increase in
future compensation levels. We recognize the full funded status of our
defined benefit pension plans as either an asset (for overfunded plans) or a
liability (for underfunded plans) in our Consolidated Balance Sheet.

We recognized consolidated defined benefit pension plan expense of $23.7
million in 2009, $23.3 million in 2010 and $25.4 million in 2011. The amount
of funding reguirements for these defined benefit pension plans is generally
based upon applicable regulations (such as ERISA in the U.S.}), and will
generally differ from pension expense recognized under GARP for financial
reporting purposes. We made contributions te all of our defined benefit
pension plans of $23.4 mwmillion in 2009, $25.2 million in 2010 and 525.9
million in 2011.

The discount rates we use for determining defined bkenefit pension
expense and the related pension obligations are based on current interest
rates earned on long-term bonds that receive one of the two highest ratings
given by recognized rating agencies in the applicable country where the
defined kenefit pensicn benefits are being paid. In addition, we receive
third-party advice about appropriate discount rates, and these advisors may in
some cases use their own market indices. We adjust these discount rates as of
each December 31 valuation date to reflect then-current interest rates on such
long-term bonds. We wuse these discount rates to determine the actuarial
present wvalue of the pension ocbligations as of December 31 of that year. We
also use these discount rates to determine the interest component of defined
benefit pensicon expense for the following year.

Approximately 55%, 24%, 15% and 4% of the projected benefit obligations
relaced to Kronos' plans were in Germany, Canada, Norway and the U.S.,
respectively. The NL plan is substantially all in the U.S5. We use several
different discount rate assumptions in determining our consclidated defined
benefit pension plan obligations and expense because we maintain defined
benefit pension plans in several different countries in North America and
Europe and the interest rate environment differs from country to country.

We used the feollowing discount rates for our defined benefit pension
plans:

Discount rates used for:

Obligations at Obligations at Obligations at
December 31, 200% December 31, 2010 December 31, 2011
Land expense in 2010 and expense in 2011 EEQ,EEPenEe 1nh2012
Kronos and NL plans:

Germany 5.5% 5.2% 5.5%
Canada 6.0 5.2% 4,3%
Norway 5.3 4.8% 3.5%
Uu.s. 5.7 5.1% 4.2%



The assumed long-term rate of return on plan assets represents the
estimated average rate of earnings expected to be earned on the funds invested
or to be invested in the plans' assets provided to fund the benefit payments
inherent in the projected benefit obligations. Unlike the discount rate,
which is adjusted each year based on changes in current long-term interest
rates, the assumed long-term rate of return on plan assets will not
necessarily change based upon the actual short-term performance of the plan
assets in any given year. Defined benefit pension expense each year is based
upon the assumsd long-term rate of return on plan assets for each plan, the
actual fair wvalue of the plan assets as of the beginning of the year and an
estimace of the amount of contributions to and distributions from the plan
during the year. Differences between the expected return on plan assets for a
given wyear and the actual return are deferred and amortized over future
periods based either upon the expected average remaining service life of the
active plan participants (for plans for which benefits are =till being sarned
by active employees) or the average remaining life expectancy of the inactive
participants (for plans for which benefits are not still being earned by
active employees).

At December 31, 2011, the fair wvalue of plan assets for all defined
benefit plans comprised 5$45.4 million related to U.S. plans and 5$343.7 million
related to foreign plans. Substantially all of plan assets attributable to
foreign plans related teo plans maintained by Eronos, and approximately 72% and
28% of the plan assets attributable to U.5. plans related to plans maintained
by HNL and Kronos, respectively. At December 31, 2011, approximately 54%, 24%,
16% and 4% of the plan assets related to Kronos®' plans were in the Germany,
Canada, Norway and the U.5., respectively. We use several different long-term
rates of return on plan asset assumptions in determining our consclidated
defined benefit pensicn plan expense. This is because the plan assets in
different countries are invested in a different mix of investments and the
long-term rates of return for different investments differ from country to
country.

In determining the expected leng-term rate of return on plan asset
assumptions, we consider the long-term asset mix (e.g. eguity wvs. £fixed
income) for the assets for each of our plans and the expected long-term rates
of return for such asset components. In addition, we receive third-party
advice about appropriate long-term rates of return. Such assumed asset mixes
are summarized below:

® Substantially all of the Kronos and NL plan assets in the U.5. were
invested in the Combined Master Retirement Trust ("CMRT"), a collective
investment trust sponscred by Contran to permit the collective
investment Dy certain master trusts that fund certain employee benefits

plans sponscred by Contran and certain of its affiliates, Harold C.
Simmons is the sole trustee of the CMRT and is a member of the CMRT
investment committes. The CMRT's long-term investment objective is to

provide a rate of return exceeding a composite of breoad markst eguity
and fixed income indices (including the S&PFP 500 and certain Russell
indices}, while utilizing both third-party investment managers as well
as investmencs directed by Mr. Simmons. The CMET holds TIMET common
stock in its investment portfolio; however through December 31, 200% we
invested in a portion of the CMET which does not include the TIMET
holdings. Beginning in 2010, we began to invest in the portion of the
CMRT that heolds such stock. During the history of the CMRT from its
incepticon in 1988 through December 31, 2011, the average annual rate of
return (including the CMRT's investment in TIMET common stock) has been
14%, while such annual return excluding the CMRT's investment in TIMET
common stock has been 11.4%.

¢ In Germany, the composition of our plan assets is established to satisfy
the reguirements of the German insurance commissioner.



* In Canada, we currently have a plan asset target allocation of 55% to
equity securities, 45% to fixed income securities and the remainder
primarily to cash and liguid investments. We expect the long-term rate
of return for such investments to average approximately 125 basis points
above the applicable equity or fixed income index.

* In Norway, we currently have a plan asset target allocation of 12% to
equity securities, 72% te fixed income securities, 7% to real estate and
the remainder primarily to cash and liquid investments. The expected
long-term rate of return for such investments is approximately 8%, 4%,
7% and 3%, respectively.

Our pension plan weighted average asset allocations by asset category
were as follows:

December 31, 2010

CMRET Germany Canada Norway
Equity securities and limited
Partnerships B3% 17% 59% 17%
Fixed income securities 16 &1 g &8
Real estate - 11 - 2
Cash, cash eguivalents and other 1 11 2 13
Total 100% 100% 100% 100%

December 31, 2011

CMET Germany Canada Horwa

Equity securities and limited
Partnerships B5% 29% 56% 10%
Fixed income securities 14 50 41 70
Real estate - 11 - 9
Cash, cash equivalents and other 1 10 3 11
Total 100% 100% 00% 100%

We regularly review our actual asset allocation for each non-US plan and
will periodically rebalance the investments in each plan to more accurately
reflect the targeted allocation when considered appropriate. The CMRT trustee
and investment committee do not maintain a specific target asset allocation in
order to achieve their objectives, but instead they pericdically change the
asset mix of the CMRT based upon, among other things, advice they receive from
third-party advisors and their expectations regarding potential returns for
various investment alternatives and what asset mix will generate the dgreatest
cverall return.

The assumed long-term rates of return on plan assets used for purposes
of determining net period pension cost for 200%, 2010 and 2011 were as
fellows:

20089 2010 2011
Kronos and NL plans:
Germany 5.3% 5.0% 5.0%
Canada 6.0 6.0 6.0
Norway 5.8 5.0 4.8
U.s. 10.0 10.0 10.0
Medite plan 10.0 - =



We currently expect to utilize the same long-term rates of return on
plan asset assumptions in 2012 as we used in 2011 for purposes of determining
our 2012 defined benefit pension plan expense.

To the extent that a plan's particular pension benefit formula
calculates the pension benefit in whole or in part based upon future
compensation levels, the projected benefit obligations and the pension expense
will be based in part upon expected increases in future compenszation levels.
For all of our plans for which the bhenefit formula is so calculated, we
generally base the assumed expected increase in future compensation levels on
the average long-term inflation rates for the applicable country.

In addition teo the actuarial assumptions discussed above, because Kronos
maintains defined benefit pension plans outside the U.5., the amounts we
recognize for defined benefit pension expense and prepaid and accrued pension
costs will vary based upon relative changes in currency exchange rates.

As discussed above, assumed discount rates and rates of return on plan
assets are re-evaluated annually. & reduction in the assumed discount rate
generally results in an actuarial loss, as the actuarially-determined present
value of estimated future benefit payments will increase. Conversely, an
increase in the assumed discount rate generally results in an actuarial gain.
In addition, an actual return on plan assets for a given year that is greater
than the assumed return on plan assets results in an actuarial gain, while an
actual return on plan assets that is less than the assumed return results in
an actuarial loss. Other actual outcomes that differ from previous
assumptions, such as individuals living longer or shorter than assumed in
mortality tables, which are also used to determine the actuarially-determined
present wvalue of estimated future benefit payments, changes in such mortality
table themselves or plan amendments, will also result in actuarial losses or
gains. These amounts are recognized in other comprehensive income. In
addition, any actuarial gains generated in future periods would reduce the
negative amortization effect included in earnings of any cumulative
unrecognized actuarial losses, while any actuarial losses generated in future
periods would reduce the favorable amortization effect included in earnings of
any cumulative unrecognized actuarial gains.

During 2011, our defined benefit pensicn plans generated a net actuarial
loss of $30.1 million. This actuarial loss resulted primarily from the general
reduction in discount rates from Decembher 31, 2010 to December 31, 2011.

Based on the actuarial assumptions described above and our current
expectations for what actual average currency exchange rates will be during
2012, we currently expect our aggregate defined benefit pension expense will
approximate 525.5 million in 2012. In comparison, we currently expect to be
reguired to make approximately §27.7 million of aggregate ceontributions to
such plans during 2012,

Rz noted above, defined benefit pension expense and the amounts
recognized as prepaid and accrued pension costs are based upon the actuarial
assumptions discussed above. We believe all of the actuarial assumptions used
are reasonable and appropriate, If we had lowered the assumed discount rates
by 25 basis points for all of their plans as of December 31, 2011, our
aggregate projected benefit obligations would have increased by approximately
517 million at that date, and our agoregate defined benefit pension expense
would bhe expected to increase by approximately %1 million during 2011,
Similarly, if we lowered the assumed long-term rates of return on plan assets
by 25 basis points for all of their plans, our defined benefit pension expense
would be expected to increase by approximately $1 million during 2012,

OPEE Plans. We provide certain health care and life insurance benefits

for certain of our eligible retired employees. See MNote 11 to our
Consolidated Financial Statements. At December 31, 2011, approximately 12%,
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51% and 37% of our aggregate accrued OPEE costs relate to Kronos, NL  and
Tremont, respectively, Kronos provides such OPEER benefits to eligible
retirees in the U.S5. and Canada, and NL and Tremont provide such OPEE benefits
to eligible retirees in the U.5. Under accounting for other postretirement
employee henefits, OPEB expense and accrued CPEB costs are based on certain
actuarial assumptions, principally the assumed discount rate and the assumed
rate of increases in future health care costs. We recognize the full unfunded
status of our OPEB plans as a liability.

We recognized consclidated OPEE expense of 51.9 million in 2009 and $1.1
million in 2010 and a benefit of %1.1 million in 2011, Similar to defined
benefit pension benefits, the amount of funding will differ from the expense
recognized for financial reporting purposes, and contributions to the plans to
cover benefit payments aggregated $2.6 million im 2009, $1.7 million in 2010
and $1.2 million in 2011. Substantially all of our U.S. accrued OPEB cost
relates to benefits being paid to current retirees and their dependents and no
material amount of OPEE benefits are being earned by current U.S. employees.
Some of Xronos’' Canadian employees are earning OPEB benefits. Due to
continued increases in healthcare cests, it is expected that our OFEE expense
for financial reporting purposes will be consistent with the past two years.
Our expected OPEE benefit payments for 2012 are expected to be similar
amounts.

The discount rates we use for determining CPEB expense and the related
OFEE cbligations are based on current interest rates earned on high-guality
bond yields in the applicable country where the benefits are being paid. In
addition, we receive third-party advice about appropriate discount rates, and

these advisors may in some cases use their own market indices. We adjust
these discount rates as of each wvaluation date to reflect then-current
interest rates on such bonds. We use these discount rates to determine the

actuarial present wvalue of the OPEE obligaticns as of December 31 of that
vear., We also use these discount rates to determine the interest component of
OFEE expense for the following year.

In estimating the health care cost trend rate, we consider our actual
health care cost experience, future benefit structures, industry trends and
advice from third-party actuaries. In certain cases, NL has the right to pass
on to retirees all or a portion of any increases in health care costs; for
these retirees, any future increase in health care costs will have no effect
on the amount of OPEER expense and accrued OPEE costs we recognize. During
each of the past three years, we have assumed that the relative increase in
health care costs will generally trend downward over the next several vears,
reflecting, among other things, assumed increases in efficiency in the health
care system and industry-wide cost and plan-design cost containment
initiatives. For example, at December 31, 2011, the expected rate of increase
in future health care costs range is 8% in 2012, declining to a rate of 5% 1
2018 and thereafter.

Based on the actuarial assumptions described above and Kronos' current
expectation for what actual average foreign currency exchange rates will ke
during 2012, we expect our conscolidated OPEE credit will approximate $.6
millien in 2012. In comparison, we expect to be reguired to make
approximately $1.7 million of contrikbutions to such plans during 2012.

During 2009 and 2010, we amended our benefit formula for most
participants of our plans, resulting in a prior service credit of
approximately $4.8 million in 200% and §9.5 million in 2010. Key assumptions
including the health care cost trend rate as of December 31, 2011 now reflect
these plan revisions to the benefit formula. Bs a result, our 2010 OPEB
expense reflected the amortization of the credit arising in 2009, and ocur 2011
OFEE credit reflects the amortization of the credit arising in 2010.



As noted above, OPEE expense and the amount we recognize as accrued COPEB
costs are based upon the actuarial assumptions discussed above. We believe
all of the actuarial assumpticns we use are reasonable and appropriate. If we
had lowered the assumed discount rates by 25 basis points for all of our OPEE
plans as of December 31, 2011, our aggregate projected benefit obligations
would not have change significantly at that date, our OPEE expense would be
expected to be approximately the same during 2012. Similarly, if the assumed
future health care cost trend rate had been increased by 100 basis points, our
accumulated OPEB cobligations would not have changed significantly at December
31, 2011, and the change toc OPEE expense would be expected to approximately
the same during 2012.

Foreign Operations

We have substantial operations located outside the United States,
principally Chemicals operations in Europe and Canada and Component Products
operations in Canada and Taiwan. The functional currency of these operations
is the local currency. A= a result, the reported amount of our assets and
ligbilities related to these foreign operations will fluctuate based upon
changes in currency exchange rates.



LIQUIDITY AND CAFPITAL RESOURCES

Congolidated Cash Flows

Operating Activities -

Trends in cash flows from coperating activities (excluding the impact of

significant asset dispositions and relative changes in assets and liabilities)
are generally similar te trends in our operating income.

Cash flows from operating activities increased from 5122.2 millien in

2010 to 5292.4 million in 2011. This $170.2 million increase in cash provided
by operations was primarily due to the net effects of the following items:

higher consoclidated operating income in 2031 of $368.7 million compared
Lo 2010;

net cash paid for taxes of $73.8 millien in 2011 compared to net cash
refunds received of $6.2 million in 2010 due to our improved earnings;
higher cash paid for interest of $2.5 million primarily due to the call
premium paid of $2.5 million in 2011 related te the redemption of €80
million of our Senior Hotes;

the $19.0 million paid in 2010 in relation to litigation settlement
expense;

proceeds of 54.0 million from a litigation settlement received in July
2010; and

changes in receivables, inventories, payakles and accrued liabilities in
2011 used 5165.5 millien of net cash in 2011, an increase in the amount
of cash used of $137.0 million compared to 2010, primarily due to
increased inventory levels at EKronos.

Cash flows from operating activities increased from 576.0 million in

2002 to $122.2 million in 2010. This $46.2 million increase in cash provided
by operations was primarily due to the net effects of the following items:

igher consolidated operating income in 2010 of $203.4 million due to
operating income at Kronos and CompX in 2010 compared to operating
losses at all of our segments in 2009;
lower cash paid for taxes of $512.6 million in 2010 due to our lower
earnings in 2009 and the timing of related refunds;
proceeds from a litigation settlement of 511.8 million received in
January 2009;
payments of $19.0 million in 2010 in relation to a litigation settlement
expense;
proceeds of $4.0 million from a litigation settlement received in July
2010; and
changes in receivables, inventories, payables and accrued liabilities in
2010 resulting in %$28.5 million of net cash used, a decline of $5111.4
million compared to 2002, primarily due to increased sales and
production volumes.

Changes in working capital were affected by accounts receivable and

inventory changes. As shown below:

Kronos® average days sales outstanding (*DS0") was consistent from
December 31, 2010 to December 31, 2011 as a result of consistent timing
of collections on receivable balances;

Kronos® average days sales in inventory ("DSI") increased at December
31, 2011 compared to Decembper 31, 2010, as our TiQ, production wvolumes
in 2011 exceeded our sales volumes by approximately 47,000 metric tons
due to the exceptional level of our production volumes in 2011 and soft
demand in the fourth guarter of 2011;



* CompX's average DS0O decreased from December 31, 2010 to December 31, 2011
as a result of accounts receivable rerturning te a more normal
relationship te sales in 2011 due to the improvement in the overall
economic environment; and

* Compi's average DSI increased from December 31, 2010 to December 31, 2011
as a result of an increase in inventory from an acguisition in the third
gquarter of 2011.

For comparative purposes, we have also provided comparable prior year numbers
below.

December 31, December 31, December 31,
20098 2010 2011

Kronos:

Days sales cutstanding 56 days 55 days 55 days

Days sales in inventory 58 days 52 days 104 days
CompX:

Days sales outstanding 37 days 41 days 39 days

Days sales in inventory 64 days 70 days 71 days

We do not have complete access to the cash flows of our majority-owned
subsidiaries, due in part te limitations contained in certain credit
agreements of our subsidiaries and because we do neot own 100% of these
subsidiaries. A detail of our consolidated cash flows from operating
activities is presented in the table below. Intercompany diwvidends have been

eliminated.

Years ended December 31,
2005 2000 2011
{In millions)

Cash provided by (used in)] operating
activities:

Kronos 5 BE.3 5126.0 5 295.4
NL Parent exclusive of subsidiaries (10.4) (4.1) 3i5.4
CompX 15.3 13.0 16.0
Waste Control Specialists (11.7) (22.0) (32.9)
Tremont 7.5 [.&) {1.8)
Valhi exclusive of subsidiaries 24 .8 4% .8 106.4
Other .6 [.2) {(.2)
Eliminations _136.5} (38.7) (125.9)

Total $ 76.0 $122.2 § 292.4

- 71 -



Investing Activities -

We disclose capital expenditures by our business segments in Hote 2 to
our Consclidated Financial Statements.

We had the following market transactions during 2011:

» purchases of TIMET common stock for $30.4 millieon, including late
2010 trades settled in 2011; and

* net purchases of mutual funds and other marketable securities of
$23.7 million.

Also during 2011, we received the 515.0 million principal amount due
under ocur promissory note receivable, we made 511.2 million in leoans to Contran
and we acquired an ergonomic component products business for 5$4.8 million.

We had the following market transactions during 2010:

* purchased marketable securities of $55.0 million including 2.7
millicn shares of TIMET common stock purchased by Kronos in the
fourth quarter of 2010 of which $2.9% million in trades was settled
in early 2011;

¢ sold marketable securities for proceeds of §7.6 million; and

*» reduced restricted cash and restricted marketable securities by a
total of 55.2 million due to the release of funds to us from
escrow related to a litigation settlement and due to the reduction
cf one of our letters of credit.

We had the following market transactions during 2005:
* purchased marketable securities of $5.4 million; and
s sold marketable securities for $%.5 million.

In additien, we received proceeds of $5.7 million f£rom the sale of the
assets of our research, laboratory and guality contrel business and $11.8
millien on the second closing on property covered under a litigation
settlement reached in the fourth guarter of 2008, See Note 15 to our
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Financing Activities -

During 2011, we:

s redeemed €80 milliorn principal amount of Kronos' €400 millien &.5%
Senicr Secured Notes at 102.17% of the face value for an aggregate
of 5115.7 millien, including a 52.5 million call premium in March
2011,

¢ borrowed €80 million ($113.3 million when borrowed) under Kronos'
Buropean credit faciliey in order teo fund the €30 million
redemption of our Senior Secured Hotes and subseguently repaid €80
million {($115.0 millien when repaid),

s repurchased ©€40.8 million principal amount of Kronos' 6.5% Senior
Secured Notes in open market transactions for an aggregate of
€40.6 million (557.6 million when repurchased),

¢ repaid 33.0 million that was outstanding under CompX’'s credit
facility at December 31, 2010 and subseguently borrowed Cdn. 55.0
million (55.3 million when borrowed) in connection with CompX's
acquisition of an ergonomics products business and then repaid
Cdn. 52.0 million (52.92 million when repaid) during 2011; and

« repaid $20 million in principal payments on CompX's promissory
note payable to affiliate.



During 2010, we:

* repaid net €2 million ($8.5 million when borrowed/repaid} under
Kronos' Eurcpean bank credit facility;

¢ repaid a net $16.7 million under Krenos®' U.S. bank credit
facility;

* had net borrowings of 53.0 million under CompX's revelving credit
facilicy;

* had borrowings of $18.0 million as NL issued a promissory note;

* had net beorrowings of $15.4 million under two promissory notes
issued by WCS;

* incurred $72.0 million in borrowings under WCS' financing capital
lease; and

e had net payments of 554.9 million under our Contran credit
facility and repaid our 330 million note with Contran.

In November, 2010, Kronos completed a secondary public offering of 8.97
million shares of its common stock in an underwritten offering generating net
proceeds of §337.6 million. See Note 3 to our Consclidated Financial
Statements.

During 2009, we:

* made net payments of 531.5 million under Kronos' European bank
credit facility;

* hborrowed a net 53.0 million wunder Kronos® U.35. bank c¢redit
facility;

* bhorrowed a net $54.% million under our new Contran credit
facility;

* we borrowed an aggregate of 530 million principal amount through
unsecured demand promissory notes payable to Contran;

¢ NL purchased 5.1 million of Kronos common stock; and

¢ CompX repaid .8 million on its promissory note to TIMET.

We paid aggregate cash dividends on our common stock of $45.4 million in
2009, %45.5 million in 2010, and 553.7 million in 2011 (%.10 per share per
guarter in 2009, 2010 and the first guarter of 2011 and 3.125 per share in the
second, third and fourth gquarters of 2011). Distributions to nonceontrolling
interest in 2009, 2010 and 2011 are primarily comprised of NL dividends paid
to shareholders other than us; CompX dividends paid to shareholders other than
WL; and for 200%, the fourth quarter of 2010 and for 2011, Kronos cash
dividends paid teo shareholders other than us and NL.

NL purchased 2,800 shares of our common stock in 200% for an aggregate
purchase price of less than $.1 million. Kronos purchased 121,000 shares of
pur common stock in 2010 for an aggregate purchase price of $2.7 million.
During 2011, Kronos purchased an additional 454,000 shares for an aggregate
purchase price of 5$12.6 million. These shares of our stock purchased by NL
and EKronos are included in our treasury stock balance since pursuant to
Delaware law they cannot be wvoted. Other cash flows from financing activities
in 2002, 2010 and 2011 relate principally to shares of common stock issued by
us and our subsidiaries upon the exercise of stock options or the issuance of
shares to directors.

Outstanding Debt Obligations

Bt December 31, 2011, our consolidated third-party indebtedness was
comprised of:
e £77%.7 million principal amount of our &.5% Senior Secured Notes
{$360.6 million) due in April 2013;
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* WValhi's $250 millicn loan from Snake River Sugar Company dus in
2027;

* Cdn. 2.0 million ($2.0 million} under CompX's revolving credit
facility which, as amended in January 2012, matures in January
2015;

* CompX’'s promissory note payable teo TIMET (522.2 million
outstanding) which is due in 2014;

* NL's £9.0 million promissory note issued in connectien with a
litigation settlement due in 2012;

* WCS' $72.0 million financing capital lease ($71.1 millien
cutstanding) with Andrews County, Texas which has an effective
interest rate of 7.0% and is due in monthly installments through
August 2035;

* WCS' two €.0% promissocry notes ($11.7 million outstanding) due in
2012 through 2014; and

* approximately $%.8 million of other indebtedness, primarily
capital lease cbligations.

Certain of our rewvelving credit facilities with unrelated, third party
lenders require the respective beorrowers to maintain minimum levels of eguity,
reguire the maintenance of certain financial rations, limit dividends and
additional indebtedness and ccontain other provisions and restrictive covenants
customary in lending transactiens of this type. In addition, certain
agreements contain provisions which could result in the acceleration of
indebtedness pricr to their stated maturity for reasons other than defaults
for failure to comply with applicable covenants. For example, certain credit
agreements allow the lender to accelerate the maturity of the indebtedness
upon a change of contrel (as defined in the agreement) of the borrower. In
addition, certain credit agreements could result in the acceleration of all or
a porticon of the indebtedness following a sale of assets outside the ordinary
course of business. We, and all of our subsidiaries, are in compliance with
all of our debt covenants at December 31, 2011, We believe we will be able to
comply with the financial covenants contained in all of our credit facilities
through the maturity of the respective facilities; however, if future
cperating results differ materially from our current expectations, we may be
unable to maintain compliance. See MNote 9% to our Consolidated Financial
Statements.

With respect to Kronos' €279.2 millien principal amount outstanding at
December 31, 2011 of the Senior Secured Notes due in April 2013, as noted
above, Kronos redeemed €80 million principal amcunt and repurchased in open
market transactions €40.8 million principal amount of such Notes during 2011.
We may redeem or repurchase additional Senior Secured Notes prior to their
maturity date, and we expect any amounts remaining after such possible
redemption or repurchase would be refinanced before their maturity date.

Future Cash Recquirements
Liguidity -

Our primary source of liguidity on an ongoing basis is our cash flows
from operating activities and borrowings under wvarious lines of credit and
notes. We generally use these amounts to (i) fund capital expenditures, (ii)
repay short-term indebtedness incurred primarily for working capital purposes
and (iii) provide for the payment of dividends (including dividends paid to us
by our subsidiaries] or treasury stock purchases. From time-to-time we will
incur indebtedness, generally to (i} fund short-term working capital needs,
{ii) refinance existing indebtedness, (iii) make investments in marketable and
other securities (including the acquisition of securities issued by our
subsidiaries and affiliates) or (iv) fund major capital expenditures or the



acguisition of other assets outside the ordinary course of business.
Occasionally we sell assets ocutside the ordinary course of business, and we
generally use the proceeds to (i) repay existing indebtedness (including
indebtedness which may have been collateralized by the assets sold), (ii)} make
investments in marketable and other securities, (iii} fund major capital
expenditures or the acguisition of other assets ocutside the ordinary course of
business or (iv) pay dividends.

We routinely compare our liguidity reguirements and alternative uses of
capital against the estimated future cash flows we expect to receive from our
subsidiaries, and the estimated sales wvalue of those units. As a result of
this process, we have in the past sought, and may in the future seek, to raise
additional capital, vrefinance or restructure indebtedness, repurchase
indebtedness in the market or otherwise, modify our dividend policies,
consider the sale of our interests in our subsidiaries, affiliates, business
units, marketable securities or other assets, or take a combination of these
and other steps, to increase liguidity, reduce indebtednsss and fund future

activitias, Such actiwvities have in the past and may in the future involve
related companies. From time to time we and our subsidiaries may enter into
intercompany loans as a cash management tool. Such notes are structured as

revolving demand notes and pay and receive interest on terms we believe are
more favorable than current debt and investment market rates. The companies
that borrow under these notes have sufficient borrowing capacity to repay the
notes at anytime upon demand. All of these notes and related interest expense
and income are eliminated in our Consclidated Financial Statements.

We periodically evaluate acguisitions of interests in or combinations
with companies ({including our affiliates) that may or may not be engaged in
businesses related to our current businesses. We intend to consider such
acguisition activities in the future and, in connection with this activity, may
consider issuing additional eguity securities and increasing indebtedness.
From time to time, we alsc evaluate the restructuring of ownership interests
among our respective subsidiaries and related companies.

We believe we will be able to comply with the financial covenants
contained in ocur credit facilities through their maturities; however, if
future operating results differ materially from our expectations we may be
unable to maintain compliance. Based upon our expectations of our operating
performance, and the anticipated demands cn our cash resources, we expect to
have sufficient liquidity to meet our short-term (defined as the twelve-month
period ending December 31, 2012) and long-term obkligations (defined as the
five-year period ending December 31, 2016). In this regard, see the
discussion above in “Outstanding Debt Obligations.*” If actual developments
differ from our expectations, our liguidity could be adversely affected.

At December 31, 2011, we had credit available under existing facilities
of $231.5 million, which was comprised of:
* 5103.5 wmillion under Kronos' Eurcpean revelving credit facility;
s 328'Y million under CompX's bank credit facility, and
s 3100 million under Valhi‘s Contran credit facility.

In January 2012 CompX entered into a new 530 million reveolving
credit facility with Wells Fargo which replaced its previous $37.5
millien facility. The availability above is calculated on the
lower borrowing amount.

‘' mmounts available under this facility are at the sole discretion
of Contran.



&t December 31, 2011, we had an aggregacte of $235.8 million of
restricted and unrestricted cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities.
A detail by entity is presented in the table below.

Held outside
Amount U.5.
(In millicns)

Eronos £174.4 £31.3
NL exclusive of its subsidiaries 2B.2 -
Valhi exclusive of its subsidiaries 14.3 -
CompX 10.1 6.3
Tremont 8.1

WCs i -

Total cash and cash equivalents, restricted
cash and marketable securities $235.8 $37.

Capical Expenditures -

We currently expect our aggregate capital expenditures for 2012 will be
approximately $102 million as follows:
s 574 million by our Chemicals Segment, including approximately 526
million in the area of environmental protection and compliance;

¢ 56 million by our Component Products Segment; and
« 522 million by our Waste Management Segment.

The WCS amount includes approximately $1.% willieon in capitalized
operating permit costs. Capital spending for 2012 is expected to be funded
through cash generated from operations and credit facilities. Our Waste
Management Segment’s LLRW disposal licenss was issued in January 2002 and
signed in September 2008. With the receipt of this license, WCS began
construction of its Federal LLRW facility in 2011. The facility is expected
to be operational early in the first half of 2011. Approximately $11.6
million of WCS' planned capital spending relates to the new Federal LLEW

facility.

Planned capital expenditures in 2012 at Kronos and CompX will primarily
be to maintain and improve the cost-effectiveness of our facilities. B
gignificant portion of the increase in our Component FProducts Segment’s
expected capital expenditures for 2012 relates to the implementation of a new
manufacturing and accounting system.

Repurchases of our Common Stock and Common Stock of Our Subsidiaries -

We have in the past, and may in the future, make repurchases of our
common stock in market or privately-negotiated transactions. At December 31,
2011 we had approximately 4.0 million shares available for repurchase of our
common stock under the authorizations described in HNote 14 to our Consclidated
Financial Statements.

In December 2010, Kronos' board of directors authorized the repurchase
of up to 2.0 million shares of its common stock in open market transactions,
including block purchases, or in privately-negotiated transactions at
unspecified prices and over an unspecified pericd of time. Kronos may
repurchase its common stock from time to time as market conditions permit. The
stock repurchase program does not include specific price targets or timetables
and may be suspended at any time. Depending on market conditions, Kronos may
terminate the program prior to its completion. Kronos will use cash on hand
te acguire the shares. Repurchased shares will be added to Kronos' treasury
and cancelled. Through December 31, 2011, Kroncs has not made any repurchases
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under the plan, and at December 31, 2011 all 2.9 million shares are availabkle
for repurchase.

Prior to 2009, CompX's board of directors authorized various repurchases
of its Class A common stock in open market transactiens, including block
purchases, or in privately-negotiated transactions at unspecified prices and
over an unspecified period of time. CompX may repurchase its common stock
from time to time as market conditions permit. The stock repurchase program
does not include specific price targets or timetables and may be suspended at
any time. Depending on market conditions, CompX may terminate the program
prior to its completion. CompX will generally use cash on hand to acguire the
shares. Repurchased shares will be added to CompX's treasury and cancelled.
CompX did not make any repurchases under the plan during 200%, 2010 and 2011,
and at December 31, 2011 approximately €78,000 shares were available for
purchase under these authorizations.

Dividends -

In May 2011, Kronos implemented a 2-for-1 split of its common stock. We
have adjusted all share and per-share disclosures for all periocds to give
effect to the stock split. Kronos' stock split had no financial statement
impact to us, and our ownership interest in Kronos did not change as a result
of the split.

Because our operations are conducted primarily through subsidiaries and
affiliates, our long-term ability to meet parent company level corporate
obligations is largely dependent on the receipt of dividends or other
distributions from our subsidiaries and affiliates. We received no cash
dividends from Kronos during 2009. In February 200%, Kronos' board suspended
its regular gquarterly dividend after considering the challenges and
opportunities that existed in the TiQ, products industry, and resumed its
dividend in the fourth gquarter of 2010 at a rate of 5.125 per share in
response to favorable economic conditions. In May 2011, EKronos' board
increased its regular guarterly dividend to $.15 per share. In addition, in
February 2011 the Kronos board of directers declared and paid a special
dividend of %.50 per share for which we received $29.0 million. We received
aggregate annual regular dividends from Kronos of $33.3 million in 2011. If
Kronos pays its regular dividend of $.15 per share in each guarter of 2012,
based on the 58.0 million shares we held of Kronos common stock at December
31, 2011, we would receive aggregate annual regular dividends from EKronos of
$34.8 million. MNL's current guarterly cash dividend is $.125 per share. If
NL pays its regular guarterly dividends in cash, based on the 40.4 million
shares we held of ML common stock at December 31, 2011, we would receive
aggregate annual dividends from KL of $20.2 million. We do not expect to
receive any distributions from WCS during 2012. All of our ownership interest
in CompX is held through our ownership in NL, as such we do not receive any
dividends from CompX. Instead any dividend CompX declares is paid to NL.

Our subsidiaries have various credit agreements which contain customary
limitations on the payment of dividends, typically a percentage of net income
or cash flow; howewver, these restrictions in the past have not significantly
impacted their ability to pay dividends.

Investment in our Subsidiaries and Affiliates and Other Acguisitions -

We have in the past, and may in the future, purchase the securities of
our subsidiaries and affiliates or third parties in market or privately-
negotiated transactions. We base our purchase decision on a wvariety of
factors, including an analysis of the optimal use of our capital, taking into
account the market wvalue of the securities and the relative wvalue of expected
returns on alternative investments. In connection with these activities, we
may consider issuing additional eguity securities or increasing our



indebtedness. We may also evaluate the restructuring of ownership interests
of our businesses among our subsidiaries and related companies.

We generally do not guarantee any indebtedness or other obligations of
our subsidiaries or affiliates. Our subsidiaries are not reguired to pay us
dividends. If one or more of our subsidiaries were unable to maintain its
current level of dividends, either due to restrictions contained in a credit
agreement or to satisfy its liabilities or otherwise, our ability to service
our liabilities or to pay dividends on our common stock could be adversely
impacted. If this were to occur, we might consider reducing o¢r eliminating
our diwvidends or selling interests in subsidiaries or other assets. If we
were reguired to liguidate assets to generate funds to satisfy our
liakilities, we might be reguired to sell at what we believe would be less
than the value of such assets.

In Hovember 2010, Kronos completed a secondary public cifering of 17.54
million shares of its common steock in an underwritten offering for net
proceeds of £337.6 million. The price to the public was $20.00 per share, and
the underwriting discount was 5.75% (or $1.15 per share). Costs of the
offering {exclusive of the underwriting discount} were approximately §.7
million. The shares of Kronos common stock issued in the secondary coffering
are identical to the previcusly issued outstanding shares in all respects,
including par wvalue, liguidation and dividend preference. Ell shares were
sold to third-party investors. Upon completion of the offering, our aggregate
ownership of Kronos was reduced to 80% (50% held directly by us and 30% held
directly by NL). See Note 3 to our Consclidated Financial Statements.

WCS’' primary source of ligquidity currently consists of intercompany
borrowings from cne of our wholly-owned subsidiaries under the terms of a
revolving credit facility. We eliminate these intercompany borrowings in cur
Consolidated Financial Statements. In December 2010, using a portion of the
net proceeds WCS received from the December 2010 sale-leaseback transaction
WCs entered into with the County of Andrews, Texas, as discussed in Nots 2 to
our Consolidated Financial Statements, WCS loaned approximately $30 million to
our subsidiary for cash management purposes, which intercompany leoan is also
eliminated in our Consolidated Financial Statements. During the second
guarter of 2011 our subsidiary repaid the loan from WCS. Beginning in the
second gquarter of 2011 and through December 31, 2011, WCS borrowed 590.3
million from our subsidiary which we contributed to WCS's capital at December
31, 2011. WCS will likely borrow addicional amounts from us during 2012 under
the terms of the revolving credit facility. At December 31, 2011, WCS can
borrow an additicnal 5§60 millien under this facility, which matures in March
2013,

We have an unsecured revolving demand promissory note with NL whereby,
as amended, we agreed to loan NL up to $40 million. We also eliminate any
such intercompany borrowings in our Consclidated Financial Statements. During
2010, NL borrowed a net $11.3 million from us, and during 2011 NL repaid a net
57.2 million to us. NL will likely borrow additional amounts from us during
2012. At December 31, 2011, NL could borrow an additional $35.% million under
this facility, which as amended matures no earlier cthan March 2013 and no
later than December 2013.

We have an unsecured revolving credit facility with Kroneos which, as
amended, provides for borrowings from Kroneos of up to $225 million. We also
eliminate any such intercompany bkorrowings in our Consolidated Financial
Statements. During 2010, we borrowed a net 561.% million from Kronos, and
during 2011 we borrowed an additional net $74.2 million from Kronos. We
expect Valhi will likely borrow additional amounts from Kronos during 2012.
At December 31, 2011, Valhi could borrow an additional $88.% million under
this facility which, as amended, matures no earlier than December 2013,



Investment in The Amalgamated Sugar Company LLC -

The terms of The Amalgamated Sugar Company LLC Company Agreement provide
for an annual "base level" of cash dividend distributions (sometimes referred
tc as distributakle cash) by the LLC of $26.7 million, from which we are
entitled to a 925% preferential share. Distributions from the LLC are
dependent, in part, upon the operations of the LLC. We record dividend
distributions from the LLC as income when they are declared by the LLC, which
is generally the same month in which we receive the distributions, although
distributions may in certain cases be paid on the first business day of the
following month. To the extent the LLC's distributable cash is bkelow this
base level in any given vyear, we are entitled to an additional 95%
preferential share of any future annual LLC distributable cash in excess of
the base level until such shortfall is recovered. Based on the LLC's current
projections for 2012, we expect distributions received from the LLC in 2012
will exceed our debt service requirements under our 5250 million loans from
Snake River Sugar Company by approximately $1.8 million.

We may, at our option, reguire the LLC to redeem our interest in the LLC
beginning in 2012, and the LLC has the right to redeem cur interest in the LLC
beginning in 2027. The redemption price is generally $250 million plus the
amount of certain undistributed income allocable to us, if any. In the event
we reguire the LLC te redeem our interest in the LLC, Snake River has the
right to accelerate the maturity of and call our 5250 aggregate millicn loans
from Snake River. Redemption of our interest in the LLC would result in us
reporting income related to the disposition of our LLC interest for income tax
purposes, although we would not be expected to report a gain in earnings for
financial reporting purposes at the time our LLC interest is redeemed.
However, because of Snake River's ability to call our 5250 million loans from
Enake River upon redemption of our interest in the LLC, the net cash proceeds
{after repayment of the debt) generated by the redemption of our interest in
the LLC could be less than the income taxes that we would be regquired to pay
as a result of the disposition.

off-balance Sheet Financing

We do not have any off-balance sheet financing agreements cother than the
cperating leases discussed in MNote 17 to our Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Commitments and Contingencies

We are subject to certain commitments and contingencies, as more fully
described in the Hotes to our Consolidated Financial Scatements and in this
Management’'s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditicon and Results of
Operations, including:

¢ certain income tax examinations which are underway in wvarious
U.5. and non-U.S5. jurisdictions;

* certain environmental remediation matters involving NL, Tremont
and Valhi;

® certain litigation related to NL's former involvement in the
manufacture of lead pigment and lead-based paint; and

# certain other litigation to which we are a party.

In addition to those legal proceedings described in Note 17 to our
Censolidated Financial Statements, wvarious legislaticn and administrative
regulations have, from time to time, been proposed that seek to (i) impose
various cbligations on present and former manufacturers of lead pigment and
lead-based paint (including WL} with respect to asserted health concerns
associated with the use of such products and (ii}) effectively overturn court
decisions in which WL and other pigment manufacturers have been successful,
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Examples of such proposed legislation include bills which would permit civil
liability for damages on the basis of market share, rather than requiring
plaintiffs to prove that the defendant's product caused the alleged damage,
and bills which would revive actions barred by the statute of limitations.
While no legislation or regulations have been enacted to date that are
expected to have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial
position, results of operations or liguidicy, enactment of such legislation
could hawve such an effect.

As more fully described in the MNotes 35 and 17 teo our Consolidated
Financial Statements, we are a party tec various debt, lease and other
agreements which contractually and unconditionally commit us to pay certain
amounts in the future. Our obligations related to the long-term supply
contracts for the purchase of TiO; feedstock are more fully described in Note
17 to our Conscolidated Financial Statements and above in “Business - Chemicals
Segment - HKronos Worldwide, Inc. - Manufacturing, Operations and Properties.”
The following table summarizes our contractual commitments as of December 31,
2011 by the type and date of payment.

Payment due date

2017 and
Contractual commitment 2012 2013/2014 201572016 after Total
(In millions)
Indebtedness'':
Principal £ 15.0 £ 394.9 5 8.3 § 314.2 5 736.4
Interest 53.0 66.3 56.3 285.6 461.2
Operating leases'® 1z.8 1z.1 4.8 17.4 47.1
Kronos' long-term supply
contracts for the
purchase of Ti0. feedstock' £90.4 1,049.2 £23.5 - 2,563.1
Kronocs' long-term service
and other supply contracts' 45,0 32.7 B.6 .9 B7.2
CompX raw material and
other purchase commitments'® 13,1 - - - 13.1
Fixed asset acquisitions' 24.9 - - - 24.9
Estimated tax obligations'® 26.6 - - - 26.6
Other 2.0 2.0 2.0 - 6.0
Total $886.8 §1,557.2  $503.5 $ 618.1 $3,965.6
(1] The amount shown for indebtedness involving revelving credit facilities

is based upon the actual amount outstanding at December 31, 2011, and
the amcunt shown for interest for any ocutstanding wvariable-rate
indebtedness is based upcon the December 31, 2011 interest rate and
assumes that such variabkle-rate indebtedness remains ocutstanding until
the maturity of the facility. & significant portion of the amount shown
for indebtedness relates to KII's 6.5% Senior Secured MNotes (S5360.6
million at December 31, 2011}, which is denominated in the euro. Seo
Item 7& - "Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Rbout Market Risk®
and Note 9 to our Consclidated Financial Statements.



(2}

(3}

(4]

(5

(g)

The timing and amount shown for our operating leases and fixed asset
acquisitions are based upon the contractual payment amount and the
contractual payment date for such commitments.

our contracts for the purchase of TiQ, £feedstock contain £ixed
guantities we are reguired to purchase or specify a range of guantities
that we are reguired to purchase based on our feedstock requirements.
The pricing under these agreements is generally negotiated quarterly or
semi-annually depending on the suppliers. The timing and amount shown
for cur commitments related to the supply contracts for Ti0, feedstock
are based upon our current estimate of the guantity of material that
will be purchased in each time periocd shown, the payment that would be
due based upon such estimated purchased guantity and an estimate of the
guarterly or semi-annually prices for wvarious suppliers. The actual
amount of material purchased, and the actual amount that would be
payable by us, may wvary from such estimated amounts.

The amounts shown for the long-term service and other supply contracts
primarily pertain to agreements Kronos entered into with wvarious
providers of products or services which help to run its plant facilities
{electricity, natural gas, etc.), utilizing December 31, 2011 exchange
rates,

CompX's purchase obligations consist of all open purchase orders and
contractual cbligations (primarily commitments to purchase raw materials)
and are based on the contractual payment amount and the contractual
payment date for those commitments.

The amount shown for income taxes is the amount of our consolidated
income taxes currently payable at December 31, 2011, which is assumed to
be paid during 2012.

The table above does not include:

Our cbligations under the Louisiana Pigment Company, L.P. joint venture,
as the timing and amount of such purchases are unknown and dependent on,
among cther things, the amcunt of TiQ, produced by the joint wventure in
the future, and the joint wventure’s future cost of producing such TiO..
However, the table of contractual commitments does include amounts
related to our share of the joint venture’'s ore reguirements necessary
for it to produce TiO; for us. See Notes 7 and 17 to our Consolidated
Financial Statements and “Business - Chemicals - Kronos Worldwide, Inc.”

Mmounts we might pay to fund our defined benefit pension plans and OPEE
plans, as the timing and amount of any such future fundings are unknown
and dependent on, among other things, the future performance of defined
benefit pension plan assets, interest rate assumptions and actual future
retiree medical costs. Our defined benefit pension plans and OFEB plans
are discussed in greater detail in Note 11 to our Consolidated Financial
Statements. We currently expect we will be required to contribute an
aggregate of 529.4 million to our defined benefit pension and OPEB plans
during 2012.

Any amounts that we might pay to settle any of our uncertain tax
positicns, as the timing and amount of any such future settlements are
unknown and dependent on, among other things, the timing of tax audits.
See MNote 12 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.

We occasicnally enter intec raw material supply arrangements to mitigate

the short-term impact of future increases in raw material costs. While these
arrangements do not necessarily commit us to a minimum volume of purchase, they
generally provide for stated unit prices based upon achievement of specified
volume purchase levels, This allows us to stabilize raw material purchase

prices

to a certain extent, provided the specified minimum monthly purchase

guantities are met.



Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Ses Note 18 to our Consoclidated Financial Statements

ITEM TA. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MAREET RISK

General. We are exposed toc market risk from changes in interest rates,
currency exchange rates, raw materials and eguity security prices.

Interest Rates. We are exposed to market risk from changes in interest
rates, primarily related to our indebtedness.

At December 31, 2011 ocur aggregate indebtedness was split between 95% of
fixed-rate instruments and 5% of wvariable-rate borrowings (in 2010 the
percentages were 93% of fixed-rate instruments and 7% of wvariable rate
borrowings) . The large percentage of fixed-rate debt instruments minimizes
garnings wvolatility that would result from changes in interest rates. The
following table presents principal amounts and weighted average interest rates
for our aggregate outstanding indebtedness at December 31, 2011. Information
shown below f[or foreign currency dencminated indebtedness is presented in its
U.S. dollar equivalent at December 31, 2011 using an exchange rate of 1.2533
U.5. dollars per euroc.

The table below shows the fair wvalue of ocur financial liahilities at
December 31, 2011.

Amount
Carrying Fair Interest Maturity
Indebtedness* value value rate date

(In millions)

Fixed-rate indebtedness:
Euro-denominated KII

6.5% Senior Secured Notes 5360.6 $362.6 6.5% 2013
Valhi leans from Snake River 250.0 250.0 9.4 2027
WCS financing capital lease 71.1 71.1 7.0 2035
WCS promissory notes 11.7 11.7 6.0 2013-2015

Fixed-rate 693.4 695.4 7.6%
Variakble-rate indebtedness -
Comp¥ promissory note to TIMET 22.2 22.2 1.4% 2014
WL promissory note 9.0 9.0 3.3 2012
CompX bank credit facility 2.0 2.0 4.4 2015
Variakle-rate 33.2 33.2 2.1%
Total $726.6 $728.6 7.2%
* Denominated in U.S5. dollars, except as otherwise indicated. Excludes

capital lease obligations.

Lpproximately 51% of our fixed rate indebtedness was denominated in the
eurc, with the remainder denominated in the U.5. dollar. All of the
ocutstanding variable rate borrowings were denominated in the U.S5. dellar.

Currency Exchange Rates. We are exposed to market risk arising from
changes in currency exchange rates as a result of manufacturing and selling our
products worldwide. Our earnings are primarily affected by fluctuations in the
value of the U.S5. dollar relative to the eure, the Canadian dollar, the
Horwegian krone and the United Kingdom pound sterling.



As described above, at December 31, 2011, we had the eguivalent of $360.6
millicn of outstanding eurc-denominated indebtedness (at December 31, 2010 -
the eguivalent of $532.8 million of euro-denominated indebtedness). The
potential increase in the U.8. dollar equivalent of the principal amount
outstanding resulting from & hypothetical 10% adverse change in exchange rates
at such date would be approximately $53.3 million and $36.1 million at December
31, 2010 and 2011, respectively.

Certain of our sales generated by our non-U.S5. operations are
denominated in U.5. dollars. We periodically use currency forward contracts
to manage a very nominal portion of currency exchange rate risk associated
with trade receivables denominated in a currency other than the holder's
functicnal currency or similar exchange rate risk associated with future
sales. We have not entered into these contracts for trading or speculative
purposes in the past, nor do we currently anticipate entering into such
centractcs for trading or speculative purposes in the future.

At December 31, 2011, our Chemicals Segment had currency forward
contracts to exchange an aggregate of $48.0 million for an equivalent value of
Canadian dellars at exchange rates ranging from Cdn. $.396% to Cdn. 51.0283
per U.5. dollar. These contracts with Wells Fargo Bank, National Association,
mature £from January 2012 through December 2012 at a rate of $4.0 million per
month, subject to early redemption provisions at our opticn. The estimated
fair walue of such currency forward contracts at December 31, 2011 was an 5.8
million net liability, which amcount is recognized as part of accounts payable
and accrued liabilities in our Consolidated Balance Sheet and a corresponding
£$.8 million currency transaction loss in our Consclidated Statement of
Operations. To the extent we held such contracts during 2009, 2010 and 2011,
we did not use hedge accounting for any of our contracts.

At December 31, 2011, ocur Component Products Segment held a series of
contracts to exchange an aggregate of U.5. $17.9 million for an eguivalent
value of Canadian deollars at exchange rates ranging from Cdn. $51.03 to Cdn.
50.%9 per U.S5. dollar. These contracts gualified for hedge accounting and
mature through December 2012Z. The exchange rate was Cdn. 351.02 per U.S.
dollar at December 31, 2011. The estimated fair value of the contracts was a
minimal liability at December 31, 2011. Our Component Products Segment had no
currency forward contracts outstanding at December 31, 2010.

Sze Notes 1 and 1% to our Consolidated Financial Statements for a
discussion of the assumptions we used to estimate the fair wvalue of the
financial instruments toc which we are a party at December 31, 2010 and 2011.

Raw Materials. Cur Chemicals Segment generally enters into long-term
supply agreements for critical raw materials, including ore. Many of these
raw material contracts contain fixed guantities we are reguired to purchase or
specify a range of guantities within which we are reguired to purchase. Raw
material pricing under these agreements is generally negotiated quarterly or
semi-annually depending on the supplier. Our Component Products Segment will
occasionally enter into short-term commodity related raw material arrangements
to mitigate the impact of future increases in raw material costs. We do not
have long-term supply agreements for our raw material reguirements because
either we believe the risk of unavailability of those raw materials is low and
we believe the downside risk of price wvolatility to be too great or because
long-term supply agreements for those materials are generally not available.
We do not engage in commedity hedging programs.

Marketable Eguity and Debt Security Prices. We are exposed to market
risk due to changes in prices of the marketable securities we own., The fair
value of such debt and egquity securities (determined using Level 1, Lewvel 2 and
Level 3 inputs) at December 31, 2010 and 2011 was 5342.1 million and 5376.§&



million, respectively. The potential change in the aggregate fair wvalue of
these investments, assuming &a hypothetical 10% change in prices, would be
approximately $34.2 million at December 31, 2010 and %537.7 million at December
31, 2011l.

Other. We believe there may be a certain amount of incompleteness in the
sensitivity analyses presented above., For example, the hypothetical effect of
changes in interest rates discussed above ignores the potential effect on other
variables that affect our results of cperations and cash flows, such as demand
for our products, sales wvolumes and selling prices and operating expenses.
Contrary to the above assumptions, changes in interest rates rarely result in
simultaneocus comparable shifts along the yield curve. Rlso, our investment in
The Amalgamated Sugar Company LLC represents a significant portion of our total
portfolic of marketable securities. That investment serves as collateral for
our loans from Snake River Sugar Company, and a decrease in the fair wvalue of
that investment would likely be mitigated by a decrease in the fair value of
the related indebtedness. Beccordingly, the amounts we present above are not
necessarily an accurate reflection of the potential losses we would incur
assuming the hypothetical changes in market prices were actually to occcur.

The above discussion and estimated sensitivity analysis amounts include
forward-looking statements of market risk which assume hypothetical changes in
market prices. Retual future market conditions will likely differ materially
from such assumptions. Accordingly, such forward-locking statements should not
be considered to be projections by us of future events, gains or losses.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
The information called for by this Item is contained in a separate

gection of this Annual Report. See "Index of Financial Statements and
Schedule" (page F-1).

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON  ACCOUNTING
AND FINAWNCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Discleosure Controls and Procedures -

We maintain a system of disclosure contreols and procedures. The term
"disclosure controls and procedures," as defined by Exchange Act Rule 13a-
15(e), means controls and other procedures that are designed to ensure that
information reguired to be disclosed in the reports we file or submit to the

SEC under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Act®), is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods
specified in the SEC's rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures

include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that
information we are reguired to disclose in the reports we file or submit to
the SEC under the Act is accumulated and communicated to our management,
including our principal executive officer and our principal financial officer,
or persons performing similar functions, as appropriate to allow timely
decisions to be made regarding regquired disclosure. Each of Steven L. Watson,
our President and Chief Executive Officer, and Bobby D. 0O'Brien, our Vice
Pregident and Chief Financial ©Officer, have evaluated the design and
effecciveness of our discleosure controls and procedures as of December 31,
2011. Based upon their evaluation, these executive officers have concluded
that our disclosure contrels and procedures were effective as of December 31,
2011.



Scope of Management Report on Internal Contcrol Over Financial Reporting -

We also maintain internal control over financial reporting. The term
"internal control over finmancial reporting,” as defined by Exchange Act Rule
l3a-15(f), means a process designed by, or under the supervision of, our
principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing
similar functions, and effected by our board of directors, management and
other personnel, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with GAARP, and includes those policies and procedures
that:

¢ pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail
accurately and fairly reflect our transactions and dispositions of
our assets,

« provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with GAAP, and that our receipts and expenditures are made only in
accordance with authorizations of ocur management and directors, and

* provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorized acguisition, use or disposition of our asserts that
could have a material effect on our Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 requires us to report on
internal control over financial reporting in this Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the vyear ended December 31, 2011. Under the rules of the SEC, our
independent registered public accounting firm is also required teo annually
attest to our internal contrel over financial reporting.

ks permitted by the SEC, our assessment of internal control over
financial reporting excludes (i) internal control over financial reporting of
our eguity method investees and (ii} internal control over the preparation of
our financial statement schedules regquired by Article 12 of Regulation 35-X.
However, our assessment of internal control over financial reporting with
respect to our eguity method investees did include contrels over the recording
of amounts related to our investment that are recorded in our Consolidated
Financial Statements, including controls over the selection of accounting
methods for our investments, the recognition of eguity method earnings and
losses and the determination, wvaluation and recording of our investment
account balances.

Changes in Internal Contrel Over Financial Reporting -

There has besen no change to our internal control over financial
reporting during the guarter ended December 31, 2011 that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control
over financial reporting.

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting -

Our management is responsibkble for establishing and maintaining adequate
internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d4-15(f). Our evaluation of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting is based upon the criteria
established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (commonly referred to
as the "Cos0" framework). Based on our evaluation under that framework, we
have concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was
affective as of December 31, 2011.



PricewaterhcuseCcopers LLP, the independent registered public accounting
firm that has audited our consolidated financial statements included in this
Annual Report, has audited the effectiveness of our internal control over
financial reporting as of December 231, 2011, as stated in their report, which
is included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K,

Certificaticns -

Cur chief executive officer is required to annually file a certification
with the ¥New York Stock Exchange [“NYSE"), certifying our compliance with the
corporate governance listing standards of the NYSE. During 2011, our chief
executive officer filed such annual certification with the NYSE, indicating we
were in compliance with such listing standards without gualification. our
chief executive cfficer and chief financial officer are alsec reguired to,
ameng other things, guarterly file certifications with the SEC regarding the
guality of our public disclosures, as reguired by Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002. We have filed the certifications for the guarter ended
December 31, 2011 as exhibkits 31.1 and 31.2 to this Annual Report on Form 10-

K.
ITEM 9B. OTHER INFOEMATION

Not applicable.
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PART III
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to our
2012 definitive proxy statement we will file with the SEC pursuant Eo
Regulation 14A within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this
report (the "Valhi Proxy Statement").

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information reguired by this Item is incorporated by reference to our
2012 proxy statement.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSEIF OF CERTAIN EENEFICIAL OWHERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDEE MATTERS

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to our
2012 proxy statement.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIFPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS
INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to our
2012 proxy statement. See alsc Hote 16 to our Consolidated Financial

Statements.
ITEM 14. PRINCIFAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to our

2012 proxy statement.
PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINAMCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE
{a} and (c) Financial Statements and Schedule

The Registrant

Our Consclidated Financial Statements and schedule listed on the
accompanying Index of Financial Statements and Schedule (see page F-
1) are filed as part of this Annual Report.

50%-or-less owned persons

We are net reguired to provide any consolidated financial statements
pursuant to Rule 3-0% of Regulation S5-X.

{b} Exhibits

Included as exhikbits are the items listed in the Exhibit Index. We
have retained a signed original of any of these exhibits that contain
signatures, and we will provide such exhibit to the Commission or its
staff upon request. We will furnish a copy of any of the exhibits
listed below upon request and payvment of 54.00 per exhibit to cover
our costs of furnishing the exhibits. Such requests should be
directed to the attention of our Corporate Secretary at our corporate
cffices located at 5430 LBJ Freeway, Suite 1700, Dallas, Texas 75240.
Fursuant teo Item 601 (k) {4) {iii) of Regulation S-K, we will furnish to
the Commission wupon reguest any instrument defining the rights of
holders of long-term debt issues and other agreements related to
indebtedness which do not exceed 10% of our consclidated total assets
as of December 31, 2011.



Item No.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

Exhibit Index

Restated Articles of Incorporation of WValhi, Inc. - incorporated by
reference teo Exhibit 3.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K/A (File
No. 1-5467) dated March 26, 2007 and filed by us on March 28, 2007.

By-Laws of Valhi, Inc. as amended - incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 of our Current Report on Form 8-K (File Mo, 1-5467) dated
November &, 2007.

Indenture dated Rpril 11, 2006 between Kronos International, Inc. and
The Bank of New York, as Trustee, governing Kronos International's
6.5% Senior Secured Notes due 2013 - incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.1 to Kronos International, Inec.'s Current Report on Form 8-
K (File No. 333-100047) filed with the SEC on April 11, 2006.

Intercorporate Services Agreement between Valhi, Inc. and Concran
Corporation effective as of January 1, 2004 - incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the guarter ended March 31, 2004.

Intercorporate Services Agreement between Contran Corporation and NL
Industries, Inc. effective as of January 1, 2004 - incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to NL's Quarterly Report on Form 10-0Q (File
No. 1-840) for the guarter ended March 31, 2004,

Intercorporate Services Agreement between Contran Corporation and
CompX Internaticnal Inc. effective January 1, 2004 - incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to CompX's Annual Report con Form 10-K (File
Mg, 1-13205) for the year ended December 31, 2003.

Intercorporate Services Agreement between Contran Corporation and
Kronos Worldwide, Inc. effective January 1, 2004 - incorporated by
reference to Exhibit No. 10.1 to Kronos' Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q (File Mo. 1-31763) for the guarter ended March 31, 2004.

Consent Agreement dated as of March 2%, 2007 between Valhi, Inc. and
Contran Corporation - incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to
our Current Report on Form B-K/A (File No. 1-5467) dated March 26,
2007 and filed by us on March 30, 2007.

Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of October 16, 2007 among CompX
International Inc., CompX Group, Inc. and CompX KDL LLC -
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of CompX’'s Current Report
on Form 8-K (File Mo. 1-13905) dated October 22, 2007.

Amended and Restated Subordinated Term Loan Promissory Note dated
September 23, 2009 in the original principal amount of 542,230,180,
executed by CompX Internaticonal Inc. and payable tec the order of
TIMET Finance Management Company - incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 of CompX's Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 1-13905)
filed on September 24, 2009,

Form of Subordinaticon Agreement among TIMET Finance Management

Company, CompX International Inc., CompX Security Products, Inc.,
CompX Precision Slides Inc., CompX Marine Ingc,, Custom Marine Inc.,
Livorsi Marine Inc., Wachovia Bank, National Association as

administrative agent for itself, Compass Bank and Comerica Bank -
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of CompX's Current Report
on Form 8-K dated Octocber 22, 2007.









Item No.

10

19.

10.

10.

[
L)

1c.

10

.29

3l

.32

33

34

.35

.36

37

.38

Exhibit Index

Contingent Subordinate Pledge Agreement between Snake River Sugar
Company and WValhi, Inc., as acknowledged by First Security Bank
National Association as Collateral Agent, dated October 19, 2000 -
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 te Valhi, Inc.'s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 1-5467) for the guarter ended
September 30, 2000.

Contingent Subordinate Security Agreement bhetween Snake River Sugar
Company and Valhi, Inc., as acknowledged by First Security Bank
National Asscociation as Collateral Agent, dated October 19, 2000 -
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Valhi, Inc.'s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q (File HNo. 1-5487) for the quarter ended
September 30, 2000.

Contingent Subordinate Collateral Agency and Paying Agency Agreement
ameng Valhi, Inc., Snake River Sugar Company and First Security Bank
National Association dated October 1%, 2000 - incorporated by
reference to Exhibitc 10.6 to Valhi, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q {(File No. 1-5467) for the guarter ended September 30, 2000.

Deposit Trust Agreement related to the Amalgamated Collateral Trust
among ASC Holdings, Inc. and Wilmington Trust Company dated May 14,
1927 - incorporated by reference te Exhibit 10.2 te Valhi, Inc.'s
fuarterly Report on Form 10-0Q (File No. 1-5467) for the guarter
ended June 30, 1557,

First Amendment to Deposit Trust Agreement dated October 14, 2005
among ASC Holdings, Inc. and Wilmingteon Trust Company - incorporated
by reference to Exhibit No. 10.2 to Valhi, Inc.'s Amendment Mo. 1 to
its Current Report on Form 8-K ({File No. 1-5467) dated Octcher 18,
2005,

Pledge Agreement between The Amalgamated Collateral Trust and Snake
River Sugar Company dated May 14, 1997 - incorporated by reference
toe Exhibit 10.3 to Valhi, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File
No. 1-5467) for the guarter ended June 30, 1937,

Second Fledge Amendment (SPT) dated October 14, 2005 among The
Amalgamated Ceollateral Trust and Snake River Sugar Company -
incorporated by reference to Exhibit No. 10.4 te Valhi, Inc.'s
Amendment No. 1 to its Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 1-5467)
dated October 18, 2005.

Guarantee by The BEmalgamated Collateral Trust in faveor of Snake
River Sugar Company dated May 14, 1597 - incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.4 te Valhi, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-0Q (File
No. 1-5467) for the guarter ended June 30, 19%87.

Second SPT Guaranty Amendment dated October 14, 2005 among The
Emalgamated Cellateral Trustc and Snake River Sugar Company -
incorporated by reference to Exhibit Me. 10.5 to Valhi, Inc.'s
mmendment No. 1 to its Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 1-54&7)
dated Octocber 18, 2005,

Voting Rights and Collateral Deposit Rgreement among Snake River
Sugar Company, Valhi, Inc., and First Security Bank, HNational
Association dated May 14, 1987 - incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.8 te Valhi, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-0Q (File
Mo. 1-5487) for the guarter ended June 30, 1997,
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Item No.

10

10.

10.

10

10.

10

10.

10.

10

10

.38

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

.47

.48

Exhibit Index

Subordination Agreement between Valhi, Inc. and Snake River Sugar
Company dated May 14, 1%9%7 - incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10,10 to Valhi, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 1l-
5467) for the guarter ended June 30, 1997,

First Amendment to the Subordination Agreement between Valhi, Inc.
and Snake River Sugar Company dated October 1%, 2000 - incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to Valhi, Inec.'s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q (File No. 1-5487) for the guarter ended September 30,
2000,

Form of Option ZAgreement among Snake River Sugar Company, WValhi,
Inc. and the holders of Snake River Sugar Company’s 10.9% Senior
Notes Due 2009 dated May 14, 1997 - incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.11 te the Valhi, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
(File Ho. 1-5467) for the guarter ended June 30, 1997.

Option Agreement dated October 14, 2005 among Valhi, Inc., Snake
River Sugar Company. Northwest Farm Credit Services, FLCA and 1.5,
Bank National Asscciation - incorporated by reference to Exhibit No.
1¢.6 te Valhi, Inc.'s Amendment No., 1 to its Current Report on Form
8-K (File No., 1-5467) dated Octocher 18, 2005.

First hAmendment to Option Agreements among Snake River Sugar
Company, Valhi Inc., and the heolders of Snake River's 10.5% Senior
Notes Due 2009 dated October 19, 2000 - incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.8 to the Valhi, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
(File No. 1-5487) for the guarter ended September 30, 2000,

Formation Agreement dated as of Octecber 18, 12%3 ameng Tioxide
Americas Inc., Kronos Loulsiana, Inc. and Louisiana Figment Company,
L.P. - incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of NL's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 1-640} for the guarter ended September

30, 1883,

Joint Venture Agreement dated as of Octoher 1B, 1953 between Tioxide
Americas Inc. and Kronos Louisiana, Inc. - incorpeorated by reference
to Exhibit 10.32 of HL's Quarterly Report on Form 10-0Q (File No. 1-
640) for the guarter ended September 30, 1923,

Kronos Offtake Rgreement dated as of October 18, 1933 by and between
Kroncg Louisiana, Inc. and Louisiana Pigment Company, L.P, -
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of NL's Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q (File No. 1-640) for the guarter ended September 30, 1993,

Emendment MNo. 1 to Kronos Offtake Agreement dated as of December 20,
1995 between Kronos Louisiana, Inc. and Louisiana Pigment Company,
L.P. - incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 of HNL's Annual
Report on Form 10-K (File No. 1-640) for the year ended December 31
1885.

Bllocation Agreement dated as of October 18, 19%3 between Tioxide
Americas Inc., ICI American Heoldings, Inc., Kronos Worldwide, Ine.
{£/k/a Kronos, Inc.) and Kronos Louisiana, Inc. - incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.10 teoe NL's Quarterly Report on Form 10-0
{File No. 1-840) for the guarter ended September 30, 1993,
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10.

10.

10.

10.

19.

10.

10

10,

49

50

52

53

.55

56

Exhibit Index

Lease Contract dated June 21, 1952, between Farbenfabrieken Bayer
Rktiengesellschaft and Titangesellschaft mit beschrankter Haftung
(German language version and English translation therecof) -
incorporated by reference te Exhibit 10.14 of NL's Annual Report on
Form 10-K (File No. 1-640) for the year ended December 31, 1%85.

Rdministrative Settlement for Interim Remedial Measures, Site
Investigation and Feasibility Study dated July 7, 2000 between the
Arkansas Department of Environmental Quality, Halliburton Energy
Services, Inc., M I, LLC and TRE Management Company - incorporated by
raeference to Exhibit 10.1 te Tremont Corporation's Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q (File MNo. 1-10126) for the gquarter ended June 30, 2002.

Reinstated and Amended Settlement »Agreement and Release, dated June
26, 2008, by and among NL Industries, Inc., NL Environmental
Management Services, Inc., the Sayreville Economic and Redevelopment
Agency, Sayreville Seaport Associates, L.F., and the County of
Middlesex - incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.35 to NL's Annual
REeport on NL's Form 10-K (File No., 1-640) for the year ended December
31, 2002,

Emendment to Restated and Emended Settlement Agreement and Release,
dated September 25, 2008 by and among NL Industries, Inc., HNL
Environmental Management Services, Inc., the Sayreville Economic and
Redevelopment Rgency, Sayreville Seaport Associates, L.P., and the
County of Middlesex - incorporated by reference teo Exhibit 10.2 to
NL's Current Report on Form 8-K, File No. 1-540, that was filed with
the U.5. Securities and Exchange Commission on October 16, 2008.

Mortgage Hote, dated October 15, 2008 by Sayreville Seaport
hssociates, L.P. in favor of NL Industries, Inc. and NL Environmental
Management Services, Inc. - incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3
to NL's Current Report on Form B-K, File No. 1-840, that was filed
with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission on October 16, Z00B.

Leasehold Mortgage, Assignment, Security Agreement and Fixture
Filing, dated October 15, 2008, by Sayreville Seaport Associates,
L.P. in favor of NL Industries, Inc. and NL Environmental Management
Services, Inc. - incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.38 to NL's
Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 1-640) for the year ended
December 31, 200%.

Intercreditor, Subordination and Standstill Agreement, dated October
15, 2008, by NL Industries, Inc., NL Envircnmental Management
Services, Inc., Bank of America, HN.A. on behalf of itself and the
other financial institutions, and acknowledged and consented to by
Sayreville Seaport Asscciates, L.P. and J. EBrian O'Neill -
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3% to HL's Annual Report on
Form 10-K (File No. 1-549) for the year ended December 31, 2009.

Multi Party Agreement, dated October 15, 2008 by and among Sayreville

Seaport Associates, L.P., Sayreville Seaport Rssociates Requisition
Company, LLC, OPG Participation, LLC, J. Brian O'Neill, NL
Industries, Inc., WL Environmental Management Services, Inc., The

Prudential Insurance Company of America, Sayreville PRISE IT LLC. -
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.40 tc NL's Annual Report on
Form 10-K (File Mo. 1-640) for the year ended December 31, 2009.



Item No. Exhibit Index

10.57 Guaranty Agreement, dated Octeober 15, 2008, by J. Brian O'Neill in
favor of NL Industries, Inc. and NL Environmental Management
Services, Inc. - incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to NL's
Current Report on Form &-K, File MWo. 1-640, that was filed with the
U.5. Securities and Exchange Commission on October 16, 2008.

21.1** Subsidiaries of Valhi, Inc.

23, 1%x Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP with respect to Valhi‘s
Consolidated Financial Statements

31.1** Certification

31,2+ Certification

32 1%+ Certification
101, INS ** ¥XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH *+* XBREL Taxonomy Extension Schema
101.CRL *+ ¥BRL Taxoncmy Extension Calculation Linkbase
101.DEF #* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase
101.LAB ** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkkase
101.PRE #% ABRL Taxonomy Extensicn Presentation Linkbase

* Management contract, compensatory plan or agreement.

#** Filed herewith.



SIGHATURES

Pursuant to the reguirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1534, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf
by the undersigned, theresunto duly authorized.

VALHI, INC,
{Registrant)

By: /s/ Steven L. Watson
Steven L. Watson, March 7, 2012
{President and Chief Executive Dfficer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this
report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant
and in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

/s/ Hareld €. Simmons

Hareld C. Simmeons, March 7, 2012
(Chairman of the Board)

/s/ Thomas E. Barry

Thomas E. Barry, March 7, 2012
(Director)

/s/ Norman S. Edelcup

Norman 5. Edelcup, March ?, 2012
{Director)

/s/ W. Hayden McIlroy

W. Hayden McIlroy, March 7, 2012

(Director)

/8/ Steven L. Watscn

Steven L. Watscn, March 7, 2012
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIEM

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of Valhi, Inc.:

In our opinion, the accompanying consclidated balance sheets and the
related consolidated statements of operations, of comprehensive income (loss),
of stockholders’ eguity and of cash flows present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Valhi, Inc. and its subsidiaries at
December 31, 2010 and 2011 and the results of their operations and their cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2011 in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule
listed in the accompanying index presents fairly, in all material respects,
the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related
consclidated financial statements. Alsc in ocur opinion, the Company
maintained, in all material respects, effective internal contrel over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2011, based on criteria established in
Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (C0OS0). The Company's management is
responsible for these financial statements and financial statement schedule,
for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for
its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting, included in Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting appearing under Item SA. Our responsibility is to express opinions
on these financial statements, on the financial statement schedule, and on the
Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our audits {(which
were integrated audits in 2011 and 2009). We conducted our audits in
accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{United States). Those standards regquire that we plan and perform the audits
to obtain reascnable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respects. Cur audits of the
financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statemsnts, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of
internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal contrel over {financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also
included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinions.

L company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process
designed to provide reasonakle assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purpeses 1in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 2
company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reascnable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
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that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
{iii} provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acguisition, use, or disposition of the company’'s assets that

could have a material effect on the financial statements.,

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial
reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future pericds are subject te the risk that
con ls may become inadeguate bhecause of changes in conditions, or that the
d of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

mfmm@?ﬁw Lef
March 7, 2012

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, 2001 Ross Avenue, Suite 1800, Dallas, TX 75201-2097
T: (214) 9o9 1400, F: (214) 754 7001, www.pwe.com/us



VALHI, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In millions)

ASSETS December 31,
2010 2011
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents § 325.1 s 96.4
Rescricted cash egquivalents 8.4 5.3
Marketable securities 1.7 22,8
RBccounts and other receivables, net 261.3 284.3
Refundable income taxes 1.3 2.1
FReceivable from affiliates .1 29.6
Inventories, net 2894 .9 464.5
Other current assets 14.1 20.7
Deferred income taxes 131.49 18.8
Total current assets 921.8 944 .2
Other assets:
Marketable securities 340.4 ig4.1
Investment in affiliates 113.2 105.7
Note receivable from affiliate - 11.2
Goodwill 397 .4 400.1
Other intangible assets .B 2.1
Deferred income taxes 192.0 132.7
Pension asset I -
Other assets 102.3 164.1
Total cther assets 0 1,146.4 1,170.0
Property and eguipment:
Land 54.% £3.0
Buildings 287.4 276.8
Egquipment 1,170.3 1,188.3
Mining properties 69.1 63.5
Construction in progress 20.2 111.2
1,801.% 1,692.8
Less accumulated depreciation ___955.8 565.0
Net property and eguipment BdE. 1 T723.8
Total assets £2,714 .3 £2,838.0



VALHI, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETE (CONTINUED)

(In millions, except share data)

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY December 31,
2010 2011
Current liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt 5 17.4 [ 19.0
Accounts payvable 129.6 196.3
Accrued liabilities 115.8 146.0
Payable to affiliates 30.2 21.4
Income taxes 7.5 26.5
Deferred income taxes 5.0 6.4
Total current liabilities i05.% 415,6
Noncurrent liabilities:
Long-term debt 922.8 717.4
Deferred income taxes 417.6 457 .2
Ahecerued pension costs 128.1 144.4
Aocrued environmental remediation and
related costs 32.6 34,6
Recorued postretirement benefits costs 12.5 20.4
Ocher liabilities i 69.5 55.4
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,5%80.2 1,429.4
Equity:

Valhi stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $£.01 par wvalue; 5,000
shares authorized; 5,000 shares issued 66T, 3 667.3
Common stock, $.901 par value; 150.0 million
gshares authorized; 118.4 million

shares issued 1.2 1.2
Bdditional paid-in capital 76.2 B1.0
Roocumulated deficit (183.2) (19.4)
Eeccumulated other comprehensive income {loss) 1.2 (23.3)
Treasury stock, at cost - 4.1 million and

4.4 millien shares (40.2) (49.6)

Total Valhi stockheolders® ecuity £41.8 657.2
Honcontrolling interest in subsidiaries 275.4 335.8
Total eguity glg.2 993.,0
Total liabilities and equity $2,714.3 $2,838.0

Commitments and contingencies (Notes 4, 9, 12, 15 and 17}

See accompahying Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements.
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VALHI, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CPERATIONS

(In millions, except per share data)

Revenues and other income:
MNet sales
Other income, net

Total rewvenues and other income
Costs and expenses:
Cost of sales
Selling, general and administratiwve
Licigation settlement and contract
termination expense
Loss on prepayment of debt, net
kssets held for sale write-down
Interest
Total costs and expenses
Income (loss) before income taxes
Provision for income taxes (benefit)

Net income (loss)

Neoncontrelling interest in net income
{loss) of subsidiaries

Net income (loss) attributable to
Valhi stockholders

Lmounts attributable teo Valhi
stockholders:

Basic and diluted earnings per share
Cash dividends per share

Basic and diluted weighted average
shares ocutstanding

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Years ended December 31,

2009 2010
$1,272.1 $1,592.7
69,7 58.5
1.341.8 1.651.2
1,135.7 1,22%.9
227.6 2316.8

. 33.3

.7 .5

66.7 _ 68.4
_1,430.7 _1.568.9
(88.3} B2.3
(50.8) 18.5
(38.1) 63.8
_13.9) _..13.5
$_(34.2) $ 50.3
5 {.30) g A2
E .40 ] 40
114.3 114.3

2011

$2,084.1

56.9

2,141.0

1,326.4
278.86

oW
.
O o

1,671.1
469.9
174.9

295.0

77.5

g 1.91
s .475

114.0



WVALHI, INC. AWD SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

(In millions)

Years ended December 31,

2008 2010 2011
Met income (loss) S5 (38.1) 4 /3B § 295.0
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Currency translation 22.0 .3 (28.2)
Marketable securities 7.9 10.7 12.9
Defined benefit pension plans 7.7 [6.4) {16.1)
Other postretirement benefit plans 3.6 4.4 {2.2)
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net 40.3 9.0 (33.6)
Comprehensive ilncome 2.2 72.8 261.4
Comprehensive income attributable
to noncontrolling interest 1.5 17.89 88.4
Comprehensive income attributable
to Valhi stockholders 5 .7 5 E54.8 £ 173.0

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
F-7
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VALHI, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
{In milliens)

Years ended December 31,

2005 2010 2011
Cash flows from coperating activities:
Net income f{loss) S{36.1) £ 63.8 $ 295.0
Depreciation and amortization £7 .4 €2.1 63.8
Gain on sale of business (6.3} - o
Litigation settlement gains {11.1} - -
Rccrued litigation settlement and
contract termination - 33.3 -
Litigation settlement payments - (12.0) -
Loss on prepayment of debt, net - - 3.1
Call premium paid - - (2.5}
hssets held for sale write-down .7 .5 1.1
Securities transactions, net (.5] (.3) .6
Loss on disposal of property and eguipment 1.2 1.8 .9
Noncash interest expense 2.0 2.4 5.5
Benefit plan expense greater {less) than
cash funding regquirements:
Defined benefit pension expense .3 {1.3) .4
Other postretirement benefit expense .4 3 (1.8}
Deferred income taxes (21.9) (11.1) 95.3
Equity in joint venture earnings 1.1 .4 .5
Net distributions from
Tio, manufacturing joint wenture 7.7 2.4 3.8
Other, net 3.5 2.2 1.3
Change in assets and liabilities:
heoounts and other receivables, net 6.0 (53 .4}) (47.9)
Inventories, net 105.2 4.8 (184.3)
Bococounts payable and accrued liabilities 4.3 (15.1) 96.1
Income taxes (3.0} 5.5 19.8
hecounts with affiliates (18.1) 21.4 (36.6)
Other noncurrent assets .3 .2 (3.3)
Other noncurrent liabilities (2.5) 7.4 (13.2)
Other, net _(15.8} 10.1 (5.2)
Net cash provided by operating activities 76.0 122.2 2592.4




VALHI, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

{In millieons)

Years ended December 31,

2009 2010 2011
Cash flows from investing actiwities:
Capital expenditures & (57.5} 5 {44.7) £(148.2)
Capitalized permit costs (9.4) {5.8) (8.9}
RAeoguisition, net of cash acquired - - (4.8)
Purchases of:
Mutual funds - - (272.8)
Titanium Metals Corporation ("TIMET")
common stock - (43.5) (30.4)
Other marketable securities (5.4} {211.5) (6.9)
Proceeds from:
Disposal of mutual funds - - 251.0
Disposal of other marketable securities 9.5 7.6 5.0
Disposal of restricted marketable securities - 5.2 -
Sale of business 5.7 .5 .3
Real estate-related litigation settlement 11.8 - -
Collection of real-estate related note
receivable - - 15.0
Loan to affiliate - - {(11.2)
Change in restricted cash egquivalents, net .5 (.4) (3.0}
Other, et ] (.7} 1.5} (8.0}
Net cash used in investing activities (44.5) (93.1}) £220.9)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Indebtedness:
Borrowings 447.6 487.5 121.3
Principal payments {(401.1) (537.3) (328.8)
Deferred financing costs paid {.8) (.8} (.1}
Lease deposit held for loan repayment - (6.2) -
Purchases of Kronos common stock (.1) - -
Valhi cash dividends paid {45.4) (45.5) (53.7)
Distributions to noncontrolling interest in
subsidiaries (4.9) (7.8) (29.3)
Treasury stock acguired - (2.0) (8.5)
Purchase of noncontreolling interest in
subsidiary . (7.0 )
Issuance of subsidiary common stock - 337.6 -
Issuance of Valhi common stock and other, net - 1 .3
Net cash provided by (used in) financing
activities (4.7} 228.6 (299.8)
Met increase {(decrease} 5 _26.8 5 _257.7 $(228.3)

F-10



VALHI, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(In millions)

Years ended December 31,

Cash and cash equivalents - net change from:

Operating, investing and financing

activities

Effect of exchange rates on cash
Met change for the year

Balance at beginning of year
Balance at end of year

Supplemental disclosures:
Cash paid (received) for:

Interest, net of amounts capitalized

tincluding call premium paid)
Income taxes, net

Nencash investing activities:
Aecruals for capital expenditures
Aeocruals for capitalized permits

Note receivable from sale of business

Noncash financing activities:

Fromissory note issued in connection

with litigation settlement

Fromissory note issued in comnection

with contract termination

Aeocrued construction retainage payable

converted into note payable
Transfer of Medite pension plan
to Contran

20089 2010
£ 2¢.8 5 257.7
4.9 _(1.3)
31.7 256.4
37.0 ___€8B.7
$ EB.7 $ 325.1
5 64.8 64.5
£.4 (6.2)
11.8 11.6
1.2 1.1
.8 -
- 1B.0
- 12.0
- 5.8
4.3 -

2011

$(228.3)
[.4)
(228.7)

325.1

5 096.4

See accompanying Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements.
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VALHI, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
HOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2011

Note 1 - Summary of significant accounting policies:

Nature of our business. Valhi, Inc. (NYSE: VHI) is primarily & holding
company. We operate through ocur wholly-owned and majority-owned subsidiaries,
including NL Industries, Inc., Kronos Worldwide, Inc., CompX International
Inc., Tremont LLC and Waste Control Specialists LLC  (*WCS"}. Kronos (NYSE:
KRO), NL (NYSE: NL), and CompX (NYSE Amex: CIX) each file pericdic reports with
the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC").

Organization. We are majority owned by Contran Corporation and its
subsidiaries, which own approximately 95% of our outstanding common stock at
December 31, 2011. Substantially all of Contran's outstanding wvoting stock is
held by trusts established for the benefit of certain children and
grandchildren of Hareld €. Simmons (for which Mr. Simmons is the sole trustee)
or is held directly by Mr. Simmons or other persons or entities related to Mr.
Simmons. Consequently, Mr. Simmons may be deemed to control Contran and us.

Unless otherwise indicated, references in this report to “we,” "us” or
our” refer to Valhi, Inc and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole.

"

Management's estimates, The preparation of our Consclidated Financial
Statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of A&merica ("GAARP*), regquires us to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of our assets and liabilities and
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at each balance sheet date and
the reported amounts cof our revenues and expenses during each reporting period.
Actual results may differ significantly from previcusly-estimated amounts under
different assumptions or conditions.

Principles of consolidation. Cur consclidated financial statements
include the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of Valhi
and our majority-owned and wholly-owned subsidiaries. We eliminate all
material intercompany accounts and balances. Changes in ownership are
accounted for as egquity transactions with no gain or loss recognized on the
transaction unless there is a change in control.

Foreign currency translation. The financial statements of our foreign
subsidiaries are translated to U.8. dollars. The functional currency of ocur
foreign subsidiaries is generally the local currency of the country.
hocordingly, we translate the assets and liabilities at year-end rates of
exchange, while we translate their revenues and expenses at average exchange

rates prevailing during the year. We accumulate the resulting translation
adjustments in stockholders' equity as part of accumulated other comprehensive
income (less), net of related deferred income taxes and noncontrolling

interest. We recognize currency transaction gains and losses in income.

Derivatives and hedging activities. We recognize derivatives as either
an asset or liability measured at fair walue in accordance with Accounting
Standards Codification (“ASC") Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging. We
recognize the effect of changes in the fair wvalue of derivatives either in net
income or other comprehensive income, depending on the intended use of the
derivative. See Note 185.

Cash and cash equivalents. We classify bank time deposits and government
and commercial notes and bills with original maturities of three months or less
as cash equivalents.
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Restricted cash eguivalents and restricted marketable debt securities.
We classify cash equivalents and marketable debt securities that have been
segregated or are otherwise limited in use as restricted. To the extent the
restricted amount relates to a recognized 1liability, we classify the
restricted amount as current or noncurrent according to the corresponding
liability. To the extent the restricted amount does net relate to a
recognized liabilitcy, we classify rescricted cash as a current asset and we
classify the restricted debt security as either a current or noncurrent asset
depending upon the maturity date of the security.

Marketable gecuritieg and sgecurities transactions. We carry marketable
debt and eguity securities at fair wvalue. ASC Topic 820, Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures, establishes a consistent framework for measuring
fair value and (with certain exceptions) this framework is generally applied to
all financial statements items recquired to be measured at fair wvalue. The
standard requires fair walue measurements to be classified and disclosed in one
of the following three categories:

® Level 1 - Unadjusted guoted prices in active markets that are
accessible at the measurement date for identical, unrestricted assets
or liabilities;

® Jevel 2 - Quoted prices in markets that are not active, or inputs
which are observable, either directly or indirectly, for
substantially the full term of the assets or liability; and

® fLevel 3 - Prices or valuation technigues that require inputs that are
both significant to the fair walue measurement and unobservable.

See Notes 4, 11 and 1%. We recognize unrealized and realized gains and losses
on trading securities in income. We accumulate unrealized gains and losses on
available-for-sale securities as part of accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss), net of related deferred income taxes and noncontreolling interesc.
Realized gains and losses are based on specifie identification of the
securities sold.

Accounts receivable. We provide an allowance for doubtful accounts for
known and estimated potential losses arising from our sales to customers based
on a pericdic review of these accounts.

Inventories and cost of sales. We state inventories at the lower of cost
or market, net of allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventories. We
generally base inventory costs on average cost that approximates the first-in,
first-cut method. Inventories include the costs for raw materials, the cost to
manufacture the raw materials into finished goods and overhead. Depending on
the inventory's stage of completion, our manufacturing costs can include the
costes of packing and finishing, wuctilities, maintenance and depreciaticon,
shipping and handling, and salaries and benefits associated with our
manufacturing process. We allocate fixed manufacturing overhead based on
normal production capacity. Unallocated overhead costs resulting from periods
with abnormally low production levels are charged to expense as incurred. As
inventory is sold to third parties, we recognize the cost cof sales in the same
period the sale occurs. We pericdically review our inventory for estimated
ohsclescence or instances when inventery is no longer marketable for its
intended use, and we record any write-down egual to the difference between the
cost of inventory and its estimated net realizable wvalue based on assumptions
about alternative uses, market conditions and other factors.
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Investment in affiliates and joint ventures. We account for investments
in more than 20%-owned but less than majority-owned companies by the equity
method., See Note 7. We allocate any differences between the cost of each
investment and our pro-rata share of the entity's separately-reported net
assets among the assets and liabilities of the entity based upon estimated
relative fair walues. We amortize these differences, which were not material
at December 31, 2011, to income as the entities depreciate, amortize or dispose
of the related net assets.

Goodwill and other intangible assets; amortization expense. Goodwill
represents the excess of cost over fair wvalue of individual net assets
acqguired in business combinations. Goodwill is not subject to periodic
amortization. We amortize other intangible assets by the straight-line methed
over their estimated lives and state them net of accumulated amortization. We
evaluate goodwill for impairment, annually, or when circumstances indicate the
carrying walue may not be recoverable. We evaluate other intangible assets
for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying
value may not be recoverable. See Note 8.

Capitalized operating permits. Our Waste Management Segment capitalizes
direct costs related to the acquisition or renewal of operating permits and
amortizes such costs by the straight-line method over the term of the
applicable permit. Our net capitalized operating permit costs include (i)
costs to renew certain permits for which the renewal application is pending
with the applicable regulatory agency and (ii) costs to apply for certain new
permits which have not yet been issued by the applicable regulatory authority.
We currently expect renewal of the permits for which application is still
pending will cccur in the ordinary course of business, and we are amortizing
costs related to such renewals from the date the prior permit expired. With
respect to costs related teo the newly issued permits and permits which have
not yet been issued, we will amortize such costs over the useful life of the
permit from the date we first utilize such permit in our operations through
the end of the permit. All operating permits are generally subject to renewal
at the option of the issuing governmental agency. WCS obtained its byproducts
disposal license in 2008 and began amortizing such license when the byproduct
disposal facility began operations in October 20089, WCS obtained its low-
level radicactive waste (“LLEW") license in September 2009, We currently
expect our LLRW facilities will commence operations in early 2012, at which
time we will begin amortizing such license. BEmortization of capitalized
gperating permit costs was £.5 million in 2009, and $1.3 million for each of
2010 and 2011. Our estimated aggregate amortization expense Ifor capitalized
permits, exclusive of amortization associated with our LLRW facilities, is
approximately $1.3 millien in each of 2012 through 2016. Once operations
commence, the expected annual amortization asscciated with the LLEW disposal
facilities is approximately $6.0 million. The components cof net capitalized
permit costs are presenced in the table below,



December 31,
2010 _2011
(In millions)
Vet permit costs for:
Pending renewals of prior permits 5 .4 § .3
Issued permits which are being amortized at
December 31, 2010:
Byproduct License - (expires in 2018)
Other - (expires 2013 - 2024)
Total pending renewals and issued permits
which are being amortized

Issued permits not yet subject to amortization:

LI |
[ S
= oo

4
[hY+]
o
wn

LLRW License - (expires in 2024) 48.4 7.5

Other - (expires 2018) .5 .6
Total issued permits not yet subject teo

amortization 48.9 58.1

Fending applications for new permits -

§58.8 $66.6

Total
Property and eguipment; depreciation expense, We state property and

equipment at acquisition cost, including capitalized interest on borrowings
during the actual construction period of major capital projects. In 2009, 20190
and 2011 we capitalized $1.9 million, 5.2 millien and $3.3 million,
respectively, in interest costs. We compute depreciation of property and
equipment for financial reporting purposes (including mining eguipment)
principally by the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets as follows:

Asset Useful lives
Buildings and improvements 10 to 40 years
Machinery and eguipment 3 to 20 years
Mine development costs Units-of-production
Landfill disposal costs Units-of-production

We expense expenditures for maintenance, repairs and minor renewals as
incurred that do not improve or extend the life of the assets, including
planned major maintenance,

We have a governmental concession with an unlimited term to operate
ilmenite wines in HNorway. Mining properties consist of buildings and
guipment wused in our Norwegian dilmenite mining operations and costs
associated with the development of a new mine area which commenced production
in 2009. While we own the land and ilmenite reserves associated with the
mining operations, such land and reserves were acquired for nominal wvalue and
we have no material asset recognized for the land and reserves related to our

mining operations.

We perform impairment Gtests when events or changes in circumstances
indicate the carrying valus may not be recoverable. We consider all relevant
factors. We perform the impairment test by comparing the estimated future
undiscounted cash flows (exclusive of interest expense) associated with the
asset to the asset's net carrying value to determine if a write-down to fair
value is reguired.

In early 2012, when our Compact LLEW site is placed in service, we will
reclassify £33.3 million that was included in construction in process at
December 31, 2011 to buildings and improvements, and reclassify $3.% million
to machinery and eguipment. Upon placing our Federal LLEW site in service
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later in 2012, we would similarly reclassify an additional $36.5 million that
was included in construction in process at December 31, 2011 to buildings and
improvements, and $2.5 million to machinery and equipment.

Long-term debt. We state long-term debt net of any unamortized original
issue premium or discount. We classify amortization of deferred financing
costs and any premium or discount associated with the issuance of indebtedness
as interest expense, and compute amortization by the interest method over the
term of the applicable issue.

Employee benefit plans. Accounting and funding policies for our
retirement plans are described in Note 11.

Income taxes. We and our qualifying subsidiaries are members of
Contran's consolidated U.S5 federal income tax group (the "Contran Tax Group").
We and certain of our gualifying subsidiaries also file consclidated income tax
returns with Contran in varicus U.S5. state jurisdictions. BRs a member of the
Contran Tax Group, we are jointly and severally liable for the federal income
tax liakility of Contran and the other companies inecluded in the Contran Tax
Group for all periocds in which we are included in the Contran Tax Group. See
Note 17. As a member of the Contran Tax Group, we are a party to a tax
sharing agreement which provides that we compute our tax provision for U.S.
income taxes on a separate-company basis using the tax elections made by
Contran. Pursuant to the tax sharing agreement, we make payments to or
receive payments from Contran in amounts we would have paid to or received
from the U.5. Internal Revenue Service or the applicable state tax authoricy
had we not been a member of the Contran Tax Group. Generally, subsidiaries
make payments to or receive payments from us in the amounts they would have
paid to or received from the Internal Revenue Service or the applicable state
tax authoricty had they not been members of the Contran Tax Group. We made net
cash payments for income taxes to Contran of $2.2 million in 2009 and 510.3
million in 2011 and we received net cash payments for income taxes from Contran
of $16.1 millicon in 2010,

We recognize deferred income tax assets and liabilities for the expected
future tax conseguences of temporary differences between amounts recorded in
the Consolidated Financial Statements and the tax basis of our assets and
liabilities, including investments in our subsidiaries and affiliates who are
not members of the Contran Tax Group and undistributed earnings of foreign
subsidiaries which are not deemed to be permanently reinvested. In addition,
we recognize deferred income taxes with respect to the excess of the financial
reporting carrying amount over the income tax basis of our direct investment
in Kroncs common stock because the exemption under GAARP to avoid recognition
of such deferred income taxes is not available to usz. The earnings of our
foreign subsidiaries subject to permanent reinvestment plans aggregated 53546
million at December 31, 2011 {in 2010 the amount was 5767 million). It is not
practical for us to determine the amount of the unrecognized deferred income
tax liability related to these earnings due to the complexities associated
with the U.S. taxation on earnings of foreign subsidiaries repatriated to the
U.5. We periodically evaluate our deferred tax assets in the various taxing
jurisdictions in which we operate and adjust any related waluation allowance
based on the estimate of the amount of such deferred tax assets we beliesve
does not meet the more-likely-than-not recognition criteria.

We record a reserve for uncertain tax positions where we believe it is
more-likely-than-not our position will not prevail with the applicable tax

authorities. The amount of the benefit associated with our uncertain tax
positions that we recognize is limited to the largest amount for which we
believe the likelihood of realization is greater than 50%. We accrue

penalties and interest con the difference between tax positicns taken on our
tax returns and the amount of benefit recognized for financial reporting
purposes. We classify our reserves [or uncertain tax positions in a separate
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current or noncurrent liability, depending on the nature of the tax position.
See Note 12,

Environmental remediation and related costs. We record liabilities
related to environmental remediation and related costs when estimated future
expenditures are probable and reascnably estimable. We adjust these accruals
as further informaticn becomes available to us or as circumstances change. We
generally do not discount estimated future expenditures to its present value
due to the uncertainty of the timing of the ultimate payout. We recognize any
recoveries of remediation costs from other parties when we deem their receipt
Lo be probable. We expense any environmental remediation related legal costs
as incurred. At December 31, 2010 and 2011, we had not recognized any
receivables for recoveries. See Note 17.

Net sales. We record sales when products are shipped and title and other
risks and rewards of ownership have passed to the customer, or when we perform
services. We include amounts charged to customers for shipping and handling
costs in net sales. We state sales net of price, early payment and
distributer discounts and wolume rebates. We report taxes assessed by a
governmental authority such as sales, use, value added and excise taxes on a
net basis (i.e., we do not recognize these taxes in either our revenues or in
our costs and expenses).

Selling, general and administrative expenses; shipping and handling

costs; advertising costs; research and development costs. Selling, general
and administrative expenses include costs related to marketing, =sales,
distribution, shipping and handling, research and development, legal,

environmental remediation and administrative functions such as accounting,
treasury and finance, and includes costs for salaries and benefits, travel and
entertainment, promotional materials and professional fees. Shipping and
handling costs of our Chemicals Segment were approximately 574 million in
200%, %83 million in 201¢ and 59%3 million in 2011. Shipping and handling
costs of our Component Products and Waste Management Segments are not

material. We expense advertising and research, development and sales
technical support costs as incurred. Advertising costs were approximately 51
million in each of 2009 and 2010 and 52 millien in 2011. Research,

development and certain sales technical support costs were approximately 513
million in 20092, 515 million in 2010 and $22 millieon in 2011.

Hote 2 - Business and geographic segments:

% controlled at
Business segment Entity December 31, 2011
Chemicals Kronos ans
Component products CompX 87%
Waste management WCsS 100%

Cur control of EKronos includes 50% we hold directly and 30% held
directly by NL. We own 83% of NL. Our contrel of CompX is through NL. See
Note 3.

We are organized based upon our operating subsidiaries. Our operating
segments are defined as components of our consolidated cperations about which
separate financial information is available that is regularly evaluated by our
chief operating decision maker in determining how to allocate resources and in
assessing performance. Each operating segment is separately managed, and each
operating segment represents a strategic business unit offering different

products.



We have the following three consolidated reportable operating seaments.

® (Chemicals - OQur chemicals segment is operated throush our majority
contrel of Kronocs. Kronos is a leading global producer and marketer
of value-added titanium dioxide pigments (*"Ti0,”), a base industrial
product used in a diverse range of customer applications and end-use
markets, including coatings, plastics, paper, food, cosmetics, inks,
textile fibers, rubkber, pharmaceuticals, glass, ceramics and other
industrial and consumer markets. BSee Note 7.

* Component FProducts — We operate in the component products industry
through our majority contreol of CompX. CompX is a leading
manufacturer of engineered components utilized in a variety of
applications and industries. CompX manufactures engineered
components that are sold to a variety of industries including office
furniture, recreaticonal transpertaticn (including beats), mailboxes,
teolboxes, home appliances, banking egquipment, vending eguipment and
computer related equipment. CompX has production facilities in North
America and Ahsia.

® paste Management - WCS is our subsidiary which operates a West Texas
facility for the processing, Creatment, storage and disposal of a
broad range of low-level radicactive, hazardous, toxic and other
wastes. WCS obtained a byproduct disposal license in 2008 and began
disposal operations at this facility in October 2009, In January
2009 WCS received a LLEW disposal license, which was signed in
September 2009. Construction of the Compact and Federal LLREW
disposal facilitjes began in January 2011, Construction of the
Compact LLEW disposal facility was substantially complete in November
2011, and the Federal LLEW disposal facility was substantially
complete in February 2012. We currently expect the Compact LLEW site
will be fully certified and operaticnal by the end of March 2012,
with the Federal LLREW site fully certified and cperational later in
2012,

We evaluate segment performance based con segment operating income, which
we define as income before income taxes and interest expense, exclusive of
certain non-recurring items (such as gains or losses on disposition of
business units and other long-lived assets outside the ordinary course of
business and certain legal settlements) and certain general corporate income
and expense items (including securitiss transactions gains and losses and
interest and dividend income)}, which are not attributable to the operations of
the reportable operating segments. The accounting policies of our reportable
cperating segments are the same as those described in Note 1. Segment results
we report may differ from amounts separately reported by our various
subsidiaries and affiliates due to purchase accounting adjustments and related
amortization or differences in how we define operating income. Intersegment
sales are not material.

Interest income included in the calculation of segment operating income
is not material in 2009, 2010 or 2011. Capital expenditures include addicionsg
to property and eguipment but exclude amounts we paid for business units
acguired in business combinations. Depreciation and amertization related to
each reportable operating segment includes amortization of any intangible
assets attributabkle to the segment. Amortization of deferred financinag costs
and any premium or discount associated with the issuance of indebtedness is
included in interest expense.



Segment assets are comprised of all assets attributable to each
reportable operating segment, including goodwill and other intangible assets.
Our investment in the TiO; manufacturing jeint wventure (see HNote 7) 1=
included in the Chemicals Segment assets. Corporate assets are not
attributable to any operating segment and consist principally of cash and cash
egquivalents, restricted cash eguivalents, marketable securities and leoans to
third parties. At December 31, 2011, approximately 22% of corporate assets
were held by NL (in 2010 the percentage was 18%), with substantially all of
the remainder held directly by Valhi.

Years ended December 31,
2005 2010 2011
{In millions}

HNet sales:

Chemicals 51,142.0 51,449.7 $1,943.3
Component products 116.1 135.3 138.8
Wasce management 14.0 7.7 2.0
Total net sales $1,272.1 $1,592.7 52,084.1
Cost of sales:
Chemicals £1.014.0 £1,106.7 $1,197.5
Component products 92.13 99.3 103.6
Waste managemsnt 29.4 23.8 25.3
Total cost of sales 51,135.7 51,229.49 51,326.4
Gross margin:
Chemicals £ 128.0 £ 343.0 & 745.8
Component products 23.8 36.0 35.2
Waste management {15.4} {16.2) (23.3)
Total gross margin § 136, 4 s 32,8 § 1757.7
Operating income (loss):
Chemicals 5 (1l0.8) 5 183.2 § 553.0
Component products {4.0) 9.4 15.5
Waste management {27.0) (30.8) (38.0)
Total operating income (loss) {41.6) 161.8 530.5
Equity in earnings of joint wventure {1.1}) {.4) (.5)
General corporate items:
Securities earnings 26.6 26.3 28.6
Insurance recoveries 4.6 18.8 1l6.9
Litigation settlement gains 23.1 6.3 -
Litigation settlement expense - (3z2.2) -
Gain on sale of business 6.3 - -
General expenses, net {40.1}) (29,9} {40.8)
Loss on prepayment of debt, net - = (3.1}
Interest expense (66.7F _  (68.4}) (61.9)
Income (loss) before income taxes § (8B.3) 5 82.3 & 46%.9
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Years ended December 31,
2009 2010 2011
{(In millions)

Depreciation and amortization:

Chemicals S 49.5 5 47 .4 S 50.2
Component products B.2 7.7 6.8
Waste management 9.6 7.0 6.8
Corporate _ .1 . - -
Total $ _67.4 $ _62.1 $ 63.8
Capital expenditures:
Chemicals ] 23.8 5 7.7 5 6B.6
Component products 2.3 2.1 3.2
Waste management 3l.6 4.9 T4.3
Corporate e = 1
Total 5§ 87,5 S 44.7 $ 146.2
December 31,
2009 2010 2011
{In millieons)
Total assets:
Operating segments:
Chemicals 51,726 .4 52,101.4 £2,189.7
Component products 149.2 141.5 l4l1.4
Waste management 122.7 166.4 223.4
Joint venture accounted for by the
equity method 17.4 17.0 16.5
Corporate and eliminations 387.6 288.0 2587.0
Total £2,410.3  $2,714.3  $2,838.0
Geographic informaticon. We attribute net sales to the place of

manufacture (point-of-origin) and the location of the customer (point-of-
destination); we attribute property and eguipment to their physical location.
At December 31, 2011 the net assets of our non-U.S. subsidiaries included in
consclidated net assets approxXimated 5726 millieon (in 2010 the total was 5558
million).
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Years ended December 31,
2009 2010 2011
{In millions)

Net sales - point of origin:

United States $ 521.4 5 €668.4 $ 837.0
Germany 6l6.5 714 .2 1,039.7
Canada 206.3 281.5 353.2
Norway 139.5 188.3 245.1
Belgium 164 .4 208.1 301.8
Taiwan 5.8 8.8 9.3
Eliminations (381.8) {477.6) {(702.0}

Total $1,272.1 $1,592.7  $2,084.1

Het sales - point of destination:

North America 5 444.3 5 550.2 § 629.9
Europe 671L.0 Bz2z2.2 1,141.3
Zzia and other 156.8 220.3 3i2.8

Total $1,272.1 $1,592.7 $2,084.1

December 31,
2009 2010 2011
(In millions)

Net property and eguipment:

United States 5122.13 $120.1 £189.0
Germany 299.7 267.8 259.6
Canada 77.9 BO.4 BO.O
Norway 107.0 100.5 101.5
Belgium 65.4 6%.4 86.0
Taiwan 7.3 7.8 7.7

Total $680.6 $646.1 $723.8

Note 3 - Business combinations and related transactions:

Kronos Worldwide, Inc. During 2008, NL purchased 28,000 EKronos shares
in market transactions for $.1 million.

In November 2010, Kronos completed a secondary public offering of 17.924
million shares of its commeon steck in an underwritten offering for net
proceeds of $337.6 million. The price to the public was $20.00 per share, and
the underwriting discount was 5.75% {or §1.15 per share}. Costs of cthe
cffering (exclusive of the underwriting discount] were approximately 3.7
million. The shares of Kronos common stock issued in the secondary offering
are identical to the previously-issued outstanding shares in all respects,
including par walue, liguidation and dividend preference. £1]1 shares were
sold to third-party investors, none of our affiliated companies purchased any
shares in the offering. Upon completion of the offering, our aggregate
ownership of Kronos was reduced teo 80% (50% held directly by us and 30% held
directly by WL}. Under the provisions of ASC Topic 810, changes in parent
control that do not lead to deconsclidation are considered equity transactions
recognized through additional paid-in capital and noncontrolling interest,
accordingly no gain or loss was recognized on this transaction. See Note 13,

v
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In December 2010, Kronos' board of directors authorized the repurchase
of up to 2.0 million shares of its common stock in open market transactions,
including block purchases, or in privately-negotiated transactiens at
unspecified prices and over an unspecified periocd of time. Kronos may
repurchase its common stock from time to time as market conditions permit. The
stock repurchase program does not include specific price targets or timetables
and may be suspended at any time. Depending on market conditions, Kronos may
terminate the program priocr to its completion. Kronos will use cash on hand
te acguire the shares. Repurchased shares will be added to Kronos' treasury
and cancelled. Through December 31, 2011, Kronos has not made any repurchases
under the plan, and at December 21, 2011 all 2.0 million shares are available
for repurchase.

In May 2011, Kronos implemented a 2-for-1 split of its common stock. We
have adjusted all share and per-share disclosures related to ocur investment in
Kronos for all pericds presented to give effect to the stock split. The stock
split had no financial statement impact teo us, and our ownership interest in
Kronecs did not change as a result of the split.

CompX International Inc. In July of 2011, CompX completed the
acquisition of 100% of the stock of a Canadian ergonomic component products
company for initial cash consideration of the eguivalent of approximately 54.8
million, net of approximately 53,000 of cash acquired, with potential
additicnal cash consideration ranging from nil to approximately %1.5 million
payable in the first guarter of 2013, contingent upon the acguired business
achieving certain acquired product line salesz targets during 2012, The
estimated fair wvalue of the contingent consideration at December 31, 2011 was
5.7 million. The acgquisition is intended to expand CompX's furniture
components  ergonomics  product line. We have included the results of
operations and cash flows of the acguired business in our Conscolidated
Financial Statements subseguent to the acquisition date. The purchase price
has been allccated among net assets acguired, consisting of (i) net working
capital (receivable, inventory and payables) of $.9 million, (ii} identifiable
intangibles other than goodwill of $1.2 million, (iii} goodwill of 353.1
million and (iv) deferred inceome tax liabilities of 5.4 million. The tangible
and intangible net assets acguired {other than goodwill) were valued hased
upon an estimate of the fair wvalue of such net assets, with the remainder of
the purchase price allocated to goodwill. The business had net sales of 54.2
million in 2010 and the pro-forma effect to us, assuming this acguisition had
been completed as of January 1, 2011, is not material,

Prior to 2009%, CompX's board of directors authorized wvarious repurchases
of its Class A common stock in open market transactions, including block
purchases, or in privately-negotiated transactions at unspecified prices and
over an unspecified period of time. CompX may repurchase its common stock
from time to time as market conditions permit. The stock repurchase program
does not include specific price targets or timetables and may be suspended at
any time, Depending on market conditions, CompX may terminate the program
prior to its completion. CompX will generally use cash on hand to acquire the
shares. Repurchased shares will be added te CompX's treasury and cancelled.
CompX did not make any repurchases under the plan during 2009, 2010 and 20121,
and at December 31, 2011 approximately 678,000 shares were available for
purchase under these authorizations.



Note 4 - Marketable securities:

December 31, 2010:
Current assets -
Other

Noncurrent assets:

The Amalgamated Sugar Company LLC

TIMET common stock
Other

Total

December 31, 2011:
Current assets:
Mutual funds
Other

Total

MNoncurrent assets:

The Amalgamated Sugar Company LLC

TIMET common stock
Other

Total

December 31, 2010:
Current assets -
Cther

Noncurrent assets:
The Emalgamated Sugar Company LLC
TIMET common stock
Other

Total

December 31, 2011:

Current assets:
Mutual funds
QOther

Total

Noncurrent assets:
The Amalgamated Sugar Company LLC
TIMET common stock
Mutual funds and other common stocks

Total

Unrealized
gains/
Market Cost (losses) ,
value basis net
(In millions)
s£1.7 5 1.7 5 -
5250.0 £250.0 5 -
Be.1l 59.0 27.1
4.3 4.3 B
$340.4 £313 .3 £27.1
£ 20.% § 21.1 £ (.2}
1.6 l.6 -
$ 22.5 $ 22.7 $ (.2)
$250.0 $250.0 g -
97.7 86.0 11.7
6.4 6.5 (.1}
£354.1 $342.5 £11.6
Fair Value Measurements
Quoted Significant
Frices in other Significant
Active Observable Uncbservable
Markets Inputs Inputs
Total [Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3)
(In millions)
$ 1.7 § - § 1.7 ER.
$250.0 5§ - i - 5250.0
26.1 BE&.1 -
4.3 1.1 3.2 N
$340.4 $ 87.2 $ 3.2 $250.0
% 20.9 5 20.8 5 - § -
1.6 - 1.8 -
§.22.5 £ 20.9 5 1.8 § -
£250.0 £ - s = £250.0
97.7 7.7 - -
6.4 2.6 3.8 -
$354.1 $100.3 5 3.8 $250.0
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Amalgamated Sugar. Prior to 2009, we transferred control of the refined
sugar operations previocusly conducted by our wholly-owned subsidiary, The
Amalgamated Sugar Company, to Snake River Sugar Company, an Oregon
agricultural cooperacive formed by certain sugar beet growers in Amalgamated’s
areas of ocperations. Pursuant to the transaction, we contributed
substantially all of the net assets of our refined sugar operations to The
Amalgamated Sugar Company LLC, a limited liability company controlled by Snake
River, on a tax-deferred basis in exchange for a non-voting ownership interest
in the LLC. The cost basis of the net assets we transferred to the LLC was
approximately $34 million. When we transferred control of our operations to
Snake River in return for our interest in the LLC, we recognized a gain in
earnings egual to the difference between $250 million (the fair wvalue of our
investment in the LLC as evidenced by its %250 million redemption price, as
discussed below) and the $34 million cost basis of the net assets we
contributed to the LLC, net of applicable deferred income taxes, Therefore,
the cost basis of our investment in the LLC is %250 million. As part of this
transaction, Snake River made certain loans to us aggregating 5250 million.
These loans are collateralized by our interest in the LLC. See Notes 9 and
15,

We and Snake River share in distributions from the LLC up to an
aggregate of $26.7 million per year ({(the "base" level), with a preferential
95% share going to us. To the extent the LLC's distributions are below this
base level in any given vyear, we are entitled to an additional 355%
preferential share of any future annual LLC distributions in excess of the
base level until the shortfall is recovered. Under certain conditions, we are
entitled to receive additional cash distributions from the LLC. At our
option, we may require the LLC to redeem ocur interest in the LLC beginning in
2012, and the LLC has the right to redeem, at their option, ocur interest in
the LLC beginning in 2027. The redemption price is generally $250 million
plus the amount of certain undistributed income allocable te us. If we
reguire the LLC to redeem our interest in the LLC, Snake River has the right
to accelerate the maturity of and call our 5250 million loans from Snake
River.

The LLC Company Agreement contains certain restrictive covenants
intended to protect ocur interest in the LLC, including limitations on capital
expenditures and additional indebtedness of the LLC. We alsoc have the ability
to temporarily take controel of the LLC if our cumulative distributions from
the LLC fall below specified levels, subject to satisfaction of certain
conditions imposed by Snake River’'s current third-party senior lenders.

Pricr to 2009, Snake River agreed that the annual amount of
distributions we receive £from the LLC would exceed the annual amcunt of
interest payments we owe to Snake River on our $250 million in loans from
Snake River by at least %1.8 million. If we receive less than the regquired
minimum amount, certain agreements we previously made with Snake River and the
LLC, including a reduction in the amount of cumulative distributions that we
must receive from the LLC in order to prevent us from becoming able to
temporarily take contrel of the LLC, would retroactiwvely become null and void
and we would be able to temporarily take control of the LLC if we so desired.
Through December 31, 2011, Snake River and the LLC maintained the applicable
minimum required levels of cash flows to us.

We report the cash distributions received from the LLC as dividend
income. We recognize distributions when they are declared by the LLC, which
is generally the same month we receive them, although in certain cases
distributions may be paid on the first business day of the following month.
Ses= Note 15. The amount of such future distributions we will receive from the
LLC is dependent upon, ameong other things, the future performance of the LLC's
operations. Because we receive preferential distributions from the LLC and we
have the right to require the LLC tec redeem our interest for a fixed and
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determinable amount beginning at a fixed and determinable date, we account for
our investment in the LLC as a marketable security carried at its cost basis
of %250 million. The cost basis is alse the fair walue of our investment
determined using Level 3 inputs as the $250 million redemption price of our
investment in the LLC as well as the amount of ocur debt owed to Snake River
Company that is collateralized by our investment in the LLC. There has been
ne change to the fair wvalue of cur Amalgamated Sugar investment during 2009,
2010 or 2011. We do not expect to report a gain on the redemption at the time
our LLC interest is redeemed, as the redemption price of $250 million is
expected to equal the carrying wvalue of our investment in the LLC at the time
of redemption.

TIMET. We classify our investment in TIMET common stock as available-for-
sale marketable securities. The fair wvalue is determined using Level 1 inputs

because TIMET common stock is actively traded on the NYSE. Contran, Mr.
Harold Simmons and persons and other entities related to Mr. Simmons own a
majority of TIMET's outstanding common stock. Kronos purchased an aggregate

of 2.7 million shares of TIMET with an aggregate purchase price of 546.9
millien ({including commissions and fees) in market transactions during

December 2010. At December 31, 2010, we held an aggregate of 5.0 million
shares of TIMET common stock, and the gquoted market price of TIMET's common
stock was $17.18. Kronos purchaszed an aggregate of 1.5 million shares of

TIMET with an aggregate purchase price of $27.0 million in market transactions
during 2011. At December 31, 2011, we held an aggregate of 6.5 million shares
and the guoted per share market price of TIMET's common stock was $14.9B.

The TIMET common stock we own is subject to the restrictions on resale
pursuant teo certain provisions of the Securities and Exchange Commission

["SEC") Rule 144,

Mutual funds. During 2011, we held investments in various mutual funds
which have a primary investment cbhiective of heolding corporate and government
debt securities from U.5. and other markets. These funds have daily liguidity
and are held for the temporary investment of cash available for our current
cperations in order to generate a higher return than would be available if
such funds were invested in an asset gualifying for classification as a cash
equivalent, and accordingly we have classified our investments in these mutual
funds as a current asset. The fair wvalue of these securities is generally
determined using Level 1 inputs because the mutual funds are actively traded.

Other. The fair walue of our other marketable securities are either
determined using Level 1 inputs (because the securities are actively traded)
or determined using Level 2 inputs ({bscause although these securities are
traded, in many cases the market is not active and the year-end wvaluation is
generally based on the last trade of the year, which may be several days prior
to Decemker 31).

Nokte 5 - Accounts and other receivables, net:
December 31,
2010 2011
(In millions)
Eccounts receivable 5246.1 £283.6
Real-estate related note recelvable 15.0 -
Notes receivable 2.9 2.4
Aocrued interest and dividends receivable . -
Ellowance for doubtful accounts __t2.8) (1.7}
Total $261.3 5284.3

The real-estate related ncocte receivable is discussed in Note 15.



Hote € - Inventories, net:

December 31,
2010 2011
{In millions)

Raw materials:

Chemicals $ 52.1 $ B9.6
Component products 6.3 6.7
Total raw materials 5B.4 96.3

Work in process:

Chemicals 13.6 17.3
Component products 6.7 7.4
Total in-process products 20.3 24.7
Finished products:
Chemicals 155.3 281.5
Component products 5.4 5.4
Total finished products 160.7 286.59
Supplies (primarily chemicals) 55.5 56.6
Total $294.9  §464.5
Note 7 - Other assets:

December 31,
2010 2011
(In millions)

Investment in affiliates:

Tio; manufacturing joint wventure 5 96.2 $ 89.2
Basic Management and Landwell 17.0 16.5
Total $113.2 $105.7
Other assets:
Waste disposal site operating permits, net 5 5B.8 § 66.6
Restricted cash .3 7.6
Assets held for sale 3.0 7.3
Capital lease deposit 6.2 6.2
IBNR receivables 6.6 6.5
Deferred financing costs 4.5 2.0
Other 22.9 67.9
Total s102.2 $164.1
Investment in Ti0; manufacturing joint venture. Our Chemicals Segment

and another Ti0, producer, Tioxide Americas, Inc. ("Tioxide”), are equal
owners of a manufacturing joint wventure (Louisiana Pigment Company, L.P., or
"LPC"} that owns and operates a Ti0O, plant in Louisiana. Tioxide is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Huntsman Corporation.

We and Tioxide are both regquired to purchase one-half of the Tio,
produced by LPC. LPC operates on a break-even basis and, accordingly, we
report no eguity in earnings of LPC. Each owner's acquisition transfer price
for ics share of the Ti0;, produced is egual to its share of the Joint
venture's production costs and interest expense, if any. Cur share of net
cost is reported as cost of sales as the related Ti0O, acguired from LPC is
sold. We report distributions we receive from LPC, which generally relate to
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excess cash generated by LPC from its non-cash production costs, and
contributions we make to LPC, which generally relate to cash reguired by LBC
when it builds working capital, as part of our cash flows from operating
activities in our Consclidated Statements of Cash Flows. The components of
our net distributions from LPC are shown in the table below.

Years ended December 31,
20089 2010 2011
(In millions)

Distributions from LPC § 22.7 s 26,1 £ 29.7
Contributions to LPC i15.0) _{23.7) {25.8)
Net distributions from LPC 5 7.7 5 2.4 3.8

Certain selected financial information of LPC is summarized below:

December 31,
2010 2011
(In millions)

Assets:
Current assets % BB.6 £108.5
Property and eguipment, net 154.4 140.7
Total assets §223.10 £249.2

Liabilities and Partner's Eguity:

Liabilities, primarily current 5 27.% $ 68.0
Partners’ egquity _185.1 181.2
Total liabilities and partners’ eguity 5223.0 $249.2

Years ended December 31,
2008 2010 2011
(In millions)

Net sales:
Kronos 5121.2 £133.7 51l44.8
Tioxide 121.8 134.5 145.7
Cost of sales 243.0 267.7 290.1

Net income - - -

Investment in Basic Management and Landwell. We alsoc own a 32% interest
in Basic Management, Inc. ("BMI"), which provides utility services in the
industrial park where one of TIMET's plants is located, among other things. We
alsoc have a 12% interest in The Landwell Company ("Landwell”}, which is
actively engaged in efforts to develop certain real estate. EMI owns an
additicnal 50% interest in Landwell. For federal income tax purposes Landwell
is treated as a partnership, and accordingly the combined results of operations
of BMI and Landwell include a provision for income taxes on Landwell's earnings
only to the extent that such earnings accrue to BMI. We record our egquity in
earnings of BMI and Landwell on a one-guarter lag because their financial
statements are generally not available te us on a timely basis. Certain
selected combined £financial information of BMI and Landwell is summarized
below.

T
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September 30,
2010 2011
(In millions)

Current assets 521.4 £16.1
Prepaid costs and other 20.2 15.9
Property and eguipment, net 7.3 6.5
Investment in undeveloped land and water rights 3l.4 40.4
Land and development costs 14.% 13.5

Total assets £95.2 596.4

Current liabilities S 4.0 5 5.7
Long-term debt 17.3 l5.2
Deferred income taxes 5.8 5.9
Other noncurrent liabilities 4.0 6.7
Egquity 64.0 61.9

Total liabilities and equity $95.2 596.4

Twelve months ended September 30,
2009 2010 2011
(In millions)

Total revenues 5§ 8.7 5 6.9 £10.0
Loss before income taxes (2.8} (4.8) (2.7)
Net loss (2.5} (3.8) (2.1)

Assets held for sale. Our assets held for sale at December 31, 2011,
include three properties of cur Component Products Segment which were formerly
used in our operations: a facility in River Grove, Illineois; a facility in
Byron Center, Michigan and land in Neenah, Wisconsin. In September 2011 our
Component Products Segment’'s management made the decision to sell its Byron
Center facility, at which time such facility met all of the criteria under
GAAP to be classified as an "asset held for sale.” In classifying the
facility (land and building) as held for sale, we concluded that the carrying
amount of the assets exceeded the estimated fair wvalue less costs to sell such
assets. In determining the estimated fair value, CompX cbtained an independent
appraisal. Based on this appraisal, we recognized a write-down of 5.9 millicon
during the cthird guarter of 2011 to reduce the carrying value of the asset to
its estimated fair wvalue less cost to sell.

The remaining two assets (River Grove, Illineis and Neenah, Wisconsin)
were classified as "assets held for sale” when they ceased to be used in our
operations and met all of the applicable criteria under GAAF. During the third
quarter of 2011, due to continued negative local market conditions CompX
cbtained an updated independent appraisal for the River CGrove facility, the
more significant of these other twoe properties. Based on this appraisal, we
recognized an additional write-down of 5.2 million during the third gquarter of
2011 to reduce the carrying walue of that asset te its estimated fair wvalue
less cost to sell. During the third guarter of 2010, and as weak economic
conditions continued longer than expected, we obtained an independent
appraisal for the River Grove facility. Based on this appraisal, we recorded
a write-down of 5.5 million during the third guarter of 2010 to reduce the
carrying value of the asset to its estimated fair wvalue less cost to sell,
During the fourth gquarter of 2010, we cbtained an independent appraisal for
the land in Neenah. Based on this appraisal, the carrying value of the asset
approximated the fair wvalue less cost to sell and therefore ne adjustment to
the carry value was deemed necessary. In 2002 after discussion with potential
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buyers of both properties fell through we recorded a write-down of
approximacely $.7 million.

Appraisals represent a level 2 input as defined by ASC 820-10-35. &All
three properties are being actively marketed; however, due to the current
state of the commercial real estate market, we cannot be certain of the timing
of the disposition of our assets held for sale or the potential for future
write-downs associated with these assets.

Other. We have certain related party transactions with LPC and Basic
Management, as more fully described in Note 16.

The IBNR receivables relate to certain insurance liabilities, the risk
of which we have reinsured with certain third party insurance carriers. We
report the insurance liabilities related to these IBNR receivables which have
been reinsured as part of noncurrent acerued insurance claims and expenses.
Certain of our insurance liabilities are classified as current liabilities and
the related IBNR receivables are classified with prepaid expenses and other
current assets, See Notes 10 and 16.

Restricted cash at December 31, 2011 primarily relates to cash which
collateralizes a letter of credit issued on behalf of our Chemicals Segment in
conjunction with an appeal of a re-assessment by Canadian tax autherities, as
discussed in MNotes 9% and 12. ERestricted cash at December 31, 2011 also
includes $.5 millicon placed inte a collateral trust asscciated with certai:
financial assurance chligations of our Waste Management Segment, as discussed
in MNote 17.

The capital lease deposit relates to certain indebtedness of our Waste
Management Segment and is discussed in Note 9.

Note 8 - Goodwill and other intangible assets:

Goodwill. Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill during the past
three years by operating segment are presented in the table below. Goodwill
acquired in 2011 relates to the acquisition of an ergonomic components product
business included in our Components Products Segment, see Note 3.

Operating segment
Component
Chemicals Products Total
(In millions)

Goodwill at December 31, 2008 $359.0 £ 37.8 £396.8
Changes in foreign exchange rates - .1 e
Balance at December 31, 2009 i59.90 7.9 195.9
Changes in foreign exchange rates - 5 .5
Balance at December 31, 2010 359.0 38.4 3197.4
Changesz in foreign exchange rates - (.4) (.4}
Goodwill acguired - 3.1 3.1
Balance at December 31, 2011 $359.0 £ 41.1 £400.1

We have assigned goodwill to each of our reporting units (as that term
iz defined in ASC Topic 350-20-20, Goodwill) which corresponds to our
operating segments. Substantially all of our goodwill related to our
Chemicals Segment was generated prior toe 200% £from our vwvarious step
acguisitions of NL and Kronos, &as goodwill was determined prior to the
adoption of the egquity transaction f{ramework provisions of ASC Topic 810.
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Substantially all of the net goodwill related to the Component Products
Segment was generated from CompX's acquisitions of certain business units and
the step acguisitions of CompX. The Component Products Segment goodwill is
assigned to the three reporting units within that operating segment: security
products, furniture, and marine components. We test for goodwill impairment
at the reporting unit level. In determining the estimated fair walue of the
reporting units, we use appropriate valuation technigques, such as discounted
cash flows and, with respect to our Chemicals Segment, we consider quoted
market prices, a Level 1 input, while discounted cash flows are a Level 3
input. If the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its implied fair wvalue, an
impairment charge is recorded.

In accordance with the reguirements of ASC Topic 350-20-35, we review
goodwill for each of our four reporting units for impairment during the third
guarter of each year or when circumstances arise that indicate an impairment
might be present. If the fair wvalue of an evaluated asset is less than its
book wvalue, the asset is written down to fair walue. Our 2009, 2010 and 2011
annual impairment reviews of goodwill indicated no impairments. Prior to
2009, we recorded a $10.1 wmillion goodwill impairment in our Component
Products Segment. Our consclidated gross goodwill at December 31, 2011 is
$410.2 million.

Qther intangible assgets.

Intangible assets were 5.8 million and 52.1 million at December 31,
2010 and 2011, respectively. Amortization expense was $.5 million, 5.6
million and $.5 million in 2009, 2010 and 2011, respectiwvely. The increase in
intangible assets in 2011 is alsc related to the acquisition of the ergonomic
component products business mentioned above, see NHote 3. Estimated aggregate
intangible asset amortization expense for the next five years is as follows:

2012 $.6 million
2013 .4 million
2014 .2 million
2015 .2 million
20186 .1 million
Hote % - Long-term debt:
December 31,
2010 2011
{In millions)
Valhi:
Snake River Sugar Company $250.0 $250.0
Subsidiary debt:
Kronos International 6.5% Senior Secured Notes 5312.8 ie0.6
CompX promissory note payable to TIMET 42,2 22.2
CompX bank credit facility 3.0 2,0
NL promissory note 18.0 9.0
WCS financing capital lease 72.0 71.1
WCS 6% promissory notes 15.4 11.7
other 6.9 5.8
Total subsidiary debt 650.3 4B6.4
Total debt 940.3 736.4
Less current maturities 17.4 15.0
Total long-term debt §222.8 £717.4
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Valhi. Our £250 million in loans from Snake River Sugar Company are
collateralized by our interest in The BAmalgamated Sugar Company LLC. The
loans bear interest at a weighted average fixed interest rate of 9.4% and are
due in January 2027. At December 31, 2011, $37.5 million of the loans are
recourse to us and the remaining $212.5 million is nonrecourse to us. Under
certain conditions, Snake River has the ability to accelerate the maturity of
these lcans. See Note 4.

We also have an unsecured revolving credit facilicy with Contran which
provides for borrowings from Contran of up to 35100 million. The facility, as
amended, kears interest at prime plus 1%, and is due on demand, but in any
event no earlier than December 31, 2013. Valhi pays an unused commitment fee
guarterly to Contran on the available balance. At December 31, 2011, no
amounts were outstanding under the Contran credit facility and $100 million
was available for borrowings.

Eronos and its subsidiaries. In April 2006, Kronos International, Inc.
{(*KII"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Kronos, issued €400 million principal
amount of §.5% Senior Secured Notes ("6.5% Notes") due 2013 at 99.306% of the
principal amount ($498.5 million when issued). Kronos collateralized the 6.5%
Notes with a pledge of 65% of the common stock or other ownership interests of
certain of our first-tier EBuropean operating subsidiaries: Kronos Titan GmbH,
Kronos Denmark ApS, Kronos Limited and Société Industrielle du Titane, S.A.
We issued the 6.5% Notes pursuant to an indenture which contains a number of
covenants and restrictions which, among other things, restricts Kronos'
ability to incur additional debt, incur liens, pay dividends or merge or
consolidate with, or sell or transfer all or substantially all of the assets
to, another entity. At our opticn, Kronos may redeem the £.5% Notes at
redemption prices of 102.167% of the principal amount through October 2011,
declining to 101.08% of the principal amount through October 2012 and 100% of
the principal amount on or after Octcber 15, 2012. In this regard, in March
2011, F¥ronos redeemed €80 million principal amount of the 6.5% Wotes at
102.167% of the principal amount for an aggregate of $115.7 million, including
a $52.5 million call premium. During the third and fourth gquarters of 2011, we
repurchased in open market transactions an aggregate of €40.8 million
principal amount of the €.5% notes for an aggregate of €40.6 million {an

aggregate of 557.6 million when repurchased). Following such partial
redemption and repurchases, €279.2 million principal amount of Seniocr Notes
remain outstanding. We recognized a $3.3 million pre-tax interest charge

related to the redemption of €80 miliion of the 6.5% Senior Secured Notes
consisting of the ecall premium, the write-off of unamortized deferred
financing costs and original issue discount associated with the redeemed
Senior Notes. We recognized a 5.2 million net gain on the €40.8B million
principal amount of Senior Notes repurchased in open market transactions.
Kronos borrowed under its European revolving credit facility, as discussed
below, in order to fund the redemption in March 2011, while it used cash on
hand to fund the open market repurchases.

In the event of a change of control, as defined in the agreement, we
would be reguired to make an offer to purchase our 6.5% Notes at 101% of the
principal amount. We would also be reguired to make an offer to purchase a
specified portion of our £.5% Notes at par wvalue in the event we generate a
certain amount of net proceeds from the sale of assets outside the ordinary
course of business, and such net proceeds are not otherwise uszed for specified
purposes within a specified time pericd. See Note 19. The indenture also
contains certain cross-default provisions, as discussed in “the restrictions
and other* secticon below. The carrying amount of the &.5% Notes includes
unamortized original issue discount of €.2 million {($1.2 millicn) and €.4
million {%.5 million) at December 31, 2010 and 2011, respectively,

our Chemicals Segment’'s operating subsidiaries in Germany, Belgium,
Norway and Denmark have a €80 million secured revelving bank credit facility
that, as amended, matures in October 2013. We may denominate borrowings in
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euros, Norwegian kroner or U.S8. dollars. We may also issue up to €5 million
of letters of credit. Outstanding borrowings bear interest at rates ranging
from LIBOR plus 1.75% to LIBOR plus 1.5%. The facility is collateralized by
the accounts receivable and inventories of the borrowers, plus a limited
pledge of all of the other assets of the Belgian borrower. The facility
centains certain restrictive covenants that, among other things, restrict the
ability of the borrowers to incur debt, incur liens, pay dividends or merge or
consolidate with, or sell or transfer all or substantially all of the assets
to, another entity. In addition, the credit facility contains customary
crogs-default provisions with respect to other debt and cobligations of the
borrowers, KII and its other subsidiaries.

During 2011, Kronos borrowed €80 million (5113.3 million when borrowed)
under its European credit facility, and subseguently repaid €80 millicn
($115.0 million when repaid). s of December 31, 2011, there were no
ocutstanding borrowings under our European credit facility and the equivalent
of 3103.5 million was available for borrowing under this facility.

In December 2011, Kronos' Canadian subsidiary entered into a Cdn. 310.0
million loan agreement with the Bank of Montreal for the limited purpose of
issuing letters of credit. The facility renews annually. Letters of credic
are collateralized by restricted deposits at the Bank of Montreal. The
facility contains certain restrictive covenants which, among other things,
restrict the subsidiary from incurring additiconal indebtedness in excess of
Cdn. 520 million. At December 31, 2011, an aggregate of Cdn. 55.2 million
letters of credit were outstanding under this facility. In February 2012, an
additicnal letter of credit was issued under this facility for Cdn. 52.1
million.

In December 2011, Kronos' Canadian subsidiary entered intoe an agreement
with an economic development agency cf the Province of Quebec, Canada pursuant
to which we may borrow up to Cdn. 57.1 million from such agency. Borrowings
may only be used to fund capital improvements at our Canadian plant, and are
limited to a specified percentage of such capital improvements. Borrowings
are non-interest bearing, with monthly payments commencing in 2017. The
agreement contains certain restrictive covenants, which, among other things,
restricts the subsidiary’s ability to sell assets or enter into mergers, and
requires our subsidiary to maintain certain firnancial ratios and maintain
specified levels of employment. At December 31, 2011, we had no borrowings
under this agreemsent.

CompX. At December 31, 2011 CompX had a $37.5 million revolving bank
credit facility that matured in January 2012. CompX had net borrowings of £3.0
million under the credit facility in 2010, which was repaid in February 2011,
In July 2011, CompX borrowed the eguivalent of approximately 55.3 million under
the credit facility in connection with the acquisition discussed in Note 3
{such borrowing was denominated in Canadian dollars, as permitted by the terms
of the credit facility), and subsequently repaid the eguivalent of 52.9 million
of such borrowing during the remainder of 2011. The interest rate on the 52.0
million outstanding under the credic facilitcy at December 31, 2011 was 4.4%.
CompX was in compliance with all covenants of the credit facility at December
31, 2011.

In January 2012, CompX amended and restated the terms of the credit
facility to extend the maturity date to January 2015 and to reduce the size of
the facility from $£37.5 million to $30.0 millien. Any amounts outstanding
under the credit facility bear interest at LIBOR plus a margin of 2.25%. The
credit facility is collateralized by &5% of the ownership interests in CompX‘'s
first-tier non-U.S8. subsidiaries. The facility contains certain covenants and
restrictions customary in lending transactions of this type, which among other
things restricts CompX's ability to incur debt, incur liens, pay dividends or
merge or consolidate with, or transfer all or s=ubstantially all assets te,
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another entity. The facility alsc requires maintenance of specified levels of
net worth (as defined in the agreement). In the event of a change of contrel,
as defined in the agreement, the lenders would have the right to accelerate the
maturity of the facility. The credit facility permits CompX to pay dividends
and/or repurchase commen stock in an amount equal to the sum of £.125 per share
in any calendar guarter, not to exceed $8.0¢ million in any calendar year. At
December 21, 2011, and based on the new 530 million size of the amended and
restated credit facility, approximately $28.0 million was available for
borrowings, Because the amended and restated credit facility extended the
maturity date of our prior credit facility, we have classified the $2.0 million
cutstanding at December 31, 2011 under CompX's prior credit facility as
noncurrent.

Note payable to TIMET. In October 2007, CompX purchased and/or
cancelled a net 2.7 million shares of its Class A common stock from Timet
Finance Management Company (“TFMC"). TFMC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of

TIMET. CompX purchased and/or cancelled these shares for 519.50 per share, or
aggregate consideration of $52.6 million, which CompX paid in the form of a
promissory note. The promissory note, as amended, bears interest atc LIBOR
plus 1% (1.4% at December 31, 2011) and provides for guarterly principal
repayments of $250,000, with the balance due at maturity in September 2014,
The promissory note is prepavable, in wheole or in part, at any time at our
cption without penalty. The promissory note 1is subcrdinated to CompX's
amended and restated U.S5. revolving bank credit facility, although we are
permitted to make future principal prepavments not to exceed 515 million in
the aggregate. The promissory ncote was amended in September 2009 resulting in
the deferral of interest payments until March 2011 and the postponement of the
guarterly principal repayments until March 2011. We had net repayments on the
note payable to affiliate of $.8 million in 2009, nil in 2010 and %20 million
in 2011, including $15.0 million of prepayments in 2011 using cash we received
upon collection of ocur promissory note receivable, see Note 15.

NL - NL’s 516.0 million leng-term promissory note is discussed in Hote
17.

WCS - In December 2010, WCS closed under a Sale and Purchase Agreement
with the County of Andrews, Texas whereby WCS so0ld certain real and perscnal
property constituting a substantial portion of its property and eguipment
{“Transferred Assets") to the County for gross proceeds of 3575 million. WCS
used the net proceeds received under the Agreement to finance the construction
cf its Federal and Texas Compact LLRW disposal facilities. &s a condition
under the Agreement, in December 2010 WCS also concurrently entered into a
Lease Agreement (“Lease”) with the County pursuant to which we agreed to lease
the Transferred Assets back from the County for a period of 25 vyears. The
Lease regquires monthly rental payments payable from December 2010 through
BRugust 2035, and during the Lease term WCS is responsible for all costs
associated with the wuse, occupancy, possession and operation of the
Transferred Assets. Under the terms of the Agreemenc, WCS was also reguired
to pay all of the County's costs associated with the transactions, and the
proceeds WCS received from the County upon closing under the Sale and Purchase
Egreement were net of the County’'s cost, which aggregated approximately $2.6
millicon at the end of the Lease term, title to the Transferred Assets
automatically reverts back to WCS without further payment obligation. Prior
to the end of the Lease term, WCS may, at its option, terminate the Lease
early upon payment of specified amounts to the County, at which time the
Transferred Assets would alsc revert back to WCS. For financial reporting
purposes, we have accounted for these transactions in tandem as a fimancing
capital lease, in which we continue to recognize the Transferred Assets on our
Conzolidated Balance Sheet and cur rental payments dus under the Lease are
accounted for as debt. The capital lease has an effective interest rate of
approximately 7.0%. At the inception of the Lease, we were reguired to prepay
to the County an amount ($6.2 wmillion) egqual to our aggregate lease rentals
due to the County in the final vyear of the Lease, the County will hold the
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funds as a prepaid deposit. The deposit serves as collateral for WCS’
performance under the Lease and is included in our other noncurrent assets.
See also Note 7.

As part of the termination of a contract with a former customer
regarding wvarious contractual and legal claims, in April 2010 WCS issued the
former customer a §12.0 million long-term promissory note, The note is
unsecured, bears interest at a fixed rate of 6% and is payable in five equal
annual installments of principal plus accrued interest that began on December
31, 2010. WCS has the right to prepay the note at any time without penalty.
A substantial portion of the principal amount of the promissory note issued
was offset against deferred revenue that was unearned by WCS. The remaining
$1.1 million we recognized in contract termination expense related to this
agreement in the first quarter of 2010. At December 31, 2011, the outstanding
principal balance of this promissory note was 57.2 million.

In December 2010, WCS issued a vendor, in final settlement of certain
accrued construction retainage WCS owed such wendor, a 56.6 million non-
interest bearing promissory note due on December 31, 20132, The note calls for
payments of $1.7 million, 52.4 million and 52.5 million on December 31, 2011,
2012 and 2013, respectively. While the note is non-interest bearing, it does
provide for a 6% discount rate in the event WCE elects, at its optien, to
prepay the promissory note. For financial reporting purposes, we discounted
the neote to its present value of 55.8 million at issuance based on this 6%
discount rate. The amount of accrued construction retainage payable we had
previously recognized was approximately $51.4 million greater than such 55.8
million amount, and as part of the settlement we reduced the wvalus of our
property and eguipment by such excess to reflect the final cost. At December
31, 2011, the carrying wvalue of our remaining obligation to the vendor under
this promissory note was $4.5 million.

Aggregate maturities of long-term debt at December 31, 2011

Years ending December 31, Amount
{In millions)

Gross amounts due esach year:

2012 =S 23.7
2013 i74.8
2014 0.3
2018 9.5
2016 7.9
2017 and theresafter 364.8
Subtotal g11.0
Less amounts representing interest on capital leases and
discount on other debt cbligations 74,6
Total long-term debt $_136.4
Restrictions and other. Under the cross-default provisions of Kronos'

£.5% Notes, the 6.5% Notes may be accelerated prior to their stated maturity
if our European subsidiaries default under any other indebtedness in excess of
520 million due te a failure to pay the other indebtedness at its due date
fincluding any due date that arises prior to the stated maturity as a result
of a default under the other indebtedness). Under the cross-default
provisions of Kronos' European revolving credit facility, any outstanding
borrowings under the facility may be accelerated prior to thelr stated
maturity if the borrowers or its parent company default under any other
indebtedness in excess of €5 million due to a failure to pay the other
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indebtedness at its due date (including any due date that arises prior to the
stated maturity as a result of a default under the other indebtedness).

Certain of the credit facilities described above require the respective
borrowers to maintain minimum levels of eguity, reguire the maintenance of
certain financial raties, limit dividends and additional indebtedness and
contain other provisions and restriccive covenants customary in lending
transactions of this type. We are in compliance wich all of our debt covenants
at December 31, 2011. We believe we will be able to comply with the financial
covenants contained in all of our credit facilities through the maturity of
the respective facility; however if future operating results differ materially
from our expectations we may be unable tec maintain compliance.

Note 10 - Accrued liabilities:
December 31,

2010 2011
(In millions)

Current:
Employee benefits 5 44.8 § 45.4
Roorued sales discounts and rebates 11.3 11.8
Environmental costs Q.7 8.6
Interest 7.4 5.0
Deferred income 3.3 3.5
Other 35.3 1.7
Total $115.8 $146.0
Noncurrent:
Reserve for uncertain tax positions 5 41.3 5 26.9
Insurance claims and expenses 10.3 8.7
Employee benefits 9.8 10.3
Deferred income 1.1 1.1
Other 7.0 T.4
Total 3. 82.35 § 55.4

The risks associated with certain of our accrued insurance claims and
expenses have been reinsured, and the related IBNR receivables are recognized
&% noncurrent assets to the extent the related liabkility is classified as a
noncurrent liability. See Note 7. Our reserve for uncertain tax positions is
discussed in Note 12.

Cther neoncurrent liabilities include certain asset retirement cbligaticns,
inciuding amounts related to the cleosure and post-closure obligations
associated with our Waste Management Segment’'s facility in West Texas. We are
regquired to provide certain financial assurance to the Texas government
agencies with respect to the decommissioning obligations related teo such
facility, as more fully described in Note 17. Certain of our affiliates have
provided or assisted us in providing such financial assurance, as discussed in
Hote 16.

Hote 11 - Emplovee benefit plans:

Defined contribution plans. We maintain wvarious defined contribution
pension plans for our employees worldwide., Defined contribution plan expense
approximated $2.5 million in 2009, %3.2 million in 2010 and 53.9% million in
2011.

Defined benefit plans. Kronos and ML sponsor wvarious defined hbenefit

pension plans worldwide. The benefits under cur defined benefit plans are
based upon years of service and employee compensation. Our funding policy is
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to coptribute annually the minimum amount reguired under ERISA (or egquivalent
foreign) regulations plus additional amounts as we deem appropriate.

Priocr to December 31, 2009, we also maintained a U.S. plan related to
Medite Corporation, a former business unit of Valhi (the "Medite plan”).
Effective December 31, 2009, for financial reporting purposes the assets and
liabilities of the Medite plan were transferred to a defined benefit pension
plan maintained by Contran and are no longer reflected in our Ceonsclidated
Financial Statements as of that date. We transferred the assets and
liakilities of the Medite plan to Contran in order to, among other things,
achieve certain administrative cost savings. At December 31, 2009, the assets
of the Medite plan were $26.5 million and the projected benefit obligation of
the Medite Plan was $33.1 millicn. We accounted for the transfer by recording
an increase in Valhi stockholders’ equity as of December 31, 2009 of $4.3
million, comprised of the net $6.6 million liability representing the funded
status of the plan, less the applicable deferred income tax asset of 52.3
millien. Of such 5%4.3 million, £512.9 million related to an aggregate loss,
net of income taxes, previcusly recegnized in accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss), and $8.6 million related to net pericdic pension credit, net of
income taxes, previously recognized in net income attributable to WValhi
stockholders. The net periodic pension cost associated with this plan,
included in our statements of operations was $.7 million in 2009.

We expect to contribute the equivalent of $29%.1 million to all of our
defined benefit pension plans during 2012, Benefit payments to plan
participants cut of plan assets are expected to be the eguivalent of:

2012 € 27.7 million
2013 23.7 million
2014 ZB.7 million
2015 28.5 million
2018 283.3 million
Next 5 years 155.1 million



The funded status of our U.S. defined benefit pension plans is presented
in the table below.

Years ended December 31,
2010 2011
(In millions)

Change in projected benefit obligations ("PBO"):

Balance at beginning of the vyear 5 57.2 5 55.8
Interest cost 3.2 2.9
Actuarial loss 3.1 6.2
Benefits paid {3.7) (3.6}

Balance at end of the year §_59.8 5 65.3

Change in plan assets:

Fair value at beginning of the year 5 43.5 £ 50.4
Actual return on plan assets 10.4 (1.8)
Employer contributions L2 .2
Benefits paid (3.7} (3.6)
Fair wvalue at end of wyear $ 50.4 5 45.4
Funded status § (9.4) £ (19.9)
Emounts recognized in the Consclidated Balance Sheets:
Rocorued pension costs:
Current 5 {.3) - (.3)
MNoncurrent i9.1) {19.6)
Total (9.4) {19.9)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss -
Botuarial loss 25.3 37.3
Total § 1s.9 & 17.4
Recumulated benefit obligations (“ABO") $§_58.8 $ 65.3

The components of our net periodic defined benefit pension benefit cost
{credit) for U.S5. plans are presented in the table below. The amounts shown
below for the amortization of unrecognized actuarial losses for 2002, 2010 and
2011 were recognized as components of our accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss} at December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, respectively, net of
deferred income taxes and noncontrolling interest.

Years ended December 31,
2008 2010 2011
(In millions)

Met periodic pension benefit cost (credit)
for U.5. plans:

Interest cost £ 5.2 g 3.2 § 2.%
Expected return cn plan assets (6.3) 4.2 (4.8)
Amortization of unrecognized:
Met actuarial loss 2.2 1.2 1.0
Total 5 1.1 $ .2 s (.9)



Certain information cencerning cur U.S5. defined benefit pension plans is
presented in the table below.

December 31,
2010 2011
{(In millions)

Plans for which the ABO exceeds plan assets:

Projected benefit obligations 5 55.8 $ 65.3
Accumulated benefit obligations 59.B 65.3
Falr value of plan assets 0.4 45.4

The discount rate assumptions used in determining the actuarial present
value of the benefit obligations for our U.S. defined benefit pension plan as
of December 31, 2010 and 2011 are 5.1% and 4.2%, respectively. The impact of
assumed increases in future compensation levels does not have an effect on the
benefit obligations as the plan is frozen with regards to compensation,

A summary of our key actuarial assumptions used to determine U.S5. net
periodic benefit cost (credit} for 2009, 2010 and 2011 are as follows:

Years ended December 31,

Rate 2009 2010 2011
Discount rate 6.1% 5.7% 5.1%
Long-term return on plan assets 10.0% 10.0% 10.0%

Variances from actuarially assumed rates will result in increases or
decreases in accumulated pension obligations, pension expense and funding
requirements in future periods. The impact of assumed increases in future
compensation levels does not have an effect on the periodic pension cost as
the plan is frozen with regards to compensation.



The funded status of our foreign defined benefit pension plans is
presented in the table below.

Years ended December 31,
2010 2011
(In millions)

Change in PBO:

Balance at beginning of the year £ 432.3 5 454.8
Service cost 10.4 11.2
Incerest cost 22.3 24 .1
Participants' contributions 1.7 1.9
Plan amendments 3.8 -
Actuarial loss 25.3 18.4
Change in currency exchange rates {(18.3) (13.4)
Benefits paid (22.7}) (27.3)
Balance at end of the year 454 .8 5 468.7
Change in plan assets:
Fair value at beginning of the year $ 314.0 5§ 334.8
Bectual return on plan assets 27.3 18.2
Employer contributions 25.0 25.7
Participants’ contributions 1.7 1.9
Change in currency exchange rates (10.5) (9.6)
Benefits paid _(22.7) (27.3)
Fair wvalue at end of year £ 334.8 5 343.7
Funded status 5(120.0) 5(126.0)
Emounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets:
Fension asset -] L3 g -
Becrued pension costs:
Current (1.3} (1.3)
Noncurrent (119.0) (124.7)
Total [(120.0} {126.0)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss:
Actuarial loss 124.0 133.8
Pricr service cost 7.7 6.5
Net transition obligations 2.2 1.7
Total 133.9 142.1
Total 5 13.9 § 16.1
EEO § 423.5 $ 437.5

In the fourth gquarter of 2010, Kronos amended the benefit formula for
most participants of its Canadian and Belgium plans effective January 1, 2011,
resulting in a prior service cost of approximately £3.8 million as of December
31, 2010. FHey assumptions as of December 31, 2010 and 2011 now reflect these
plan revisions to the benefit formula.

The components of our net periodic defined benefit pension benefit cost
(credit] for our foreign plans are presented in the table below. The amounts
shown below for the amortization of unrecognized prior service cgost, net
transition ocobligations and actuarial losses for 2009, 2010 and 2011 were
recognized as components of our accumulated other comprehensive income ({loss)
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at December 31, 2008, 200% and 2010, respectively, net of deferred income
taxes and noncontrelling interest. During 2011, certain eligible participants
elected to take lump sum distributions upon their retirement, resulting in a
neminal settlement charge in 2011.

Years ended December 31,
2009 2010 2011
{In millions)

Wet pericdic pension cost for foreign plans:

Service cost 5 8.6 5 10.4 5 11.2
Interest cost 22.5 22.3 24.1
Eettlement lo=s - - .5
Expected return on plan assets {15.7) {16.8) (18.0)
Amortization of unrecognized:
Pricr service cost .8 .9 1,2
Net transition cbligations 5 .5 .5
Met actuarial loss 5.9 __ 5.8 6.8
Total 5 22.6 5 23.1 £ 26.3

Certain information concerning our foreign defined benefit pension plans
is presented in the table below.

December 31,
2010 2011
{In millions)

Plans for which the ABO exceeds plan assets:

Projected kenefit chligations £395.0 £468.7
Acoumulated benefit cbligaticns 371.0 437.5
Fair value of plan assets 276.0 343.7

A summary of our key actuarial assumptions used to determine foreign
benefit obligations as of December 31, 2010 and 2011 was:

December 31,

Rate 2010 2011
Discount rate 5.1% 4.9%
Increase in future compensation levels 3.0% 3.1%

A summary of our key actuarial assumptions used to determine foreign net
pericdic benefit cost for 2009, 2010 and 2011 are as follows:

Years ended December 31,

Rate 20049 2010 2011
Discount rate 5.9% 5.5% 5.1%
Increase in future compensation levels 1.2% 3.0% 3.0%
Long-term return on plan assets 5.9% 5.5% 5.5%

Variances from actuarially assumed rates will result in increases or
decreases in accumulated pension cbligations, pension expense and funding
requirements in future periods.



The amounts shown for unreccgnized actuarial losses, prior service cost
and net transition ckligations at December 31, 2010 and 2011 have not been
recognized as components of our periodic defined benefit pension cost as of
those dates. These amounts will be recognized as components of our periodic
defined benefit cost in future years. These amounts, net of deferred income
taxes and noncontreclling interest, are recognized in our accumulated other
comprehensive income (leoss) at December 31, 2010 and 2011. We expect
approximately $9.8 million, $1.1 million and 5.4 million of the unrecognized
actuarial losses, pricr service cost and net transition obligations,
respectively, will be recognized as components of our periodic defined benefit
pension eceost in  2011. The table below details the changes in other
comprehensive income (loss) during 20092, 2010 and 2011,

Years ended December 31,
200% 2010 2011
(In millions)

Changes in plan assets and benefit
obligations recognized in other comprehenszive
income (loss):

Net actuarial gain {loss) 5 3.0 5{11.4) $(30.1)
mmortization of unrecognized:
Pricr service cost . B .9 1.2
Net transition cbligations .5 .5 .5
Nt actuarial gain 8.1 7.0 B.2
Plan amendment - (3.8) -

Total £.12.4 $ (6.8) $(20.2)

At December 31, 2010 and 2011, substantially all of the assets
attributable to our U.S. plans were invested in the Combined Master Retirement
Trust ("CMRT"), a collective investment trust sponsored by Contran to permit
the ceollective investment by certain master trusts that fund certain employee
benefits plans sponsored by Contran and certain of its affiliates. The CMRT's
long-term investment objective is to provide a rate of return exceeding a
composite of brecad market eguity and fixed income indices (including the S&P
500 and certain Russell indices) while utilizing beth third-party investment
managers as well as investments directed by Mr. Simmons. Mr. Simmons is the
socle trustee of the CMRT. The trustse of the CMRT, along with the CMRT's
investment committee, of which Mr. Simmons is a member, actively manage the
investments of the CMRT.

The CMRT trustee and investment committee do not maintain a specific
target asset allocation in order to achieve their objectives, but instead they
pericdically change the asset mix of the CMRT based upon, among other things,
advice they receive from third-party advisors and their expectations regarding
potential returns for wvarious investment alternatives and what asset mix will
generate the greatest overall return. The CMET holds TIMET common stock in
its iInvestment portfeolic; however through December 31, 2009 we invested in a
portion of the CMRT which does not include the TIMET holdings. Beginning in
2010, we began to invest in the portion of the CMRT that holds such stock.
During the hiscory of the CMRT from its inception in 1988 through December 31,
2011, the average annual rate of return ({including the CMRT's investment in
TIMET common stock) has been 14%, while such annual return excluding the
CMRT's investment in TIMET common stock has been 11.4%. For the years ended
December 31, 200%, 2010 and 2011, the assumed long-term rate of return for plan
assets invested in the CMRT was 10%. In determining the appropriateness of the
long-term rate of return assumption, we primarily rely on the historical rates
of return achieved by the CMRT, although we consider other factors as well
including, amocng other things, the investment objectives of the CMRT's managers
and their expectation that such historical returns will in the future continue
tc be achieved over the long-term.

|
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The CMRT unit wvalue is determined semi-monthly, and the plans have the
ability to redeem all or any portion of their investment in the CMRT at any
time based on the most recent semi-monthly wvaluation. However, the plans do
not have the right teo individual assets held by the CMRT and the CMRT has the
sole discretion in determining how to meet any redemption reguest. For
purposes of our plan asset disclosure, we consider the investment in the CMRT
as a Level 2 input because (i) the CMRT wvalue is established semi-monthly and
the plans have the right to redeem their investment in the CMRT, in part or in
whole, at anytime based on the most recent wvalue and (ii) observable inputs
from Level 1 or Level 2 were used to value approximately B83% of the assets of
the CMRT at December 31, 2010 and 2011, as noted below. The aggregate fair
value of all of the CMRT assets, including funds of Contran and its other
affiliates that also invest in the CMRT, and supplemental asset mix details of
the CMRT as of December 31, 2010 and 2011, are as follows:

December 31,
2010 2011
(In millions)

CMRT asset wvalue 5 714.9 % 659.5

CMRT fair value input:

Level 1 B3 % 82 %

Level 2 1 1

Level 3 16 17
100 % 100 %

CMRT asset mix:
Domestic eguities, principally publicly

traded T3 0% 75 %
International egquities, publicly traded 2 2
Fixed income securities, publicly traded 16 14
Privately managed limited partnerships B 8
Other 1 _1
100 % 100 %

At December 31, 2010 and 2011, subtrusts of the CMRT held .1% of our
cutstanding common stock. These shares are hot reflected as treasury stock in
our Consolidated Financial Statements because we do not conscolidate the CMRT.

At December 31, 2010 and 2011, plan assets attributable to our Chemicals
Segment’s foreign plans related primarily to Germany, Canada and Norway. In
determining the expected long-term rate of return on plan asset assumptions,
we consider the long-term asset mix (e.g. equity wvs. fixed income) for the
assets for each of our plans and the expected long-term rates of return for
such asset components. In addition, we receive third-party advice about
appropriate long-term rates of vreturn. Such assumed asset mixes are
summarized below:

¢« In Germany, the composition of our plan assets is established to satisfy
the reguirements of the German insurance commissioner. Qur German
pension plan assets represent an investment in a large collective
investment fund escablished and maintained by Bayer RG in which several
pension plans, including our German pension plan and Bayer’'s pension
plans, have invested. ©Our plan assets represent a very nominal portion
of the total collective investment fund maintained by Bayer. These plan
assets are a Level 3 input because there is not an active market that
approximates the value of our investment in the Bayer investment fund.
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We determine the fair wvalue of the Bayer plan assets based on periodic
reports we receive from the managers of the Bayer plan. These pericdic
reports are subject to audit by the German pension regulator.

* In Canada, we currently have a plan asset target allocation of 55% to
equity securities and 45% to fixed income securities. We expect the
long-term rate of return for such investments to average approximately
125 basis points above the applicable equity or fixed income index. The
Canadian assets are Level 1 input because they are traded in active
markets.

* In Norway, we currently have a plan asset target allocation of 12% to
eguity securities, 72% to fixed income securities, 7% to real estate and
the remainder primarily to liguid investments such as money markets.
The expected long-term rate of return for such investments is
approximately B8%, 4%, 7% and 3%, respectively. The majority of
Norwegian plan assets are Level 1 inputs because they are traded in
active markets; however approxXimately 10% of our Norwegian plan assets
are invested in real estate and other investments not actively traded
and are therefore a Level 3 input.

* We also have plan assets in Belgium and the United Kingdom. The Belgian
plan assets are invested in certain individualized fixed income
insurance contracts for the benefit of each plan participant as reguired
by the local regulators and are therefore a Level 3 input. The United
Kingdom plan assets consist of marketabkle securities which are Level 1
inputs because they trade in active markets.

We regularly review our actual asset allocation for each of our plans,
and periodically rebalance the investments in each plan to more accurately
reflect the targeted allocation and/or maximize the overall long-term return
when we consider it appropriate.



The composition of our December 31, 2010 and 2011 pension plan assets is
show in the table below. The amounts shown for plan assets invested in the
CMRT include a nominal amount of cash held by our U.S. pension plans which are
not part of the plans’' investment in the CMRT:

Fair Value Meagurements at December 31, 2010

Quoted Significant
Prices in Other Significant
Active Obhservable Unchservable
Markets Inputs Inputs
Total (Level 1) (Level 2} (Level 3)

(In millions)

Germany 5176.2 5 - 5 - 5176 .2
Canada:
Local currency eguities 19.6 15.5 - -
Foreign equities 28.3 28.3 - -
Local currency fixed income 30.7 30.7 - -
Foreign currency fixed income .2 .2
Cash and other 2.4 2.4 = -
Horway :
Local currency egquities 11.5 11.5 - -
Foreian eqgquities .2 .2 - -
Local currency fixed income £2.3 15.9 - 26.4
Foreign fixed income 3.5 .5 - 3.0
Cash and other 1.2 o - 8
U.5. - CMRT 50.4 .3 50.1 -
Other 18.7 10.0 - __ 8.7
Total $385.2 $120.2 $50.1 $214.9
Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2011
" Quoted Significant
Prices in Other Bignificant
Active Observable TUnchservable
Markets Inputs Inputs
Total (Level 1) (Level 2} (Level 3)
{(In millions)
Germany $187.2 5 - 5 - $187.2
Canada:
Local currency equities 18.1 18.1 - -
Foreign eguities 28.0 28.0 - -
Local currency fixed income 33.8 33.8 - -
Cash and other 2.4 2.4 - -
Norway:
Local currency eguities 2.0 2.0 - -
Foreign eguities 3.7 3.7 - -
Local currency fixed income 35.9 35.9 - -
Foreign fixed income 4.3 4.3 - -
Real estate 5.1 - - 5.1
Cash and other 6.3 4.9 - 1.4
U.s. - CMET 45.4 i 45.3 -
Other la.59 10.0 - 6.5
Total $383.1 £143.2 545.3 £200.6




A rollforward of the change in fair value of Level 3 assets follows.

Years ended December 31,
2010 2011
{In millions)

Fair value at beginning of year 5 207.1 $ 214.9
Gain on assets held at end of year 15.8 18.8
Gain on assets sold during the year 1.5 1.8
Assets purchased 20.0 18.6
Assets sold (15.3) (18.1)
Transfers out - (25.2)
Currency exchange rate fluctuations 113.7) (6.2)

Fair wvalue at end of vyear 214.89 5 200.6
Postretirement benefits other than pensions (OPEE). NL, HKronos and

Tremont provide certain health care and life insurance benefits for their

eligible retired employees. We have no OQPEE plan assets, rather, we fund

benefit payments as they are paid. At December 31, 2011, we expect to

contribute the equivalent of approximately 51.7 million to all of our OPEE
plans during 2012. Benefit payments to OPEB plan participants are expected to
be the equivalent of:

2012 5 1.7 million
2013 1.6 million
2014 1.5 million
2018 1.4 million
2018 1.3 million
Next 5 years £.7 million

F-45



The funded status of cur OPEB plans is presented in the table below.

Years ended December 31,
2010 2011
{In millions)

Actuarial present wvalue of accumulated OPEE

obligations:
Balance at beginning of the year 5 2B.0 $ 21.4
Service cost .6 2
Interest cost 1.2 1.0
Actuarial loss 2.3 .9
Plan amendment {9.5) -
Change in currency exchange rates .5 (.2)
Benefits paid from employer contributions (1.7} {1.2)
Balance at end of the vyear 3 21.4 § 22.1
Fair wvalue of plan assets 5 - & -
Funded status $121.4} £(22.1)
Lecrued OPEB costs recognized in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets:
Current 5 (1.9} £ (1.7)
Noncurrent _{19.5} (20.4)
Total i21.4) (22.1})
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss):
Net actuarial loss 2.4 3.4
Frior service credit {14.8) (12.3)
Total f1z.2) (8.9)
Total 5(33.6) £(31.0)

The amounts shown in the table above for unrecognized actuarial losses
and prior service credit at December 31, 2010 and 2011 have not been recognized
as components of our periodic OPEE cost as of those dates. These amounts will
be recognized as components of our periodic OPEB cost in future years. These
amounts, net of deferred income taxes and noncontrolling interest, are now
recognized in our accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) at December 31,
2010 and 2011. We expect to recognize approximately $1.8 million of prior
service credit as components of our pericdic QOPEB cost in 2011, The table
below details the changes in other comprehensive income during 2009, 2010 and
2011.

In the fourth gquarter of 2010, we amended our benefit formula for most
participants of our plans effective January 1, 2011, resulting in a prior
service credit of approximately $2.5 million as of December 31, 2010. Key
assumptions including the health care cost trend rate as of December 31, 2010
and 2011 now reflect these plan revisions to the benefit formula.



Years ended December 31,
Zo0y 2010 2011
{In millions)

Changes in benefit cbligations recognized in
other comprehensive income (loss):
Net actuarial gain (loss) arising during

the year 5 .4 50(2.3) g (.9)
Plan amendments 4.8 8.5 -
Amortization of unrecognized:
Prior service cost {.4) 1.7 (2.3)
Net actuarial loss . 3 - -
Total 55.1 $ 6.5 $(3.2)

The components of our periodic OPEE cost are presented in the table
below. The amounts shown below for the amortization of unrecognized actuarial
loss and prior service credit for 2009, 2010 and 2011 were recognized as
components of our accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) at December
31, 200%, 2010 and 2011, respectively, net of deferred income taxes and
nocncontrolling interestc.

Years ended December 31,
2008 2010 2011
(In millions)

Het periodic OPEB cost (credit):

Service cost s .2 5 .4 s .2
Interest cost 1.8 1.2 1.0
Amortization of unrecognized:
Prior service credit (.4) (.7) (2.3)
RActuarial loss .3 - -
Total £1.9 1.1 5(1.1)

A summary of our key actuarial assumptions used to determine the net
benefit obligations as of December 31, 2010 and 2011 fcllows:

December 31,

2010 2011

Healthcare inflation:
Initial rate B.0% - B.5% B.0%
Ultimate rate S.0% - 5.5% 5.0%
Year of ultimate rate achievement 2018 2018
Discount rate 4.65% 3.93%

Essumed health care cost trend rates affect the amounts we report for
health care plans. A one percent change in assumed health care trend rates
would not have a material effect on the net periodic OPFEB cost for 2011 or on
the accumulated OPEB cbligations at December 31, 2011.

The weighted average discount rate used in determining the net periodic
OPEE cost for 2011 was 4.65% (the rate was 5.4% in 2010 and 5.9% in 2009).
he weighted average rate was determined using the projected benefit
cbligations as of the beginning of each year.
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Variances from actuarially-assumed rates will result in additional
increases or decreases in accumulated OPEBE obligations, net periocdic OPEE cost
and funding requirements in future periods.

Hote 12 - Income taxes:

Years ended December 31,
20059 2010 2011
(In millions)

Pre-tax income (loss):

United States 5 (9.9) 5 (1.9) £ 50.7
Non-U.5. subsidiaries {79.0) 84.2 419.2
Total §{BB.$} $ 82.3 £469.9
Expected tax expense (benefit), at U.S.
federal statutory income tax rate of 35% $(31.1) 5 28.8 5164.5
Non-U.5. tax rates 1.5 (4.2) (18.1)
Incremental U.S. tax on earnings of non-tax
group companies (10.0) 21.8 31.6
German tax attribute adjustments L2 (35.2) -
U.S5. state income taxes, net (.2) 3.1 4.0
Bdjustment to the reserve for uncertain tax
positions, net (14.0) 5.2 (8.5)
Change in valuation allowance 1.4 (.1) (.7}
Nondeductible expenses 2.6 2.5 3.7
Non-U.S. tax rate changes - (1.6} -
Nontaxable income {.9) (.9) {1.1)
Other, net {.3) {.2) {.5])
Provision for income taxes (benefit) 5(50,.8) £ .18.5 £174.9

Components of income tax expense (benefit):
Currently payable (refundable):

U.s5. federal and state 5(14.4) £ 6.0 £ 8.3
Non-U.5. 1.8 17.8 81.3
Total (12.8) 23.8 89.6
Deferred income taxes (benefit):
U.5. federal and state (7.4) l9.0 30.7
Non-U.S. (20.8) {24.3) 54.6
Total (38.2) (5.3) 85.3
Provision for income taxes (benefit) $(50.8) $ 18.5 $174.9

Comprehensive provision for
income taxes (benefit) allocable to:
Income (loss) from operations $(50.8) $ 18.5 $174.9
Other comprehensive income:

Marketable securities 3.9 6.0 7.7
Currency translation 5.6 (.2) -
Pension plans 5.8 (.5) (6.5)
OPEB plans 1.5 2.1 (1.0}
Total 5(34.0) $ 25.9 $175.1
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The components of the net deferred tax liability at December 31, 2010 and
2011 are summarized below.

December 31,
2010 2011
hssets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
{(In millions)

Tax effect of temporary differences

related to:
Inventories 5 3.3 5 (a4a.01 & 8.4 & (6.8)
Marketable securities 9.6 (125.5) 2.2 {142.4)
Property and egquipment - (86.3) - (B5.3)
Acorued OFEE costs 6.8 - 6.8 -
Accrued pension Costs 10.5 - 16.8 -
Accrued envirenmental liabilities and
other deductible differences 45,1 - iB.8 -
Other taxable differences - {(27.8) - {25.3)
Investments in subsidiaries and
affiliates - (258.2) - (258.2)
Tax on unremitted esarnings of non-U.s.
subsidiaries - (8.4} - (22.0)
Tax loss and tax credit carryforwards 219.3 - 160.0 -
vValuation allowance {1.9) - {1.3) -
Bdjusted gross deferred tax assets
{liabilities) 293.3 {510.0) 231.7 {543.8}
Ketting of items by tax jurisdiction _ (B7.4) 87.4 (80.2}) 0.2
205.9 {422.86) 151.5 [463.8)
Less nelt current deferred tax asset
(liability) 13.9 (5.0 1B.8 (6.4)
Het noncurrent deferred tcax asset
(liability} § 1%82.0 417 6] § 132.7 £(457.2)

Our provision for income taxes in the third and fourth gquarters of 2011
includes an aggregate of 517.2 million for U.S. incremental income taxes on
current earnings repatriated from our Chemicals Segment's German subsidiary,
which earnings were used to fund a portion of the repurchases of our Senior
Secured Notes discussed in Note 3. In addition, we accrue U.5., incremental
income taxes on the earnings of our Chemical Segment’s Canadian subsidiary and
the earnings of our Component Product Segment’'s Canadian and Taiwanese
subgidiaries, which earnings we previously determined are not permanently
reinvested.

Tax authorities are examining certain of our non-U.S5. tax returns and
have or may propose tax deficiencies, including penalties and interest.
Because of the inherent uncertainties involved in settlement initiatives and
court and tax proceedings, we cannot guarantee that these tax matters will he
resolved in our favor, and therefore our potential exposure, if any, is also
uncertain. In 2011 cur Chemicals Segment received notices of re-assessment
from che Canadian federal and provincial tax authorities related to the years
2002 through 2004. We object to the re-assessments and believe the position

is without merit. Aeccordingly, we are appealing the re-assessments, and in
connection with such appeal we were reguired to post letters of credit
aggregating Cdn. 55.2 million (see Hote 7). In February 2012, and in

conjunction with the re-assessment notices received in 2011, we posted an
additional letter of credit of Cdn $2.1 million. If the full amount of the
proposed adjustment were ultimately to be assessed against us the cash tax
liakility would be approximately $11.6 million. We believe we have adeguate
accruals for additional taxes and related interest expense which could
ultimately result from tax examinations. We believe the ultimate disposition
of tax examinations should neot have a material adverse effect on our
consolidated financial position, results of operations or liguidity.
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As a consgeguence of a Eurcpean Court ruling that resulted in a favorable
resolution of certain income tax issues in Germany, during the first quarter
of 2010 the German tax authorities agreed to an increase in Kronos’' German net
operating loss carryforwards. Accordingly, we recognized a non-cash income
tax benefit of £$35.2 million in the first quarter of 2010.

We are regquired to recognize a deferred income tax liability with
respect to the incremental U.S5. (federal and state) and foreign withholding
taxes that would bke incurred when undistributed earnings of a foreign
subsidiary are subseguently repatriated, unless management has determined that
these undistributed earnings are permanently reinvested for the foreseeable
future. Pricr to March 31, 2010, we had not recognized a deferred income tax
liakility related to incremental income taxes on the pre-2005 undistributed
earnings of our Taiwanese subsidiary, as those earnings were deemed to be
permanently reinvested. We are required to reassess the permanent
reinvestment conclusicn on an ongoing basis to determine if our intentions
nave changed. At the end of March 2010, and based primarily upon changes in
our cash management plans, we determined that all of the undistributed
earnings of our Taiwanese subsidiary could no longer be considered to be
permanently reinvested in Taiwan. Accordingly, in the first guarter of 2010
we recognized an aggregate $1.9% million provision for deferred income taxes on
the pre-2005 undistributed earnings of our Taiwanese subsidiary.

Our provision for income taxes in 2009 includes a noncash income tax
benefit of $14.0 million due to a net decrease in our reserves for uncertain
tax positions. The benefit includes a net 54.7 million decrease primarily as
a result of the resoluticn of tax audits in Belgium and Germany.

The following table shows the changes in the amount of our uncertain tax
positions (exclusive of the effect of interest and penalties) during 2009,
201¢ and 2011:

Years ended December 31,

2009 2010 2011
{(In millions)

Unrecognized tax benefits:

Amount beginning of year £46.6 £31.8 § 37.4
Net increase (decrease):

Tax positions taken in prior periods {5.3) .3 .5

Tax positions taken in current peried (6.4]) 5.4 6.0
Settlements with taxing authorities -

cash paid {.1) - -
Lapse due to applicable statute of

limitations (3.7} (.5} (20.86)
Changes in currency exchange rates .7 -4 (.3)
Amount at end of year 531.8 $37.4 g 23.0

If our uncertain tax positions were recognized, a benefit of 525.7
million, $22.2 million and $22.5 million at December 31, 2009, 2010 and 2011,
respectively, would affect our effective income tax rate. We currently
estimate that our unreccognized tax benefits will decrease by approximately
51.6 millicn during the next twelve months due to the reverszal of certain
timing differences and the expiration of certain statues of limitations.

We file income tax returns in wvarious U.5. federal, state and loecal
jurisdicticns. We also £ile income tax returns in various foreign
jurisdicticns, principally in Germany, Canada, Taiwan, Belgium and Norway.
Cur U.S. income tax returns prior to 2008 are generally considered closed to
examination by applicable tax authorities. Our foreign income tax returns are
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generally considered closed to examination for years prior to: 2002 for
Norway; 2006 for Canada and Taiwan; 2007 for Germany; and 2008 for Belgium.

We accrue interest and penalties on our uncertain tax positions as a
component of our provision for income taxes. We accrued 51.6 million, 5.8
million and $.6 million of interest and penalties during 200%, 2010 and 2011,
respectively, and at each of December 31, 2010 and 2011 we had $3.9 million
accrued for interest and an immaterial amount accrued for penalties for our
uncertain tax positions.

At December 31, 2011, Kronos had the equivalent of 57%9% million and
5188 million of net operating loss carryforwards for German corporate and
trade tCax purposes, respectively. At December 31, 2011, we have concluded
that no deferred income tax asset wvaluation allowance is required to be
recognized with respect to such carryforwards, principally because {i] such
carryforwards have an indefinite carryforward peried, (ii) we have utilized a
portion of such carryforwards during the most recent three-year period and
(iii} we currently expect to utilize the remainder of such carryforwards over
the long term. However, prior to the complete wutilization of these
carryforwards, particularly if the economic recovery were to be short-lived or
we generate operating losses in our German operations for an extended period
of time, it is possible we might conclude the benefit of the carryforwards
would no longer meet the more-likely-than-not recognition criteria, at which
point we would be reguired to recognize a valuation allowance against some or
all of the then-remaining tax benefit associated with the carryforwards.

At December 31, 2011, approximately 352 million of net operating loss
carryforwards related to wvarious U.S5. state jurisdictions with expiration
dates ranging from 2012 to 2031. At December 31, 2011, we have concluded that
a portion of the wvarious U.S5. state jurisdictions net operating losses do not
meet the more-likely-than-not recognition criteria, accordingly we have
recognized a deferred income tax asset wvaluation allowance of 51.1 million
with respect to our carryforwards ($1.8 million at December 31, 2010).

Note 13 - Noncontrolling interest in subsidiaries:

December 31,
2010 2011
(In millions)

Nonceontrolling interest in net assets:

Kronos Worldwide s208.7 5240.2
HL Industries 56.8 g4.6
CompX International 10.9 11.0

Total 276.4 £335.8

Years ended December 31,
2008 2010 2011
(In millions)

Noncontrolling interest in net income {loss) of
subsidiaries:

Kronos Worldwide 5(1.7) $ 9.8 562.6
NL Industries (1.9} 3.3 13,5
Comp¥ International k.3 4 1.0

Total 5(3.8) 13.5 $77.5
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The changes in our ownership interest in our subsidiaries and the effect on
our equity is as follows:

Years ended December 31,
2009 2011 2011
(In millions)

Het income (loss) attributable to Valhi
Stockholders £(34.2} 5 50.3 5217.5

Transfers (to) from noncontrolling
interest:
Increase in additional paid-in capital
for purchase of 14,000 shares of

Kronos common stock .2 - -
Issuance of subsidiary stock L1 87.8 .4
Het transfers from noncontrolling
interest .3 87.8 .4
Net income (loss) attributable to
Valhi stockheolders and change
from noncontrelling interest in
subsidiaries $133.8) £138. 1 $217.9

See Mote 3 for information regarding the sale of Kroneos common stock in
2010.

Note 14 - Valhi stockholder’s eguity:
Shares of common stock

Issued Treasury Outstanding
(In millions)

Balance at December 31, 2008 118.4 (4.0} 114 .4
Acguired during 2002 - _.2) (.1)
Balance at December 31, 20092 and 2010 118.4 (4.1} 114.3
Acquired during 2011 - _(.3) (.3)
Balance at December 31, 2011 118.4 (4.4) 114.0

We have issued a nominal number of shares of Valhi common stock during
2009, 2010 and 2011, principally asscciated with stock awards issued annually
to members of ocur beoard of directors.

Valhi share repurchases and cancellations. Prior to 2009, our board of
directors authorized the repurchase of up to 10.0 million shares of our common
stock in open market transactions, including bklock purchases, or in privately
negotiated transactions, which may include transactions with our affiliates or

subsidiaries. We may purchase the stock from time to time as market
conditions permit. The stock repurchase program does not include specific
price targets or timetables and may be suspended at any time. Depending on

market conditions, we may terminate the program priocr to completion. We will
use cash on hand to acguire the shares. Repurchased shares could be retired
and cancelled or may be added to our treasury stock and used for employee
benefit plans, future acquisitions or other corporate purposes. We did not
make any such purchases under the plan in each of 200%, 2010 and 2011,



Treasury stock. The treasury stock we reported for financial reporting
purpcses at December 31, 2009, 2010 and 2011 represents our proportional
interest in the shares of our common stock held by NL and EKronos. NL held
approximately 4.8 million shares of our common stock at December 31, 2010 and
2011, incliuding 2,800 shares purchased in 2009 for an aggregate purchase price
of less than 5.1 million. Kronos held approximately 121,000 shares at December
31, 2010, which shares Kronos purchased in open market transactions during the
fourth guarter of 2010 for an aggregate purchase price of $2.7 million., During
2011, Kronos purchased an additional 454,000 shares in open market transactions
for an aggregate purchase price of $12.6 million, and at December 31, 2011
Kronos held an aggregate of 575,000 shares of our common stock. Under Delaware
Corporation Law, 100% (and not the proportionate interest) of a parent
company's shares held by a majority-owned subsidiary of the parent is
considered to be treasury stock for wvoting purposes. As a result, our common
shares outstanding for financial repeorting purposes differ from those
outstanding for legal purposes.

Freferred stock. Our outstanding preferred stock consists of 5,000
shares of our Series A Preferred Stock having a liguidation preference of
$133,466.75 per share, or an aggregate liquidation preference of $667.3
million. The outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock are held by
Contran and represent all of the shares of Series A Preferred Stock we are
authcrized to issue. The preferred stock has a par value of $.01 per share
and pays a non-cumulative cash dividend at an annual rate of 6% of the
aggregate liguidation preference only when authorized and declared by our
board of directors. The shares of Series A Preferred Stock are non-
convertible, and the shares do not carry any redemption or call features
(either at our coption or the option of the holder). & holder of the Series A
shares does not have any voting rights, except in limited circumstances, and
is not entitled to a preferential dividend right that is senior to our shares
of common stock. Upon the ligquidation, dissclution or winding up of our
affairs, a holder of the Series A shares is entitled to be paid a liquidation
preference of $133,466.75 per share, plus an amount (if any) equal to any
declared but unpaid dividends, before any distribution of assets is made to
holders of our common stock. Through December 31, 2011, we have not declared
any dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock since its issuance prior to
2009.

Valhi stock options and restricted stock. We have an incentive stock
option plan that provides for the discretionary grant of, among other things
since its five-year extension, nongualified stock options, restricted common
stock, stock awards and stock appreciation rights. We may issue up to 5
million shares of our common stock pursuant to this plan. We grant options at
the fair market value on the date of grant. The options generally wvest ratably
over a five-year period beginning one year from the date of grant and expire 10
vears from the date of grant. If we grant restricted stock, it is generally
forfeitable unless certain periocds of employment are completed. We had no
cutstanding stock options at December 31, 2011,

In February 2012, our beoard of directors voted to replace the existing
long-term incentive plan with a new plan that would provide for the award of
stock to our board of directors and up to a maximum of 200,000 shares could be
awarded. The new plan is subject to shareholders’ approval at our May 2012
shareholder meeting.

Stock option plans of subsidiaries. NL and CompX maintain plans which
provide for the grant of options to purchase their common stocks. Provisions
of these plans vary by company. There are no outstanding options to purchase
NL or Kroneos common stock at December 31, 2011. At December 31, 2011 CompX
had 2,000 options outstanding at an exercise price of $14.30 per share.



Earnings per share. Basic earnings per share of common stock is based
upon the weighted average number of ocur common shares actually outstanding
during each period. Diluted earnings per share of common stock includes the
impact of our outstanding dilutive stock options as well as the dilutive
effect, if any, of diluted earnings per share reported by Kronos, NL or CompX.
The dilutive effect of dilutive earnings per share for Krones, NL and CompX in
2002, 2010 and 2011 was not significant. The dilutive impact of stock options
cutstanding was 3,333 shares during 2009. A reconciliation of the numerator
used in the calculation of earnings (loss) per share is presented in the
following table:

Years ended December 31,
2009 2010 2011
{In millions)

Net income (loss) attributable to
Valhi steockholders 5{34.2) 5 50.3 £217.5

Eguity adjustment - _t2.1) -

Adijusted net income (loss)
attributable te Valhi stockholders $i{34.2) 5 48.2 $217.5

The $2.1 million eguity adjustment attributable to Valhi stockholders in
2010 is discussed in Hote 17,



Accumulated other comprehensive iIncome (loss). Accumulated other
comprehensive income attributable to Valhi stockholders comprises changes in
equity as presented in the table below. Amounts in 2011 attributable to the
Kronos common stock sale relate to the reclassification between accumulated
other comprehensive income and additional paid-in capital following the
reduction in our ownership interest in Kronos discussed in Mote 3.

Years ended December 31,
2009 2010 2011
{In millions)

Aoccumulated other comprehensive income
{net of tax):
Marketable securities:

Balance at beginning of year 5 4.3 3 9.0 s 14.8
Other comprehensive income (loss) 4.7 __ 5.8 (8.2)
Balance at end of year 5 9.0 $ 146 6.4
Currency translation:

Balance at beginning of year § 30.9 $ 50.3 § 59.2
Other comprehensive income (loss) 19.4 (.1) (21.7)
Kronos commen stock sale - 8.0 -

Balance at end of year 5 _50.3 § 59,2 5_ 37.5

Defined benefit pension plans:
Balance at beginning of year $ (88.1} 5 (86.1) s (55.8)
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Amorcization of prior service cost and net
losses included in net periodic pension

cost 4.9 4.2 4.0

Net actuarial gain {loss) arising during

year 2.2 (6.5) (16.8)
Flan amendment - (2.0} -
Kronos common stock sale - 10.8 -
Transfer of Medite pension plan _.1z2.3 - -
Balance at end of year 5. (86, 1) 5 _(53.8} $ _(72.6)

OPEBE plans:

Balance at beginning of vear 5 {.1] s 3.6 = 7.2

Ocher comprehensive income (loss):
Amortization of prior service credit and net
losses included in net periodic OPEBE

cost - [.4] {.5)
Net actuarial gain (loss) arising
during year .6 {1.3) (1.3)
Flan amendment 3.1 5.1 -
Kronos common stock sale - .2 -
Balance at end of year § 3.6 5 7.2 5 5.4
Total accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss):
Balance at beginning of year $ (51,00 5 (3.2) § 21.2
Other comprehensive income ({(loss) 34.9 4.8 (44.5)
Kronos common stock sale - 1%.8 -
Transfer of Medite pensicn plan 12.9 - -
Balance at end of year $_.13.2] 5 21.2 & (23,3)
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Note 15 - Other income, net:

Years ended December 31,
2005 2010 2011
{(In millions)

Securities earnings:

Dividends and interest 526.3 526.0 $29.2
Securities transactions, net .5 .3 (.6)
Total 26.8 26.3 28.6
Equity in joint wventure earnings 11.1) (.4} [.5)
Insurance recoveries 4.6 rg.8 16.9
Currency transactions, net 9.7 7.4 3.4
Disposal of property and eguipment, net (1.2} (1.8) (.9)
Patent litigation settlement gain - - 7.5
Litigaticn settlement gains 23.1 6.3 -
Gain on sale of business 5.3 - -
Other, net 1.5 _ 1.3 1.3
Total $69.7 $58.5 $56.9

Dividends and interast income includes distributions from The
Amalgamated Sugar Company LLC of $25.4 million in each of 200%, 2010 and 2011.
See Mote 4,

Insurance recoveries in 2009 relate to amounts NL received from
certain of its former insurance carriers, and relate principally te the
recovery of prior lead pigment and asbestos litigation defense costs incurred
by us. We have agreements with two former insurance carriers pursuant to
which the carriers reimburse us for a portion of our future lead pigment
litigation defense costs, and one such carrier reimburses us for a portion of
our future asbestos litigation defense costs. We are not able te determine
how much we will ultimately recover from these carriers for defense costs
incurred by us because of certain issues that arise regarding which defense
costs gualify for reimbursement. In September 2011 we reached a settlement
with one of our former insurance carriers in which they agreed to reimburse NL
for a portion of its ©past lead pigment litigation defense costs,
Substantially all of the insurance recoveries we recognized in 2011 relates to
this settlement. In addition, a substantial portien of the insurance
recoveries we recognized in 2010 relates to the NL litigation settlement
discussed in Note 17.

While we continue to seek additional insurance recoveries for lead
pigment and asbestos litigation matters, we do not know the extent to which we
will be s=successful in cobtaining additional reimbursement for either defense
costs or indemnity. Any additicnal insurance recoveries would be receognized
when the receipt is probable and the amount is determinable. See HNote 17.

The gain on the CompX patent litigation settlement was recognized in the
first guarter of 2011 and is discussed in Note 17.

In 2005, certain vreal property NL owned that is subject to
envircnmental remediation was taken from us in a condemnation proceeding by a
governmental authority in New Jersey. The condemnation proceeds, the adequacy
of which we disputed, were placed into escrow with a court in HNew Jersey.
Because the funds were in escrow with the court and were beyond our control,
we never gave recognition to such condemnation proceeds for financial
reporting purposes. In October 2008 we reached a definitive settlement
agreement with such governmental authority and a real estate developer, among
others, pursuant to which, among other things, we would receive certain
agreed-upon amounts in satisfaction of our claim to just compensation for the
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taking of our property in the condemnation proceeding at thres separate
clogings, and we would be indemnified against certain environmental
liabilities related te such property, in exchange for the release of our
eqgquitable lien on specified portions of the property at each closing. At the
initial October 2008 closing, we received cash plus a promissory note in the
amount of $15.0 million in exchange for the release of our eguitable lien on a
portion of the property. The 515.0 million promissory note bore interest at
LIBOR plus 2.75%, with interest payable monthly and all principal due nc later
than October 2011. In October 2011, we collected the full $15.0 million due
to us. In April 2009, the second closing was completed, pursuant to which we

received an aggregate of $11.8 mwillion in cash. The agreement calls for a
third and final closing that is subject to, among other things, our receipt of
an additional payment. The timing of when the final closing will occur is

presencly not determinable.

For financial reporting purposes, we have accounted for the aggregate
consideration received in the 200% closing of the reinstated sectlement
agreement by the full accrual method of accounting for real estate sales
{since the settlement agreement arose out of a dispute concerning the adeguacy
of the condemnation proceeds for our former real property in New Jersey).
Under this method, we recognized a pre-tax gain in the second quarter of 2009
of approximately $11.1 million. Similarly, the cash consideration NL received
at the cleosings is reflected as an investing activity in our Consclidated
Statement of Cash Flows. Our carrying value of the remaining portion of this
property, attributable to the portion of the property from which our eguitable
lien would be released in the third closing, was approximately 3.7 million at
December 31, 2011.

Litigation settlement gains of $6.3 million, consist of $4.0 milliom
related to an additional recovery of past envircomental remediation and
related legal costs and §2.3 million related to a reduction in our accrued
environmental remediation and legal settlement costs resulting from another
potentially responsible party’'s agreement to indemnify us. We continue to
monitor sites for which such potencially responsible party is obligated to
indemnify us.

We provided certain research, laboratory and quality control services
within and outside the sweetener industry for The Amalgamated Sugar Company
LLC and others. In January 2009, we sold our research, laboratory and quality
control business to the LLC for an aggregate sales price of 5§7.5 million,
consisting of $6.7 million in cash paid at closing, $500,000 paid in February
2010 and $250,000 paid in February 2011. The amounts owed to us in 2010 and
2011 did not bear interest, and we recognized these amounts at their aggregate
net present value of approximately $.7 million. We recognized a pre-tax gain
of $6.3 million from the sale of this business. The revenues, pre-tax income
and total assets of the operations seold are not material in any period
presented.

Note 16 - Related party transactions:

We may be deemed to be contrelled by Mr. Harold C. Simmons., See MNote 1.
We and other entities that may be deemed to be controlled by or affiliated with
Mr. Simmons sometimes engage in  (a)  intercorporate transactions such as
guarantees, management and expense sharing arrangements, shared fee
arrangements, joint ventures, partnerships, loans, options, advances of funds
on open account, and sales, leases and exchanges of assets, including
securities issued by both related and unrelated parties, and (b} common
investment and acgquisition strategies, business combinations, reorganizations,
recapitalizations, securities repurchases, and purchases and sales [and other
acguisitions and dispositions) of subsidiaries, divisions or other business
units. These transactions have involved both related and unrelated parties and
have included transacticns which resulted in the acquisition by one related
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parcy of a publicly-held noncontrolling eguity interest in another related
party. We periodically consider, review and evaluate, and understand that
Contran and related entities consider, review and evaluate such transactions.
Depending upon the business, tax and other objectives then relevant, it is
possible we might be a party to one or more such transactions in the future.

From time to time, we will have loans and advances outstanding between
us and various related parties, including Contran, pursuant to term and demand
notes. We generally enter into these loans and advances for cash management
purposes. When we loan funds to related parties, we are generally able to earn
a higher rate of return on the loan than we would earn if we invested the funds
in cther instruments. While certain of these loans may be of a lesser credit
guality than cash eguivalent instruments otherwise available to us, we helieve
we have evaluated the credit risks involved and appropriately reflect those
credit risks in the terms of the applicable loans. When we borrow from
related parties, we are generally able to pay a lower rate of interest chan we
would pay if we borrowed from unrelated parties.

In December 2011, we entered into an unsecured revolving demand
promissory note with Contran whereby we agreed to loan Contran up to 530
million. Our loan te Contran bears interest at prime plus 3.0% (6.25% at
December 31, 2011), payable guarterly, with all principal due on demand, but
in any event no earlier than December 31, 2013. The amount of our outstanding
lpans to Contran at any time is at our discretion. As of December 31, 2011,
we had loans outstanding to Contran of $11.2 millien. Interest income oSN our
loan to Contran was 536,000 in 2011,

We also engaged in related party leoans, as discussed in HNote 9.
Interest expense related to our borrowings from Contran was 3.7 million in
2008, $3.% million in 2010 and $.5 million in 2011. Interest expense related
te CompX's note payable to TFMC (a subsidiary of TIMET) was 5.8 million in
2009, 5.6 million in 2010 and 5.5 million in 2011.

Under the terms of various intercorporate services agreements ("ISEsS") we
enter inte with Contran, employees of Contran provide us certain management,
cax planning, financial and administrative services on a fee basis. Such
charges are based upon estimates of the time devoted by the Contran employees
to cur affairs, and the compensation and other expenses associated with those
persons. Because of the large number of companies affiliated with Contran, we
believe we benefit from cost savings and economies of scale gained by not
having certain management, financial and administrative staffs duplicated at
all of our subsidiaries, thus allowing certain Contran employees to provide
services to multiple companies but only be compensated by Contran. The net
ISk fees charged to us by Contran and approved by the independent members of
the applicable board of directors aggregated 5$23.7 million in 2009, $25.1
million in 2010 and $27.1 mwillion in 2011. These agreements are renewed
annually, and we expect to pay a net amount of $32.0 million under the ISA
during 2012.

Tall Pines Insurance Company and EWI RE, Inc. provide for or broker
certain insurance or reinsurance policies for Contran and certain of its
subsidiaries and affiliates, including us. Tall Pines and EWI are our
subsidiaries. Consistent with insurance industry practices, Tall Fines and EWI
receive commissions from the insurance and reinsurance underwriters and/or
assess feesz for the policies that they provide or broker to us. Tall Pines
purchases reinsurance for substantially all of the risks it underwrites from
third party insurance carriers with an A.M. Best Company rating of generally at
least A- (Excellent]. We expect these relationships with Tall Pines and EWI
will continue in 2012.

Contran and certain of its subsidiaries and affiliates, including us,
purchase certain of their insurance policies as a group, with the costs of the
jointly-owned policies being apportioned among the participating companies.
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With respect to some of these policies, it is possible that unusually large
losses incurred by one or more insureds during a given policy peried could
leave the other participating companies without adequate coverage under that
policy for the balance of the policy period. As a result, we and Contran have
entered intec a loss sharing agreement under which any uninsured loss is shared
by those entities who have submitted claims under the relevant policy. We
believe the benefits in the form of reduced premiums and broader coverage
associated with the group coverage for such policies justifies the risk
associated with the potential of any uninsured loss.

BMI, among other things, provides utility services (primarily water
distribution, maintenance of a common electrical facility and sewage disposal
monitering) teo TIMET and other manufacturers within an industrial complex
located in HNewvada. The other owners of BMI are generally the other
manufacturers located within the complex. BMI provides power transmission and
sewer services on a cost reimbursement basis, similar to a cooperative, while
water delivery is currently provided at the same rates as are charged by BMI
to an unrelated third party. BAmounts paid by TIMET to BMI for these utility
services were 52.2 million in 200%, 351.4 miliion in 2010 and $1.6 million in
2011. TIMET alsc paid BMI an electrical facilities upgrade fee of 5.8 million
in 2009.

Additionally, BMI maintains insurance coverage for common area
environmental remediation actiwvities within the industrial complex located in
Henderscon, Mevada with participation from numercus manufacturers within the
industrial complex, including TIMET. In December 2011, after approval by
TIMET's independent members of its board of directors, TIMET sold a portion of
its excess insurance reserve limit under such insurance policy to BMI for 5$2.B
million. As consideration for the sale, BMI paid TIMET 31.4 million in cash
and issued a $1.4 million promissory note to TIMET that bears interest at 3%
per annum with the balance due no later than December 2012. The terms of the
sale were comparable with then-recent negotiations for a similar transaction
between BMI and other unrelated third party manufacturers within the same
industrial complex, and BMI completed such transaction with the other
unrelated third party in January 2012 on those comparable terms. Additionally,
if at any time cthrough December 2013 BMI were to purchase excess insurance
limits from any of the other manufacturers within the industrial complex at a
price per dollar of coverage in excess of the price per dollar of coverage
inherent in TIMET's sale to BMI, BMI is cbligated to pay TIMET such excess
price per dollar of coverage as additional consideration for our sale. TIMET
would recognize any such additional consideration only upon realization.

WCS is reguired to provide certain financial assurances to the Texas
government agencies with respect to certain decommissioning obligations
relaced to the WCS' facility in West Texas. See HNote 17. Such financial
assurances may be provided by wvariocus means. We and certain of our affiliates
have provided or assisted WCS with providing such financial assurance, as
specified below:

* During 2008, 2010 and 2011, a subsidiary of Contran guaranteed certain
of WCS' specified decommissicning ckligations as it relates to its RCRA
and TSCA licenses and permits, currently estimated at £5.5 millien. Such
Contran subsidiary was eligible to provide this guarantee because it met

certain specified financial tests. The ckligations weould arise only
upcn a closure of cur West Texas facility and WCS' failure to perform
the reguired decommissioning activities. We do not currently expect

that such subsidiary will be reguired to perform under such guarantee
for the foreseeable future.

¢ During 2009, 2010 and 2011, Contran issued a letter of credit (*LOCY)
under its bank credit facility to the State of Texas related to
specified decommissioning obligations associated with WCS' byproduct
facility. At December 31, 2011, the amount of such LOC was 55.7
million. The LOC would only be drawn down upon the closure of the
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byproduct facility and WCs' failure to perform the reguired
decommissioning activities, We do not currently expect that the LOC
will have to be drawn down for the foreseeable future. We agreed to
reimburse Contran for the costs of providing the LOC and incurred costs
of $.2 million in 2002 and $.1 million in each of 2010 and 2011.

During 2011, a subsidiary of Contran pledged certain of its marketable
securities as collateral for the benefit of the state of Texas related
to specified decommissioning obligations associated with WCS' LLRW
disposal facilicies, currently estimated at %45.5 millien. The
marketable securities would eonly be liguidated upon a closure of our
West Texas facility and WCS' failure te perform the reguired
decommissioning activities. We do not currently expect that such
marketable securities will be required to be liguidated for the
foreseeable future. Such marketable securities would be released in
November 2016 upon WCS* payment of approximately %$119.5 million into a
collateral trust, as discussed in Note 17. We have agreed to pay a
collateral fee to such Contran subsidiary for its pledge of collateral,
and such fee was 5.1 million in 2011.

During 201, Contran, Valhi and certain other subsidiaries of Contran
guaranteed WCS' obligations wunder the $20.0 million surety bond
discussed in Note 17. The obligations would arise upon WCS’ failure to
make the required guarterly payments into the surety bond trust., We do
not currently expect that Contran, WValhi and such other Contran
subsidiaries will be required to perform under such guarantee for the

foreseeable future.
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Receivables from and payables to affiliates are summarized in the table
below.

December 31,
2010 2011
{In millions}

Current receivables from affiliates:

Louisiana Pigment Company, L.P., net 5§ - 5 29.6
Other - -1 -
Total § .1 5 29.6
Current payables to atfiliates:
Louisiana Pigment Company, L.P. 5 7.4 § -
Contran:
Income taxes, net 4.3 .1
Trade items 17.4 21.1
TIMET 1.0 -
Other .1 .2
Total $ 30.2 5.21.4
Noncurrent note receivable from affiliate
Valhi - Contran note receivable s - 5 11.2
Note payabkle to affiliate included in
long-term debt
CompX TIMET note pavable 5 42.2 5 22.2

Amounts payable to LPC are generally for the purchase of Ti0;, while
amounts receivable from LPC are generally from the sale of feedstock ore, see
Hote 7. Purchases of TiQ, from LPC were 5121.1 millien in 2009, $§133.7
millienn in 2010 and 5145.0 million in 2011. Sales of feedstock ore to LPC
were nil in 20092, $5.2 million in 2010 and 593.0 million imn 2011,
Substantially all of the Contran trade payables relates to the ISA fees charged
to WCS by Contran, which WCES has not paid Contran since 2001. See Note 9 for
more information on the CompX note payable to TIMET, on the WValhi credit
facilicy with Contran and the promissory notes payable to Contran.

Note 17 - Commitments and contingencies:
Lead pigment litigation - NL

HL's former operations included the manufacture of lead pigments for use

in paint and lead-based paint. NL, other former manufacturers of lead
pigments for use in paint and lead-based paint (together, the *former pigment
manufacturers”), and the Lead Industries Association ("LIA"}, which

discontinued business operations in 2002, have been named as defendants in
various legal proceedings seeking damages for personal injury, property damage
and governmental expenditures allegedly caused by the use of lead-based
paints. Certain of these actions have been filed by or on behalf of states,
counties, cities or their public housing authorities and school districts, and
cercain others have been asserted as class actions. These lawsuits seek
recovery under a variety of theories, including publie and private nuisance,
negligent product design, negligent failure to warn, strict liability, breach
of warranty, conspiracy/concert of action, aiding and abetting, enterprise
liability, market share or risk contribution liability, intentional tort,
fraud and misrepresentation, viclations of state consumer protection stcatutes,
supplier negligence and similar claims.

The plaintiffs in these actions generally seek to impose on the
defendants responsibility for lead paint abatement and health concerns
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associated with the use of lead-based paints, including damages for personal
injury, contribution and/or indemnification for medical expenses, medical
monitoring expenses and costs for educational programs. To the extent the
plaintiffs seek compensatory or punitive damages in these actions, such
damages are generally unspecified. In some cases, the damages are unspecified
pursuant to the reguirements of applicable state law. A& number of cases are
inactive or have been dismissed or withdrawn. Most of the remaining cases are
in wvarious pre-trial stages. Some are on appeal following dismissal or
summary judgment rulings in faveor of either the defendants or the plaintiffs,
In addition, various other cases (in which we are not a defendant) are pending
that seek recovery for injury allegedly caused by lead pigment and lead-based
paint. Although NL is not a defendant in these other cases, the outcome of
these cases may have an impact on cases that might be filed against NL in the
future.

We believe that these actions are without merit, and we intend to
continue to deny all allegations of wrongdoing and liabkility and to defend
against all actions vigorocusly. We do not believe it is probable that we have
incurred any liability with respect to all of the lead pigment litigation
cases to which we are a party, and liability to us that may result, if any, in
this regard cannot be reasonably estimated, because:

# NL has never settled any of the market share, risk contribution,
intentional tort, fraud, nuisance, supplier negligence, breach of
warranty, conspiracy, misrepresentation, aiding and abetting, enterprise
liability, or statutory cases,

* no final, non-appealable adverse verdicts have ever been entered against
NL, and

¢ NL has never ultimately been found liable with respect to any such
litigation matters.

Accordingly, we have not accrued any amounts for any of the pending lsad
pigment and lead-based paint litigation cases. New cases may continue to be
filed against us. We cannot assure you that we will not incur liability in
the future in respect of any of the pending or possible litigation in view of
the inherent uncertainties involved in court and jury rulings. The resclution
of any of these cases could result in recognition of a loss contingency
accrual that could have a material adverse impact on our net income for the
interim or annual pericd during which such liability is recognized and a
material adverse impact on our consclidated financial condition and liguidity.

Envircnmental matters and related litigation

Our operations are governed by wvariocus environmental laws and
regulations. Certain of our businesses are and have bheen engaged in the
handling, manufacture or use of substances or compounds that may be considered
toxic or hazardous within the meaning of applicable environmental laws and
regulations. As with other companies engaged in similar businesses, certain
of our past and current operations and products have the potential teo cause
environmental or other damage. We have implemented and continue to implementc
various policies and programs in an effort to minimize these risks. Our
policy is to maintain compliance with applicable environmental laws and
regulaticns at all of our plants and to strive to improve environmental
performance. From time to time, we may be subject to environmental regulatory
enforcement wunder U.5., and non-U.5. statutes, the resolution of which
typically involves the establishment of compliance programs. It is possibkle
that future developments, such as stricter reguirements of environmental laws
and enforcement policies, could adversely affect our production, handling,
use, storage, transportacion, sale or disposal of such substances. We believe
that all of our facilities are in substantial compliance with applicable
environmental laws.



Certain properties and facilities wused in our former operations,
including divested primary and secondary lead smelters and former mining
locations, are the subject of civil litigation, administrative proceedings or
investigations arising under federal and state environmental laws and common
law. Additionally, in connection with past operating practices, we are
currently involved as a defendant, potentially responsible party (“PRP*) or
both, pursuant to the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and
Liability Act, as amended by the Superfund BEmendments and Reauthorization Act
("CERCLA"), and similar state laws in various governmental and private actions
associated with waste disposal sites, mining locations, and facilities we or
ocur predecessors currently or previously owned, operated cor were used by us or
our subsidiaries, or their predecessors, certain of which are on the United
States Environmental Protection Agency’s (“EPA") Superfund National Priorities
List or similar state lists. These proceedings seek cleanup costs, damages
for personal injury or property damage and/or damages for injury to natural
resources. Certain of these proceedings involve claims £for substantial
amounts. Although we may be jointly and severally liable for these costs, in
most cases we are only one of & number of PRPs who may also be jointly and
severally liable, and among whom costs may be shared or allocated. In
addition, we are alsoc a party to a number of personal injury lawsuits filed in
various Jjurisdictions alleging claims related teo environmental conditions
alleged to have resulted from our operations.

Chligations associated with environmental remediation and related
matters are difficult to assess and estimate for numercus reasons including
the:

* complexity and differing interpretations of governmental regulations,

* number of PRPs and their ability or willingness to fund such allocation
of costs,

* financial capabilities of the PRPs and the allocation of costs among
them,

¢ solvency of other PRPs,

* multiplicity of possible solutions,

* number of years of investigatory, remedial and monitoring activity
reguired,

* uncertainty over the extent, if any, to which our former operations
might have contributed to the conditions allegedly giving rise to such
personal injury, property damage, natural rescurce and related claims,
and

*+ number of years between former operations and notice of claims and
lack of information and documents about the former operations.

In addition, the imposition of more stringent standards or regquirements
under envircnmental laws or regulations, new developments or changes regarding
site cleanup costs or allocation of costs among PRPs, solvency of other PREs,
the results of future testing and analysis undertaken with respect to certain
sites or a determination that we are potentially responsible for the release
of hazardous substances at other sites, could cause our expenditures to exceed
ocur current estcimates. We cannot assure you that actual costs will not exceed
accrued amounts or the upper end cf the range for sites for which estimates
have been made, and we cannot assure you that costs will not be incurred for
sites where no estimates presently can be made, Further, additional
environmental and related matters may arise in the future. If we were to
incur any future liability, this could have a material adverse effect on our
conscolidated financial statements, results of operations and liguidity.

We record liabkilities related to environmental remediation and related
matters when estimated future expenditures are probable and reascnably
estimable. We adjust such accruals as further information becomes available
to us or as circumstances change. Unless the amounts and timing of such
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estimated future expenditures are fixed and reascnably determinable, we
generally do not discount estimated future expenditures tec their present value
due to the uncertainty of the timing of the pay out. We recognize recoveries
of costs from other parties, if any, as assets when their receipt is deemed
probable. At December 31, 2010 and 2011, we have not recognized any
receivables for recoveries.

We do net know and cannot estimate the exact time frame over which we
will make payments for our accrued environmental and related costs, The
timing of payments depends upon a number of factors, including but not limited
te the timing of the actual remediation process; which in turn depends on
facters outside of cur control. At each balance sheet date, we estimate the
amount of our accrued environmental and related costs which we expect to pay
within the next cwelve months, and we classify this estimate as a current
liability. We classify the remaining accrued environmental costs as a
noncurrent liability.

Changes in the accrued environmental remediaticn and related costs
during 2009, 2010 and 2011 are presented in the table below. Of the 5$11.3
million net additions charged to expense in 2011, 55.6 million relates to
certain payments which have been discounted to their present value because the
Liming and amounts of such payments are fixed and determinable., Such payments
aggregate 5$6.0 million on an undiscounted basis (52.0 million due in 2012 and
51.0 millicn due in each of 2013 through 2016) and were discounted to present
value wusing a 23.0% discount rate. The aggregate $.4 million discount,
including $86,000 in 2011, is being charged to expense using the interest
method from the third guarter of 2011 chrough 2016,

Years ended December 31,
2009 2010 2011
{(In millieons)

Balance at the beginning of the year 5 82,9 5 4B.9 5 42,3
Bdditions charged to expense, net 5.4 .4 11.3
Settlement agreement - {2.0) -
Payments, net {9.5) {5.0) (10.4)
Changes in currency exchange rates ) .1 - -
Balance at the end of the vear $ 48.9 5 42.3 £ 43.2

Amounts recognized in cur Consolidated
Balance Sheet at the end of the year:

Current liabilities 5 11.0 5 9.7 § B.6

Noncurrent liabilities 37.9 2.6 34.6

Total 5 48,5 $ 42.3 S 43,2
NL - On a guarterly basis, NL evaluates the potential range of our

liabilicy for environmental remediation and related costs at sites where it has
been named as a PRP or defendant, including sites for which its wholly-owned
environmental management subsidiary, NL Environmental Management Services,
Inc., ({("E¥MS"), has contractually assumed its obligations. At December 31,
2011, NL had accrued apprcoximately 541 million related to approximately 50
s5ites associated with remediation and related matters that it believes are at
the present time and/or in their current phase reasonably estimable. The upper
end of the range of reascnably possible costs to NL for remediation and related
matters for which we beliewve it is possible to estimate costs is approximately
£72 millicn, including the amount currently acerued. ©Other than as indicated
above, these accruals have not been discounted teo present value.

NL believes that it i1s not possible to estimate the range of costs for
certain sites. At December 31, 2011, there were approximately 5 sites for
which NL is not currently able to estimate a range of costs. For these sites,
generally the investigation is in the early stages, and NL is wunable to
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determine whether or not it actually had any association with the site, the
nature of our responsibility, if any, for the contamination at the site and
the extent of contamination at and cost to remediate the site. The timing and
availability of information on these sites is dependent on events outside of
NL's control, such as when the party alleging liability provides information
to NL. At certain of these previously inactive sites, NL has received general
and special notices of liability from the EPA and/or state agencies alleging
that NL, sometimes with other PRPs, are liable for past and future costs of
remediating environmental contamination allegedly caused by former operations.
These notifications may assert that we, along with any other alleged PRPs, are
liable fer past and/or future clean-up costs. As further information becomes
available to us for any of these sites which would allow us to estimate a
range of costs, we would at that time adjust our accruals. Any such
adjustment could result in the recognition of an accrual that would have a
material effect on our consolidated financial statements, results of
cperations and liguidity.

Other - We have also accrued approximately 3$1.5 million at December
31, 2011 for other environmental cleanup matters. This accrual is near the
upper end of the range of our estimate of reasonably possible costs for such
matters.

Insurance coverage claims

We are involved in certain legal proceedings with a number of our former
insurance carriers regarding the nature and extent of the carriers’
obligations to wus under insurance pelicies with respect to certain lead
pigment and asbestos lawsuits., The issue of whether insurance coverage for
defense costs or indemnity or both will be found to exist for our lead pigment
and asbestos litigation depends upon a variety of factors and we cannot assure
yvou that such insurance coverage will be available.

We have agreements with three former insurance carriers pursuant to
which the carriers reimburse us for a portion of our future lead pigment
litigation defense costs, and cne such carrier reimburses us for a portion of
our future ashestos litigation defense costs. We are not able to determine
how much we will ultimately recover from these carriers for defense casts
incurred by us because of certain issues that arise regarding which defense

costs gualify for reimbursement. While we continue to seek additional
insurance recoveries, we do not know if we will be successful in obtaining
reimbursement for either defense costs or indemnity. Accordingly, we

recognize insurance recoveries in income only when the receipt of the recovery
is probable and we are able to reasonably estimate the amount of the recovery.

In Cctober 2005 NL was served with a complaint in OneBeacon American
Insurance Company v. NL Industries, Inc., et al. (Supreme Court of the State
of HNew York, County of New York, Index No. 603429-05), The plaintiff, a
former insurance carrier, sought a declaratery judgment of its obligations to
us under insurance policies issued to us by the plaintiff’s predecessor with
respect to certain lead pigment lawsuits filed against us. In March 2006, the
trial court denied our motion to dismiss. In April 2006, we filed a notice of
appeal of the trial court’s ruling, and in September 2007, the Supreme Court -
Appellate Division (First Department) reversed and ordered that the OneBeacon
complaint be dismissed. The Appellate Division did not dismiss the
counterclaims and cross claims.

In February 2006, NL was served with a complaint in Certain Underwriters

at Lloyds, London v. Millennium Holdings LLC et al. ({Supreme Court of the

tate of New York, County of New York, Index No. 06/60026). The plaintiff, a

former insurance carrier of ours, scught & declaratory judgment of its

obligations to us under insurance policies issued to us by the plaintiff with
regpect to certain lead pigment lawsuits.
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In December 2008, NL reached partial settlements with the plaintiffs in
the two cases discussed above, pursuant to which the two former insurance
carriers agreed to pay us an aggregate of approximately $7.2 million in
settlement of certain counter-claims related to past lead pigment and ashbestos
defense costs. We received these funds from the carriers in January 2009, In
connection with these partial settlements, we agreed to dismiss the case
capticned NL Industries, Inc. v. OneBeacon America Insurance Company, et al.
(Discrict Court for Dallas County, Texas, Case No. 05-11347}, and in January
2008 we filed a notice of non-suit without prejudice in that matter. In March
2010, we filed a complaint in NL Industries, Inc. v. OneBeacon America
Insurance Company {(Supreme Court of the State of New York, County of New York,
Index No. 108B8B1-2008), to address the remaining claims from cthe New York
state cases. This case is proceeding in the trial courtc.

Other litigation

NL - In June 2010, the case captioned Contran Corporation, et al. v.
Terry &. Casey, et al. (Case No. 07-04855, 192" Judicial District Court,
Dallas County, Texas) was dismissed with prejudice in accordance with the
previously-reported settlement agreement. In May 2010, pursuant to such
agreement, we paid $26.0 million in cash and we issued an $18.0 million
promissory note. The note bears interest, payable gquarterly, at the prime
rate, with $%.0 million principal amount payable in December 2011 and the
remaining $9.0 million due in December 2012, The note is collateralized by
shares of FKronos and CompX common stock, owned by NL, having an aggregate
market walue of at least 200% of the outstanding principal amount of the
promissory note. Under certain ceonditions, we have agreed to prepay up to
54.0 million principal amount of such indebtedness.

For financial reporting purposes, we classified 532.2 million of the
aggregate amount payable under the settlement agreement as a litigation
settlement expense in respect of certain claims made by plaintiffs in the

litigation. We had insurance coverage for a portion of such litigation
settlement, and a substantial portion of the insurance recoveries we
recognized in the first gquarter of 2010 relates to such coverage. With

respect to the other claim of the plaintiffs as it relates to the repurchase
of their EMS noncontrolling interest, the resulting $2.1 million increase over
our previous estimate of such payment is accounted for as a reduction in
additional paid-in capital in accordance with GAARP.

NL has been named as a defendant in wvarious lawsuits in several
jurisdictions, alleging perscnal injuries as a result of occupational sxposure
primarily to products manufactured by our former operations containing

asbestos, silica and/or mixed dust. In addition, some plaintiffs allege
exposure to ashestos from working in wvarious facilities previously owned
and/or operated by NL. There are 1,125 of these types of cases pending,

involving a total of approximately 2,350 plaintiffs. In addition, the claims
of approximately 7,700 plaintiffs have been administratively dismissed or
placed on the inactive deocket in Ohioc, Indiana and Texas state courts. We do
not expect these claims will be re-opened unless the plaintiffs meet the
courts’ medical criteria for asbestos-related claims. We have not accrued any
amounts for this litigation because of the uncertainty of liability and
inakility teo reascnably estimate the liability, if any. To date, we have not
been adjudicated liable in any of these matters. Based on information
availakle te us, including:

*» facts concerning historical operations,

« the rate of new claims,
¢+ the number of claims from which we have been dismissed and
¢ our prior experience in the defense of these matters,
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we believe that the range of reasonably possible ocutcomes of these matters
will ke consistent with our historical costs (which are not material).
Furthermore, we do not expect any reasonably possible outcome would involwve
amounts material to our consolidated financial position, results of operations
or liguidity. We have sought and will continue to vigorously seek, dismissal
and/or a finding of no liakility from each claim. In addition, from time to
time, we have received notices regarding asbestos or silica claims purporting
to be brought against former subsidiaries, including notices provided to
insurers with which we have entered into settlements extinguishing certain
insurance policies. These insurers may seek indemnification from us.

CompX - CompX 1is invelved, from time to time, in wvarious contractual,
product liability, patent (or intellectual property), employment and other
claims and disputes incidental to our business. Prior to March 9, 2011, CompX
was involved in certain patent litigation. In March 2011, CompX entered into
a confidential settlement agreement with respect to that litigation. Under
the terms of the agreement, CompX’'s Canadian subsidiary received approximately
$7.5 million in cash (which was recognized as a patent litigation settlement
gain in the first gquarter of 2011), and CompX agreed to cross-license certain
patents and te withdraw certain legal proceedings against the other party.

Kronos - In March 2010, EKronos was served with two complaints which
were subsequently consclidated as Haley Paint et al. v. E.I. Du Pont de
Nemours and Company, et al. (United States District Court, for the District of
Maryland, Case No. 1:10-cv-00318-RDB). A third plaintiff intervened inte the
current case in July 2011. The defendants include us, E.I. Du Pont de Nemours
& Company, Huntsman International LLC, Millennium Inorganic Chemicals, Inc.
and the National Titanium Dioxide Company Limited (d/bfa Cristal). Plaintiffs
seek to represent a class consisting of all persons and entities that
purchased titanium dioxide in the United States directly from one or more of
the defendants on or after March 1, 2002. The complaint alleges that the
defendants conspired and combined to fix, raise, maintain, and stabilize the
price at which titanium dioxide was sold in the United States and engaged in
other anticompetitive conduct. In May 20190, defendants filed a motion to
dismiss, which plaintiffs opposed. In March 2011, the court denied the motion
to dismiss. The case is proceeding in the trial court. We believe the action
is without merit, have denied all allegations of wrongdeing and liabkility and
intend to defend against the action wvigorously.

Other - In addition to the litigation described above, we and our
affiliates are inveolved in wvarious other environmental, contractual, product
liability, patent (or intellectual property), employment and other claims and
disputes incidental te our present and former businesses., In certain cases, we
have insurance coverage for these items, although we do not expect any
additional material insurance coverage for our environmental claims.

We currently believe that the disposition of all of these wvarious otherx
claims and disputes, individually or in the aggregate, should not have a
material adverse effect on our conscolidated financial position, results of
operations or liguidity beyond the accruals already provided.

Other matters

Concentrations of credit risk - Sales of TiO.; accounted for approximately
90% of our Chemicals Segment’'s sales during each of the years 2009 and 2010
and %2% in 2011, The remaining sales result from the mining and sale of
ilmenite ore (a raw material used in the sulfate pigment production process),
and the manufacture and sale of iron-based water treatment chemicals and
certain titanium chemical products (derived from co-products of the Ti0,
production processes). Ti®, is generally scld to the paint, plastics and
paper industries, Such markets are generally considered “gquality-of-life”
markets whose demand for TiO, is influenced by the relative economic well-
being of the warious geographic regions. We sell Tio, to over 4,000
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customers, with the teop ten customers approximating 28% of net sales in 2009,
27% in 2010 and 30% in 2011, We did not have sales te a single customer
comprising over 10% of our net sales in any of the previcus three years. The
table below shows the approximate percentage of our TiO, sales by volume for
our significant markets, Europe and North America, for the last three years.

2009 2010 2011
Europe 53% 53% 53%
North America 32% 33% 32%

Qur Compeonent Products Segment's products are sold primarily in North
Emerica to original equipment manufacturers. The ten largest customers
accounted for approximately 35% of sales in 2009, 3B% in 2010 and 37% in 2011.
No customer accounted for more than 10% of our sales in 2009, 2010 or 2011.

Operating leases - Our principal Chemicals Segment operating subsidiary
in Germany, Xronos Titan GmbH, leases the land under its Leverkusen TiO,
production facility pursuant to a lease with Bayer AG that expires in 2050. We
own the Leverkusen facility itself, which represents approximately one-third of
our current Ti0, production capacity. This facility is located within Bayer's
extensive manufacturing complex. We periodically establish the amount of rent
for the land lease associated with our Leverkusen facility by agreement with
Bayer for periods of at least two years at a time. The lease agreement
provides for no formula, index or other mechanism to determine changes in the
rent for the land lease; rather, any change in the rent is subject =olely to
pericdic negotiation between Bayer and us. We recognize any change in the rent
based on negotiations as part of lease expense starting from the time such
change is agreed upon by both of us, as any such change in the rent is deemed
"contingent rentals” under GARP, Under a separate supplies and services
agreement expiring in 2012, a majority-owned subsidiary of Bayer provides some
raw materials, including chlorine, auxiliary and operating materials, utilities
and services necessary for us to operate the Leverkusen facility.

We also lease various other manufacturing facilities and eguipment. Some
of the leases contain purchase and/or wvarious term renewal options at fair
market and fair rental values, respectively. In most cases we expect that, in
the normal course of business, such leases will be renewed or replaced by other
leases. Rent expense approximated 512 million in each of 2009% and 2010 and 514
million in 2011. At December 31, 2011, our future minimum payments under
noncancellable operating leases having an initial or remaining term of more
than one year were as follows:

Years ending December 31, Amount
(In millions)

2012 512.8
2013 7.7
2014 4.4
2015 3.3
2016 1.5
2017 and thereafter 17.4

e
|
g

=

Total'™

i“ﬂppraximately $18 million relates to the Leverkusen facility lease.
The minimum commitment amounts for the lease included in the table above for
each year threough the 2050 expiration of the lease are based upon the current
annual rental rate as of December 31, 2011. As discussed above, any change in
the rent is based sclely on negotiations between Bayer and Kronos, and any
such change in the rent is deemed "“contingent rentals* under GAAP which is
excluded from the future minimum lease payments disclosed above.
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Leng-term contracts - OQur Chemicals Segment has long-term supply
contracts that provide for certain of our Ti0; feedstock requirements through
2018, The agreements reguire us to purchase certain minimum guantities of
feedstock with minimum purchase commitments aggregating approximately 5$2.6
billion over the life of the contracts at December 31, 2011. In addition, we
have other long-term supply and service contracts that provide for wvarious raw
materials and services. These agreements reguire us to purchase certain
minimum gquantities or services with minimum purchase commitments aggregating
approximately $87 million at December 31, 2011.

Income taxes - Prior to 200%, NL made certain pro-rata distributions to
its stockholders in the form of shares of Kronos common stock. All of NL's
distributions of Kronos common stock were taxable to NL and NL recognized a
taxakle gain egual to the difference between the fair market wvalue of the
Krones shares distributed on the wvarious dates of distribution and NL's
adjusted tax basis in the shares at the dates of distribution. NL transferred
shares of Kronos common stock to us in satisfaction of the tax liability
related to NL's gain on the transfer or distribution of these shares of Kronos
common stock and the tax liability generated from the use of Kronos shares to
settle the tax liability. To date, we have not paid the liability to Contran
because Contran has not paid the liability to the applicable tax authority.
The income tax liability will become payable to Ceontran, and by Contran to the
applicable tax authority, when the shares of Kronos transferred or distributed
by HL to us are sold or otherwise transferred outside the Contran Tax Group or
in the event of certain restructuring transactions inveolving us. We hawve
recognized deferred income taxes for our investment in Xronos common stock.

We and Contran have agreed toc a policy providing for the allocation of
tax liabilities and tax payments as described in Hote 1. Under applicable
law, we, as well as every other member of the Contran Tax Group, are each
jeintly and severally liable for the aggregate federal income tax liability of
Contran and the other companies included in the Contran Tax Group for all
pericds in which we are included in the Contran Tax Group. Contran has agreed,
however, teo indemnify us for any liakility for income taxes of the Contran Tax
Group in excess of our tax liability in accordance with the tax allocation

policy.

Financial assurance assoclated with Waste Management Segment - Our Waste
Management Segment is required to provide certain financial assurances to the
Texas government agencies with respect to the decommissioning obligations
related to its facility in West Texas. We and certain of our affiliates have
provided or assisted WCS in providing the required financial assurances, see
Wote 16. Other matters related to the financial assurance associated with our
LLEW disposal facilities are discussed below:

* A portion of our reguired financial assurance associated with our LLEW
disposal facilities is in the form of a $20.0 million surety bond
issued by a third-party insurance company on WCS's behalf for the
benefit of the State of Texas. As part of such surety bond, WCE is
regquired to make guarterly cash payments into a collateral trust of
$500,000 starting in the fourth guarter of 2011. At December 31, 2011,
we had made one such §500,000 payment, which is included in noncurrent
restricted cash in our Consclidated Balance Sheet.

. During November of each of 2012 through 2016, WCS is required to make
cash payments inte another collateral ctrust or increase the 520.0
million surety bond discussed above for the benefit of the State of
Texas in an aggregate of $12.35 million, plus an amount for the
estimated increase in the reguired financial assurance amount
associated with normal inflationary cost increases. In addition, in
November 2016 WCS is reguired to make an additicnal cash payment of
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$11%.5 million into this collateral trust. At that point, the
collateral trust would be fully funded, and WCS would expect that it
would only be reguired to make additional cash payments into the
collateral trust to cover normal inflationary cost increases in order
for the trust to remain fully funded. Until such time as WCS makes the
$119.5 million cash payment in November 2016, the aggregate market
value of the marketable securities pledged by a subsidiary of Contran
las discussed in HNote 16} is reguired to be at least a specified
minimum amount. In the event such aggregate market value were to beccme
less than such specified minimum amount, then the Contran subsidiary
would either pledge additional marketable securities sufficient to
cover any market-value deficiency, or WCS would ke reguired to make a
cash payment into the collateral trust to cover such market-value
deficiency.

Hote 18 - Recent accounting pronocuncements:

In May 2011 the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Accounting
Standards Update (“ASU"} 2011-04, Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosure Reguirements in U.S. GAAP and IFRSs. ASU 2011-04
contains technical adjustments and clarifications to more closely align the
U.5. GAAP and International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS") for fair
value and will be effective for our first gquarter 2012 report. We do not
believe the adoption of this standard will have a material effect on our
Consclidated Financial Statements.

In June 2011 the FASB issued ASU 2011-05, Presentation of Comprehensive
Income. ASU 2011-05 eliminates the option of presenting comprehensive income
as a component of the Consclidated Statement of Shareholders’ Eguity and
instead requires comprehensive income to be presented as a component of the
Consclidated Statement of Income or in a separate Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income immediately following the Consolidated Statement of
Income. This standard will be effective for our first guarter 2012 report and
we intend to present our comprehensive income in a separate Consclidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income, the same manner in which we present our
comprehensive income in these Conscolidated Financial Statements.

Addicionally, ASU 2011-05 would have required us to present on the face
of our financial statements the effect of reclassifications out of accumulative
other comprehensive income on the components of net income and other
comprehensive income. However, in December 2011 the FASE issued ASU 2011-12,
Comprehensive Income (Topic 220} : Deferral of the Effective Date for Amendments
to the Presentation of Reclassifications of Items Out of Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income in Accounting Standards Update No. 2011-05. RSU 2011-12
defers the effectiveness for the reguirement to present on the face of our
financial statements the effects of reclassifications out of accumulated other
comprehensive income on the components of net income and other comprehensive
income. Adoption of ASU 2011-05, as amended by ASU 2011-12, will not have a
material effect on our Consclidated Financial Statements.

In September 2011 che FASE issued ASU 2011-08 Testing Goodwill for
Impairment (the revised standard)]. ASU 2011-08 provides the option to first
assess gualitatively whether events or circumstances exist to indicate goodwill
impairment may be present to determine whether further impairment testing is
necessary. This standard will be effective for annual and interim goodwill
testing beginning with our first guarter 2012 report, although early adoption
is permitted. We do not believe the adoption of this standard will have a
material esffect on our Consclidated Financial Statements and we did not avail
curselves of the gualitative goodwill impairment assessment as part of our 2011
annual goodwill impairment analysis which was performed in the third guarter,
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In December 2011 the FASB issued ASU 2011-11 Disclosures about
Offsetting Assets and Liabilities. ASU 2011-11 reguires entities to disclose
both gross information and net information about both instruments and
transactions eligible for offset in the balance sheet and instruments and
transactions subject to an agresment similar to a master netting arrangement.
This standard will be effective for annual and interim periods beginning with
our first guarter 2013 report. We do not believe the adeoption of this standard
will have a material effect on our Conselidated Firancial Statements,

Note 19 - Financial instruments:
The following table summarizes the wvaluation of our short-term

investments and financial instruments by the ASC Topic B20 categories as of
December 31, 2010 and 2011:

Falr Value Measurements

Quoted Significant

Prices in Other Signifiecant
Active Observable Uncbservable
Markets Inputs Inputs
Total (Level 1} {Level 2) (Level 3)

(In millions)

Asget (liability)
December 31, Z2010:
Marketable securities:

Current 5 1.7 5 - s 1.7 g -
Noncurrent 340.4 a7.2 3.2 250.0
Currency forward contracts 6.3 6.3 - -
December 31, 2011:
Marketable securities:
Current § 22.5 5 20.9 5 1.8 5 -
MNoncurrent 354.1 100.3 3.8 250.0
Currency forward contracts (.8) {.8) - -

See Note 4 for information on how we determine fair wvalue of our
marketakle securities.

Certain of our sales generated by our non-U.5. operations are
denominated in U.5. dollars. We periodically use currency forward contracts
to manage a very nominal portion of currency exchange rate risk associated
with trade receivables denominated in a currency other than the holder's
functicnal currency or similar exchange rate risk associated with future
sales. We have not entered inteo these contracts for trading or speculative
purposes in the past, nor do we currently anticipate entering into such
contracts for trading or speculative purposes in the future. Derivatives used
toe hedge forecasted transactions and specific cash flows associated with
financial assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the U.S.
dollar and which meet the criteria for hedge accounting are designated as cash
flow hedges. Consequently, the effective portion of gains and losses is
deferred as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income and is
recognized in earnings at the time the hedged item affects earnings.
Contracts that do not meet the criteria for hedge accounting are marked-to-
market at each balance sheet date with any resulting gain or loss recognized
in income currently as part of net currency transactions. The fair value of
the currency forward contracts is determined using Level 1 inputs based on the
currency spet forward rates guoted by banks or currency dealers.
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At December 31, 2011, our Chemicals Segment had currency forward
contracts to exchange an aggregate of $48.0 million for an eguivalent value of
Canadian dollars at exchange rates ranging from Cdn. $.5969 to Cdn. $1.0283
per U.S. dellar. These contracts with Wells Fargo Bank, National Association,
mature from January 2012 through December 2012 at a rate of $4.0 million per
menth, subject to early redemption provisions at our option.

The estimated fair walue of such currency forward contracts at December
31, 2011 was a $£.8 million net liability, which amount is recognized as part
of accounts payable and accrued liabilities in our Consolidated Balance Sheet
and a corresponding $.8 million currency transaction loss in our Consolidated
Statement of Operations. To the extent we held such contracts during 2009,
2010 and 2011, we did not use hedge accounting for any of our contracts.

At December 31, 2011, ocur Component Products Segment held a series of
contracts to exchange an aggregate of U.5. $17.% million for an equivalent
value of Canadian dollars at exchange rates ranging from Cdn. $1.03 teo Cdn.
50.9% per U.S5. dollar. These contracts gualified for hedge accounting and
mature through December 2012, The exchange rate was Cdn. $1.02 per U.S.
dollar at December 31, 2011. The estimated fair wvalue of the contracts based
on gucted market prices was a minimal liability at December 31, 2011. Our
Component Products Segment had no currency forward contracts outstanding at
December 31, 2010,

The following table presents the financial instruments that are not
carried at fair walue but which reguire fair value disclosure as of Decemher
31, 2010 and 2011:

December 31,

2010 2011

Carryving Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value

(In milliens)

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash

equivalents $334.8 $ 334.8  $109.3
Promissory note receivable 15.0 15.90 -
Mote receivable from Contcran - - 11.2

Long-term debt (excluding capitalized leases):
Publicly-traded fixed rate debt -

KII Senior Secured Notes §532.8 § 536.0 $360.6 s
Snake River Sugar Company fixed rate loans 250.0 250.0 250.0
CompX variable rate promissory note 42.2 42.2 22.2
CompX variable rate bank credit facility 1.0 3.0 2.0
NL variable rate promisscry note 18.0 18.0 .0
WS fixed rate debt B7.4 B87.4 82.18

Honcantrolling interest in:
Kronos common stock 5208.7 $ 482.0 $240.2 =4
ML comman stock 56.8 %2.0 B4.6
CompX common stock 10.9 18.6 11.0

Valhi stockholders' eguity 5541.8 $2,509.2 £657.2 6,

The fair value of our publicly-traded marketable securities,
noncontrolling interest in NL Industries, Kronos and CompX and our common
stockholders' eguity are all based upon guoted market prices, Lewvel 1 inputs at
each balance sheet date. The fair value of our &.5% Notes are alsc based on
guoted market prices at each balance sheet date; however, these guoted market
prices represent Level 2 inputs because the markets in which the Notes trade
are not active. At each of December 31, 2010 and 2011, the estimated market
price of the 6.5% Notes was approximately €1,004 per €1,000 principal amount.
The fair wvalue of our fixed-rate nonrecourse loans from Snake River Sugar
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Company 1s based upon the $250 million redemption price of our investment in
the Amalgamated Sugar Company LLC, which collateralizes the nonrecourse loans,
(this is a Level 3 input). Fair waluss of wvariable interest rate notes
receivable and debt and other fixed-rate debt are deemed to approximate book
value. Due to thelr near-term maturities, the carrying amounts of accounts
receivakle and accounts payable are considered equivalent to fair wvalue. See
Notes 4 and 9.

Note 20 - Quarterly results of cperations (unaudited):
Quarter ended

March 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31
{(In millions, except per share data)

Year ended December 31, 2010

Het sales £356.8 5415.7 5413.2 £407.0
Gross margin 66.1 89.4 100.1 107.2
Cperating income 17.6 35.4 53.3 55.5

Net income'Y £ 15.1 £ 6.4 $ 18.1 g 24.2

Net income attributable
te Valhi stockholders 'V 13.6 4.5 14.4 17.8

Per basic share:
Met income attributable
to Valhi stockholders s .10 s .04 £ .13 % .15

Year ended December 31, 2011

Net sales 5455.7 £573.1 5584 .1 5471.2
Gross margin 148.9 200.7 212.7 155.4
Operating income 103.3 135.8 150.2 137.2

Het income'® % 53.2 $ 72.9 £ 93.1 5 75.8

Met income attributable
to Valhi stockholders ¥ 38.0 52.4 71.5 55.6

Fer bhasic share:
Net income attributable
to Valhi stockholders § .33 5 .46 £ .63 & .49

' We recognized the following amounts during 2010:

* a 524.4 million after noncontraolling interest non-cash income tax
benefit in the first guarter, see Note 12;

* a $517.4 millicn after-tax and nonconcrolling interest charge as a
result of a litigation settlement in the first quarter, see Notes
9 and 17;

# a £9.8 million after-tax and noncontrolling interest gain in the
first guarter for insurance settlement, see Notes 15 and 17;

* a 53.5 millicon after-tax and noncontrolling interest gain in the
third guarter as a result of a legal settlement, see Note 15; and

+ 54.4 millicn charge in the third guarter to our tax provision
related to a net increase 1in our reserves for uncertain tax
positions, see Note 12.



' We recognized the following amounts during 2011:

* a 52.4 million after-tax and noncontrolling interest non-cash
patent litigation settlement gain in the first guarter, see Note
17;

= a 51.7 million after-tax and noncontreolling interest loss on the
prepayment of debt in the first guarter, see Note 9;

* a $8.7 million after-tax and noncontrolling interest gain in the
third gquarter for insurance settlement, see Note 15;

* a %5.% million after-tax and noncontrelling interest charge in the
third guarter as a result of an asset held for sale write-down, see
Mote 7; and

*# 5$B8.4 million benefit in the third guarter to our tax provision
related to a net decrease in our reserves for uncertain tax
positions.

The sum of the gquarterly per share amounts may not egual the annual per
share amounts due to relative changes in the weighted average number of shares
used in the per share computations.
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VALHI, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE I - CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT
Condensed Balance Sheets
(In millions}

December 31,

2010 2011
Current assets:
Cash and cash eguivalents ] 1.3 g 1.8
Restricted cash egquivalents 1 -
Aocounts receivable .3 .1
Receivables from subsidiaries and affiliates:
Income taxes, net - 7.2
Other B «9
Deferred income taxes 1.3 1.5
Other .2 . d
Total current assets L 4.0 11.6
Other assets:
Marketahle securities 264 .2 262 .4
Investment in and advances to subsidiaries 1,004.2 1,156.6
Note receivable from affiliate - 11.2
Orher assets .4 .
Total other assets 1,268.8 1,430.5
Total assets 51,272 8 £1,442.1
Current liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt ] in.1 -] -
Payables to subsidiaries and affiliates:
Income taxes, net 4.5 -
Other .1 -
Accounts payable and accrued liakilities o ] .6
Total current liabilities 35.5 . B
Noncurrent liabilities:
Long-cerm debt 311.9 386.1
Deferred income taxes 382 .7 392.9
Other 20.9 5.3
Total noncurrent liabilities 695 .5 TE4.3
Stockhelders' eguity __5z21.8 657.2
Total liabilities and stockholders® eguity 51,.272.8 1,442.1

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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VALHI, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE I - COMDENSED FINAMNCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT (CONTINUED)

Condensed Statements of Operations

(In millions)

Revenues and cother income:
Interest and dividend income
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries
and affiliates
Gain on sale of business
COther income, net

Total revenues and other income
Costs and expenses:
General and administrative
Interest
Total costs and expenses
Income (loss) before income taxes

Provision for income taxes (benefit)

Net income {loss)

Years ended December 31,

2009 2010 2011
$ 26.2 % 26.1 $ 26.9
(60.5) 69.8 200.3
6.3 - -

.1 - -
(27.89) _ 95.9 227.2

6.3 5.7 6.0
_24.5 _28.0 28.1
30.8 33,7 34,1
(58.7} 62.2 183.1
(24.5) 11.9 (24.4)
£134.2) . 50.3 5217.5

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

5-2



VALHI, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE I - CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT (CONTINUED)
Condensed Statements of Cash Flows
(In millions)

Years ended December 31,

2008 2010 2011
Cash flows from operating activities:
Met income (loss) 5{34.2) S 80,3 & 217.5
Deferred income taxes .5 17.4 30.7
Gain on sale of business (6.3} - -
Eguity in earnings of subsidiaries
and affiliates 860.5 (69.8) (200.3)
Cash dividends from subsidiaries 31.2 28.8 g2.6
Other, net (.11 - -
Met change in assets and liabilities {26.8) 22.0 (24.1)
Net cash provided by operating
activities 24.8 4B8.8 106.4
Cash flows from investing activities:
Loansz to subsidiaries and affiliates:
Loans (85 .2] 145.1) {126.8)
Collections B 3g.1 33.4
Proceeds from sale of business 6.7 .5 .3
Investment in other subsidiary (5.5) {4.0) (3.4)
Cther, net _L.8) - .2
Net cash used in investing activities _{54.2) [10.5) (96.3)



VALHI, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE I - CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFOEMATION OF REGISTEANT (CONTINUED)

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)

(In milliens)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Indebtedness:
Borrowings
Principal payments
Loans from affiliates:
Borrowings
Principal payments
Cash dividends paid

Net cash provided by {(used in)
financing activities

Cash and cash equivalents:
Net increase (decrease)
Balance at beginning of year

Balance at end of year

Supplemental discleosures:
Cash paid (received] for:
Interest
Income taxes, net

Noncash investing activity -
MNote receivable from sale of business

Years ended December 31,

2009

5 70.7
(78.0)

95 .6
{17.7)
(45.4)

2010

237.1
(230.0)
{45.5)

(38.4)

2011

214.7
(170.6}
(53.7)

(9.6)

$ 28.2
(32.1)

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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VALHI, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE I - CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT (CONTINUED)
WNOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

December 31, 2011

Hote 1 - Basis of presentation:

We have prepared the accompanying Financial Statements on a "Parent
Company” basis. This means that our investments in the common stock or
membership interest of ocur majority and wholly-owned subsidiaries, including NL
Industries, Inc., Kronos Worldwide, Inc., Tremont LLC, Medite Corporation and
Waste Contrel Specialists LLC, are presented on  the equity method of
accounting. Our Consclidated Financial Statements and the Notes thereto, which
include the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of these
subsidiaries, are incorporated by reference inte these Parent Company Financial
Statements.

Hote 2 - Investment in and advances to subsidiaries:

December 31,

2010 2011

Investment in:
Kronos Worldwide, Inc. (NYSE: KRO) & 599.3 £ 666.8
NL Industries (NYSE: HNL) ize.s 374.0
Waste Control Specialists LLC 49.6 97.4
Tremont LLC 15.4 14.8
Medite (.3} (.5)
Total 992.9 1,1582.5
Loans to ML Industries 11.3 4,1
Total 004 .2 £1,156.6

In Hovember 2010, Kronos completed a seccondary public offering of
17.94 million shares of its common stock in an underwritten offering for net
proceeds of 5$337.8 million. The price to the public was $20.00 per share, and
the underwriting discount was 5.75% (or 51.15 per share). Costs of the
offering (exclusive of the underwriting discount) were approximately 5.7
million. The shares of Kronos common stock issued in the secondary offering
are identical to the previously issued outstanding shares in all respects,
including par wvalue, liguidation and dividend preference,. Bll shares were
sold to third-party investors. Upon completion of the offering, our aggregate
ownership of Kronos was reduced to 80% (50% held directly by us and 310% held
directly by HNLj. Under the provisions of ASC Topic 810, changes in parent
control that do not lead to deconsclidation are considered equity transactions
recognized through APIC and noncontrolling interest, accordingly no gain or
loss was recognized on this transaction. In May 2011, Kronos implemented a 2-
for-1 split of its common stock. We have adjusted all share and per-share
disclosures related to our investment in Kronos for all periods presented to
give effect to the stock split. The stock split had no financial statement
impact teo us, and our ownership interest in Kronos did not change as a result
of the split. See Note 3 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.



We have an unsecured revolving demand promissory note with NL whereby,
as amended, we agreed to loan NL up to $40 millien. Our lean to HNL bears
interest at prime plus 2.75% (6.0% at December 31, 2011), payable guarterly,
with all principal due on demand, but in any event no earlier than December
31, 2013. The amount of cur outstanding leoans to NL at any time is at our
discretion, NL paid 5.2 million and $£.3 million in interest te us in 2010 and
2011, respectively. All such intercompany interest income is eliminated in
the Consclidated Financial Statements. As of December 31, 2010 and 2011, we
had leoans cutstanding to NL of $511.3 million and $4.1 million, respectively,
which loans are alsc eliminated in the Consclidated Financial Statements,

Years ended December 31,
2008 2010 2011
(In millions}

Equity in earnings of subsidiaries and

arfiliates
Kronos Worldwide 5(21.6) S 71.8 £159.3
WL Industries (1l6.9) 28.2 B4.5
Waste Control Specialists LLC {27.6) (31.9} (42.5)
Tremont LLC 6.0 (.2) {.8)
Medite 1.4 _f.1}) (.2}
Total 5(60.5) $ 69.8 £200.3

Cash dividends from subsidiaries

Kronos Worldwide 5 - 5 7.3 £ 62.3
NL Industries 20.2 20.2 20.2
Tremont LLC 11.9 1.4 .1

Total 5 31.2 5 28.49 5 82.6
Note 3 - HNotes receivable from affiliates:

From time to time, we will have loans and advances outstanding between
us and wvarious related parties pursuant to term and demand notes. We
generally enter into these loans and advances for cash management
purposes. When we loan funds to related parties, we are generally able to
earn a higher rate of return on the locan than we would earn if we invested the
funds in other instruments, and when we borrow from related parties, we are
generally able to pay a lower rate of interest than we would pay if we had
incurred third-party indebtedness. While certain of these loans to affiliates
may be of a lesser credit guality than cash equivalent instruments cotherwise
available to us, we believe we have considered the credit risks in the terms
of the applicable loans. In this regard, in December 2011, we entered into an
unsecured revolving demand promissory note with Contran whereby we agreed to
loan Contran up te $30 million. Our loan to Contran bears interest at prime
plus 3.0% (6.25% at December 31, 2011), payable guarterly, with all principal
due on demand, but in any event no earlier than December 31, 2013. The amount
of our cutstanding leoans te Contran at any time is at our discretion. As of
December 31, 2011, we had loans outstanding te Contran of 511.2 million, and
interest income on our loan to Contran was 536,000 in 2011.



Note 4 - Long-term debt:

December 31,

2010 2011

Snake River Sugar Company S5250.0 £250.0

Kronos credit facility 61.9 136.1
Promissory note payable to Waste Control Specialists 0.1 -

Total 342.0 386.1
Less current maturities 30.1 =

Total long-term debt $311.% $386.1

Cur $250 million in leans from Snake River Sugar Company are
collateralized by our interest in The Amalgamated Sugar Company LLC. The
loans bear interest at a weighted average fixed interest rate of 9.4% and are
due in January 2027. At December 31, 2011, $37.5 million of the loans are
recourse to us and the remaining 5212.5 million is nonrecourse to us. Under
certain conditions, Snake River has the ability to accelerate the maturity of
these loans. See Note 4 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.

We have an unsecured revolving credit facility with EKronos which, as
amended, provides for borrowings from Kronos of up te $§225 million. The
facility bears interest at prime plus 1.0% (4.25% at December 31, 2011), and
is due on demand, but in any event no earlier than December 31, 2013.
Interest expense on our borrowings from Kronos were $.5 million and $3.7
million in 2010 and 2011, respectively. All such intercompany interest is
eliminated in our Ceonsolidated Financial Statements. 2&s of December 31, 2010
and 2011, we had leoans outstanding from Kronos of 561.% million and 5136.1
millicon, respectively, which locans are also eliminated in the Consolidated
Financial Statements. At December 31, 2011 $88.9 million was available for
borrowings under the facility.

We also have an unsecured revelving credit facility with Contran which
provides for borrowings from Contran of up to 5100 million. The facilicy, as
amended, bears interest at prime rate plus 1%, and is due on demand, but in
any event no earlier than December 31, 2013. Valhi pays an unused commitment
fee guarterly to Contran on the available balance. At December 31, 2011, no
amounts were outstanding under the Contran credit facility and $100 million
was avallable for borrowings,



Hote 5 - Income taxes:

The Amalgamated Sugar Company LLC is treated as a partnership for federal
inceme tax purposes. Valhi Parent Company's provision for income taxes
(benefit} includes a tax benefit attributable to Valhi‘s equity in losses of
Waste Control Specialists, as recognition of such income tax benefit is not
appropriate at the Waste Control Specialist level.

Years ended December 31,
2009 2010 2011
{In millions)

Components of provision for income taxes

{benefit):

Currently refundable £(15.6) $(10.7) ${43.8)

Deferred income taxes (benefit) (8.9} 22.6 19.4
Total 5(24.5) £ 11.9 $(24.4)

Cash paid (received) for income taxes, net:

Subsidiaries £ (1.9) £{12.5) 5(42.5)

Contran 2.2 (16.1) 10.3

Tax authorities .2 .1 .1
Total 5 -5 $(28.5) 5(32.1)

December 31,
2010 2011
{(In millions)

Components of the net deferred tax asset (liability) -
tax effect of temporary differences related to:
Investment in:

The Amalgamated Sugar Company LLC $1120.7) 5(137.0)
Kronos Worldwide (243.9) (243.9)

Federal and state loss carryforwards and other
income tax attributes 131.8 1.0
Accrued liabilities and other deductikle differences 4.2 2.5
Valuation allowance (2.7} (2.0)
Other taxable differences _(12.1) {12.0)
Total £1381.4) 5{391.4)
Current deferred tax asset 5 1.3 [ 1.5
Noncurrent deferred tax liability (362.7) (382.9)
Total $1361.4) $1(391.4)



) EXHIBIT 21.1
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

% of Voting
Jurisdiction Of Securities Held at
Incorporation December 31,
Name of Corporaticn or Organization 2011 (1)
Amcorp, Inc. Delaware 100%
ASC Holdings, Inc. Utah 100%
Amaltex, Inc. Texas 100%
Andrews County Holdings, Inc. Delaware 100%
Waste Control Specialists LLC Delaware 100%
Kronos Worldwide, Inc. (2) Delaware 50%
NL Industries, Inc. (2}, (3}, (4) Hew Jersey 83%
CompX Internaticnal Inc. ([4) Delaware 87%
Tremont LLC Delaware 100%
TRECC L.L.C. Nevada 100%
Basic Management, Inc. Nevada 32%
Basic Water Company Nevada 100%
Basic Environmental Control LLC Nevada 100%
Basic Power Company Nevada 100%
Basic Remediation Company LLC Nevada 100%
Basic Land Company Nevada 100%
The Landwell Company LE Delaware 50%
The Landwell Company LP Delawares 12%
TRE Holding Corporation Delaware 100%
TRE Management Company Delaware 100%
Tall Pines Insurance Company Vermont 100%
Medite Corporation Delaware 100%
Impex Realty Holding, Inc. Delaware 100%

(1} Held by the Registrant or the indicated subsidiary of the Registrant.

(2] Subsidiaries of Kronos are incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21.1 of
Kronos' Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011
(File No. 333-100047). ML owns an additional 30% of Kronos directly.

(3] Subsidiaries of NL are incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21.1 of NL's
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011 (File
NHo. 1-840).

(4) Subsidiaries of CompX are incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21.1 of
CompX's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011l
[File No. 1-13805).
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